
 

 

 
 

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA 
www.cherwell.gov.uk 

 

Committee: Executive 
 

Date:  Monday 4 March 2013 
 

Time: 6.30 pm 
 
Venue Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA 
 
Membership 
 

Councillor Barry Wood (Chairman) Councillor G A Reynolds (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Ken Atack Councillor Norman Bolster 
Councillor John Donaldson Councillor Michael Gibbard 
Councillor Tony Ilott Councillor Nigel Morris 
Councillor D M Pickford Councillor Nicholas Turner 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence      
 
 

2. Declarations of Interest      
 
Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest that they 
may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 
 
 

3. Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting      
 
The Chairman to report on any requests to submit petitions or to address the 
meeting. 
 
 

4. Urgent Business      
 
The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business 
being admitted to the agenda. 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
5. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 10)    

 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2013. 
 
 

Strategy and Policy 
 

6. Local Plan 2012 Update  (Pages 11 - 154)   6.35pm 
 
Report of Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy 
 
Summary 
 
To submit to members for their consideration an update report on the progress 
made to complete the Local Plan 2012.  
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To note the progress being made to complete the Cherwell Local Plan. 
 
(2) To approve the additional ‘focused’ consultation required. 
 
 

Service Delivery and Innovation 
 

7. Update on Major Programmes  (Pages 155 - 186)   7.05pm 
 
Report of Head of Transformation 
 
Summary 
 
To provide an update on progress in implementing robust governance of major 
change projects. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
(1) Note the work done to embed the governance standards for the Place 

Programme and Transformation Programme for Cherwell District Council and 
South Northamptonshire Council, including acting on guidance offered by 
Internal Audit. 

 
(2) Note the development of a Statement of Recommended Practice in relation 

to how major projects are managed, and the forthcoming opportunities for 
Members to be briefed on the methodology. 

 
(3) Note the plans to acquire temporary project management resources to 

ensure the robust delivery of the council’s major projects, and build future 
project management capacity. 

 
 



 

Value for Money and Performance 
 

8. Performance Management Framework 2012/13 Third Quarter Performance 
Report  (Pages 187 - 232)   7.15pm 
 
Report of Head of Transformation and Corporate Performance Manager 
 
Summary 
 
This report covers the Council’s performance for the period 01 October to 31 
December 2012 as measured through the Performance Management Framework.  
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To note the many achievements referred to in paragraph 1.3. 

 
(2) To identify any performance related matters for review or consideration in 

future reports identified in paragraph 1.4  
 

(3) To note progress on issues raised in the Quarter two report highlighted in 
paragraph 1.5 

 
 

9. 2012/13 Quarter 3 Finance Report  (Pages 233 - 248)   7.25pm 
 
Report of Head of Finance and Procurement 
 
Summary 
 
This report summarises the Council’s Revenue, Capital, Procurement action plan 
and Treasury performance for the first 9 months of the financial year 2012/13 and 
projections for the full 2012/13 period.  
 
These are measured by the budget monitoring function and reported via the 
Performance Management Framework (PMF) informing the 2013/14 budget 
process. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To note the projected revenue and capital position at December 2012. 

 
(2) To note the Q3 performance against the 2012/13 investment strategy. 

 
(3) To note the contents and the progress against the Corporate Procurement 

Action Plan (detailed in Appendix 1) and the Procurement savings achieved 
at December 2012 (detailed in Appendix 2). 

 
 
 
 



 

Urgent Business 
 

10. Urgent Business      
 
Any other items which the Chairman has decided is urgent. 
 
 

11. Exclusion of the Press and Public      
 
The following report contains exempt information as defined in the following 
paragraph of Part 1, Schedule 12A of Local Government Act 1972.  
 
3– Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information). 
 
Members are reminded that whilst the following item has been marked as exempt, it 
is for the meeting to decide whether or not to consider each of them in private or in 
public. In making the decision, members should balance the interests of individuals 
or the Council itself in having access to the information. In considering their 
discretion members should also be mindful of the advice of Council Officers. 
 
No representations have been received from the public requesting that this item be 
considered in public. 
 
Should Members decide not to make a decision in public, they are recommended to 
pass the following recommendation: 
 
“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded form the meeting for the following item of business, on the 
grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.” 
 
 

12. Bodicote Park  (Pages 249 - 254)   7.35pm 
 
Exempt report of Head of Regeneration and Housing 
 
This report is exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of 
Local Government Act 1972.  
 
 
 
 

(Meeting scheduled to close at 7.45pm) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Information about this Agenda 
 
Apologies for Absence  
Apologies for absence should be notified to 
democracy@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk or 01295 221589 prior to the start of the 
meeting. 
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the 
start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item. 
 
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & 
Supplementary Estimates 
 
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax 
must declare the fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget 
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the 
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax. 
 

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012 
 

This agenda constitutes the 5 day notice required by Regulation 5 of the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012 in terms of the intention to consider an item of business in private. 
 
Evacuation Procedure 
 
When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the nearest 
available fire exit.  Members and visitors should proceed to the car park as directed by 
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.  
 
Access to Meetings 
 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or 
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 
 
Mobile Phones 
 
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off. 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
 
Please contact Natasha Clark, Democratic and Elections 
natasha.clark@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk, 01295 221589  
 
Sue Smith 
Chief Executive 
 
Published on Friday 22 February 2013 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Cherwell District Council 
 

Executive 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Executive held at Bodicote House, Bodicote, 
Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 4 February 2013 at 6.30 pm 
 
 
Present: Councillor Barry Wood, Leader of the Council (Chairman)  

Councillor G A Reynolds, Deputy Leader of the Council (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 Councillor Ken Atack, Lead Member for Financial Management 
Councillor John Donaldson, Lead Member for Banbury Brighter Futures 
Councillor Michael Gibbard, Lead Member for Planning  
Councillor Tony Ilott, Lead Member for Public Protection 
Councillor Nigel Morris, Lead Member for Clean and Green 
Councillor Nicholas Turner, Lead Member for Performance & Customers 
 

 
Also 
Present: 

Councillor Sean Woodcock, Leader of the Labour Group 
Councillor Tim Emptage, Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group 
 

 
Apologies 
for 
absence: 

Councillor Norman Bolster, Lead Member for Estates & the Economy 
Councillor D M Pickford, Lead Member for Housing 

 
Officers: Sue Smith, Chief Executive 

Calvin Bell, Director of Development 
Ian Davies, Director of Community and Environment 
Martin Henry, Director of Resources / Section 151 Officer 
Kevin Lane, Head of Law and Governance / Monitoring Officer 
Karen Curtin, Head of Finance and Procurement 
Adrian Colwell, Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy 
Claire Taylor, Corporate Performance Manager 
Helen Town, Strategic Housing Officer 
Natasha Clark, Team Leader, Democratic and Elections 
 

 
 
 

87 Declarations of Interest  
 
Members declared interests in the following agenda items: 
 
8. High Speed 2 Consultation Responses - Property and Compensation; 
and Safeguarding. 
Councillor Nicholas Turner, Non Statutory Interest, as Chairman of the 
Banbury, Bicester and Worcester National Farmers Union. 
 
Councillor Nigel Morris, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of the National 
Farmers Union. 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Executive - 4 February 2013 

  

12. Oxfordshire County Council Sites Acquisition and Supported 
Housing Scheme. 
Councillor G A Reynolds, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Oxfordshire 
County Council. 
 
Councillor Michael Gibbard, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of 
Oxfordshire County Council. 
 
Councillor Nicholas Turner, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of 
Oxfordshire County Council. 
 
 

88 Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting  
 
There were no petitions or requests to address the meeting. 
 
 

89 Urgent Business  
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 
 

90 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 7 January 2013 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

91 Draft Budget 2013-14  
 
The Head of Finance and Procurement submitted a report which provided the 
second and final opportunity for the Executive to shape and refine the 
interaction between corporate service plans and financial matters before the 
final budget would be presented to full Council on 25 February 2013. 
 
In presenting the draft budget, the Lead Member for Financial Management 
reported that a balanced budget for 2013/14 had been prepared without the 
need to raise council tax. The proposed zero % increase in council tax was in 
line with the Council’s previously stated commitment and would be the fourth 
year that Council Tax had been frozen.  
 
The Lead Member for Financial Management reported that the council had 
successfully managed the budget challenges, previously forecast for 2013/14. 
The public promise of saving £800k had been over achieved together with 
total cost reductions in the 2012/13 budget of over £2m.  
 
The Lead Member for Performance and Customers provided an overview of 
the Council Business Plan, which set out the key priorities for the Council in 
2013/14, and Performance Pledges 2013/14, which reflected the key priorities 
of the Council in the coming year and would be circulated to every household 
with the council tax leaflet.  
 

Page 2



Executive - 4 February 2013 

  

Executive was advised that there would be minor updates to the Performance 
Pledges relating to the respective Banbury and Bicester Masterplans, 
collective switching, rolling out of the Banbury Brighter Futures programme 
across the district and continuing to support the Horton General Hospital. 
These would be reflected in the final version of the Pledges that would be 
presented to full Council on 25 February 2012.  
 
Councillor Woodcock, Leader of Labour Group, reported that the Labour 
Group accepted the budget and commended the innovation shown in 
addressing cuts and meeting the shortfall.  
 
In response to Councillor Woodcock’s comments in relation to ensuring all 
CDC staff were paid a living wage, the Lead Member for Financial 
Management acknowledged that a small number of staff were affected and 
this would be reviewed in due course.  
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the changes to the draft budget since 7 January 2013 be 

approved and the draft revenue budget in the context of the Council’s 
service objectives and strategic priorities be noted.  

 
(2) That the balanced budget be approved. 
 
(3) That Full Council be recommended to approve a Council tax freeze. 
 
(4) That the proposed 2013/14 capital programme be agreed. 
 
(5) That the review of earmarked revenue reserves undertaken by the 

Lead Member Financial Management and the Head of Finance and 
Procurement and approve re-allocation between various earmarked 
reserves be noted. 

 
(6) That the draft corporate plan and public pledges be endorsed and 

authority be delegated to the Director of Resources in consultation with 
the Leader of the Council and the Lead Member for Performance and 
Customers to make any minor amendments to the plan or pledges as 
required.  

 
(7) That the 2013/14 Business Plan and Budget Equality Impact 

Assessment be noted. 
 
(8) That it be noted the latest MTFS financial forecast was currently being 

refreshed and would be part of the budget book.  
 
(9) That officers be requested to produce the formal 2013/14 budget book 

on the basis of Appendices 1-6 (annex to the minutes as set out in the 
Minute book). 

 
(10) That the updated Draft Budget 2012/13 be recommended for adoption 

by the Council on 27 February 2012. 
 

Page 3



Executive - 4 February 2013 

  

(11) That authority be delegated to the Head of Finance and Procurement, 
in consultation with Director of Resources and the Lead Member 
Financial Management to amend the contributions to or from general 
fund balances to allow the Council Tax increase to remain at the level 
recommended by Executive to Full Council following the 
announcement of the final settlement figures and as a result of any 
financial implications arising from resolution 10.  

 
Reasons 
 
This report presents a final analysis of the Council’s draft 2012/13 Revenue 
and Capital Budget. The details in Appendix 1-6 will form the basis of the 
budget book to be presented to Council on 25 February to support the setting 
of Council Tax. 
 
Options 
 
Option One - To review draft revenue and capital budget to date and consider 

actions arising 
 
Option Two - To approve or reject the recommendations above or request that 

Officers provide additional information 
 
 

92 New Homes Bonus  
 
The Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy submitted a report which 
sought consideration of the proposed use of the New Homes Bonus in the 
Cherwell District. 
 
In introducing the report, the Lead Member for Planning circulated a schedule 
of amendments to the report which updated the original proposal to ensure 
that 25% of the New Homes Bonus would be used to meet the impact of 
planned growth across the whole district and improve community facilities in 
areas that had received development. 50% of the amount received would be 
held in a dedicated reserve (Local Government Resources Review Reserve) 
to enable the council to address any financial and service pressures. The 
remaining 25% would be allocated to supporting economic prosperity. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the proposed use of the New Homes Bonus for the first two year 

awards be approved as set out in the report as amended (annex to the 
minutes as set out in the minute book). 

 
Reasons 
 
There is no obligation on Cherwell Council to pass the New Homes Bonus on, 
but a clear expectation that this will be done. CDC has published this policy 
note to guide the use of any monies received from the New Homes Bonus to 
provide consistency, transparency and guidance for the how the first award 
might be used to the benefit of the District. 
 

Page 4



Executive - 4 February 2013 

  

Options 
 
Option One - To support the proposed use of the New Homes Bonus 
 
Option Two - To amend the proposed use of the New Homes Bonus 
 
Option Three - To not support the proposed use of the New Homes Bonus 
 
 

93 High Speed 2 Consultation Responses - Property and Compensation; 
and Safeguarding  
 
The Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy submitted a report which 
sought consideration of the Council’s draft responses to the Governments 
High Speed 2 (HS2) consultations on Compensation and Safeguarding. 
 
Executive was advised that the Property Compensation Consultation set out a 
proposed package of measures designed for owners and occupiers of 
property along the London-West Midlands line of the route. The Safeguarding 
Consultation was aimed primarily at local planning authorities along the line of 
the route, who would be aware of relevant planning issues in their areas and 
to whom the directions would apply. 
 
In considering the draft consultation responses, Members stressed that whilst 
they remained opposed to HS2, the council had a duty to protect its residents 
should it materialise. Members also noted that tenants and businesses would 
be affected and should therefore be included in the consultation response.  
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the draft responses to the Government’s High Speed 2 

Consultation documents on Property and Compensation and 
Safeguarding be approved for submission, subject to the inclusion of 
the following: 

• Inclusion of support for leaseholders and tenants in relation to 
properties and businesses 

 
Reasons 
 
It is our duty as a local planning authority to ensure that our district, our 
residents and businesses do not suffer as a result of High Speed 2. The draft 
consultation responses have identified substantial flaws within the 
Governments proposed approach to compensation and safeguarding.  
 
Options 
 
Option One – Do nothing 
 
Option Two - Respond as proposed. CDC is the Local Planning Authority and 
the only public body able to respond on matters of detail relating to the route 
now that it has been confirmed by Government. Failure to discharge this role 
will leave the District at considerable disadvantage. 
 

Page 5



Executive - 4 February 2013 

  

Option Three - Amend the proposed response. 
 
 

94 Revised Opening Hours  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report which sought consideration of the 
proposal to change the opening time on Wednesday from 08.45 to 09.45 with 
effect from 1 April 2013. 
 
Resolved  
 
(1) That the opening time on Wednesday from 08.45 to 09.45 with effect 

from 1 April 2013 be revised, subject to South Northamptonshire 
Council agreeing to do the same. 

 
Reasons 
 
Opening later on Wednesday will facilitate the holding of regular and effective 
team meetings amongst staff. 
 
Options 
 
Option One - To accept the recommendation 
 
Option - To reject the recommendation and make no change to office opening 
hours 
 
 

95 Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
Resolved 
 
That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded form the meeting for the following item of 
business, on the grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act. 
 
 

96 Oxfordshire County Council Sites Acquisition and Supported Housing 
Scheme  
 
The Head of Regeneration and Housing submitted an exempt report relating 
to the acquisition of sites owned by Oxfordshire County Council.  
 
Resolved 
 
(1) As set out in the exempt minute. 
 
(2) That the intention to bid for additional funding from the Homes and 

Communities Agency, to enable the Council to deliver 12 units of 
supported housing for adults with autism and 10 units of supported 
housing for people with physical disabilities be noted. 

 

Page 6



Executive - 4 February 2013 

  

(3) That authority be delegated to the Head of Regeneration and Housing, 
in consultation with the Lead Member for Regeneration, Head of Law 
and Governance, Head of Finance and Procurement and Lead 
Member for Financial Management, to conclude the outstanding 
negotiations for the relocation of Bicester Town Library, into the new 
Community Building in Bicester town centre. 

 
Reasons 
 
The negotiations between OCC and CDC in respect of these sites have been 
complex and at times challenging. The proposals protect the interests of both 
councils and deliver some significant outcomes for local people and the local 
physical and economic environment. 
 
Options 
 
Option One - To approve all the recommendations ~ whilst this is the most 
challenging option, it clearly delivers the most outcomes. 
 
Option Two - To approve none of the recommendations ~ this will cause risk 
to the council delivering its HCA contracts and limit opportunity to respond to 
housing need and attract further inward investment. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.10 pm 
 
 
 
 Chairman: 

 
 Date: 

 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Executive 
 

Local Plan 2012 update 
 

4 March 2013 
 

Report of Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To submit to members for their consideration an update report on the progress made 
to complete the Local Plan 2012.  
 
 

This report is public 
 

 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To note the progress being made to complete the Cherwell Local Plan. 

(2) To approve the additional ‘focused’ consultation required.  

 
 
Executive Summary 

 
 Introduction 
 
1.1      The Proposed Submission draft of the Cherwell Local Plan 2012:  

• Sets out clear ambitions for the District and the 2 towns in particular.  
• Provides certainty for communities and developers as to what will /can be 

developed and where. 
• Focuses growth at Bicester. 
• Proposes less growth at the villages than was envisaged in the Feb 2010 

version of the plan. 
•  Creates a major platform to help deliver economic development in a 

recession. 
• Strengthens the Town Centres at the heart of the District. 
• Identifies key additional infrastructure such as new road and rail investment. 
• Avoids coalescence with villages, by introducing new green buffers at the 

edge of development. 
• Takes permissions and what has been constructed into account. 
• Emphasises high environmental standards and design quality. 
• Protects the Oxford Canal 
• Promotes area renewal and regeneration in Banbury 
• Supports innovation such as Community Self build. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 11



 

• Addresses planning reforms 
  

 Proposals 
 
2.1     Securing the adoption of a ‘sound’ up to date Local Plan for the District is a 

priority for Cherwell District Council as it will guide the growth of the District 
over the next 19 years. 

 
2.2      This report provides an update on: 
 

a) The Public Consultation held in the Autumn 2012 including the 
detailed responses. 

b) The additional evidence received since December 2012. 

c) An outline of proposed Plan changes. 

d) An update on Sustainability Appraisal issues. 

e) The need for additional consultation on a limited number of issues. 

f) The latest timetable for completion of the plan and proceeding to 
examination. 

 
 
Background Information 

 
4.1 See Annex. 

 
 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 The approval of the additional ‘focused’ consultation. 

The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is 
believed to be the best way forward 
 
Option One To approve the additional ‘focused’ consultation.  

 
Option Two To proceed to submission at this stage would be 

‘unsound’.  
 

 
Consultations 

 

Cllr Michael Gibbard, 
Lead Member for 
Planning 

Regular Briefing 

 
Implications 

 

Financial: There are no significant direct financial implications 
A rising from this report.  

Page 12



 

 Comments checked by Karen Curtin. Head of Finance. 
0300-003-01606 

Legal: The Council is required to have an up to date Local Plan.  

 Comments checked by Nigel Bell Team Leader – 
Planning and Litigation 01295 221687 

Risk Management: Not having an up-to-date Local Plan is a major weakness 
for the consideration of planning applications and 
weakens the ability of the Council to shape and guide 
growth to the more sustainable locations.  

 Comments checked by Claire Taylor, Corporate 
Performance Manager 01295 221563  

 
 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 

• Accessible, Value for Money Council 

• District of Opportunity 

• Safe and Healthy 

• Cleaner Greener 
 

Lead Member 

 
Councillor Michael Gibbard   
Lead Member for Planning 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Annex Report on Submission draft Local Plan 2012 

Appendix A List of development policies which will apply to all development 
in Cherwell District. 

Appendix B  List of proposed development sites.  

Appendix C  Local Plan Evidence Base 

Appendix D  Table of Representations received 

Appendix E Proposed revised maps for Banbury, Bicester and Kidlington 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Adrian Colwell, Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy 

Contact 
Information 

03000030110 

adrian.colwell@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Annex: Local Plan 2012 update 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This report updates the Executive on the progress made to complete the 

Local Plan 2012. 
 
1.2 The report includes an update on: 
 

a) The Public Consultation held in the Autumn 2012 
b) Additional Evidence received since December 2012 
c) Proposed Plan Changes 
d) An update on Sustainability Appraisal issues 
e) The need for additional consultation on a limited number of issues 
f) The latest timetable for completion of the plan and proceeding to 

examination. 
 
1.3 The report also includes: 
 

• Appendix A - List of development policies which will apply to all 
development in Cherwell District. 

• Appendix B - List of proposed development sites.  

• Appendix C - Local Plan Evidence Base 

• Appendix D - Table of Representations received 

• Appendix E - Proposed revised maps for Banbury, Bicester and Kidlington 
 
2. Background 
 
2.1 General 
 
2.2 The context for the development of the Local Plan remains set by the national 

planning system, the Regional Spatial Strategy and the local evidence base. 
 
2.3 The Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) remains in force unrevoked and is not 

expected to be revoked until June/July 2013 at the earliest. Until revocation 
has taken place, the Council has a legal duty to conform to the RSS (as set 
out in the CALA 3 High Court judgement). 

 
2.4 The planning system was reformed in 2012 with new primary legislation, 

regulations and the publication of the National Planning Policy Framework.  
The publication of the Growth and Infrastructure Bill heralds further changes. 
Many of the changes have complex implications. 

 
2.5 Cherwell District has an out of date Local Plan which needs updating and 

lacks a 5 year land supply and is therefore exposed to potential development 
in locations it does not support.  

 
2.6 CDC is required to complete a plan which is ‘sound’ in terms of current 

planning guidance, capable of being accepted by the Planning Inspectorate 
for Examination and not being found wanting in terms of process followed or 
how evidence supports the proposals made.  

 
2.7 In view of the complexity of some of the issues we are considering from 

evidence and representations received, we propose some limited refinement 

Page 15



 

to the Proposed Submission Local Plan consulted upon in August – October 
2012. 

 
2.8 Some major development site details need to be refined as a consequence of 

new and emerging evidence.  In some cases development management 
discussions on sites have provided clarifications.    

 
2.9 The strategy for the Local Plan has an explicit urban focus, with the proposed 

growth concentrated at the two towns, as the most sustainable locations 
capable of absorbing new growth, rather than the villages, the least 
sustainable locations.  However, the Plan allows for a small level of growth in 
rural parts of the District to meet local needs. The proposed village growth 
figure is a residual figure based on level of growth at towns but having regard 
to the need to meet rural housing needs. 

 
2.10 The recession is also creating a stronger demand for employment generation 

which is supported by the proposed plan. 
 
2.11 Public Consultation 
 
2.12 The Council has sought to prioritise the production of a Local Plan for 

Cherwell District and is progressing with a challenging timetable to Plan 
Adoption. The Proposed Submission Local Plan was publically consulted 
upon between 29th August 2012 and 10th October 2012. This period included 
a series of exhibitions, consultation events and a local press briefing.  

 
2.13 An update report was presented to District Executive on the 3rd December 

2012 which provided an initial overview of the issues arising from the public 
consultation. The report also present the next steps with regard to the 
completion of the evidence, an updated Sustainability Appraisal, the legal 
support that has been engaged, the Local Development Scheme and an 
updated timetable.  

 
2.14 This report seeks to develop the initial summary further by presenting a table 

of all the individual comments received during the consultation period 
(Appendix D) alongside conclusions on the proposed changes to the Plan. It 
does not include responses made specifically in relation to the detail of the 
draft Bicester Masterplan which is a separate document and must be 
completed in accordance with the Local Plan.  Those responses will be 
reported to the Executive in due course. 

 
2.15 Further Analysis of Representations 
 
2.16 The Local Plan has received a high number of responses from four broad 

groups; local residents, Town & Parish Councils, infrastructure providers and 
landowners / developers. In total about 200 organisations and individuals 
made comment on the Plan (excluding two action groups with multiple 
signatures), equating to approximately 2000 individual comments / points.  

 
2.17 Local Residents Groups 
 
2.18 Three specific action groups; Hanwell Fields Development Action Group 

(HFDAG), Bicester (and villages) Against Sham Eco-town (BASE) and 
Adderbury Conservation Action Group (ACAG) have submitted 

Page 16



 

representations to the Cherwell Local Plan alongside the Campaign to Protect 
Rural England (CPRE) a national group.   

 
2.19 Adderbury Conservation Action Group 
 
2.20 The ACAG has sought clarification regarding the status of the ‘Green 

Boundaries to Growth’ (Policy ESD.15), the status of Adderbury within Policy 
Villages 1 which the group considers should be a Category A settlement and 
not subject to excessive growth and highlighted pressures on their local 
school.  

 
2.21 Bicester (and villages) Against Sham Eco-town 
 

BASE are concerned with the rapid expansion of Bicester and in particular the 
proposed Eco-Town in North West Bicester (Policy Bicester 1). They do not 
consider Eco-town is viable and therefore undeliverable and that in sufficient 
public consultation or public meetings have been carried out by the Council. 
They strongly object to Policy Bicester 1; as the scale of development is over 
1,000 acres with a site capacity likely to be near 8,000 homes rather than 
advertised 5,000 homes given modern density standards.  

 
2.22 They consider there is no requirement to allocate an eco-town if a better way 

of meeting future needs exists. Surplus MOD land is preferred for residential 
growth close to railway stations. The South East Plan target is only 5,000 
dwellings at Bicester, why have more? Additional car trips will be generated, 
there is unlikely to be 5,000 new jobs and new shops on the edge will 
damage town centre. 

 
2.23 The group have also raised concerns at the level of consultation undertaken, 

the lack of any environmental appraisal, consideration of alternatives or public 
Inquiry. They note that 100% of development will be on agricultural farm land 
when alternative sites are available on brownfield land. They believe that this 
development would harm Bicester and nearby villages, more vehicles on the 
road and shortfall in school places.  

 
2.24 Campaign to Protect Rural England 
 

The CPRE are generally supportive of the overall Vision, Objectives and 
Strategy of the Plan and in particular the policies that seek the protection of 
the countryside. Concerns are raised however on the reliance of the South 
East Plan targets and growth proposed at Bicester. They note the Council’s 
brownfield target is not particularly ambitious. All polices in Chapter B.3 
Ensuring Sustainable Development are supported and in particular Policies 
on Oxford Green Belt and Green Boundaries to Growth. The CPRE generally 
support the strategy for placed based policies but suggest Shipton-on-
Cherwell quarry as a possible site. Further clarification is sought for the 
limited Kidlington Green Belt review. Other points of issue relate to 
Infrastructure delivery, monitoring, quality of maps and resourcing.  

 
2.25 Hanwell Fields Development Action Group 
 
2.26 The HFDAG is active in the opposition to the allocation of North of Hanwell 

Fields (Banbury 5) & Southam Road (Banbury 2). The HFDAG submitted two 
separate letters undersigned by 90 & 60 signatures respectively. The letters 
of objection seek to de-allocate both sites from the Plan which they consider 

Page 17



 

are located in unsustainable locations for Banbury’s growth, citing the lack of 
education capacity, limited employment opportunities, traffic, requirement for 
a health care facility, distance from shops and expected anti-social behaviour 
as reasons. The group also expresses concerns at proposed development 
breeching the ‘natural’ boundary of Dukes Meadow Drive a northern boundary 
to the town.  

 
2.27 Other issues of concern with Banbury 2 include the high visual impact on 

local landscape and surrounding properties, increased flood risk and noise 
pollution, loss of agricultural land, the urbanisation of Banbury and the fact 
that proposed housing is not located near existing residential development.  

 
2.28 The group has also raised procedural concerns relating to the reliance on the 

South East Plan numbers, consistency with the NPPF, lack of public 
consultation and Banbury Masterplan, errors within supporting evidence and 
inconsistencies with earlier documents. A detailed analysis of other housing 
numbers and other Banbury sites has also been undertaken.  

 
2.29 Statutory Consultees and Key Stakeholders  
 
2.30 The District Council should have due regard to Statutory Consultees and 

infrastructure providers when preparing its Plans. The 3rd December 2012 
update report usefully summaries the views of Oxfordshire County Council & 
Oxford City Council under the duty to cooperate as well as the three main 
environmental agencies; English Heritage, Natural England & Environment 
Agency who must be consulted upon Sustainability Appraisal. This report 
seeks to expand upon the summary of the Districts Town and Parish Councils 
as well as key infrastructure providers the Highways Agency, Network Rail, 
Thames Water and Western Power Distribution.  

 
2.31 Banbury Town Council  
 

Banbury Town Council is generally supportive of the Plan but believes that 
good transport links are essential to growth and would like to see a South 
East Relief Road as well as the proposed Inner Relief Road seen is vital to 
capacity issues. The Town Council support a 30% target for affordable 
housing but highlight applications just below this target. Support Area 
Renewal (Policy BSC.5), the relocation of Banbury Canalside Gypsy site & 
concern at the deficiency of Open Space provision in the Town (Policy 
BSC.10).  

 
2.32 There is strong support of the Green Boundaries to Growth Policy, particularly 

at Salt Way and Crouch Hill as well as Policies ESD.16-18. The Town Council 
strongly support development at Banbury Canalside as the main brownfield 
option for the town although delivery is a concern.  Allocation of Hardwick 
Farm, Southam Road is supported. Concern expressed at the hope value 
attached to the land between the cemetery and the M40 for Hardwick Hill 
Cemetery Expansion which they would like to see as a specific allocation. 
Preference for future greenfield residential development is given to West of 
Bretch Hill, with concern raised at the extension to Bankside Phase 2 
because of traffic congestion.  Although respecting the need for further growth 
the Town Council are apprehensive about proposed development at North of 
Hanwell Fields.  

 

Page 18



 

2.33 Support is given to Banbury 6 – Employment Land West of M40 but concern 
is raised at its potential for B8 rather than more desirable B1 and B2. Policy 
Banbury 7 – Strengthening Banbury Town Centre is supported as well as 
Land at Bolton Road which can be used to create connections with Parsons 
Street. Support the Spiceball Development Area as a culture quarter for a 
new library and theatre / Cinema. They would like to see community 
woodland on the fringe of Banbury.  

 
2.34 Bicester Town Council  
 

Bicester Town Council welcomes the production of the Bicester Masterplan 
and the opportunity it presents to address existing infrastructure deficiencies 
in the town. Concern is raised regarding inconsistencies between the Bicester 
Masterplan and the Bicester chapter in the Local Plan. Bicester Town Council 
also wishes to draw attention to identified need for new allotment land and 
burial ground extension (Policy 9: Burial Site in Bicester). Strongly support 
jobs led development but would like to see further employment land allocated 
in the Local Plan as reflected in the Masterplan,  with a general view that 
employment land should be focused in the South East and residential in the 
West and North.  

 
2.35 Bicester Town Council would also like to see all residential development 

contributing towards affordable housing and not just schemes of 10 or more. 
Support approach to transport provision but would like to see more integration 
with the Evergreen 3 east to west rail and its electrification including the use 
of rail freight, although concern is raised at capacity of London Road level 
crossing. Site specific comments relate to North West Bicester where concern 
is raised at the timing and provision of services which also apply to Graven 
Hill and South west Bicester Phase 2. Strong support is given to Bicester 
Business Park, Policies Bicester 4 – 8 & Policies Bicester 10-12.  

 
2.36 Kidlington Village Council  
 
2.37 The Village Council accept the Local Plans principles that housing 

development at Kidlington should be limited to local needs only within the 
existing Green Belt however they object to Kidlington being allocated a 
Category A village.  Kidlington is considered to have a larger more complex 
housing need and the Village Council do not consider the proposed 259 
dwellings is based on sufficient evidence of future housing needs. The Village 
Council argues that the Plan contains an underestimation of the Kidlington 
population. The Plan should seek a minimum total growth target of 13,400 
dwellings reflecting RSS housing figure.  

 
2.38 The Village Council are particularly supportive of the proposed Kidlington 

Masterplan but would like reassurance that it will include an up to date 
reassessment of local housing need. Kidlington Village Council have raised 
concern that site below 10 dwellings will not contribute towards affordable 
housing requirements and instead recommend that this is reduced to three. 
Support is given to the extension to the West side of Oxford Road although 
consider the proposed 2,500sqm threshold for retail impact assessment is set 
to high. Concern is raised at the miscalculation of existing retail floor space 
which should show under trading. Welcome the proposed selective Green 
Belt Review at Langford Lane which will allow for the development of 
approximately 11.3ha of employment land for high tech industry. Although 

Page 19



 

would like to see the review opened up to residential development to reflect 
the jobs created.  

 
2.39 The Council would like the Plan to qualify the degree of growth proposed at 

London Oxford Airport within its existing boundaries. Supportive of proposals 
for a new train station at Water Eaton Park but would expect review of 
evidence for Station at new Technology Park and at Lyne Mead in Kidlington. 

 
2.40 Parish & Ward Councils 
 

Many of the Districts Parish & Ward Councils have made comment on the 
Local Plan1. In general the outlining Parishes to Banbury & Bicester have 
expressed concerns at the potential impact at growth on the rural setting of 
adjacent villages, traffic in respect of rat running, capacity issues of school 
provision and visual impact. The proposed Green Boundaries to Growth 
(Policy ESD.15) is generally supported in principle although several 
anomalies have been identified. Bodicote Parish Council has expressed 
anxiety at the potential for coalescence with Banbury.  

 
2.41 Wendlebury Parish Council in particular has concerns regarding the location 

of the proposed Southern Link Road at Bicester and resultant rat running. 
 
2.42 Several of the Parish Councils have expressed concerns at their 

categorisation within Policy Villages 1 although the smaller villages are 
generally supportive. Many of the Parish Councils have sought further 
clarification as to the distribution of housing amongst the grouped settlements 
as set out in Policy Villages 2 as this is considered unclear. General support 
is given to the proposed Affordable Housing Policy and threshold of 3 
dwellings.  

 
2.43 Merton Parish Council have sought exclusion of land from the Green Belt. 

Bletchingdon Parish Council are proposing to prepare a Neighbourhood Plan. 
Some criticisms have been expressed at the CRAITILUS study and the lack 
of an up to date SHLAA and SHMA. The protection of RAF Bicester for 
leisure purposes is advocated by Caversfield & Stratton Audley Parish 
Council.  

 
2.44 Key Agencies 
 
2.45 Environment Agency 
 
2.46 The EA reviewed the updated Level 2 Canalside Strategic Flood Risk 

Assessment. When they commented on the previous version of the report 
they raised concerns with a number of fundamental issues in relation to, 
amongst other things, the functional floodplain and the assessment of flood 
risk and hazard across a range of flood events. The current version of the 
report addresses these fundamental issues and they no longer consider that 
that Policy Banbury 1: Banbury Canalside is unsound. 

 

                                                 
1
 Adderbury Parish Council, Ambrosden Parish Council, Bucknell Parish Council, Bletchingdon Parish Council, 
Bloxham Parish Council, Bodicote Parish Council, Caversfield Parish Council, Chesterton Parish Council, Cropredy 
Parish Council, Fritwell Parish Council, Finmere Parish Council, Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council, Launton 
Parish Council, Milcombe Parish Council, Merton Parish Council, Middleton Stoney Parish Council, South Newington 
Parish Council, Stoke Lyne Parish Council, Stratton Audley Parish Council, Wendlebury Parish Council, Wroxton & 
Balscote Parish Council & The Astons and Heyford Ward. 

Page 20



 

2.47 Highways Agency  
 
2.48 In the first instance the Highways Agency would recommend more 

sustainable measures to reduce the need to travel are explored in the first 
instance with large infrastructure improvements such as the Bicester South 
East relief road and Banbury Inner relief road explored as a last resort. They 
note that it is currently unclear how these projects are to be delivered or what 
their affect on the Strategic Road Network will be? 

 
2.49 The Plan is also considered not clear about funding or delivery of key 

transport schemes noted within the document. There is concern that the 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) is only in Draft. The Highways Agency are 
broadly supportive of Eco-town development (Policy Bicester 1) but have 
concerns as to the operation of M40 Junctions 9 & 10 when Eco-town is 
developed. Concern expressed that the Integrated Transport and Land Use 
Studies for Banbury, Bicester and the rest of Cherwell Rural Areas are out of 
date. Questions regarding the package of infrastructure measures needed for 
each study area therefore remaining outstanding. 

 
2.50 The Local Plan should provide clarification as to the operation of M40 J11 and 

whether the proposed development in the district can be accommodated on 
the key junction that provides access to Banbury. The Highways Agency are 
content that M40 Junction 9 can mitigate development at Graven Hill site. 
Welcome proposed improvements to works and new infrastructure but require 
update of the transport and land-use study evidence base. Concern that no 
detail has been provided on the improvements to M40 J9 or mitigation of J10 
& J11 in the draft IDP.  

 
2.51 Utilities 
 
2.52 Thames Water 
 
2.53 Whilst the levels of growth in the Local Plan are not considered to be 

unmanageable, infrastructure upgrades will be required at Bicester in 
particular and developers should work with Thames Water to draw up water 
and drainage strategies. The exact scale and location will be determined once 
there is a clear phasing plan. Thames Water support the aims of water 
neutrality at the Bicester Eco-town (Policy Bicester 1) but suggest Policy ESD 
6 should include reference to sewer flooding and an acceptance that flooding 
could occur away from the flood plain as a result of development where off-
site infrastructure is not in place ahead of development.  

 
2.54 Western Power  
 
2.55 Western Power own a number of strategic electricity distribution circuits in the 

District and expect developers to contribute to the cost. If needed Western 
power would normally seek to retain the position of certain electricity circuits.  
There are considered no restrictions in terms of the position of new 
development and its overhead lines but advise that these are taken into 
account 

 
2.56 Developers / Landowners 
 
2.57 The development industry is promoting a large number of residential and 

employment sites on the edges of Banbury and Bicester as major locations 

Page 21



 

for growth as well as some smaller scale proposals in the rural villages and at 
Kidlington in the Green Belt.  

 
2.58 The development industry in general are supportive of the Plan’s strategy to 

direct most growth towards Banbury and Bicester as the most sustainable 
locations for growth however some of them have expressed concern at the 
lack of sustainable growth proposed in some of the villages, particularly with 
regard to affordable housing provision, infilling, brownfield sites, small scale 
employment opportunities and support for rural services2. 

 
2.59 Many of the main developers promoting sites in the District have sought to 

raise objections to the lack of an up to date SHMA and SHLAA which they 
consider to be essential pieces of evidence in support of the Local Plan and 
have criticised the Council for not allowing sufficient public consultation on 
this evidence, often quoting NPPF paragraph 47 ‘use the evidence base to 
ensure that the Local Plan meets the full, objectively assessed needs for 
market and affordable housing’.  

 
2.60 Although their was general support in principle for the retention of the South 

East RSS housing figures in Cherwell it was still felt by many developers that 
the Local Plan should still adopt locally derived housing figures.3 The South 
East Plan is considered to only plan for reasonable levels of housing and not 
to boost significantly as suggested by the NPPF and the South East Plan 
evidence is also considered is out of date and based on earlier household 
projections.  

 
2.61 The Local Authority would instead be expected to test higher housing figures 

related to 2011 Census data and later housing projectors. In short the 
proposed housing target should be based on; population growth, the 
economy, military changes, labour force ratio, market factors, housing hold 
projections / demographics, infrastructure and flexibility. 

 
2.62 Several developers also raised viability concerns regarding Affordable 

Housing Policy (BSC.3), the detailed Infrastructure Needs within the Placed 
Based Policies and the Renewable Energy Requirements set out under 
ESD.2-4. The lack of a finalised IDP was also noted as a concern.  

 
3.0 Implications for the proposed Local Plan 
 
3.1 As the detailed assessment shows, many contradictory positions were 

advanced by different respondents, which is not a surprise given the different 
interests being consulted over levels and locations of growth. The Planning 
Policy team has considered the points made. Some respondents offered text 
refinements that can easily be accommodated to achieve greater clarity in the 
document. Most of the points offered concerned points of detail or individual 
concern, very few responses challenged the premises on which the Plan has 
been developed and structured. 

 
3.2 Across all of the responses two main themes emerge which we have 

addressed by considering text changes and showing more clearly how the 

                                                 
2
 Barton Willmore on behalf of Archstone Land, Kemp & Kemp on Behalf of Berkeley Homes (Oxford and Chiltern) 
Limited  & Framptons on behalf of Mintondale Developments 
3
 CALA Homes, Woolfbond Planning on behalf of Miller Strategic Homes, Barton Willmore on behalf of Taylor 
Wimpey UK Ltd Marrons on behalf of Hallam Land Management & Boyer Planning on behalf of Bloor Homes 
(Western) Ltd 

Page 22



 

evidence base has informed the content of the plan and the locations for 
growth. 

 
3.3 Some issues raised are effectively early indications of the challenges that 

CDC will need to be prepared to address at the Plan Examination in 2013. 
 
3.4 At Banbury concerns at North of Hanwell Fields, Southam Road, West of 

Bretch Hill are being considered with the benefit of new landscape evidence 
which is the process of being finalised.  This includes the refined identification 
of green buffers and where necessary the scope for mitigation.  

 
3.5 These responses illustrate the challenge facing Banbury, which is that 

wherever development is located at the edge of the town there are 
topographical limits and significant constraints which need to be balanced 
with the advantages of development in each location. 

 
3.6 At Bicester concern relates to the impact of proposed relief road on the village 

of Wendlebury. The Bicester Movement Study has now considered a full 
range of route options an alternative route option avoid direct impact on 
Wendlebury. Although the Local Plan allows for consideration of a proposed 
relief road, any specific proposals will be pursued outside of the main Local 
Plan process. 

 
4.0 Additional evidence 
 
4.1 A substantial evidence base is nearing completion since the last update 

report in December 2012 and the following additional studies have either 
been completed or are at an advanced stage.  

 
Table 1: Evidence Update 

 

Title Comment 

i. SHLAA 
(Peter 
Bretts) 

Final draft under review.  Completion expected end of 
Feb / early March 

ii. Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan 
(CIL 
Knowledge) 

Draft received. Part 1 expected completion end of 
Feb/early March.  Part 2 (further cost analysis) to follow. 
The Infrastructure Delivery Plan, sets out what 
infrastructure is judged necessary through the plan and 
on the key development sites. 

iii. SHMA Study 
(Bob Line) 

Complete and published 

iv. Bicester 
Masterplan 
(White 
Young 
Green) 

 

Final Draft to follow Local Plan. The Bicester Masterplan 
sets out details of how the town might develop in an 
integrated manner. It cannot formally completed and 
adopted until after the adoption of the Local Plan, as 
while forming part of the evidence base for the Local 
Plan in its draft form, to be adopted it needs to conform 
to the adopted Local Plan, i.e. follow it. 

v. Bicester 
Movement 

Complete. The Bicester Movement Study considered the 
route options for the proposed Relief Road and other 

Page 23



 

Study (White 
Young 
Green) 

transport matters facing Bicester as it grows.  

vi. Banbury 
Masterplan 
(White 
Young 
Green) 

Draft. The Banbury Masterplan considers the growth of 
Banbury and provides greater clarity about the role and 
capacity of the Town Centre sites – Bolton Road, 
Spiceball and Canalside, though it does not itself allocate 
sites (the role of the Local Plan), it provides important 
advice about how development sites might be integrated 
with the existing town. It will not be formally completed 
and adopted until after the adoption of the Local plan to 
ensure it remains in conformity with it. The Masterplan 
has an important role to play in demonstrating how 
Canalside can be delivered as a development area, 
taking full account of the upgrade of the railway line and 
the opportunity this creates for resolving Bridge Street 
access. 

vii. Banbury 
Movement 
Study (White 
Young 
Green) 

Complete. The Banbury Movement Study considers 
transport matters facing Banbury as it grows.  

viii. Green Buffer 
Study (LDA) 

Draft received. Near completion . The study provides 
greater clarity over the role and location of the proposed 
green buffers at each town.  

ix. Landscape 
sensitivity 
and capacity 
assessment 
Bicester & 
Banbury - 
update 

Draft under review. Near completion by WYG. These 
studies update the Halcrow study 2010 

x. Banbury 
Environment
al / 
Landscape 
Study 

Draft under review.   Considers wider landscape issues 
at Banbury.   Completion by LDA expected soon 

xi. Gypsy & 
Traveller 
Study  

Complete and published. This is a study that examines 
how the new Plan can meet the needs of Gypsies and 
Travellers as set out in the NPPF.  

 
Table 2: To be Completed Shortly 

  

Title Comment 

xii. Habitats 
Regulations 
Assessment 
(Stage 1 - 
Screening) of 
Proposed 

Update to accompany sustainability assessment is 
due by the start of the proposed additional 
consultation period.  

Page 24



 

Submission Local 
Plan 

xiii. Canalside 
Viability Study 

Tender Docs Issued 

xiv. Refresh of 
Affordable 
Housing Viability 
Study 

Refresh of 2010 study 

 
Note – Tenders have been issued for the Kidlington Framework Masterplan 
and its completion will inform the Local Neighbourhoods DPD which follows 
the completion of the Local Plan 

 
5.0 Proposed Plan Changes 
 
5.1 Arising from the representations received and the additional evidence, the 

following changes to the Local Plan are proposed for further consideration 
and testing including where necessary through the Sustainability Appraisal 

 
Theme One  
 

• Make sure it is clear that new business and commercial investment 
will be supported 

• Plan will support University investment as playing a vital role in the 
strengthening of the economy of the District. 

• Introduce greater flexibility of 'B' uses to assist with site promotion. 

• Proposal to strengthen the Town Centre is underpinned by a new 
Retail analysis 

• Takes account of rail investment HSLOS, East-west rail and 
Evergreen three 

• Growth at Bicester and associated Movement Study shows need for a 
relief road. The new WYG options appraisal has considered 
alternative route options which require further testing and will be 
developed separately from the Local Plan process.   

 
Theme Two  

 

• Revised policies for housing mix and strong support for community 
self build. 

• Renewal Areas - alignment with 'Brighter Futures for Banbury' 
programme, initially in wards at Banbury. Gives planning basis for 
urban regeneration programmes. 

• Updated Gypsy and Traveller policy to take account of recently 
published needs assessment. 

• Education policy updated to include new education provision including 
special schools. 

 
Theme Three 

 

• Guidance on the Energy policies ESD 1-5 has been published to 
provide guidance on how the plan might be interpreted. 

• Green buffers on the edge of Bicester and Banbury to safeguard 
important gaps and avoid coalescence between town growth and 

Page 25



 

surrounding villages. Updating of maps accordingly (see appended 
drafts subject to further testing).    Where a green buffer is not shown, 
protection is provided by the policy against development in the open 
countryside.  

• Oxford Canal is recognised as a major linear connection now has a 
Conservation Area designation 

 
Bicester  

 

• Reflected on emerging landscape evidence and amended proposed 
Town Maps to take account of emerging Green Buffer proposals.  

• Clarified phasing proposed for Bicester East in context of new 
information about site deliverability.  

• Additional small sites for employment will be identified through Local 
Neighbourhoods DPD. 

• Town Centre - make clear the proposed extension of the town centre 
is to be confirmed through the work on the Local Neighbourhoods 
DPD. 

• Review phasing of sites in housing trajectory having regard to latest 
information on deliverability. 

 
Banbury  

 

• Reflected on emerging landscape evidence and testing previous 
evidence in view of contested sites.  Testing assumptions for 
individual sites.  Emerging evidence suggests the need for some site 
refinement at Banbury which will need to be tested through the 
Sustainability Appraisal.  The town has a choice as to where growth is 
directed - whether to the south or the north. Banbury Southam Road 
east side is connected to the employment site. But west of Warwick 
Road is no longer a reserve site and south of Salt way are not 
supported in the light of emerging landscape evidence. 

• Town Centre - make clear the proposed extension of the town centre 
is to be confirmed through the work on the Local Neighbourhoods 
DPD. 

• Bolton Road - change to retail plus residential and commercial. 

• Spiceball - change to culture, cinema, retail and renewed Mill with 
improved connectivity to the town centre. 

• Canalside – viability study is underway. Development area contains a 
number of development options including wharfs on canal, use of 
river. Need for buildings/features marking arrival. 

• North of Hanwell Fields – review implications of emerging landscape 
assessments of edge of Banbury and current planning application for 
its potential to increase the proposed level of housing growth with 
appropriate level of mitigation.  

• Southam Road – the emerging landscape assessments consider that 
land to the west of Southam Road has more development challenges 
than the eastern part of the development area.  

• Banbury Movement Study – being published to update the BANITLUS. 

• SPDs will follow completion of the Local Plan. 

• Town Maps take account of emerging Green Buffer proposals. 

• Review phasing of sites in housing trajectory having regard to latest 
information on deliverability. 

 

Page 26



 

Kidlington  
 

• Refer to preparing a Kidlington Framework 'Masterplan' to address the 
specific issues faced by Kidlington and its green belt constraint.  

• Refer to opportunity to strengthen economy of the town by maximising 
the role of Oxford University and the its strategic location between 
Bicester and Oxford on the A34, taking advantage of the new 
transport investment in improved rail links to Oxford and Bicester 
including a new Water Eaton station. Planning to conduct a limited 
green belt review at Kidlington to secure additional high value 
employment growth.  

 
Villages 

 

• The plan limits growth at the villages as they are less sustainable 
locations than the 2 towns. Housing distribution figures to be updated 
taking account of latest completions and permissions and to consider 
the effect of recent planning decisions and appeals. 

• Where villages prepare (and complete) a Neighbourhood Plan they 
will form part of the statutory Development Plan and have 
considerable weight in guiding limited growth in villages to the location 
supported by the community. 
  

6.0 Sustainability Appraisal – Update 
 
6.1 The Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) Directive requires responses 

to consultation to be taken into account during the preparation of the plan or 
programme and before its adoption or submission to a legislative procedure. 
Consultation on the Sustainability Appraisal took place alongside the Local 
Plan between 29th August – 10th October 2012.  

 
6.2 CDC received direct responses to the SA from 16 individuals and 

organisations resulting on 56 comments on the SA. It should also be 
considered that, comments received only on the Local Plan will ultimately 
affect the SA too if they result on changes to the Local Plan. 

 
6.3 Organisations responding 
 

• Berrys on behalf of Gleeson Developments Ltd 

• Bioscan 

• Cropredy Parish Council 

• David Lock Associates on behalf of Gallagher Estates 

• English Heritage 

• Framptons on behalf of Barwood Developments 

• HFDAG 

• Hives Planning on behalf of Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / 
trustees of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity 

• Natural England 

• Oxfordshire County Council 

• Rapleys LLP 
 
6.4 Individuals responding 
 

• Mr R. Bratt 

Page 27



 

• Mr. J Colegrave 

• Ms K Jones 

• Ms C Nunn 
 
6.5 The Consultation Bodies4 for the purposes of the SEA Directive are the 

Environment Agency, Natural England and English Heritage.  
 
6.6 English Heritage main comments relate to the potential effect of development 

on the historic environment in Bicester; potential harm to Achester Roman 
Town and the Wretchwick Deserted Medieval Settlement in particular. 

 
6.7 Natural England confirmed they did not have any comments to make on the 

SA report and the Environment only made comments to the Local Plan.  
 
6.8 The County Council provided comments on the archaeology and ecology of 

specific sites. 
 
6.9 The main comments from other consultees relate to the following: 
 

• Lack of information on the selection of sites through the progression of 
the Local Plan and whether the SA process to date has adequately 
justified the progression/rejection of development sites. The sites 
questioned were: Salt Way/Wykham Park Farm (omission site), West of 
Bretch Hill (Banbury 3), Hardwick Farm/Southam Road (Banbury 2), and 
North of Hanwell Fields (Banbury 5). 

• Whether the SA demonstrates that the growth proposed for Banbury in 
the Local Plan is the most appropriate strategy  when considered 
against reasonable alternatives 

• Support for the limited number of dwellings proposed for villages. Future 
work (through Local Neighbourhoods DPD) should reflect current 
population, type and mix of housing and materials to reflect village 
characteristics; and 

• Need for further evidence to assess the sustainability of sites and inform 
mitigation measures in Banbury due to Banbury’s topographical and 
capacity constraints to growth. 

 
6.10 Potential changes to the Local Plan and its evidence  
 
6.11 Where matters of soundness are raised through consultation on the Local 

Plan, or materially significant issues arise from new evidence, any proposed 
changes to the Plan should be appraised and the SA report updated, or a 
supplementary report produced. Changes that are not significant will not 
require further sustainability work. 

 
6.12 Presently the main identified areas of proposed change in the Local Plan or 

its evidence which could potentially affect the Sustainability Appraisal are: 
 

• Emerging landscape and environmental evidence affecting the 
assessment of sites and the identification of sites including Green 
Buffers; 

                                                 
4
 Those authorities which, because of their environmental responsibilities, are likely to be concerned by 

the effects of implementing the plan or programme, and must be consulted on the scope and level of 

detail of the information to be included in the Environmental Report. 

Page 28



 

• Latest housing completions and permissions; and 

• Changes to town centre policies (Bicester 5 and Banbury 7) and 
housing mix policy (BSC4). 

 
6.13 However, as a number of pieces of evidence are presently being finalised, a 

further check for any other necessary changes will need to be made. 
 
6.14 Potential effect of main issues raised through SA consultation and Local Plan 

changes 
 
6.15 At the present time it is considered that the emerging evidence (particularly 

on landscape), together with the responses to the consultation and updates to 
baseline information such as housing completions and permissions are likely 
to have an effect on the appraisal of the sites/policies listed below. Whether 
this will alter the result of the Sustainability Appraisal and whether other 
sites/policies will be affected cannot be ascertained until the evidence is 
finalised and all sites proposed and rejected through the Local Plan process 
are reassessed. 

 

Sites where the Sustainability Appraisal is likely to be affected 

Sites in the Proposed Submission Local 

Plan 

Sites not in the Proposed Submission 

Local Plan 

Bicester 1 North West Bicester/Eco town 

(Howes Lane, Lords Lane) 

Land West of Warwick Road (BAN 4 in 

the Draft Core Strategy 2010) 

Bicester 8 Bicester Airfield Way (BAN 4 in Options for Growth 2008) 

Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business 

Park 

Wykham Park Farm and South of Salt  

Bicester 12 Bicester East   Land west of Bloxham Road (BAN 5 (a) in 

Options for Growth 2008) 

Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Land east of the M40 (BAN7 in the 

Supporting Report to Options for Growth 

2008) 

Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm/Southam Road South East of Hanwell (BAN 9 in the 

Supporting Report to Options for Growth 

2008) 

Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields South of Thorpe Way (BAN 10 in the 

Supporting Report to Options for Growth 

2008) 

Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road  

 
6.17 None-site specific policies presently affected by proposed changes arising 

from new or emerging evidence or consultation responses are ESD 15 Green 
Boundaries to Growth, Bicester 5 Strengthening Bicester Town Centre, 
Banbury 7 Strengthening Banbury Town Centre and BSC4 Housing Mix. 

 
6.18 In Sustainability Appraisal terms it is considered that changes to Bicester 5, 

Banbury 7 and BSC 4 are unlikely to give rise to any significant negative 
effect and it is unlikely that further assessment will be required.   

 

Page 29



 

6.19 The Sustainability appraisal of Plan policy ESD 15 will depend on the 
outcome of final landscape and environmental evidence. 

 
6.20 Next steps for the SA 
 
6.21 The Sustainability Appraisal is currently being updated with an updated 

baseline evidence and a clearer review of options rejected to date. Policies 
will be reassessed on the basis of this baseline including sites previously 
rejected. Alongside this assessment will be an updated Habitats Regulation 
Assessment. 

 
6.22 The amended Sustainability Appraisal report will be consulted upon alongside 

the ‘focused consultation’ on the Local Plan Proposed Submission. 
 
6.23 These new documents will be available from the CDC Website. 
 
7.0 Proposed Additional ‘Focused’ Consultation  
 
7.1 In preparation for the Examination of the Local Plan, the officers have 

received advice from Counsel on the final stages of plan completion and the 
implications of the proposed changes arsing from new evidence and 
representations.  

 
7.2 The Plan must be considered ‘sound’ at Examination to be adopted by the 

Council and Counsel’s advice is now shaping how we proceed to complete 
Plan drafting and the next steps we take. 

 
7.3 A number of changes are proposed to the draft Cherwell Local Plan arising 

from a combination of responses received to the consultation on the plan 
(Aug – Oct 2012), and some arise from evidence being completed since the 
plan was consulted upon. Most of the proposed changes are relatively minor, 
but a small number of policy changes are regarded as major and judged by 
our legal advisers to be ‘significant material changes’ to the plan. 

 
7.4 In addition, changes may be required to the site yield on sites following the 

receipt of additional evidence. The total amount of growth proposed in the 
Local Plan for the District up to 2031 is not proposed to change and remains 
16,750 (RSS compliant) but these changes are again judged to be ‘significant 
material changes’ to the plan. 

 
7.5 At present, 3 necessary major policy changes are proposed for further testing: 
 

• Policy ESD15: Green Boundaries to Growth – The production of 
additional evidence to define more clearly the purposes and boundaries 
of the green buffers, a key policy proposal within the 2012 Local Plan 
draft. Changes are proposed in the interests of maintaining Banbury and 
Bicester’s distinctive identity and setting; protecting the separate identity 
and setting of neighbouring settlements which surround the two main 
towns; preventing  coalescence and protecting gaps between the two 
towns and their surrounding settlements; protecting the identity and 
setting of valued features of landscape and historical importance that 
are important in shaping the long term planning of the towns; and 
protecting important views (see draft maps appended). 

 

Page 30



 

• Policy BSC4: Housing Mix – arising from the representations received it 
is proposed to revise the proposed policy to be less rigid as it is 
impeding site negotiations. 

 
• Policy SLE2: Securing Dynamic Town Centres and Bicester 5: 

Strengthening Bicester Town Centre – representations had noted that 
the proposed Local Plan text and maps for strengthening town centres 
appeared to imply  that CDC may be looking to increase by 3 fold the 
area of the town centre in Bicester. This would diffuse the town centre 
first policy were it to be an approach that is adopted. It is proposed to 
make it clear that there is an area of search for expanding the town 
centre. 

 
7.6 The vast bulk of the Plan is expected to be unchanged, though some minor 

points of clarification are proposed through out it as ‘minor’ changes.   
Additionally, potential changes to site yields and will need to be considered in 
the context of final landscape evidence. 

 
7.7 The proposed changes to strategic housing sites are: 
 

• Bicester 12: East Bicester – Pre-application discussions confirm that 
the site could be brought forward earlier than originally proposed as a 
readily deliverable site, with appropriate mitigation.    
 

• Banbury 2: Banbury: Hardwick Farm, Southam Road (East and West) 
– the emerging landscape assessments consider that land to the west 
of Southam Road has more development challenges than the eastern 
part of the development area. It is proposed to retain the overall 
development boundary but to review the overall amount of 
development considered on the western part. 

 
• Banbury 5: North of Hanwell Fields – Review implications of 

landscape assessments of edge of Banbury, and current planning 
application, for potential to increasing the proposed level of housing 
growth with appropriate mitigation   

 
7.8 The legal advice we have received is to rerun the Sustainability Appraisal to 

take account of these proposed and policy and site changes (which has 
begun by our retained consultants Environ) and re-consult on these few major 
changes to the Local Plan. This is not a full consultation on the whole Plan 
and its strategy as conducted in autumn 2012. This additional consultation will 
also enable those points raised by key Agencies and Stakeholders to be 
considered and shown to have been addressed prior to the completion of the 
Local Plan (e.g. new Town Movement Studies which address concerns of the 
Highways Agency) 

 
7.9 Re-consultation is a regular feature of plan making.  
 
7.10 Proceeding to sign off and submission of the Local Plan without undertaking 

this additional ‘focused’ consultation would entail a major risk of being judged 
to be ‘unsound’ at the start of the Plan Examination and not being allowed to 
proceed, given the findings of our own evidence.  

 
7.11 The additional ‘focused consultation’ 

Page 31



 

 
7.12 This will entail public consultation (including with key stakeholders) on a table 

of changes - the ‘focused changes’ - together with other minor changes , with 
an explanation of why they are needed.  

 
7.13 A 6 week period of consultation is required, with a period thereafter to compile 

the responses and report to Executive and Full Council together with the final 
proposed Local Plan for adoption and submission to the Secretary of State. 

 
8.0 Timetable for Completion  
 
8.1 In the light of the legal advice the timetable for completing the Local Plan 

through to submission is as detailed below: 
 

Date Issue 

4th March  Executive meeting. Report with Representations & overview 
of Local Plan change issues. 
 

11-15th March  Letters out to stakeholders with table of major (and minor) 
changes on which they are to be consulted upon. 
 

 Revised (updated) Sustainability Appraisal put on to CDC 
website at start of consultation.  
 

Monday 18th March – 
Friday 26th April 

Consultation on Plan changes and Sustainability Appraisal 
starts and last 6 full weeks 
 

 In this period – 2012 Annual Monitoring Report to be 
published by CDC. 
  

29th April 29th – 3rd 
May 
 

Compilation of responses received by CDC. Note: Late 
responses will not be accepted. 
 

3rd May - 8th May  
 

Report on consultation will be prepared as annex to report for 
Full Council on the Local Plan. Preparation of Final Local Plan 
taking account of consultation responses and Sustainability 
Appraisal. 
 

15th May at earliest Council – Final Plan sign-off and submission to the Secretary 
of State.  
 

To be agreed with 
PINs 
 

Commencement of Examination 
 

 
9.0 Conclusion 
 
9.1 The Local Plan is its final stage of preparation.  Consultation responses on 

the Proposed Submission Local Plan August 2012 have been considered by 
officers and the Council’s evidence base is nearly complete. 
 

9.2 Consideration of the new evidence and the comments received on the Plan 
has concluded that a small number of significant changes are required.  The 
clear legal advice received by officers is that these changes need to be 

Page 32



 

consulted upon alongside an updated Sustainability Appraisal.  The SA will 
consider the effects of the changes and will take into account the final pieces 
of evidence. 
 

9.3 The consultation will be a ‘focused consultation’ on the significant changes for 
a 6 week period. Other minor changes will be separately identified.   
Following the consultation, the representations received will be summarised 
and the Plan with final amendments will be presented to full Council for formal 
approval so that it can be submitted to the Secretary of State for Examination. 
 
 

 
 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A - List of development policies which will apply to all development in 

Cherwell District. 
Appendix B -  List of proposed development sites.  
Appendix C -  Local Plan Evidence Base 
Appendix D -  Table of Representations received 
Appendix E -  Proposed revised maps for Banbury, Bicester and Kidlington 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A - List of development policies for Cherwell District. 
 
Theme One: Policies for Developing a Sustainable Local Economy   
 

• Policy SLE1: Employment Development 
• Policy SLE2: Securing Dynamic Town Centres 
• Policy SLE3: Supporting Tourism Growth 
• Policy SLE4: Improved Transport and Connections 
• Policy SLE5: High Speed Rail 2 - London to Birmingham  

 
Theme Two: Policies for Building Sustainable Communities 
 

• Policy BSC1: District Wide Housing Distribution 
• Policy BSC2: The Effective and Efficient Use of Land – Brownfield land and 

Housing Density 
• Policy BSC3: Affordable Housing 
• Policy BSC4: Housing Mix 
• Policy BSC 5: Area Renewal 
• Policy BSC6: Travelling Communities 
• Policy BSC7: Meeting Education Needs 
• Policy BSC 8: Securing Health and Well-Being 
• Policy BSC 9: Public Services and Utilities 
• Policy BSC10: Open Space, Outdoor Sport and Recreation Provision 
• Policy BSC11: Local Standards of Provision- Outdoor Recreation 
• Policy BSC12: Indoor Sport, Recreation and Community Facilities 

  
Theme Three: Policies for Ensuring Sustainable Development 
 
Climate Change 

• Policy ESD1: Mitigating and Adapting to Climate Change 
• Policy ESD2: Energy Hierarchy 
• Policy ESD3: Sustainable Construction 
• Policy ESD4: Decentralised Energy Systems 
• Policy ESD5: Renewable Energy  
• Policy ESD6: Sustainable Flood Risk Management 
• Policy ESD7: Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) 

 
Our Core Assets 

• Policy ESD8: Water Resources 
• Policy ESD9: Protection of the Oxford Meadows SAC  
• Policy ESD10: Protection and Enhancement of Biodiversity and the Natural 

Environment 
• Policy ESD11: Conservation Target Areas 
• Policy ESD12: Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) 
• Policy ESD13: Local Landscape Protection and Enhancement 
• Policy ESD14: Oxford Green Belt 
• Policy ESD15: Green Boundaries to Growth 
• Policy ESD16: The Character of the Built Environment 
• Policy ESD17: The Oxford Canal 
• Policy ESD18: Green Infrastructure 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B – List of proposed development sites. 
 
Bicester 
 

• Bicester 1 - North West Bicester Eco-Town  
• Bicester 2 - Graven Hill 
• Bicester 3 - South West Bicester Phase 2 
• Bicester 4 - Bicester Business Park 
• Bicester 5 - Strengthening Bicester Town Centre 
• Bicester 6 - Bure Place Town Centre Redevelopment Phase 2 
• Bicester 7 - Meeting the Need for Open Space, Sport and Recreation 
• Bicester 8 – RAF Bicester  
• Bicester 9 – Burial Site in Bicester 
• Bicester 10 - Bicester Gateway 
• Bicester 11 – North East Bicester Business Park 
• Bicester 12 - East Bicester 

 
Banbury 
 

• Banbury 1 - Banbury Canalside  
• Banbury 2 - Hardwick Farm, Southam Road (East and West) 
• Banbury 3 - West of Bretch Hill 
• Banbury 4 - Bankside Phase 2 (Links to Banbury 12) 
• Banbury 5 - North of Hanwell Fields 
• Banbury 6 – Employment Land West of M40 
• Banbury 7 - Strengthening Banbury Town Centre 
• Banbury 8 - Land at Bolton Road 
• Banbury 9 - Spiceball Development Area  
• Banbury 10 - Bretch Hill Regeneration Area 
• Banbury 11 - Meeting the Need for Open Space, Sport and Recreation 
• Banbury 12 - Land for the Relocation of Banbury United FC 
• Banbury 13 – Burial Site Provision in Banbury  
• Banbury 14 – Banbury Country Park 

 
Kidlington 
 

• Kidlington 1 – Accommodating High Value Employment (Revised Policy Title) 
• Kidlington 2 - Supporting Kidlington Village Centre   

  
Our Villages and Rural Areas 
 

• Policy for Villages 1 – Village Categorisation 
• Policy for Villages 2 - Distributing Growth across the Rural Areas  
• Policy for Villages 3 - Rural Exception Sites 
• Policy for Villages 4 - Meeting the Need for Open Space, Sport and 

Recreation  
• Policy for Villages 5 – Upper Heyford 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C – Local Plan Evidence Base 
 

Title Date Comment 

Sustainability Appraisal Last published 

August 2012 

Published alongside 

Proposed Submission LP. To 

be updated.  

Habitats regulations assessment (stage 

1) of options for growth consultation on 

directions of growth 

November 2009 Complete 

Final habitats regulations assessment 

(stage 1 - screening) of draft core 

strategy 

February 2011 Complete 

Cherwell and West Oxon strategic flood 

risk assessment (level 1) 

May 2009 Complete 

Strategic flood risk assessment (level 2) March 2012 Complete 

Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (Level 

2) Additional Sites Addendum 

September 2012 Complete 

Canalside SFRA Level 2 - Complete 

Landscape sensitivity and capacity 

assessment of Bicester & Banbury  

September 2010 Complete 

Strategic housing market assessment December 2007 Old study.  Supplemented by 

local housing needs work 

Affordable housing viability study March 2010 Complete but update to 

come for final submission 

Analysis of the viability of Extra Care 

Housing units within Section 106 

scheme in Cherwell DC 

February 2011 Complete 

Cherwell housing needs assessment June 2008 Complete.   

Cherwell housing needs assessment June 2009 Complete.   

Assessing the type and  size of housing 

stock required in Cherwell 

September 2009 Complete.  

Needs assessment for travelling show 

people 

November 2008 Complete. 

Page 39



Open space update September 2011 Complete. 

Green space strategy & background 

document 

July 2008 Complete 

Playing pitch strategy & background 

document 

July 2008 Complete but endorsement 

of Sport England needed 

PPG17 assessment - indoor sports and 

recreation facilities assessment 

August 2006 Complete but Update 

needed for final submission 

assisted by Sport England 

PPG17 assessment - open space, sport 

and recreational facilities needs 

assessment audit and strategy 

July 2006 Complete 

Banbury integrated transport and land 

use study 

January 2010 Updated by Banbury 

Movement Strategy. 

Bicester integrated transport and land 

use strategy (draft) 

February 2009 Updated by Bicester 

Movement Strategy.  

Cherwell rural areas integrated 

transport and land use study 

August 2009 Complete. 

PPS6 town centres study December 2006 Complete. 

Cherwell retail study November 2010 Complete.  

Cherwell retail study update October 2012 Complete. 

Cherwell Economic Analysis Study August 2012 Needs finalising 

Employment land review July 2006 Complete. 

Employment land review update February 2012 Complete. 

Cherwell tourism development study August 2008 Complete. 

Renewable energy and sustainable 

construction study 

September 2009 Complete. 

 

Page 40



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Title First Name Second Name Organisations Type (Policy, Para, 

Map, SA, Appx)

Name (Policy, Para, 

Map, SA, Appx)

Title (Policy, Para, Map, SA, Appx) Summary of Representation 

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph Forward Forward Supports recognition of need for limiting housing growth while enabling growth in 

locations where integration with existing communities is possible

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Paragraph Executive Summary Summary Supports the extended Plan period to 2031

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Paragraph Executive Summary Vision The LP contradicts the aim to strictly control development in open countryside by 

proposing a Bicester Relief Road that cuts across open countryside.

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Paragraph Executive Summary Vision The forward and summary discussing housing delivery should be revised in order to 

consider the John Harmon Report

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Paragraph Executive Summary Vision Support overall vision, strategy and objectives. Support strongly controlling 

development in the open countryside. Concern at the level of growth allocated at 

Bicester, reliance of the South East RSS housing target sand traditional 'predict and 

provide' approach. 

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore / Bovis Homes Paragraph Executive Summary Vision Supported. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph Executive Summary Vision Amendment proposed to Vision.

Mr Keith Dixon Launton Parish Council Paragraph Executive Summary Vision Supports the vision and strategy

Mr Keith Dixon Launton Parish Council Paragraph Executive Summary Vision The vision and strategy should mention preserving the District

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph Executive Summary Vision Supports directing growth to the urban centres

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph Executive Summary Vision Control of growth in the open countryside

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph Executive Summary Vision The recognition of the importance of maintaining local identity 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph Executive Summary Vision  'Aiming to' is incompatible with 'strictly control' and it should be removed.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph Executive Summary Vision  'Aiming to' is incompatible with 'strictly control' and it should be removed.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph Executive Summary Vision It would have been helpful if the Neighbourhoods DPD were submitted with the Draft 

Local Plan. There is confusion in using Neighbourhood Development Plan reference in 

the NPPF it could be interpreted as plans drawn by Neighbourhoods not LPA's. There 

is a need for clarification.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph Executive Summary Vision The figure to take into account for table 5 should be 13th December 2004, the date 

CDC created the Non statutory Local Plan 2011.

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Paragraph Executive Summary Vision Vision should make reference to historic environment, old buildings and Canal. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Paragraph Executive Summary Vision Should refer to Historic Environment. List as challenge and objectives. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Paragraph Executive Summary Vision OCC Countryside Access Team support vision. Rural economy, high quality of life, and 

social and physical infrastructure - green infrastructure. Public rights of way network. 

Support focus of growth at Banbury & Bicester. LTP2 objectives used instead of LTP3 

objectives. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph Executive Summary Developing a Sustainable Local 

Economy 

Object to balance of employment growth between Bicester & Banbury. Further 

employment opportunities required at Banbury. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Table Table 1 Proposed Strategic Employment 

Allocations 

Table 1 should make reference to Oxford Technology Park. 

Mr Nik Lyzba JPPC / Oxford University Press Table Table 1 Proposed Strategic Employment 

Allocation 

The employment allocation at Kidlington should be a Strategic Employment 

Allocation and noted in Table 1. 

Page 1

P
a
g
e
 4

1



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Table Table 1 Proposed Strategic Employment 

Allocations

Job provision for North West Bicester should be approx  1,794 to match new housing 

target. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph Executive Summary Building Sustainable Communities Object to balance of growth between Bicester & Banbury. Banbury is identified as a 

Primary Regional Centre in the South East RSS. 41% of jobs are at Banbury opposed to 

20% at Bicester. Bicester has expanded seven times compared to Banbury which has 

doubled since 1951. Banbury is more self contained. 

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Table Table 3 Proposed Overall Development 

Strategy in the District

The Policy refers to Upper Heyford as the rest of the District which is inaccurate as it 

should be recognised as a significant brownfield site separately within the settlement 

hierarchy

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Table Table 3 Proposed Overall Development 

Strategy in the District

Support.

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Table Table 4 Proposed Strategic Housing 

Allocations in Bicester and 

Banbury 2011-2031

Insufficient evidence to justify 1,050 allocation at Banbury Canalside and its delivery 

in Plan period. 

Mr David Locke David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates Table Table 4 Proposed Strategic Housing Sites 

in Bicester and Banbury 2011 - 

2031 

Concern at the delivery of Canalside site, land assembly, design and capacity, 

viability. Cooperation amongst large number of land owners. High density target does 

not reflect market conditions for flats. Poor market conditions. Expensive relocation 

costs. Land at Wykham Farm should be included within the table with a development 

capacity of approximately 100 dwg. Site will improve housing land supply. Site is in 

single ownership. Site is capable of early delivery. Design and Access Statement 

attached.  

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Table Table 4 Proposed Strategic Housing 

Allocations in Bicester and 

Banbury 2011-2031

Support in relation to Hanwell Fields. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Table Table 5 Distribution of Housing in the 

Rural Areas 

Remove Kidlington from group 3 and create its own group. 

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Table Table 5 Distribution of Housing in Rural 

Areas

When will village housing allocation be made known?. Delays in this will delay 

proposals and implementation of the Local Plan.

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Table Table 6 Affordable Housing Policy as set 

out in Policy BSC3

Object to 30% affordable housing - inflexible - should be subject to viability 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Table Table 6 Affordable Housing Policy as set 

out in Policy BSC3

In table 6 reduce Kidlington Affordable Housing Threshold to 3 homes. 

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Table Table 7 Supporting Strategic Policies Support objectives. Should have due regard to viability. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph 1.3 How the Local Plan has been 

Prepared

Incomplete evidence base - Banbury Masterplan, movement assessment & landscape 

analysis. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Paragraph 1.3 Introduction to the Local Plan The Local Plan is not supported by required Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity study 

at Banbury or Movement Assessment for the town and Viability Assessment of the 

Canalside development. Proposals for a major employment allocation on the eastside 

of the M40 at Banbury are not available for the consultation. Plan post date the 

evidence base. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph 1.6 Introduction to the Local Plan Critical challenges should be expanded - 2nd bullet point should ensure development 

is delivered in the most appropriate locations, 3rd bullet point should be deleted, 

new bullet point should reflect low carbon economy, new bullet point should ensure 

sufficient flexibility to allow for changes. 

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Paragraph 1.13 Introduction to the Local Plan The proposed relief road will destroy the quality rural and natural environment that 

Wendlebury currently enjoys. There appears to be no clear boundary to limit growth 

of Bicester along the A 41 towards Junction 9 of M40.

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph 1.13 Introduction to the Local Plan Object to bullet point seven - green buffer policy unjustified. 

Page 2

P
a

g
e
 4

2



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Value Retail (Bicester Village) Paragraph 1.13 Introduction to the Local Plan Support statement - major employer .

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph 1.21 The Planning Context for the Local 

Plan 

Support reference to RSS. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph 1.23 The Planning Context for the Local 

Plan 

Population of just under 15,000

Mr Geoff Bolton Berrys / Gleeson Developments Ltd Para 1.35-1.40 How the Local Plan has been 

Prepared

The Council has failed to undertake a proper assessment of the reasonable 

alternative options for major development at Banbury. The Local Plan seeks to 

provide a significant change in the number of dwellings over the plan period and 

should have triggered a further Options for Growth consultation.  

The Council failed to assess Land at Broughton Road  as a separate site. The emerging 

Masterplan presents an opportunity to undertake detailed assessment of potential 

development sites as it has been the case with Bicester . The Local Plan should not 

proceed without the publication of the Banbury Masterplan.

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Paragraph 1.37 How the local Plan has been 

Prepared

See comment 1.3

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph 1.52 Other Policy Links and Additional 

Local Policy Guidance

Add Kidlington Masterplan 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph 1.52 Other Policy Links and Additional 

Local Policy Guidance 

Additional guidance unjustified - should not add unnecessary financial burden. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph 1.52 Other Policy Links and Additional 

Local Policy Guidance

Include all the lower level SPDs

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph 1.52 Other policy Links and Additional 

Local Policy Guidance

Support Kidlington Masterplan. 

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Paragraph 1.52 Other Policy Links and additional 

Local Policy Guidance

Support Banbury Masterplan - would like to see retail capacity figures within the 

Local Plan. 

Ms Fiona Brereton Drivers Jonas Deloitte/Aberdeen Property Investors Paragraph 1.53 What does the Plan do? Details of how the relevant town centre allocations can contribute towards retail 

capacity is required in order to provide certainty to communities and developers re 

what can be developed and where.

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Paragraph 1.53 What does the Plan do? No green buffer proposed to protect Wendlebury from the proposed development.

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph 1.53 What does the Plan do? Para 1.53 should make reference to Oxford Technology Park. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph 1.53 What does the Plan do? New bullet point required to address provision of housing need. Bullet point 9 refers 

to green buffers to prevent coalescence, this is unjustified 

Mr Chris Wardley The Inland Waterways Association Paragraph 1.53 What does the Plan do? Should protect and 'enhance' the Oxford Canal and 'take advantage of its potential'  

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Paragraph 1.53 What does the Plan do? Para 1.53 2nd bullet point - include retail capacity figures within the Local Plan 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph 1.54 What does the Plan do? Various elements of the Plan are undeliverable - e.g. Canalside

Page 3

P
a
g
e
 4

3



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Tom Ashley Turnberry Planning Ltd / Merton College Section A Strategy for 

Development

A Strategy for Development Oxford has an acute housing need and this will need to met elsewhere as the urban 

extension to the south of the city has not gone ahead. The Inspector at the SODC 

examination stated that it would not be appropriate for South Oxfordshire to 

undertake a green belt review in order to accommodate this. The inspector has 

recommended the following be included in the SODC Plan. ' Any provision of a 

strategic development area on the scale identified in the South East Plan would 

require joint work and sustainability appraisal of reasonable alternative options 

involving a number of Districts boarding the City.  The current adopted Oxford Core 

Strategy makes no reference to any wider growth needs beyond the City boundaries.  

However, if it became necessary to address the matter on an inter-authority basis the 

established County/District mechanisms provide a means of pursuing the duty to 

cooperate'. 

Mr Tom Ashley Turnberry Planning Ltd / Merton College Section A Strategy for 

Development

A Strategy for Development There should be an inter-authority mechanism for identifying the scale of that unmet 

need and investigating appropriate locations for accommodating that housing, 

including undertaking a robust Strategic environmental assessment

Mr Tom Ashley Turnberry Planning Ltd / Merton College Section A Strategy for 

Development

A Strategy for Development The Cherwell Local Plan should include an undertaking to engage in such a process to 

the benefit of all the County as means of pursuing the duty to cooperate. (wording is 

suggested)

Ms Rachael Blakey Bucknell Parish Council Section A Strategy for 

Development

A Strategy for Development Supports the approach to protecting the character of villages. 

Ms Theresa Goss Milcombe Parish Council Theme Theme A A  Strategy for Development in 

Cherwell

Agree developing a sustainable local economy but as sites are mainly in the Bicester 

Area, the comments of Bicester residents would be most relevant.

Ms Theresa Goss Milcombe Parish Council Theme Theme A A  Strategy for Development in 

Cherwell

Definite need for town centre improvements - filling the already empty shops in 

Banbury and Bicester town centres should be a priority.

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Section A.1 A Strategy for Development in 

Cherwell

Support challenges and objectives. Concerned raised regarding the viability of the 

Plan. 

Mr Tim Hibbert Section A Strategy for 

Development in 

Cherwell

A Strategy for Development in 

Cherwell

No consideration has been given to how development at Bicester would protect 

Wendlebury

Mr Tim Hibbert Section A Strategy for 

Development in 

Cherwell

A Strategy for Development in 

Cherwell

Objects as the  plan will involve building on productive farmland

Mr Tim Hibbert Section A Strategy for 

Development in 

Cherwell

A Strategy for Development in 

Cherwell

The focus on Banbury and Bicester is a significant flaw

Mr Tim Hibbert Section A Strategy for 

Development in 

Cherwell

A Strategy for Development in 

Cherwell

The needs of rural communities have not been addressed

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Section A Strategy for 

Devlopment in 

Cherwell

A Strategy for Devlopment in 

Cherwell

With no Structure Plan who will be responsible for distributing development across 

Oxfordshire

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Section A Strategy for 

Devlopment in 

Cherwell

A Strategy for Devlopment in 

Cherwell

When the South East Plan is revoked who will be responsible for determining the 

overall balance between employment, transport over the region

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Section A Strategy for 

Devlopment in 

Cherwell

A Strategy for Devlopment in 

Cherwell

Announcements from Westminster about the planning system and reforms to the 

Green Belt will undermine the Local Plan. 

Mr Phil Brown Savills for Magdalen Development Company / Kennet 

Properties Ltd

Paragraph A.3 A Strategy for Development in 

Cherwell 

Plan should include a commitment to joint working with Oxford City Council and the 

other Oxfordshire authorities in relation to future housing need. Wording supplied. 

Page 4

P
a

g
e
 4

4



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Paragraph A.8 Our Vision for Cherwell District The proposed Relief Road will dramatically reduce the quality of life for residents of 

Wendlebury, it will create a 4th physical barrier to the village boxing it completely. 

Wendlebury  will be cut off from direct access to the countryside, increasing noise, air 

pollution and reducing the attraction of the village to incomers. Horse riding from the 

village supports local business and will be effectively stopped.

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Paragraph A8-A9 Our Vision for Cherwell District Agree with the vision for Cherwell

Mrs Vicky Aston Paragraph A.9 Our Vision for Cherwell District Support Vision for Cherwell where it relates to Health. Suggest the word sport is 

added to bullet point 7 and amended to read 'Where and When'.  

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Paragraph A.9 Our Vision for Cherwell District The proposed relief road is not sustainable as it does not cherish, enhance or protect 

the natural environment.

Ms Rose Freeman The Theatres Trust Paragraph A.9 Our Vision for Cherwell District Para A.9 Bullet point 2 states that the cultural and social hubs of town centres will be 

maintained and improved including a vibrant evening economy. This aim in not 

reflected in Policy SLE2.  

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Paragraph A.9 Our Vision for Cherwell District Support Vision in respect of supporting a stronger, sustainable and rural economy 

and seek to offer all communities a range of good housing. 

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Paragraph A.9 Our Vision for Cherwell District Support Vision in respect of supporting a stronger, sustainable and rural economy 

and seek to offer all communities a range of good housing. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Paragraph A.9 Our Vision for Cherwell District Should clarify the transport objectives will be supported by OCC.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Paragraph A.9 Our Vision for Cherwell District The 8th bullet point should say: 'We will cherish, protect and enhance our distinctive 

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons / The Banbury AAT Academy Paragraph A.9 Our Vision for Cherwell District Support bullet point seven. 

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons /  Mintondale Development Ltd Paragraph A.9 Our Vision for Cherwell District Support.

Conor Moloney BioRegional Development Group Paragraph A.9 Our Vision for Cherwell District 

*Sustainable Development is not clearly expressed in the vision and strategic 

objectives. Wording supplied. 

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Paragraph A.10 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Broadly support strategy. Plan shouldn't dis-regard rural areas. Approach supported 

by SO6, 8, 9 & 14. 

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning Paragraph A.10 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Support Strategic Objectives SO6-10. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Paragraph A.10 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District 

Should clarify economic development at London Oxford Airport refers to Langford 

Lane Technology Park. 

Miss Emily Sparrow JPPC / Merton College Paragraph A.10 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Support overall Strategy. 

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons / The Banbury AAT Academy Paragraph A.10 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District 

Support.

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons /  Mintondale Development Ltd Paragraph A.10 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District 

Support.

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

The rural areas should continue to grow.  Affordability and a lack of new dwellings 

means that people are being forced to converge on the two main towns.  The strategy 

should allow more development in the rural areas to sustain them.

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Supports the broad strategy of directing development to the towns.

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Support Spatial Strategy and distribution of growth at Banbury & Bicester. In 

accordance with South East Plan - Policy CO1. Bicester is sustainable location. 

Page 5

P
a
g
e
 4

5



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore / Bovis Homes Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Supported. Ensure some growth in outlying areas. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Support A.11 & small scale review of the Green Belt to accommodate employment 

needs. Review should form part of the Local Plan process and not subsequent DPD 

given exceptional circumstances.  

Mr Keith Dixon Launton Parish Council Paragraph A.11 The spatial strategy for Cherwell 

District

Directing development to larger villages only is not justified as it will not allow 

smaller villages to grow and become sustainable. Larger villages are already 

sustainable. The policy is inconsistent with the NPPF.

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Object to balance of growth between Bicester & Banbury.

Mr David Keene David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Support Spatial Strategy and direction of growth at Banbury & Bicester. Strategy 

make effective use of land, existing infrastructure and is sustainable. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

State that Upper Heyford has permission for 761 houses. The Plan cannot be used to 

lever an increase.

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Broadly support spatial strategy and strategic objectives SO8, SO9 & SO14.  Rural 

areas require sufficient housing to support new homes and provide choice. 

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Broadly support spatial strategy and strategic objectives SO8, SO9 & SO14.  Rural 

areas require sufficient housing to support new homes and provide choice. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Agree with the spatial strategy and are pleased that Banbury's growth will be slower  

and the town will need time to deal with the expansion and improved transport links.

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Reference to Upper Heyford and 760 homes is too precise and lacks flexibility. The 

Spatial Strategy should include the settlement in hierarchy of settlements. 

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Paragraph A.11 The Spatial Strategy for Cherwell 

District

Objection to strategy as it seeks to direct growth only at the existing sustainable 

settlements at expense of smaller villages. 

Ms Suzanne Bangert Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Mr & Mrs P  Ashworth SO Strategic Objectives Strategic Objectives Support Strategic Objectives SO2, 7 & 9. 

Mr Philip Collett rep form SO Strategic Objectives Strategic Objectives Missing Objective - Plan should aim to influence National Guidance to comply with 

best standards and the benefits of the area. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith SO Strategic Objective s Strategic Objectives Support SO12 & SO13. 

Mr Nik Lyzba JPPC / Oxford University Press SO Strategic Objective Strategic Objective OUP support limited employment development at Kidlington as a strategic objective. 

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council SO Strategic Objectives Strategic Objectives Support 5 Strategic objectives - developing a sustainable local economy in the 

Bicester Master plan - seen as complementary. Other issues for Bicester include; 

allotments & burial ground. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SO Strategic Objectives Strategic Objectives Support wording change. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd SO Strategic Objectives Strategic Objectives Should recognise the direct and indirect employment generation and benefits of a 

buoyant construction industry. 

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons / The Banbury AAT Academy SO Strategic Objectives Strategic Objectives Propose new Strategic Objective - wording supplied,. Support SO10.  

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd SO Strategic Objectives Strategic Objectives Should reference meeting the market and affordable needs of the district. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph A.14 Strategic Objectives Support para A.14 & SO1 to SO5. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Paragraph A.14 Strategic Objectives Support need to improve urban centres and employment areas. This can be achieved 

through a mix of community, business and residential throughout the town centre. 

Support residential above shops. Preference for mix of uses through the town centre 

and not to cluster activities at Spiceball. 

Page 6

P
a

g
e
 4

6



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Paragraph A.14 Strategic Objectives What is the source of population projections? What assumptions? 

Mr Malcolm Watt Paragraph A.17 Strategic Objectives Support Objectives S06-10

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport SO SO5 Strategic Objectives Clarify term sustainable development. Define south of the District. Should link to 

challenges. Unclear why district is ranked poorly in respect of access to services. 

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons / Banbury Golf Club SO SO5 Strategic Objectives Support SO5. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph A.21 Strategic Objectives Concern that population of Kidlington is falling. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph A.21 Strategic Objectives Although Cherwell is affordable in terms of Oxfordshire this is less so when compared 

against the rest of the South East. Paragraph to include need for all tenures of 

housing including market housing. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph A.21 Strategic Objectives Mention the rapid rise forecast in Cherwell's elderly population. This rise is significant 

given their specific housing needs.

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph A.21 Strategic Objectives Population figure for Kidlington & Gosport is an underestimate. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Paragraph A.21 Strategic Objectives A.21 - bullet point 1 - Object as it does not reflect the acute affordable housing 

shortage. Phrase most affordable district in  Oxfordshire should be deleted.  

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Paragraph A.21 Strategic Objectives Plan should identify the importance of providing social and physical infrastructure in 

creating sustainable communities. New bullet point suggested. 

Mr Robert Cramp Congregation of Jehovah's Witnesses Paragraph A.22 Strategic Objectives The strategic objectives for building sustainable communities should refer to places 

of worship in accordance with the NPPF paragraphs 22 and 126.

Mr Malcolm Watt Paragraph A.22 Strategic Objectives Support Objectives S06-10

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Paragraph A.22 Strategic Objectives SCS identifies community safety as a key consideration. Suggest as Strategic Objective 

text supplied. 

Mr David Coates SO SO9 Strategic Objectives Concern that the Council's approach to growth will lead to an under supply of new 

homes and in particular rural affordable housing. Delete 'availability' and insert 

'supply'. 

Ms Rose Freeman The Theatres Trust SO SO10 Strategic Objectives SO10 concerns provision of accessible services and facilities for culture, social and 

community needs. There is no implementation policy. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph A.25 Strategic Objectives Separate housing target would reduce in-commuting. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph A.25 Strategic Objectives Sustainable development means growth. Add bullet points to ensure delivery of jobs 

and new homes in sustainably locations and reducing the need to travel by car. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Paragraph A.25 Strategic Objectives Support bullet point 8. 

Mr Malcolm Watt Paragraph A.27 Strategic Objectives Support Objectives S011-15

Conor Moloney BioRegional Development Group Paragraph A.27

Strategic Objectives *Sustainable Development is not clearly expressed in the vision and strategic 

objectives. Wording supplied. 

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council SO SO12 Strategic Objectives The proposal does not achieve this objective. It does not enhance the countryside, 

landscape and setting of the village. It will increase dependency on motor cars due to 

village being curtailed by the relief road in addition to existing barriers. It will make 

the village less sustainable by reducing the quality of the environment. It does 

nothing to protect and enhance the natural environment and will increase pollution 

in a rural area. 

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council SO SO13 Strategic Objectives The proposal does not achieve this objective. It does not enhance the countryside, 

landscape and setting of the village. It will increase dependency on motor cars due to 

village being curtailed by the relief road in addition to existing barriers. It will make 

the village less sustainable by reducing the quality of the environment. It does 

nothing to protect and enhance the natural environment and will increase pollution 

in a rural area. 

Page 7

P
a
g
e
 4

7



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council SO SO14 Strategic Objectives The proposal does not achieve this objective. It does not enhance the countryside, 

landscape and setting of the village. It will increase dependency on motor cars due to 

village being curtailed by the relief road in addition to existing barriers. It will make 

the village less sustainable by reducing the quality of the environment. It does 

nothing to protect and enhance the natural environment and will increase pollution 

in a rural area. 

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council SO SO15 Strategic Objectives The proposal does not achieve this objective. It does not enhance the countryside, 

landscape and setting of the village. It will increase dependency on motor cars due to 

village being curtailed by the relief road in addition to existing barriers. It will make 

the village less sustainable by reducing the quality of the environment. It does 

nothing to protect and enhance the natural environment and will increase pollution 

in a rural area. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward SO SO 15 Strategic Objectives Add 'preserve or enhance Conservation Areas'.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SO SO15 Strategic Objectives Amendment supplied. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SO SO14 Strategic Objectives Support. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport SO SO12 Strategic Objectives Add services after accessibility

Mr Martin Small English Heritage SO SO15 Strategic Objectives Welcomes and supports SO15 although archaeological remains are part of cultural 

heritage and do not need to be identified separately.

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd SO SO12 Strategic Objectives Delete reference to conserving and enhancing the countryside and landscape as not 

realistic. Could be changed to conserve and enhance most sensitive designations. 

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District SO Strategic Objectives Strategic Objectives Support Strategic objectives 11-15.

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner SO SO12 Strategic Objectives Objection to strategy as it seeks to direct growth only at the existing sustainable 

settlements at expense of smaller villages.  Wording suggested. 

Conor Moloney BioRegional Development Group SO SO11-15 Strategic Objectives *Sustainability - Model Policy supplied - One Planet Living 

Mr Will Cobley Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Blenheim Palace Estate Theme Theme 1 Policies for Developing a 

Sustainable Local Economy 

Support principle of theme. 

Ms Theresa Goss Milcombe Parish Council Theme Theme B Policies for Development in 

Cherwell

Want to see properly built houses in keeping with their area. It is the choice of the 

people to live in either towns or rural villages -Keep them separately. Affordable 

homes in villages should be provided for the local people. Most villages have carried 

out surveys with ORCC to prove their needs.

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons / The Banbury AAT Academy Theme Theme 1 Theme 1: Policies for developing a 

sustainable local economy

New Policy regarding new improved education facilities - Wording supplied. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph B.5 Introduction Support Para B.5 - B.7.

Mr Tom Ashley Turnberry Planing Ltd / Oxford University Paragraph B.7 Introduction Support reference to Begbroke Science Park. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph B.7 Introduction Amendment suggested to B.7.  

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph B.7 Introduction Employment Land Review sets out expansion at Kidlington for High Tech 

employment. Text supplied. 

Placi O'Neil-Espejo Bicester Vision Paragraph B.12 Introduction Do not consider the paragraphs comments correct. WYG reported a chronic shortage 

of employment land in and around Bicester. The constraint in Bicester is the 

availability of land for a broad range of employment uses.

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph B.13 Introduction Object to statement 'employment growth has been strongest in Bicester in recent 

years'.  Evidence supplied. 

Page 8

P
a

g
e
 4

8



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph B.13 Introduction Object to balance of growth between Bicester & Banbury. Further employment 

needed at Banbury.

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph B.14 Introduction Add improving the poor results of the District's secondary schools, especially in 

Bicester. This is where skill deficiencies start.

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph B.19 Introduction Object to balance of growth between Bicester & Banbury.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Paragraph B.20 Introduction What is the source of the district jobs forecasts? With or without additional 

employment land? 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Paragraph B.20 Introduction Plan should be more ambitious than to provide 7000 jobs. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph B.22 Introduction Support themes set out in para B.22 to B.31 . Kidlington has more B1 than Bicester 

and ran out of employment land in 2006/2007. Oxford Technology Park should be 

allocated in the Local Plan as a strategic site for immediate development. 

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Paragraph B.26 Introduction Where appropriate housing sites will include a number of self contained extra care 

dwellings with the location and amount to be agreed. Wording supplied. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph B.28 Introduction Refer to Bicester Gateway at B.28.

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph B.28 Introduction The call for family housing is at odds with the Housing Needs Survey which prioritised 

small flats for the young and the old. The Plan should follow evidence.

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Bicester Business Park Paragraph B.29 Introduction Support growth at Bicester. 

Mr Colin Cockshaw Paragraph B.31 Introduction Object to expansion at Bicester Village. Delete Reference

Ms Sarah Stevens Paragraph B.31 Introduction Object to the proposed extension to Bicester Village without justification by the 

evidence base or public consultation. Suggest para B.31, B.51 & B.57 are modified to 

remove reference to enabling and promotion of an extension to Bicester Outlet 

Village.  

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Value Retail (Bicester Village) Paragraph B.31 Introduction Support promotion of the sustainable expansion of Bicester Village. 

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Bicester Business Park Paragraph B.31 Introduction Support growth at Bicester. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph B.32 Introduction Object to balance of growth between Bicester & Banbury. Banbury is principal 

commercial centre, good motorway and rail access. Diverse range of  town centre 

uses. Has achieved a sustainable balance of growth over last  30 years. Amend 

'moderate' to 'significant'. 

Mr Tom Ashley Turnberry Planing Ltd / Oxford University Paragraph B.33 Introduction Support reference to Begbroke Science Park. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph B.33 Introduction Amend para B.33 to refer to Begbroke Science Park and Oxford Technology Park and 

progressive improvements.  

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph B.33 Introduction Paragraph should set out the scope for development at Oxford Airport. 

Mr Nik Lyzba JPPC / Oxford University Press Paragraph B.33 Introduction OUP support broad thrust of Para B.33 in respect of the need for growth in the 

Langford Lane Area of Kidlington. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph B.33 Introduction Should qualify the degree of growth at London Oxford Airport within its existing 

boundaries. 

Sam Croft RPS Planning & Development / Banner Homes Ltd  / Rowland 

Bratt

Paragraph B.34 Introduction Re-word forth bullet point. 

Mr Michael Lea Jones Land LaSalle / Bonhams 1793 Ltd Paragraph B.36 Policy SLE 1: Employment 

Development 

Support approach to protecting in principal existing employment land and buildings 

for B class employment use. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph B.44 Policy SLE 1: Employment 

Development 

Add Kidlington to para B.44.

Mr John Example 1 Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Object to second para. 

Page 9

P
a
g
e
 4

9



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Alec Arrol Kennet Properties / Thames Water Policy SLE.1 Employment Development The policy and supporting text do not set out the amount of employment land 

required to be provided during the life time of the LP and how this should be 

distributed across the District. The employment land trajectory in table 18 shows no 

land coming forward for employment in Banbury beyond 2021.  This is a significant 

problem for the spatial strategy of Banbury. Although redevelopment of employment 

sites will come forward during the lifetime of the LP this are often difficult to 

redevelop and may come forward for alternative uses. There is already a perceived 

problem of the ability of existing employment land to come forward which is 

potentially hindering the economic development of the District. 

There is additional need for new employment land during the lifetime of the LP 

within Banbury.

Ms Rachael Blakey Bucknell Parish Council Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Needs to be more focus on existing employment areas which are in need of action

Mr John Braithwaite South Newington Parish Council Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Support the policy

Ms Gemma Brickwood Turley Associates / Sainsbury Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Policy is not consistent with the employment objectives of the Plan and does not 

protect against the loss of employment sites. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Object to Policy SLE1 should refer to Kidlington alongside Banbury & Bicester. Should 

define small scale employment proposals. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Agree

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Approach conflicts with NPPF, as it controls types of employment. 

Mr Michael Lea Jones Land LaSalle / Bonhams 1793 Ltd Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Policy does not go far enough to support employment proposals in rural areas to 

enable existing businesses to expand to meet the needs of their customer base and 

operational requirements. 

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Support jobs led development. With emphasis on providing the right jobs for local 

people. Local Plan should have an over arching policy for Bicester that spells out 

Bicester is open for Business. Land allocation is insufficient to meet immediate 

demands. Support Bicester Masterplan view that clusters employment to the South 

and East as well as along the A41 corridor towards Junction 9 of the M40. 

Employment envelope should be extended to include Heyford and Graven Hill. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Mr D Mahon Policy SLE.1 Employment Development New Policy - To promote greater range of employment sites for existing companies to 

grow and provide for new company formation. 

Mr Wayne Neale Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Employment growth at Banbury will not support proposed housing numbers resulting 

in traffic congestion. 

Placi O'Neil-Espejo Bicester Vision Policy SLE.1 Employment Development There should be a clear presumption against the change of use from employment to 

residential without qualification.

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Generally supportive but concerned over a perceived lack of employment land, 

particularly if existing businesses at Canalside are relocated.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Amend to include important non-designated assets. The phase 'any buildings or 

features should be amended. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Text should reference other sustainable modes where possible.  

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Employment need should be categorised by 'B' use classes and supported by an up to 

date employment land review. 

Mr Robert Thompson Mr Robert Thompson (Chartered Surveyor) / Mr John Stroud Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Objection on the grounds of insufficient employment land proposed.  Former Alcan 

site allocated for employment is now proposed for residential development and 

small businesses at Canalside will be affected by redevelopment. Suggest allocated 

land to the East of Banbury between A361 and M40 fro employment. Land comprises 

12 hectares. Land is no longer suitable for farming as it has become separated from 

other farming land by Flood embankment and the M40 & A361. Land is not subject to 

flooding. Land is suitable for a high quality Business Park. 

Page 10

P
a

g
e
 5

0



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Plan is light on economic development; Cherwell should offer practical help to 

businesses, encourage farming, build infrastructure - Roads, Schools,, Medical, 

Telcom & Regeneration. 

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Further analysis and explanation required to explore market conditions. Plan unclear 

weather one job per dwelling should be provided on-site or not. Proposal should be 

seen as part of the wider strategy for Bicester itself. Other areas in Bicester maybe 

more appropriate for employment opportunities. e.g. Graven Hill for B8. NWB maybe 

better suited for innovation, enterprise and small scale start up businesses. Greater 

working from home should be encouraged. Bicester Masterplan is the appropriate 

vehicle to discuss town wide issues. Note that other uses; schools, retail generate 

employment opportunities. 

Mr P Keywood Policy SLE.1 Employment Development Object to viability test as it is considered a subjective test. (Suggested text supplied)

Ms Sarah Stevens Paragraph B.51 Policy SLE2: Securing Dynamic 

Town Centres 

Remove reference to enabling and promotion of an extension to Bicester Outlet 

Village.  

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Value Retail (Bicester Village) Paragraph B.51 Policy SLE 2: Securing Dynamic 

Town Centre

Support greater interaction with Bicester Town Centre and Bicester Village. 

Ms Fiona Brereton Drivers Jonas Deloitte/Aberdeen Property Investors Paragraph B.53 Policy SLE 2: Securing Dynamic 

Town Centre

Sufficient background evidence should be available now to set a clear strategy for 

retail development within the district.  The Local Plan should show that retail capacity 

can be met in full and in accordance with the sequential approach.

Ms Serena Page WYG / LXB Properties Paragraph B.53 Policy SLE.2: Securing Dynamic 

Town Centres

Para does not comply with NPPF para 24 & 26. Remove first sentence. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Barwood Developments Paragraph B.53 Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic 

Town Centres 

Statement conflicts with Policy Bicester 12. Paragraph is not consistent with National 

Planning Policy. RE a blanket objection to out of town retail. 

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Paragraph B.53 Policy SLE.2: Securing Dynamic 

Town Centres

Should be sufficient background evidence to set a clear strategy for retail 

development within the District. Local Plan should show the retail capacity can be 

met in accordance with sequential approach. 

Mr P Keywood Paragraph B.53 Policy SLE2: Securing Dynamic 

Town Centres

Object to para B.53 on the grounds that it is not based on upto date evidence. 2012 

Update Retail Study has not yet been published. Delete paragraph. 

Ms Gemma Brickwood Turley Associates / Sainsbury Paragraph B.57 Policy SLE.2: Securing Dynamic 

Town Centres

Expansion of Bicester Village is unjustified - evidence required to demonstrate 

sequentially preferable. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph B.57 Policy SLE.2: Securing Dynamic 

Town Centres

Kidlington Masterplan should address design, environmental issues to improve public 

realm.  Amend Para C.188 accordingly. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph B.57 Policy SLE2: Securing Dynamic 

Town Centre

Support Kidlington Masterplan. 

Ms Sarah Stevens Paragraph B.57 Policy SLE2: Securing Dynamic 

Town Centres 

Remove reference to enabling and promotion of an extension to Bicester Outlet 

Village.  

Ms Rachael Blakey Bucknell Parish Council Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Questions if its worth trying to rejuvenate the town centre when trends are leading to 

out of centre shopping areas

Ms Fiona Brereton Drivers Jonas Deloitte/Aberdeen Property Investors Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres There is no mention of retail capacity figures for the district. The Local Plan should 

detail the retail capacity identified for the district through the supporting evidence 

base. It should then be shown how each of the relevant town centre allocations e.g. 

Bolton Road can contribute towards meeting the capacity.  This would demonstrate 

the plan is justified.  Without this it is unclear whether sufficient space for retail uses 

has been identified within the key centres to meet the District's needs and to comply 

with the requirements of the NPPF.

Ms Fiona Brereton Drivers Jonas Deloitte/Aberdeen Property Investors Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Once a robust assessment has been undertaken of town centre sites to meet retail 

capacity bullet point 5 should be re-visited to see if the threshold should be reduced.  

At present there is no available up to date evidence base and analysis of whether a 

local threshold below that identified in the NPPF is appropriate or not. 

Page 11

P
a
g
e
 5

1



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Gemma Brickwood Turley Associates / Sainsbury Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Extension to town centre boundary is unjustified & unclear. 

Mr Colin Clark Banbury and Cherwell Green Party Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Object to Banbury gateway as it undermines Bolton Road Town Centre development. 

Banbury Canalside will displace existing business when employment land is in short 

supply. 

Ms Rose Freeman The Theatres Trust Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres LPA should undertake an assessment of the need to expand town centres to ensure a 

sufficient supply of suitable sites. Policy SLE2. only says 'Retail and other town centre 

uses'. Policy should be expanded to refer to other town centre uses. Policy should 

also establish a premise for an evening economy in town centres. This includes 

restaurants, bars, pubs, clubs and music, performance and entertainment venue 

including Theatres and Cinemas. Policy should also include a further point about 

protecting buildings of cultural & community benefit from loss or change of use 

unless replacement facilities are provided on site or within the vicinity which meet 

the need of the local population or services can be delivered from other facilities and 

without leading to a shortfall in provision and no demand for similar use. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Agree

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Policy SLE 2 should restrict proposals for out-of-centre superstores at Kidlington. 

Mr Vic Keeble Chesterton Parish Council

Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres

Recommend that Phase 2/3 of the Bicester Town Centre Development is given 

priority at an early stage so that retail / leisure provision remains competitive. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Support presumption against out of town and edge of centre retail. Retail in town 

centres should respect historic built environment. 

Ms Serena Page WYG / LXB Properties Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Paragraphs relating to retail proposals should not require the applicant to 

demonstrate proven need. The Council's final retail study has yet to be published and 

therefore the evidence to justify quantitative and qualities need has not been 

assessed. Remove first bullet point. 

Ms Ellen O'Grady Defence Infrastructure Organisation Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres The latest Retail Study is not available for assessment. The policy is not positively 

prepared or justified. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Support Policy SLE2 and expand to include Kidlington. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Policy SLE 2 should not support new out-of-centre convenience superstores in 

Kidlington. 

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Welcome approach of securing dynamic town centres within the District through 

strategic town centre allocations. 

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Concern that there is no mention of retail capacity figures for the District. Or 

quantum of retail development that could come forward on each site nor the overall 

provision during the plan period. Unclear if sufficient space has been identified in 

town centres. If insufficient land is identifies this could undermine the town centre 

first policy. Plan should include commentary of the evidence base if each of the town 

centres. 

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Once a review of town centres has been carried out suggest bullet point 5 is re-

visited. Case to reduce threshold. At present no available up to date evidence base. 

Mr P Keywood Policy SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Object to Policy SLE2 on the grounds that it is not based on up to date evidence. 2012 

Update Retail Study has not yet been published. No requirement to demonstrate 

need for retail proposals outside town centres. Delete first & third bullet point. Forth 

bullet point should refer to NPPF paragraph 26. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph B.62 Policy SLE.3: Supporting Tourism 

Growth

Protection of Oxford Canal should cover towpath and hedgerows.

Page 12

P
a

g
e
 5

2



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Value Retail (Bicester Village) Paragraph B.62 Policy SLE.3: Supporting Tourism 

Growth

Support statement - most visited tourist attraction. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy SLE.3 Supporting Tourism Growth Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy SLE.3 Supporting Tourism Growth Agree

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy SLE.3 Supporting Tourism Growth Support policy. Upper Heyford as a tourism attraction. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy SLE.3 Supporting Tourism Growth Bicester Village is the most important destination for visitors from China. Maximising 

return from this should be a higher priority.

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons / Banbury Golf Club Policy SLE.3 Supporting Tourism Growth New Policy - Regarding tourism. Reword Policy SLE3 - Text supplied. 

Mr Philip Collett rep form Paragraph B.66 Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport 

and Connections

Disagree with statement that Cherwell has excellent road links. Plan should apply 

over a longer period. Aspiration for further road junctions. Over development of 

residential, commercial & industrial development on a critical system. Proposed 

development will cover obvious routes for future roads.  

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph B.69 Policy SLE.4: Improved Transport 

and Connections 

No apparent consideration to the routes leaving Banbury. Commercial transport from 

the North East and East Banbury needs to be directed to the M40 for access to the 

M6 via the M42 and the M3&M4 via the M25.

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Paragraph B.69 Policy SLE.4: Improved Transport 

and Connections 

Take into account quarry activities present and planned at Wroxton & Shenington. 

Will new M40 Junction be created?

Mr Anthony Powell Highways Agency Paragraph B.69 Policy SLE.4: Improved Transport 

and Connections 

Welcome proposed improvements to works and new infrastructure. Require update 

of the transport and land-use study evidence base. No detail has been provided on 

the improvements to M40 J9 or mitigation of J10 & J11 in the draft IDP. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Paragraph B.69 Policy SLE 4: Improved Transport 

and Connections

Support reference to a new inner relief road at Banbury. Strengthened to take 

account of town wide movement strategy. 

Mr John Braithwaite South Newington Parish Council Paragraph B.71 Policy SLE.4: Improved Transport 

and Connections

It is essential that new commercial developments are likely to be served by HGVs are 

required to make travel and transport plans that will as far as practically possible 

route HGVs away from town centres and unsuitable rural roads. 

Mr Peter Brown Drayton Parish Council Paragraph B.72 Policy SLE.4: Improved Transport 

and Connections

Traffic evidence study dated 2000 is out of date as it pre-dates Hanwell Fields. Sites 

to the South of Banbury should be preferred over site to the North. 

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Value Retail (Bicester Village) Paragraph B.74 Policy SLE 4: Improved Transport 

and Connections

Support improved links Bicester Village and Town Centre . Better access by Train 

through Evergreen 3 project. 

mr Robert Cronk Paragraph B.75 Policy SLE.4: Improved Transport 

and Connections 

Welcomes the statement but the importance of provision of adequate parking at 

railway stations must be recognised within the statement. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph B.75 Policy SLE4. Improved Transport 

and Connections 

Support proposals for a new train station at Water Eaton Park. Expect review of 

evidence for Station at new Technology Park. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph B.76 Policy SLE4: Improved Transport 

and Connections

Paragraph should support a new Station at Water Eaton. To include a review of 

evidence in respect of a Station at Lyne Road to support a new Technology Park. 

Ms Rachael Blakey Bucknell Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Both Bicester eastern and western Ring Roads need to be considered 

Ms Rachael Blakey Bucknell Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

The Transport measures for Bicester need to be made clearer 

Mrs Justine Brown Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections 

Proposed route of Bicester Relief road does not make sense being so near 

Wendlebury. Crossing over railway is being paid for by Chiltern Railways and only 

agreed as a road for the local farmer. It should not be made into a formal road. The 

road should go around the hill and join at the new roundabout. Other road options 

should be looked at. Concern that road will bring additional noise, cause severance 

for walkers and increased flood risk. 

Mrs Kathryn Brown Stoke Lyne Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Is the proposed SE link road a single or dual carriageway? Would support objections 

from Wendlebury PC on environmental grounds and potential for further 

development into dual carriageway.

Page 13

P
a
g
e
 5

3



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Object to the proposed Relief Road. No alternative routes have been proposed and 

the current route will have considerable impact on Wendlebury. Neither the village or 

the Parish Council were consulted resulting on a flawed document that does not 

reflect the reality of land use around Bicester nor take into account the well being of 

residents within Wendlebury.

Mr Colin Clark Banbury and Cherwell Green Party Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connection 

Low Carbon Strategy is silent on public transport. Failed to consider 20 mph zones in 

the County. Are travel plans scrutinised? Traffic congestion at Banbury is not 

considered adequately. Plan is unclear on relief road between Thorpe Way (or the 

new M40 sites ) with southern Banbury. Station traffic is significant. Plan is unclear 

regarding the Southern relief Road at Bicester. Limited evidence regarding a planned 

rail-freight interchange at Graven Hill. Plan should consider additional park and ride 

at Kidlington into Oxford. Welcome Water Eaton Station - has traffic management 

been considered.  Opposed to new passenger airport at Upper Heyford or expansions 

at Kidlington Oxford London Airport. 

Mr Colin Clark Banbury and Cherwell Green Party Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connection 

Local Plan should enhance rail services between Banbury & Oxford. A new station at 

Kidlington village centre and a new station near Kidlington Airport to serve 

employment areas with park and ride. Re-opening of stations between Banbury & 

Kidlington. Mini bus service between Heyford & Oxford. New station at Wolvercote 

and at Summertown with a bus service to hospitals at Headington and eastern side of 

Oxford. 

Mr Colin Clark Banbury and Cherwell Green Party Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connection 

Plan should ensure cycle paths beside main roads to encourage cycling into Banbury, 

Bicester and Kidlington from the surrounding areas. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Policy SLE4 should include improvements to Junction 9 of the M40. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Agree

Mr Tim Hibbert Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Questions what information is available in terms of traffic count data

Mr Tim Hibbert Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Objects as no other options for the road have been examined.  Wendlebury is already 

a rat run.

Mr Tim Hibbert Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Objects as there is no green buffer at Wendlebury

Mr Ian Inshaw Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport Connections  

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Policy should include a South-East Link Road. Suggest upgrade of Bankside with anew 

spur continuing northeast from half way along Bankside to Banbury 6. 

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Support local plan comments regarding road transport, traffic flow and congestion 

issues. Local Plan should set out principles that promote the use of public transport. 

Wider road transport should reflect policies for Cherwell and Oxfordshire. 

Disappointed that opportunities associated with the railway have not been 

highlighted. Welcome Evergreen 3 East and West Rail and its electrification. Welcome 

use of rail to transport freight. Concern raised regarding London Road Level crossing 

with increased train movements. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Long term aspirations for a Station at Langford and a parkway station at Shipton 

Quarry should still be pushed for.

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

connections

The Bicester East Relief Road is mentioned but not shown in a map. The road as 

shown in the Bicester Masterplan will cross the Langford Brook and its impact on 

flood risk and nature conservation needs to be considered.

Page 14

P
a

g
e
 5

4



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Anthony Powell Highways Agency Policy SLE.4 Improved transport and 

connections

Recommend more sustainable measures to reduce the need to travel are explored in 

the first instance with large infrastructure improvements such as the Bicester South 

East relief road and Banbury Inner relief road explored as a last resort. Unclear how 

these projects are to be delivered or their affect on the SNR. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy SLE.4 Improved transport and 

connections

Generally supportive and pleased that land for a South East Relief road is retained. 

However, It is vital that existing inner relief road's capacity is expanded, 

consideration of  Railway Bridge and Middleton Road/Merton Street junctions and  

the multi-storey car parks both sides of the railway needed for the redevelopment of 

this area.

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved transport and 

connections

Review requirement of a new station at Lyne Mead in Kidlington. Support station at 

Water Eaton Park. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Supporting text should make reference to public transport networks and bus services. 

Increased frequency, improved quality and reliability of bus services. Cross-town 

services in Bicester and Banbury. Commercially self-sustaining. Support reference to 

new inner relief road within Banbury to reflect Town Movement Strategy. South West 

Bicester Relief Road should not be called Vendee Drive. Policy should include key 

interchanges. No reference to Bicester Park & Ride. Growth proposals of London 

Oxford Airport appear over looked. Intensification of air and ground activity. 

Expansion of air boundary. LTP3 supports air travel services and facilities. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Policy should reflect Government funding of East west Rail western section 

improvements. Electrification between Oxford - Bicester Town - Bletchley - Bedford. 

i.e. Electric Spine. Should bring jobs. 

Mr Charles Routh Natural England Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Unclear how the biodiversity, landscape and amenity value of each site has been 

considered. The Plan is considered unsound unless the Council demonstrates how it 

has addressed paragraphs 110 and 165 of the NPPF and paragraphs 98 and 99 of 

ODPM Circular 06/2005 in the process of allocating sites. On biodiversity terms, 

advise that at least a phase one survey should be undertaken for each allocated site.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Proposed new link road between A41 and A4421 will be within the setting of the 

schedule monument of Alchester Roman Town and may cause substantial harm by 

isolating the monument from its setting. It is unclear whether the proposal will 

achieve the aims of NPPF in paragraphs 126 and 132. Further consideration needs to 

be given to the acceptability or otherwise of this proposed relief road.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

There will be a significant growth in traffic caused by growth in the towns

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Commuting will still occur from these towns causing congestion, accidents and 

pollution in this and neighbouring parishes. 

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

The Parish would like a Traffic Plan Management Risk Assessment  to check the road 

network and parking problems that will be caused by more development based on 

the following scenarios: good railway and bus provision, a reduced or delayed 

provision, .

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

There is a problem with on-street parking by commuters in the Parish

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

The County County has not been monitoring or taking action over the effects of the 

Controlled Parking Zones in North Oxford introduced in 2004 as recommended by its 

Committee - Cherwell should press the County to do this. 

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Lorries are using the unsuitable routes leading to excessive noise and vibration for 

residents in the Parish

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Through the Local Plan business lorries should sign up to the Oxfordshire County 

Council's Heavy Lorry Route Partnership Agreement

Mr Laurence Todd Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

There are not enough planning in terms of the use of local key roads to enable people 

to move around Banbury

Page 15

P
a
g
e
 5

5



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Laurence Todd Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

The cost of the Banbury South East link road will be considerable

Mr Laurence Todd Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

It is unrealistic that public transport will be used instead of cars

Mr Laurence Todd Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

The congestion on Middleton Road will be significantly increased with the Canalside 

development

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Support principle of Bicester South East relief road - is it deliverable? 

Mr Greg Atkins South Newington A361 Residents' Lobby Policy SLE.4 Improved Transport and 

Connections

Attached: SNARL A361 Report September 2012

Mr Phil King HS2 Ltd Paragraph B.80 High Speed Rail 2 - London to 

Birmingham 

The paragraph contains inaccurate information about the role of the Secretary of 

State and implies that CDC will be a decision maker in relation to establishing the 

principle of the HS railway through Cherwell. The representation proposes minor 

amendments to the text.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy SLE.5 High Speed rail 2- London to 

Birmingham

Supported

Mr Phil King HS2 Ltd Policy SLE.5 High Speed Rail 2 - London to 

Birmingham 

Policy contains inaccurate information. Delete policy or make minor amendments to 

the text.

Mrs Kiran Williams BNP Paribas Real Estate UK Ltd / Cawdor Capital Ltd Paragraph B.83 Introduction Support para. 

Mrs Kiran Williams BNP Paribas Real Estate UK Ltd / Trustees of Norman Collision 

Foundation

Paragraph B.83 Introduction Support approach outlined. 

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Paragraph B.85 Introduction Land north of Hanwell Fields could accommodate more than 400 dwellings.  The 

word 'about' should be added.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph B.86 Introduction Need to include the retention of 'Green Buffers' between villages

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph B.86 Introduction The phrase 'Urban Sprawl' is unclear. Does this refer to unplanned growth, high 

densities or settlement coalescence? Green Buffer should be removed. 

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Paragraph B.86 Introduction Green Buffers need to be wide enough to be effective. 

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Paragraph B.89 Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing 

Provision 

Paragraph B.89 underplays NPPF housing provision. Local Plan should proactively 

identify housing need. 

Mrs Miranda Rogers Stansgate Planning / P S Coles Will Trust Paragraph B.89 Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing 

Provision 

South East Plan RSS set to be revoked by Government. NPPF requires new housing 

targets to be base on most up to date household and population projections in 2010  

& 2008. Further consultation required. 

Miss Sian Holland Stansgate Planning / Brasenose College Paragraph B.89 Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing 

Provision 

South East Plan RSS set to be revoked by Government. NPPF requires new housing 

targets to be base on most up to date household and population projections in 2010  

& 2008. Further consultation required. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph B.89 Policy BSC.1: District Wide Housing 

Distribution 

Housing target for Kidlington should be a minimum target & not a maximum target. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph B.89 Policy BSC1: District Wide Housing 

Distribution

Plan should seek a minimum total growth target of 13,400 dwellings reflecting RSS 

figure. 

Mr David Coates Paragraph B.90 Policy BSC.1: District Wide Housing 

Distribution

Para B.89 - B.90 Delete first sentence and bullet point 3. 

Sam Croft RPS Planning & Development / Banner Homes Ltd  / Rowland 

Bratt

Paragraph B.90 Policy BSC.1. District Wide Housing 

Distribution

No justification is given to the delay of Employment land in rural areas to the next 

DPD. Over reliance on large strategic sites. Prudent to allocate a mix of sites in urban 

and rural areas to ensure a variety of sites and balanced housing market.  Introduce a 

20% buffer to housing land supply. Re-word para 90. 

Mrs Miranda Rogers Stansgate Planning / P S Coles Will Trust Paragraph B.90 Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing 

Provision 

Support extension of plan period - no justification for capping development at 

existing rate i.e. 670 dwg per annum. NPPF required updated assessment. Further 

consultation required. 

Miss Sian Holland Stansgate Planning / Brasenose College Paragraph B.90 Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing 

Provision 

Support extension of plan period - no justification for capping development at 

existing rate i.e. 670 dwg per annum. NPPF required updated assessment. Further 

consultation required. 

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Paragraph B.90 Policy BSC 1. District Wide Housing 

Distribution

Has the SE Plan been revoked yet? How will it affect development plans?

Page 16

P
a

g
e
 5

6



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph B.90 Policy BSC 1. District Wide Housing 

Distribution

Plan should be amended - once South East RSS is revoked the Council will update 

future housing requirements. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Paragraph B.90 Policy BSC 1. District Wide Housing 

Distribution

See comment BSC.1

Mr Geoff Bolton Berrys / Gleeson Developments Ltd Paragraph B.92 Policy BSC 1. District Wide Housing 

Distribution

The Plan does not contain contingency measures in the event that strategic housing 

sites do not come forward within the planned timescales. The deliverability of sites 

has not been supported by the required evidence and the Plan should not proceed 

without publishing a SHLAA update, Infrastructure Plan and a viability assessment 

and there should be then an opportunity for submitting representations.  Have 

concerns with the deliverability/timescale of the following sites: Banbury 1, Banbury 

2 and Banbury 4. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph B.92 Policy BSC 1. District Wide Housing 

Distribution

Remove from list. Conflicts with likely housing mix. 

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy BSC.1 District wide housing distribution The focus on the urban areas is not justified in the Plan. 

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy BSC.1 District wide housing distribution Growth is focused on to few large sites, such as NW Bicester, meaning that if there is 

a problem with delivery then this could cause a lack of housing supply. A more 

flexible approach should be taken allowing for a more diverse portfolio of sites. 

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy BSC.1 District wide housing distribution The number of dwellings allocated to Bicester should be reduced by 10%

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy BSC.1 District wide housing distribution Supports the allocation of 14, 208 additional homes to be provided between 2011 

and 2031.

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Provision The Plan should incorporate flexibility - Over reliance at Banbury - 4,352 dwellings. 

Concern at windfall allowance at 1.150 units. RSS South East Plan put greater 

emphasis of housing at Bicester than Banbury. No specific housing figure allocated at 

Banbury. Over reliance on windfall. Should reflect historic provision by settlement.  

Past windfall sites on brownfield land - this now excludes garden land. 

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Provision Local Plan should adopted locally derived housing figures. Failure to test higher 

housing figures. RSS South East Plan evidence is out of date and based on earlier 

household projections. Should rely on 2011 Census data.  RSS South East Plan only 

plans for reasonable levels of housing and not to boost significantly as suggested by 

the NPPF. Housing target should be based on; population growth, the economy, 

military changes, labour force ratio, market factors, housing hold projections / 

demographics, infrastructure and flexibility. 

Mr John Braithwaite South Newington Parish Council Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Support the reduced targets for housing development in rural villages

Mrs Kathryn Brown Stoke Lyne Parish Council Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Unconvinced about the need for a massive (10,300) house- building programme. 

Why is such high proportion focussed on Bicester.

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution No evidence of the Duty of Cooperation has been met. No up to date SHMA or 

SHLAA. Object to inclusion of Windfall sites - should allocate land to meet 

requirement. Not supported by evidence. No flexibility within the Plan. Plan target 

should consider Sub-National projections as well as the DCLG Household Projections 

expected December 2012. Plan is inflexible should 5-year housing land supply fall 

behind. Canalside development is undeliverable. Suggest reserve allocations 

approach - reinstate policy. 5-year housing land supply paper demonstrates a 3.1year 

supply of deliverable sites. Policy should be clear that sites for the rest of the District 

are to be allocated in a subsequent Site Allocation / Neighbourhood Plan. 

Page 17

P
a
g
e
 5

7



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution The Policy refers to Upper Heyford as the rest of the District which is inaccurate as it 

should be recognised as a significant brownfield site separately within the settlement 

hierarchy

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore / Bovis Homes Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Provision Concern that the Plan relies on the South East Plan figures. Does not show flexibility 

or supported by an up to date, objective assessment. Accurate assessment of housing 

need is required. 

Mr Peter Chambers David Lock Associates Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Residential development of 500 homes at Gavray Drive Bicester is supported.  The 

site has planning permission.  The housing trajectory indicates delivery over a 7 year 

period form 2014. Homes are capable of being delivered more quickly

Mr Colin Clark Banbury and Cherwell Green Party Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Plan should consider how housing needs and requirements are changing and not to 

simply rely on RSS figure of 13,400. Concern that housing allocations at Bicester and 

Banbury will out strip jobs. New housing should be based on needs assessment. 

Support affordable housing percentage. Digital connections support home working. 

Expectation that manufacturing will remain fixed. Citizens should not be digitally 

disadvantaged. More affordable housing in town centres. Support flats above shops. 

Flood risk should be considered - e.g. spiceball.  

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Should South East Plan be revoked during the Plan perpetration process the Council 

should have an up to date local evidence base. 

Mr Russell Crow Barton Willmore / Taylor Wimpey UK Ltd Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution No evidence is provided to demonstrate that South East Plan target is sufficient to 

meet future requirements. SHMA 2012 has not been supplied. Plan does not 

acknowledge recent evidence on demographic change and mitigation through ONS 

and CLG population and household projections. Plan does not consider the economic 

aspirations of the District in setting their housing target and lack of correlation 

between number of jobs and increase in working age population. Net result will be an 

increase in commuting. Council should re-consult once evidence base is up to date. 

Council should reassess housing need. Detailed analysis attached. 

Mr Russell Crow Barton Willmore / Taylor Wimpey UK Ltd Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Site analysis of Cropredy, Fritwell, Hook Norton, Sibford Gower / Ferris and Steeple 

Aston demonstrates issues with growth at these settlement. 

Mr Robert Gardner Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Support strategy of focused growth at the main towns. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Supported. The rural villages are maintained as rural areas and not allowed  to 

coalesce into larger conurbations 

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Supports the growth identified for Banbury and the identification of land north of 

Hanwell Fields. 

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy BSC.1 District wide housing distribution Objects to the reduced growth at Banbury as this is inconsistent with the NPPF and 

the South East Plan. The Plan period has been extended meaning the annual rate of 

delivery is lower at Banbury.  Banbury is the largest town in the District with the 

capacity to accommodate more growth.  The growth at Banbury should be increased 

to meet market and local needs and boost housing delivery.  The growth figure for 

Banbury should be pre-fixed with the word 'about'.  

Mrs Miranda Rogers Stansgate Planning / P S Coles Will Trust Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Provision No justification for housing numbers beyond Plan period or distribution of growth 

between Bicester, Banbury & Rest of the District. No assessment of windfall 

provision.  SHLAA has not been published. Background paper required to consider 

number of completions, under construction, planning permission granted, SHLAA 

sites, Windfall anticipated. Detailed justification for split between towns. Greater 

provision in the rest of the district. Further consultation required. 

Page 18

P
a

g
e
 5

8



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Miss Sian Holland Stansgate Planning / Brasenose College Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Provision No justification for housing numbers beyond Plan period or distribution of growth 

between Bicester, Banbury & Rest of the District. No assessment of windfall 

provision.  SHLAA has not been published. Background paper required to consider 

number of completions, under construction, planning permission granted, SHLAA 

sites, Windfall anticipated. Detailed justification for split between towns. Greater 

provision in the rest of the district. Further consultation required. 

Mr Chris Hone CPRE Banbury District Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Provision The removal of reserve sites in the plan is welcomed; this will increase certainty of 

delivery on the sites allocated.

K W Janes Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Supports the Plan in terms of growth being focussed on Bicester and Banbury 

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Overall housing growth should be based on the most up to date household projects 

and evidence within a Strategic Housing Market Assessment. Calculate that the Plan 

target should be raised to 20.560 dpa 2006-2031. Equating to 900 net dpa for the 

remainder of the Plan period 2011 - 2031. 

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Policy BSC.1 is inconsistent with South East RSS Policies H1, CO3 & AOSR1.  Great 

emphasis of growth now at Bicester. Redistribution strategy proposed at higher and 

lower growth levels. Windfall should not be included within figures. Plan should 

deliver 6,160 new homes at Banbury between 2011 - 2031. 

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Support overall Housing Strategy. If South East Plan is revoked before Plan adoption 

an up-to-date evidence base will be required. 

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Support proposed distribution of growth and the greatest proportion of growth at 

Banbury & Bicester. This approach is considered consistent with the South East Plan. 

Support strategic sites approach. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Plan should address imbalance of housing growth between Bicester & Banbury. 

Mr David Keene David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution SHMA 2008 indicates a household change of +27,000 a higher level of growth than 

the South East Plan or earlier CLG projections. Level of housing provision should be 

increased. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Support approach of 670 dpa beyond Plan period. Object to housing split at Banbury 

as does not represent RSS approach to central Oxfordshire and North Cherwell. 

Councils approach to growth at Banbury is unclear. Greater emphasis of growth 

should be at Banbury.  

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Policy BCS1 District Wide Housing Distribution Growth to the South benefit from; well connected to employment, shopping and 

community facilities. Halcrow Landscape report notes - area is a permeable edge and 

a sustainable location. Halcrow transport report para 6.4.4 notes - the south of 

Banbury has good permeability. Located in the least sensitive location in respect of 

landscape terms. The south is located on a broad plateau and not limited by a ridge 

line that would not increase visibility. Would be able to deliver a new cricket pitch 

securing a green separation between Banbury & Bodicote to the West of White Post 

Road. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Support Policy in principle the proposed housing distribution. 

Page 19

P
a
g
e
 5

9



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Support district wide housing distribution in principal however object to overall 

housing provision for the district 16,750 dwg to 2031. District Council is lacking a 

locally derived housing requirement. Analysis of social-economic, demographic and 

unmet housing need suggests a higher target. Evidence base for South East RSS has 

been superseded and latest housing projections indicate a significant increase. 2008 

based household projections suggest an increase of 20,000 new households over the 

plan period (800 per annum).  Total district completions between 2001 - 2011 

equates to 5,664 dwg, household size of 1.78. An indication of the trend towards 

decreasing household size and the development of smaller dwellings in the District. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution  Greater emphasis towards larger dwg for families. Draft SHMA & Housing Needs 

Estimates identify significant latent housing demand 831 dwg & 7962 dwg and 

'concealed' households.  Increase District housing requirement & Banbury 

requirement. This would also address the level of net-in commuting into the town 

providing a better balance of houses and jobs.  Suggest housing target of 20,000 or 

800 dwg per annum. Banbury target too be increased by 1,100. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution No objection in principle to district wide housing distribution. 

Ms Louise Morton Quadrant Town Planning Ltd Policy BSC.1 District wide housing distribution There is uncertainty over whether the large urban extensions can be delivered so 

more development should be allocated elsewhere

Mr Steven Neal Boyer Planning / Redrow Homes & Wates Developments Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Support rate of growth. Revocation of South East Plan could however happen at any 

time. In this instance up to date evidence will be required. 

Mr Steven Neal Boyer Planning / Redrow Homes & Wates Developments Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Support proposed distribution of housing set out in the Plan with the focus of growth 

at Banbury & Bicester. 

Mr Wayne Neale Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Provision Growth proposed at Banbury is satisfied by existing approved schemes. 

Mr Wayne Neale Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Provision Unclear why West of Warwick Drive removed as an allocation.  

Mr Wayne Neale Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Provision Better sites exist - West of Warwick Road, Kraft, Old Alcan & Bankside, land adjoin 

Banbury 3

Ms Cathleen Nunn Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Provision Housing numbers are over inflated. 

Mrs Jane Olds Caversfield Parish Council Policy BSC1 District Wide Housing  Distribution Supports the overall principle so long as the principles in both areas are adhered to.

Robin Parker Policy BSC1 District wide housing distribution There are other areas that could be developed that are within the town limits or next 

to existing industrial areas which would avoid spoiling rural communities.

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Housing numbers should be based on objectively assessed needs for Market and 

Affordable Housing. 

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Housing numbers should be based on objectively assessed needs for Market and 

Affordable Housing. 

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Leda Properties Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing provision Object to the inclusion of windfall sites within housing target as undeliverable. In 

particular the low delivery at Bicester. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Bicester 12 is proposed immediately adjacent to the scheduled monument of 

Wretchwick Deserted Medieval Settlement and may cause significant harm to its 

significance contrary to NPPF paragraphs 126 and 132. EH seeks the revision of the 

proposed development area which may affect the total number of houses given for 

Bicester in Policy BSC1. Need to identify the extent of the setting where no 

development should be permitted to be consistent with NPPF paragraph 157.

Page 20

P
a

g
e
 6

0



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Object to proposed housing target of 670dpa on the basis that latest demographic 

evidence suggests at least 850dpa will be needed to provide for household formation 

rates. Economic evidence suggests around 340-480 dpa will be needed to house the 

expected growth in the areas employment base and that this estimate does not take 

into account new workers to replace retired workers. The 2007 SHMA suggests 

between 611-744 dpa are needed to meet demand for affordable housing . Other 

issues include; loss of economic growth potential, deterrence of future business 

investment, increasing house prices, increased over crowding & displacement of 

future jobs. Clawing back out commuters, attracting in-commuting, increasing 

workforce participation among older workers, attracting a younger resident 

workforce and increase housing supply.  Additional 8,000 to 11,300 jobs could be 

created by 2031. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Object to target, should be a minimum figure. The rest of the district figure should be 

qualified - i.e. next to villages.  Policy should introduce flexibility so that priority is 

given to overall Plan target. Object to reference to windfall in Policy. Amendment 

supplied. 

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons / The Banbury AAT Academy Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Support policy and allowance for 1,150 windfall. Consider Council's Strategy is too 

focused on Strategic Allocations. Concern regarding delivery. Figure should be 

minimum and not maximum. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Object. Figures over inflated. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Disagree with need calculation. No requirement for additional sites beyond Bankside 

& Canalside.

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Coalition Government has introduced a series of housing support reforms. Cherwell 

District Council is failing to finance. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution No Market needs forecast, key approved sites not in Plan, fixed 25 years not 5 year 

annual up date, no 5 year plan for deliverable houses, no competition for land, no 

implementation strategy, finance is the key, no allowance for windfall. 

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Reliance on the South East Plan housing targets lacks flexibility to respond to the 

revocation of RSS. Council should supplement with an up to date assessment of need. 

Report on need attached. 

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Policy BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Plan does not have an up-to date evidence base as neither SHMA or SHLAA has been 

published. No evidence to justify extension of South East Plan target by 5 years. 

Windfall allowance is unjustified. Query inclusion of Gavray Drive. 

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Paragraph B.99 Policy BSC.2: The Effective and 

Efficient Use of Land - Brownfield 

Land & Housing Density

Flexibility is noted in Paragraph B.99 and should be added to policy BSC.2. Alternative 

wording supplied. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph B.100 Policy BSC.2: The Effective and 

Efficient Use of Land - Brownfield 

Land & Housing Density

Support development on previously developed sites over undeveloped sites. Add: 

The use of undeveloped land will only be considered after demonstration that 

previously developed sites are inappropriate'

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph B.100 Policy BSC.2: The Effective and 

Efficient Use of Land - Brownfield 

Land & Housing Density

Replace 'generally' by 'always'.

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Policy BSC.2 The Effective and Efficient Use of 

Land - Brownfield Land & Housing 

Density

Support approach - note overall level of growth directed towards rural areas needs to 

meet the local needs. 

Page 21

P
a
g
e
 6

1



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Policy BSC.2 The Effective and Efficient Use of 

Land - Brownfield Land & Housing 

Density

Support release of Green filed sites early in the Plan period. 30% Brownfield target is 

too prescriptive; regard should be had for character, landscape & townscape. 

Sam Croft RPS Planning & Development / Banner Homes Ltd  / Rowland 

Bratt

Policy BSC.2 The Effective and Efficient Use of 

Land - Brownfield land and 

housing Density

Re-word. 

Mr Russell Crow Barton Willmore / Taylor Wimpey UK Ltd Policy BSC.2 The Effective and Efficient Use of 

Land - Brownfield land and 

housing density 

Unclear weight to be afforded between efficient use of land and character and 

appearance. Unclear if 30% applies to gross site area or developable area? 

Amendment to text supplied. Remove specific mention of 30% target unless evidence 

is supplied. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC2 The Effective and Efficient use of 

Land - Brownfield Land and 

Housing Density

Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy BSC2 Effective and efficient use of Land - 

Brownfield Land and Housing 

Density

Should have the qualification: 'unless individual circumstances indicate a lower 

number'

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy BSC2 The Effective and Efficient use of 

Land - Brownfield Land and 

Housing Density

Agree

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy BSC.2 The Effective and Efficient use of 

Land - Brownfield Land and 

Housing Density

Support 40% target - concern with PDL land in respect of delivery. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Policy BSC.2 The Effective and Efficient Use of 

Land - Brownfield Land and 

Housing Density

Policy BSC 2 seeks 30dwg a ha, should be modified to ensure that in sustainable 

locations a higher housing density will be expected.  

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Policy BSC.2 The Effective & Efficient Use of 

Land - Brownfield land and 

Housing Density

Policy BSC.2 should reflect Paragraph B.99 by recognising individual circumstances on 

design density. 

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning Policy BSC.2 The Effective & Efficient Use of 

Land - Brownfield land and 

Housing Density

Support the use of Greenfield sites to meet housing need. Requirement for housing 

at a density of at least 30%is considered to prescriptive. Wording supplied. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Policy BSC.2 The Effective and efficient use of 

land - Brownfield Land and 

Housing Density 

Expect higher densities in sustainable locations

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy BSC.2 The Effective and Efficient Use of 

Land - Brownfield Land and 

Housing Density

Policy should not assume Brownfield land is less diverse than Greenfield land. 

Mrs Jennifer Spear Ambrosden Parish Council Policy BSC.2 Effective Use of Efficient Use of 

Land - Brownfield Land and 

Housing Density

Object to building not less than 30 dph. Does not reflect character of the area. 

Density may not be appropriate on the edge of villages or infill developments within 

policies. Amend policy to reflect character of the area and Policy ESD.16. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Policy BSC.2 The Effective and Efficent Use of 

Land - Brownfield land and 

Housing Density

Object to Phasing policy - with the exception of where it relates to key infrastructure. 

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Policy BSC.2 The Effective and Efficient Use of 

Land - Brownfield Land and 

Housing Density

PDL target of 40% is not very ambitious. Support a sequential approach. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy BSC.2 The Effective and Efficient Use of 

Land - Brownfield Land and 

Housing Density

Insufficient brownfield target at Banbury. Most sites are on Greenfield land. 

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Paragraph B.102 Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Proposed plan target does not meet affordable housing need as set out in the SHMA. 

Under supply of housing identified. 

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Paragraph B.102 Policy BSC.3: Affordable Housing Little justification for tenure split 30/70%. Consider on a case by case basis. Lack of 

flexibility. 

Page 22

P
a

g
e
 6

2



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Supports the requirement for affordable housing to be provided

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing There is no evidence to require a higher proportion of affordable homes in the rural 

areas

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Considering the increasing amount of infrastructure that is being asked for by the LPA 

for development sites the affordable housing requirement is to onerous effecting 

viability.  

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Local Plans should be deliverable and individual site circumstances should be taken 

into account 

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Affordable housing should only be requested where the scheme is viable and 

deliverable. 

Mr John Braithwaite South Newington Parish Council Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Support policies to improve affordability of housing and provide social rented and 

intermediate housing to meet identified needs including availability of housing in 

rural areas.

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing There has been no publication of the updated SHMA 2012 referred to in the 

document

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing There has been no publication of the affordable housing viability study 

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing The policy is not justified as there is no published evidence which takes account of 

the NPPF

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing The Plan does not take account of the Local Housing Delivery Group chaired by Sir 

John Harmon in terms of Plans being deliverable. It should not require such a scale of 

obligations on sites that means they are undeliverable. There should be a more 

flexible approach to affordable housing provision. 

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing There is no evidence to support the Plan which allows for 35% of housing to be 

affordable in the rural areas. 

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore / Bovis Homes Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Support general approach. Policy should be based on up to date evidence base. 

Support flexibility in Policy and reference to viability. 

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Support general approach to affordable housing however lack of clarity within first 

paragraph. Replace maximum with up to. 

Mr David Coates Policy BSC3 Affordable Housing Policy BSC.3 should refer to 'net' housing & not 'gross'. Delete first sentence and 

'otherwise'. 

Mr Russell Crow Barton Willmore / Taylor Wimpey UK Ltd Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Updates to SHMA & Affordable Housing Viability study have not been made 

publically available. Policy should be flexible to reflect site circumstances. Council 

should re-consult on new evidence. 

Mr Keith Dixon Launton Parish Council Policy BSC3 Affordable Housing The 35% affordable housing requirement will not be effective as it will just prevent 

smaller housing schemes

Mr Keith Dixon Launton Parish Council Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Supports the affordable housing exception policy

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Policy BSC3 Affordable Housing The Council should work with the Parish Council to determine affordable housing 

need

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC3 Affordable  Housing 5th para appear to lack justification, in a rural area where a large or rural occupation 

dwelling is proposed on a substantial piece of land.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC3 Affordable  Housing 4th para appear to lack justification, in a rural area where a large or rural occupation 

dwelling is proposed on a substantial piece of land.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC3 Affordable  Housing Supported -  Subject to comments under soundness and legality

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy BSC3 Affordable  Housing 4th para. In rural areas where there are 3 or less dwellings it would make sense to 

stipulate that the dwelling would be suitable for shared ownership only.

Page 23

P
a
g
e
 6

3



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy BSC3 Affordable  Housing Policy does not show the transport strategy or water supply to work in harmony with 

the indication to allocate 35% of affordable housing  into villages.

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy BSC3 Affordable Housing Object to the affordable housing requirement. There is no published evidence to 

support this and it does not take account of John Harmon's report or the NPPF.  It is 

not take account of  NPPF paras 47, 159, 173 and 174. A more flexible approach 

should be taken to the affordable housing percentages. 

Mr Andrew Hickman Middleton Stoney Parish Council Policy BSC 3 Affordable Housing The threshold 1:3 or 35% will be unworkable. The previous threshold was 1:6 and it 

should remain at that level.

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Set Kidlington threshold to 3. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Affordable Housing threshold for Kidlington should be lowered. 

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing It must take into account additional overheads of travelling to employment in 

Banbury. The bus service does not provide such service for normal working hours; 

entertainment in Banbury would be very difficult without personal transport.

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Delivery of 30% affordable housing should be subject to an assessment of viability. In 

addition a further clause should allow for off-site provision and / or equivalent 

financial contribution where appropriate. Wording supplied.  

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Support 30% requirement. Dis-like term 'maximum' suggest 'up to'. Object to 

proposed social / affordable & intermediate split of 70 / 30 %. Should consider on a 

case by case basis. 

Mr Vic Keeble Chesterton Parish Council

Policy BSC.3 

Affordable Housing Policy should include 'departure sites' that provide opportunities for affordable 

housing alongside market housing - inline with NPPF. More provision should be made 

in villages for affordable housing to prevent young people leaving. Introduce a rural 

exception site policy. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Remove requirement for charging applicants to pay for the Council's scrutiny of 

viability assessment. Remove high level of prescription from the policy as to the 

proportion of affordable housing. 

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Concern that affordable housing threshold of 10 dwg will not prevent back garden 

and small brownfield development coming forward and not contributing to the 

delivery of affordable homes and open space. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Support principle of affordable housing including acknowledgement of viability. 

Consider each site should be considered on a case by case basis. Little justification for 

the proposed split of affordable housing. 

Mr Steven Neal Boyer Planning / Redrow Homes & Wates Developments Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Support 30% requirement. Dis-like term 'maximum' suggest 'up to'. Object to 

proposed social / affordable & intermediate split of 70 / 30 %. Should consider on a 

case by case basis. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing The 30% figure is supported. The district and Banbury are in need of more affordable 

housing.

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Developments of 3 or more dwg should reach at least 35% housing delivery as 

affordable at Kidlington. 

Mrs Jennifer Spear Ambrosden Parish Council Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Requirement to provide 35% affordable housing on sites of 3 or more dwellings 

(gross) is not compatible with provision of self build schemes within rural areas. 

Policy is onerous and will impact on cost of serviced plots. Policy should be amended 

to encourage affordable self builds and serviced plots in rural areas. Not compatible 

with NPPF para 54. No evidence of cooperation with neighbouring local authorities to 

address settlements on the boarder of district boundaries. Definition of affordable 

housing should be extended to include subsidised low cost sale, entry level housing 

for sale, private rented accommodation & intermediate. 

Page 24

P
a

g
e
 6

4



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Delete first paragraph and replace with minimum affordable housing target. 

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Policy BSC 3 Affordable Housing Concern that 35% affordable housing target in rural areas is not based on where 

people prefer to live. Target should be reduced accordingly. 

Mr Malcolm Watt Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Support Policy BSC3

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Support flexibility within policy to reflect viability constraints. 

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Policy BSC.3 Affordable Housing Plan does not have an up-to date evidence base as neither SHMA or SHLAA has been 

published.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Paragraph B.122 Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Mix should not inhibit viable development . 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Paragraph B.123 Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Support extra care housing. 

Mr David Coates Paragraph B.125 Policy BSC.4: Housing Mix Para B.125 - B.127 refer to 45 extra care dwellings. This assumes a 7% mix and a total 

minimum site capacity of 640 dwg. 

Mr David Keene David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates Paragraph B.126 Policy BSC.4: Housing Mix Requirement for 45 self contained extra care dwellings is not evidenced. Paragraph 

should be removed. 

Mr David Coates Paragraph B.127 Policy BSC.4: Housing Mix Para B.125 - B.127 refer to 45 extra care dwellings. This assumes a 7% mix and a total 

minimum site capacity of 640 dwg. 

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix The Policy is too prescriptive and should be deleted. There are many factors that will 

determine the housing mix on a particular site. 

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Policy is too prescriptive and should be amended to reflect the NPPF and emphasis 

on market demand. Housing type should vary by specific location and reflect market 

demand and not district wide prescriptions. Policy should also take account of design 

and site viability. 

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Policy should be a guide only. Needs will change over time. Mix should be 

determined on a site by site basis, up to date SHMA & discussion with Housing 

Officer. 

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix There is no evidence to support this mix of housing. The Policy could be prefixed with 

the word 'about'

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix The Policy does not take account of the John Harmon report or the NPPF.

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore / Bovis Homes Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Policy not informed by an up to date assessment of population growth and 

infrastructure. 

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Policy categories; shared. Up sizers etc. Is ambiguous, complex , rigid and ineffective 

and should be base on bed room numbers. Alternative Policy wording supplied. 

Remove reference to extra care facilities. 

Mr David Coates Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Object to Policy BSC4 Housing Mix - should only apply to developments of circa 200+. 

Policy should only distinguish between 'Family Housing' & 'Other' types of 

accommodation. 

Mr Russell Crow Barton Willmore / Taylor Wimpey UK Ltd Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Update to SHMA has not been made publically available. Policy should be flexible to 

reflect site circumstances. Council should re-consult on new evidence. Separation of 

up sizing and downsizing is confusing. Does mix apply across the whole site? i.e. does 

policy apply to affordable and market housing. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix For most downsizers a minimum of 2 bedrooms would be required. They may have 

family to stay or require a live-in carer.

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy BSC.4 Housing mix The approach to housing mix is too prescriptive and should be more flexible.  There is 

no published evidence to support this. The NPPF states that Plans should be realistic 

and take account of viability and deliverability. The Policy should be pre-fixed with 

the word 'about'.

Page 25

P
a
g
e
 6

5



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Policy should be a guide to decision making and subject to discussions. Wording 

supplied. 

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Proposed policy is too complex. Should not reference extra care facilities. Wording 

supplied. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Policy is overly prescriptive - should be flexible and subject to assessments of need 

and demand. 

Mr David Keene David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Policy unduly prescriptive. Housing mix depends on location and character of site 

together with market conditions. Remove Policy. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Link to Housing Needs Assessment to strengthen the policy.

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Policy is inconsistent with local market evidence. Policy is too prescriptive and should 

be much simpler, identifying the size of the units through its bed numbers and % 

split. Flexibility should be built into policy. 

Mr Steven Neal Boyer Planning / Redrow Homes & Wates Developments Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Proposed policy is too complex. Should not reference extra care facilities. 

Ms Ellen O'Grady Defence Infrastructure Organisation Policy BSC 4 Housing mix BSC4 is unsound as it is unclear, lacking definition of key terms to the extent that it is 

ineffective and unjustified. It must be redrafted to include a clear mix of dwelling 

types, bedroom numbers, justified by an accessible SHMA.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Policy does not define size of shared housing or up sizing in terms of bedrooms. Nor 

split between 1 or 2 beds. Policy is trying to match mix of new housing with mix of life 

stage of householder. Unenforceable. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Social & Communities Services Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Local Plan adequately refers to ECH including at Strategic Sites. Plan does not 

mention ageing population. OCC have identified a need for 120 units of special needs 

/ disabled housing for adults by 2020. With similar requirement for the following ten 

years. 

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix A recent affordable housing development at Gosford means that it is considered that 

it has fulfilled its requirements

Mrs Jennifer Spear Ambrosden Parish Council Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Policy gives a District wide mix but does not allow for local variations. For example in 

Ambrosden a military settlement the housing mix is very uniform.  The need is for 

larger housing. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Object - Policy should be much more general and should relate to the provision of a 

mix of market housing and affordable housing that meets the needs in each locality 

and has regards to the location of each settlement. Section could also consider 

windfalls. 

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix SHMA does not include an up to date assessment of population growth and 

structure. Policy not founded on a robust evidence base. Policy should have regard to 

local circumstances and character of the site. To distinguish between occupiers rather 

than downsizers is confused. Housing mix should be applied across the whole 

scheme and not just private sale. No monitoring of policy has occurred to date. 

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Policy BSC.4 Housing Mix Plan does not have an up-to date evidence base as neither SHMA or SHLAA has been 

published.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC.5 Area Renewal Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy BSC.5 Area Renewal Agree

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy BSC.5 Area Renewal Keen to support policies seeking to secure area renewal in furtherance of the aims of 

the Brighter Futures in Banbury project, of which the Town Council is an active 

partner.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC.6 Travelling Communities Supported- Unless sites are not sensitively located and effectively managed there will 

be strong opposition from large areas of affected settlements

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy BSC.6 Travelling Communities Agree

Page 26

P
a

g
e
 6

6



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy BSC.6 Travelling Communities Should not treat Travellers as a homogeneous group as this may influence the 

practicalities of providing sites.

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy BSC.6

Travelling Communities

Welcome this policy and advises that 'areas of flood risk' are to include Flood Zone 2 

and 3 in line with NPPF.

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy BSC.6 Travelling Communities The existing site in Banbury is within Canalside and an alternative as well as 

additional provision will be needed. Would like to see the site at Bloxham expanded. 

Would like to note that the site in Banbury has not necessarily been used for 

traditional gypsies or show people. We would be concerned if additional sites were 

places at the edge of Banbury, they could well be in the way of future development if 

the town.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy BSC.6 Travelling Communities Should consider proximity to public transport services. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy BSC.6 Travelling Communities EH supports the inclusion of a criterion requiring consideration of potential harm to 

the historic and natural environment when assessing the suitability of sites for 

gypsies, travellers and travelling show people.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy BSC.6 Travelling Communities The proposal for a new station at Water Eaton is not disputed but it is queried about 

the amount of traffic which is likely to be created on the County road network

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy BSC.6 Travelling Communities The Parish Council believe that the travelling community are adequately provided for 

in this part of Cherwell due to recent planning permissions in the Green Belt and the 

Parish Council will object to any further developments

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Policy BSC 6 Travelling Communities Policy should exclude traveller pitches within the Green Buffer. Wording supplied. 

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Policy BSC.6 Travelling Communities Plan does not have an up-to-date evidence base - GTAA has not yet been published. 

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Paragraph B.142 Meeting Educational Needs Objects to this paragraph concerning the draft Planning Obligations SPD.  They state 

that the SPD should be compatible with likely economic viability of the associated 

Local Plan proposals.  The SPD should reflect the need for the assessment of viability 

to be iterative and relevant draft policies must be based on assumptions which are 

agreed with local partners.  An SPD concerning Planning Obligations should be 

prepared so that it can demonstrate its capacity to provide viable solutions over time 

reflecting the local geography and economy. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph B.142 Policy BSC.7: Meeting Education 

Needs

Officer commitment to the county School Organisation Stakeholder Group has not, to 

date, been forthcoming.

Mr David Brooks Policy BSC.7 Meeting Education Needs Object to paragraph B.142 suggest reference should be made to the redevelopment 

of Blessed George Napier School as a suitable development site. Plan should include 

a strategic allocation for Secondary Education at Banbury, suggested site in the South-

west quadrant. 

Mr Peter Burrows Adderbury Conservation Action Group Policy BSC 7 Meeting Education Needs Christopher Rawlings school Adderbury is close to capacity and expansion is 

constrained by the size of the site.  The school should be relocated near to the centre 

of the village.  Bussing children out to other nearby schools is not acceptable.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC7 Meeting Education Needs Growth will increase education needs and some villages may need to relocate their 

school to allow for increased demand. Will financial planning allow for this need?

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC7 Meeting educational Needs Supported - Subject to comments under soundness

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy BSC7 Meeting  Education Needs Policy needs to take into account what the future provision would be. Space needs to 

be sought to expand the school footprint and lower the class number.

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy BSC 7 Meeting Education Needs Needs stronger support of the necessary up-skilling of the District. Include supporting 

Warriner 6th form, Upper Heyford Free School and improving secondary education to 

an acceptable level in Bicester.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Policy BSC..7 Meeting Education Needs OCC has a statutory duty to ensure a sufficiency of school places. 

Page 27

P
a
g
e
 6

7



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Education & early Intervention Services Policy BSC.7 Meeting Education Needs Very brief. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy BSC.7 Meeting Education Needs Sustainable travel and health and well-being. 

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons / The Banbury AAT Academy Policy BSC.7 Meeting Education Needs Policy fails to acknowledge 'the need to create, expand or alter schools'. 

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Policy BSC.7 Meeting Education Needs Requirement for robust assessment of population structure and housing supply. For 

example to determine appropriate school provision.

Mr Tim Byrne Jones Lang LaSalle / Horton General Hospital Paragraph B.147 Policy BSC.8: Securing Health and 

Well-Being

Agree with statement 'The Health Sector is currently undergoing radical change' 

although suggest this underplays financial and economic pressures. 

Mr Tim Byrne Jones Lang LaSalle / Horton General Hospital Paragraph B.147 Policy BSC.8: Securing Health and 

Well-Being

Support statement Council will continue to work closely with the healthcare provider, 

partners and the NHS across its delivery bodies. 

Mr Tim Byrne Jones Lang LaSalle / Horton General Hospital Policy BSC.8 Securing Health and Well-Being Policy consistent with NPPF. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC8 Securing Health and Wellbeing Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy BSC8 Securing Health and Wellbeing Agree

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Policy BSC.8 Securing Health and Well-Being There is no reference to consider the extra provision and upgrading to be made by 

the Horton Hospital to accommodate the influx of population in the Banbury area.

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Policy BSC.8 Securing Health and Well-being Policy is a statement of intent and not fit for purpose. Policy should be widened to 

comply with Section 8 of the NPPF. Combine Policies BSC.7, 8 & 9. 

Ms Carmelle Bell Thames Water Policy BSC.9 Public Services and Utilities Whilst supporting the inclusion of this policy, do not consider it effective. It should be 

amended to require the successful delivery of all types of development sites and not 

just strategic sites.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC.9 Public Services and Utilities Supported

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy BSC 9 Public Services and Utilities Needs to be more specific in rejecting inadequate waste developments in 

unsustainable locations.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Policy BSC.9 Public Services and Utilities OCC will work with the District to identify impacts of new development on demand 

for Council providing services and new improvements. 

Mrs Vicky Aston Paragraph B.159 Policy BSC.10: Open Space , 

Outdoor Sport and Recreation 

Support underlining evidence base PPG17 assessment and Playing Pitch Strategy note 

that these documents are four years old and would suggest that they are updated. 

Mrs Vicky Aston Paragraph B.160 Policy BSC.10: Open Space , 

Outdoor Sport and Recreation 

Support Councils intention to resist the loss of open space, outdoor sport and 

recreation provision. Suggest text is more closely aligned with NPPF paragraph 74. 

(Suggested text supplied)

Mrs Nicole O'Donnell Oxfordshire Playing Fields Orgainsation Paragraph B.160 Policy BSC.10 : Open Space, 

Outdoor Sport and Recreation 

Provision 

Support. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph B.162 Policy BSC.10 Open Space, 

Outdoor Sport and Recreation 

Provision

Refer to Kidlington Masterplan. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph B.162 Policy BSC10. Open Space, 

Outdoor Sport and Recreation 

Provision

Support Kidlington Masterplan. 

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Paragraph B.163 Open Space, Outdoor Sport and 

Recreation Provision

Will sports facilities, present and proposed meet the lack of sports facilities in 

Banbury?

Mrs Vicky Aston Policy BSC.10 Open Space, Outdoor Sport and 

Recreation Provision

Support commitment to protect existing sports facilities and planning for new 

development in Policy BSC10. 

Page 28

P
a

g
e
 6

8



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Colin Clark Banbury and Cherwell Green Party Policy BSC.10 Public Open space, Outdoor Sport 

and Recreation Provision

Support new libraries at Banbury & Bicester. Concern that no theatre is planned for 

Banbury. Support general principals determining improvements in recreational 

provision including close working partnerships. Concern at the lack of post Olympic 

Legacy. Village and community halls inadequate size for indoor sport. PPG17 

assessment states this is a priority.  

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC.10 Open Spaces, Outdoor and 

recreation provision

Supported

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy BSC.10 Open Space, Outdoor Sport and 

Recreation Provision

Same comments as to para B.142

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Policy BSC.10 Open Space, Outdoor Sport and 

Recreation Provision

Will sports facilities, present and proposed meet the lack of sports facilities in 

Banbury?

Mr Gareth Jones Policy BSC.10 Open Space, Sport and Recreation 

Provision

The plan is seeking to address deficiencies for indoor sport and recreation. Future 

facilities need to meet the challenges of population growth, expectation and demand  

pressures. The representation details the specific need of facilities for a number of 

sports.

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy BSC.10 Open Space, Outdoor Sport and 

Recreation Provision 

Approach is overly prescriptive - remove detail and include within SPD. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Policy BSC.10 Open Space, Outdoor sport and 

Recreation Provision

Support policy approach but further clarity needed to explain how open space, sports 

and recreation will be secured.  Considered undeliverable. 

Mrs Nicole O'Donnell Oxfordshire Playing Fields Orgainsation Policy BSC.10 Open Space, Outdoor Sport and 

Recreation Provision 

Support. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy BSC10 Open Space, Outdoor Sport and 

Recreation Provision

Whilst the aims are supported, the TC feels that an earlier involvement in securing 

appropriate provision through the development process to meet deficiencies is 

essential. Outdoor sports provision needs adequate changing  facilities. There 

remains a shortfall in allotment land, with growing waiting lists at Council sites.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy BSC.10 Bicester Gateway Support natural /semi natural green space and standards. Should also include 

biodiversity and wildlife features in other green space such as amenity green space 

and corridors. 

Mr Charles Routh Natural England Policy BSC.10 Local Standards of Provision - 

Outdoor Recreation

Linear public right of way network should be considered as part of the recreation 

resource, and referred to within the supporting text as such.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy BSC.10 Open Space, Outdoor Sport and 

Recreation Provision

It may be commendable to have more open space but the Parish are struggling with 

existing maintain costs. Existing facilities in Gosford should be redeveloped. 

Developers should contribute towards this. 

Mr Chris Wardley The Inland Waterways Association Policy BSC.10 Open Space, Outdoor Sport and 

Recreation Provision

Policy does not recognise the importance of the Oxford Canal. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Table Table 8 Local Standards of Provision - 

Outdoor Recreation

Approach is overly prescriptive - remove detail and include within SPD. 

Mrs Nicole O'Donnell Oxfordshire Playing Fields Orgainsation Table Table 8 Local Standards of Provision - 

Outdoor Recreation 

Object to open space standards below recommended amount of 1.15 ha per 1000 

people for outdoor sports provision, 0.80 ha per 1000 people for children's play 

space. 

Colonel Terry Byrd Merton Parish Council Table Table 9 Qualitive Standards of Provision The concept of clustering is good but its proposed implementation in Table 9 Chapter 

8 is significantly less so.

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Table Table 9 Qualitive Standards of Provision Approach is overly prescriptive - remove detail and include within SPD. 

Mrs Vicky Aston Policy BSC.11 Local Standards of Provision - 

Outdoor Recreation 

Support the inclusion of standards for different types of outdoor sports provision in 

Policy BSC11. 

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy BSC.11 Open Space, Outdoor Sport and 

Recreation provision

The Policy is requiring too much open space. Typically policies should seek 2.4 

hectares per 1000 dwellings. The Plan should be revised taking into account the John 

Harmon viability work and the NPPF requirements. The Council's 2006 and 2008 

evidence base is out of date and not consistent with national policy. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC.11 Local Standards of Provision - 

Outdoor Recreation

Supported

Page 29

P
a
g
e
 6

9



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy BSC.11 Local Standards of Provision - 

Outdoor recreation

Too much recreation is being sought which is not justified, effective or consistent 

with the NPPF.  The evidence base for this is considered not to be up to date. The 

Plan should be revised to take account of viability testing for Local Plans by John 

Harmon and the NPPF requirements.

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy BSC.11 Local Standards of Provision - 

Outdoor Recreation

Approach is overly prescriptive - remove detail and include within SPD. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy BSC.11 Local Standards of Provision - 

Outdoor Recreation 

Support thrust of policy. Policy should clarify overtly the exceptions to minimum 

standards where a financial contribution is not the default. 

Mrs Nicole O'Donnell Oxfordshire Playing Fields Orgainsation Policy BSC.11 Local Standards of Provision - 

Outdoor Recreation 

Support General principle subject to comment RE: Table 8. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy BSC.11 Local Standards of Provision - 

Outdoor Recreation

Does not consider transport and accessibility e.g. cycle parking 

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Paragraph B.169 Policy BSC.12: Indoor Sport, 

Recreation and Community 

Facilities 

Will sports facilities, present and proposed meet the lack of sports facilities in 

Banbury?

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Paragraph B.170 Policy BSC.12: Indoor Sport, 

Recreation and Community 

Facilities 

Have the surveys been completed and when will the results be made available?

Mr Gareth Jones Paragraph B.170 Policy BSC.12: Indoor Sport, 

Recreation and Community 

Facilities 

Lists a number of potential suitable sites for indoor hub facilities including Banbury 

12.

Mrs Vicky Aston Paragraph B.171 Policy BSC.12: Indoor Sport, 

Recreation and Community 

Facilities 

Support the Council's commitment to undertake further work on the need for indoor 

facilities in the District.

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Table Table 10 Local Standards of Provision  - 

Indoor Recreation 

Approach is overly prescriptive - remove detail and include within SPD. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Table Table 11 Local Quality Standards Approach is overly prescriptive - remove detail and include within SPD. 

Mrs Vicky Aston Policy BSC.12 Indoor Sport, Recreation and 

Community Facilities

Support the intention to protect existing built sports facilities and to ensure new ones 

are provided when they are needed within Policy BSC12. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy BSC12 Indoor Sport, Recreation and 

Community Facilities

Supported

Mr Gareth Jones Policy BSC12 Indoor Sport, Recreation and 

Community Facilities

Lists a number of potential suitable sites for indoor hub facilities including Banbury 

12.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy BSC.12 Indoor Sport, Recreation and 

Community Facilities 

Does not consider sustainable modes. 

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy BSC.12 Indoor Sport, Recreation and 

Community Facilities

Policy not supported by up to date evidence. 

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Theme Theme 3 Theme 3: Policies for ensuring 

sustainable development

Support the aim of securing sustainable design 

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Paragraph B.175 Introduction The proposed relief road crosses a large BAP habitat, will abut a Scheduled Ancient 

Monument and damage the setting of Wendlebury countryside.

Mr John Colegrave Paragraph B.175 Introduction and to the north of the proposed buffer is already developed and does not represent 

a strategic development area.  

Mr Colin Clark Banbury and Cherwell Green Party Policy ESD.1 Mitigating and adapting to Climate 

Change

Oppose any plans for large recycling facility next to Oxford Airport / Kidlington. 

Minimise vehicle movements - recycling centres should be located at District Centres. 

Separation of food and garden waste should be justified. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.1 Mitigating and Adapting to Climate 

Change

Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.1 Mitigating and Adapting to Climate 

Change

Agree

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy ESD.1 Mitigating and Adapting to Climate 

Change

Object to Policy ESD1 as it relies upon the SPD and does not consider the cumulative 

impact of policies in the Plan.  The Plan should be revised to take account of Viability 

Testing in Local Plans by John Harmon and the NAPPY requirements. 

Page 30

P
a

g
e
 7

0



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy ESD.1 Mitigating and adapting to Climate 

Change

Welcome this policy , in particular the reference to minimising flood risk and use of 

SuDs

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy ESD.1 Mitigating and Adapting to Climate 

Change 

Reduce dependence on private cars. 

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.1 Mitigating and Adapting to climate 

change 

There is concern that it is not clear how climate change should be taken into account 

in flood risk assessments.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.1 Mitigating and Adapting to climate 

change 

The Council should ensure an FRA is completed by Chiltern Railways

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.1 Mitigating and Adapting to climate 

change 

The Local Plan needs to distinguish between Pluvial and Fluvial flooding and define 

who is responsible for flooding

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.1 Mitigating and Adapting to climate 

change 

It is unfair that the EA expect the owners to take responsibility for drainage and 

flooding. Developers should make contributions. 

Conor Moloney BioRegional Development Group 

Policy ESD.1 Mitigating and Adapting to Climate 

Change
*Additional points suggested; district wide target for carbon reduction, monitoring, 

cross reference to ESD2. A clear breakdown of standards expected, requirements for 

climate change and mitigation, address emissions. Reducing the need to travel, public 

transport improvements, promoting walking and cycling. Commitment to retro fit 

initiatives.  

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Policy ESD.2 Energy Hierarchy Support approach. A fabric lead approach is preferred over renewable energy 

technology which can fail. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.2 Energy Hierarchy Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.2 Energy Hierarchy Agree

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy ESD.2 Energy Hierarchy Support fabric first approach. The Policy should be more flexible. 

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy ESD.2 Energy Hierarchy Objection to the requirement to consider decentralised energy systems in strategic 

sites. Density is too low. Preference to an approach that considers fabric efficiency on 

a dwelling by dwelling basis would be more effective. 

Mr P Keywood Policy ESD.2 Energy Hierarchy Object to energy assessment for small developments. No targets for reduction of 

carbon emissions are stated.

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction The policy should not try and introduce higher standards than the building 

regulations require.  It is not accordance with the NPPF which states design policies 

should avoid unnecessary prescriptive or detail. 

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction The Council could ask for higher standards on a scheme but other requirements 

would have to be reduced. 

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Support principal of policy to deliver high levels of sustainable development and 

climate change. Consistent with para 93 of the NPPF. Policy inconsistent with Para 47 

& 205 of NPPF. Objection to policy which should balance the need for sustainable 

development against site viability. 

Ms Fiona Brereton Drivers Jonas Deloitte/Aberdeen Property Investors Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction The aspiration of the policy is supported subject to there being explicit reference to 

the viability of schemes having to be taken into account in the application of 

standards.  The costs of meeting the standards may be too onerous in some cases 

and therefore there needs to be recognition that a flexible approach will be taken 

where the viability of a scheme is compromised.  This is in the interests of the policy 

being effective.

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Objection to Code Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. Requirement already 

set out in latest Building Regulations - policy should reflect this. Policy will quickly be 

superseded given life of plan period . Inclusion of Policy is unjustified by evidence. 

Viability concerns.

Page 31

P
a
g
e
 7

1



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction The Plan should not set standards beyond the Building Regulations and should take 

account of the NPPF, the John Harmon report and the Governments budget 

announcement. The Local Housing Delivery groups 'A review of Local Standards for 

the Delivery of new homes, June 2012  concludes that .. 'it is unnecessary to set 

energy standards beyond building regulations.  If Policies are included they should be 

fully costed and justified'.  They believe the highest code level requirements have 

been superseded by the Budget announcement, Treasury/BIS Plan for Growth dated 

23 March 2011 para 2.296

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction What evidence support the requirement for all homes to meet Code for Sustainable 

Homes Level 4 and higher standards than Building Regulations? Code Level 4 is too 

prescriptive and potentially impractical. May effect housing supply.  

Mr David Coates Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Object to Policy ESD.3 does not provide a clear distinction between development in 

the Eco-town and other standard developments. Policy should be subject to viability 

assessment. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Agree - Should increase standard to a higher code and state aiming for code 6 by a 

stated date.

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction The policy is too onerous and it is unnecessary to set standards beyond the Building 

Regulations.  The Policy should be more flexible. 

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Object to requirement for all homes to meet Code Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 

Homes. This is an unrealistic aspiration - would suggest development is instead 

directly linked to the Building Regulations which over time will reflect the Code for 

Sustainable Homes. Wording supplied. 

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Requirement for all homes to meet Code Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes is 

too prescriptive. What evidence is there that this sis deliverable? 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Policy approach could prove unviable - delete reference to higher than national 

standards and instead include requirement for viability testing. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Support polices. Emphasis should be on reuse of buildings. Object to word 'consider'. 

Mr David Keene David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Requirement for all homes to meet code level 4 of the code for sustainable home is 

inappropriate given lack of viability considerations. Reference to A review of Local 

Standards for the Delivery of New Homes by Standards Working Group. Amend policy 

to  reference prevailing National standards. 

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy 

ESD.3 Sustainable construction

Fully support this policy. In particular, the higher code levels in the water use 

category. Cherwell is located in an area of water stress and minimising water ruse is 

extremely important.

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Support sentiment of policy. Standards above Building Regulations is not consistent 

with national policy. Should consider Economic Viability. Object to specific reference 

to BREEAM for non-residential development as other criteria exist. BREEAM 

methodology favours urban locations. Should be minimum threshold - approach does 

not favour small buildings. Costs will be passed onto the home owner. Should 

distinguish between outline / detailed applications.  Suggest local sustainability 

checklist. Concern at exponential cost of achieving the targeted BREEAM. Policy 

should promote cost effective development. 

Page 32

P
a

g
e
 7

2



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Ellen O'Grady Defence Infrastructure Organisation Policy ESD.3 Sustainable construction It is not justified or consistent with national policy to apply Eco Town standards to 

non Eco Town developments. The first paragraph should be amended to read: All 

new homes will be encouraged to meet code level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 

Homes, unless exceeded by national standards.

Paragraphs 3 and 4 do not align with the government's zero carbon timetable, makes 

no mention of off-site 'allowable solutions' and the policy does not justify a higher 

standard. They conflict with paragraph 95 of the NPPF.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Support requirement for Code Level 4.

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Policy should provide more definite criteria. 

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Support aspiration. Should include reference to viability of scheme in the application 

of standards. 

Mr P Keywood Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction Object to Policy ESD3 - No National requirement to achieve level 4 of the Code for 

Sustainable Homes or BREEAM 'Very Good' for non-residential. 

Conor Moloney BioRegional Development Group Policy ESD.3 Sustainable Construction 

*In terms of minimum energy performance requirements, a clear timeline aligned to 

the building regulations zero carbon trajectory is important. Requesting higher 

standards for development than building regulations in particular residential areas 

may place undue burden on the developer and in some cases will not represent the 

most cost effective means to carbon reduction. In our view the pathway towards zero 

carbon in 2016 is ambitious enough. Will the SPD Sustainable Buildings cover 

sustainable construction too? Should be reference. 

Ms Fiona Brereton Drivers Jonas Deloitte/Aberdeen Property Investors Policy ESD.4 Decentralised energy systems The aspiration of the policy is supported subject to there being explicit reference to 

the viability of schemes having to be taken into account in the application of 

standards.  The costs of meeting the standards may be too onerous in some cases 

and therefore there needs to be recognition that a flexible approach will be taken 

where the viability of a scheme is compromised.  This is in the interests of the policy 

being effective.

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy ESD.4 Decentralised Energy Systems The Policy should recognise the John Harmon report and the NPPF and be flexible 

and deliverable

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Policy ESD.4 Decentralised Energy System Question feasibility of District Heating and Combined Heat and Power on all sites 

over 400 dwg or 50 dwg in off-gas area. Not every site will be appropriate due to 

location, existing infrastructure and character. The need to produce a feasibility 

assessment is abortive. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Policy ESD.4 Decentralised Energy Systems Object to Policy EDS4, threshold for non domestic developments is too low. And 

should be raised from 1000sqm to 75,000 sqm. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.4 Decentralized Energy Systems Supported - Only economically viable for large conurbations but reduces consumer 

choice

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.4 Decentralized Energy Systems Agree

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy ESD.4 Decentralized Energy Systems Object to policy ESD.4. Policy should be flexible. 

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning Policy ESD.4 Decentralise Energy Systems Question the need to produce a feasibility assessment for District Heating and 

Combined heat and Power on sites over 400 units. Work would be abortive and 

inappropriate. 

Ms Serena Page WYG / LXB Properties Policy ESD.4 Decentralised Energy Systems Threshold of 100m2 is set too low and can not be justified. Should be changed to 

2,500m2. 

Page 33

P
a
g
e
 7

3



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy ESD.4 Decentralised Energy Systems Policy favours Combined Heat & Power / District Heating Systems but does not 

specify feasibility assessment is required. Other technologies maybe more 

appropriate. Policy wording inconsistent between encourage or required. Costs 

associated with management of DHS. Ownership rights can discourage users. 

Dependent on supply of non-renewable energy fuels and sufficient deliveries. 

Extreme weather could result in fuel failure. Back up systems will be required for 

maintenance. Policy ESD4 and ESD5 should be combined. Policy should include 

flexibility. Evidence based justification for threshold should be provided. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Waste Management Policy ESD.4 Decentralised Energy Systems Plan should explore potential for Combined Heat & Power, Also support reference to 

CHP in Polices ESD.1 - ESD.5. 

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy ESD.4 Decentralised Energy Systems Unclear what is feasible - refer to technical and financial considerations. 

Mr P Keywood Policy ESD.4 Decentralised Energy Systems Object to Policy ESD4 duplicates Policy ESD2. Threshold for District Heating System 

set too low to be viable. 

Ms Fiona Brereton Drivers Jonas Deloitte/Aberdeen Property Investors Policy ESD.5 Renewable energy The aspiration of the policy is supported subject to there being explicit reference to 

the viability of schemes having to be taken into account in the application of 

standards.  The costs of meeting the standards may be too onerous in some cases 

and therefore there needs to be recognition that a flexible approach will be taken 

where the viability of a scheme is compromised.  This is in the interests of the policy 

being effective.

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy Question requirement to provide a feasibility assessment for on-site renewable 

energy on all sites over 400 dwg or 50 dwg in off-gas areas. Not every site will be 

appropriate to accommodate wind turbines or solar PV due to location and 

surrounds. The need to produce a feasibility assessment is abortive. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy Supported

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy The policy is too onerous and it is unnecessary to set standards beyond the Building 

Regulations.  The Policy should be more flexible. 

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy *Strongly Support this policy. 

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy *The Policy should be revised to mention wind monitoring masts and other 

associated engineering works will be subject to the same assessments as wind 

turbines and mention the cumulative impacts of wind farm development

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy Question the need to produce a feasibility assessment for on site renewable energy 

on all sites over 400 dwg. Not every site is appropriate for PV or wind technology. The 

need to produce a feasibility assessment would be abortive. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy Should minimise environmental damage by adopting the Council's Residential 

Amenity Impacts of Wind Turbine Developments and by recognising that large scale 

solar arrays are industrial developments and treated as such when deciding 

appropriate locations.

Ms Serena Page WYG / LXB Properties Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy Threshold of 100m2 is set too low and can not be justified. Should be changed to 

2,500m2. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy No National requirement to provide on-site renewable energy systems irrespective of 

feasibility report. Policy does not define target for exceeding National Building 

standards or bench mark for  which reductions can be calculated. Policy aims conflicts 

with Policy ESD.4 and does not encourage the most sustainable options. No 

justification for 400 dwg / 100m2 threshold. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy Should expand on aviation activities.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy ESD.5 Renewable energy 3rd bullet point should be amended to read: 'Impacts on the historic environment 

including designated and non designated assets'. The importance of these assets is 

recognised in NPPF 128,129 and 132.

Page 34

P
a

g
e
 7

4



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy Minimum distance between dwellings and wind turbines is set too low. 

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy Unclear what is feasible - refer to technical and financial considerations. 

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy Support aspiration. Should include reference to viability of scheme in the application 

of standards. 

Mr P Keywood Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy Object to Policy ESD5 duplicates Policies ESD3 & ESD4. 

Conor Moloney BioRegional Development Group 

Policy ESD.5 Renewable Energy

*Wording in Policy does not convey a presumption in favour of sustainable 

development. Wording supplied. Supporting text should make reference to best 

practice guidelines on renewable energy development that places low carbon 

localism at its heart. Also refer to best practice public engagement with wind farms. 

Policy also requires an assessment to be undertaken of renewable energy potential - 

concerns are raised as this does not apply to all developments and that it is only an 

assessment not a requirement. Policy should be clear what contribution from 

renewable energy is expected i.e.align with building regulations. Format of the 

feasibility assessment should be provided. 

Ms Carmelle Bell Thames Water Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management 

Policy ESD 6 should include reference to sewer flooding and an acceptance that 

flooding could occur away from the flood plain as a result of development where off 

site infrastructure is not in place ahead of development. Without this reference the 

policy is not consistent with national policy (technical Guidance to the NPPF)

Mrs Jennifer Glynn Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management 

Concern of flooding. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management

Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management

Agree

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management Welcome this policy which will ensure flood risk is considered appropriately for all 

new development coming forward. Found some policies for 'Cherwell's Places' 

unsound as some of the wording contradicts the principles in ESD 6 and the NPPF.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy ESD.6 Sustainable flood Risk 

Management 

Should define sequential approach. - Work with EA.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management 

There needs to be policies for dealing with peoples homes being flooded

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management 

There are properties in Kidlington which may still flood despite flood defences being 

put in place

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management 

Development at Banbury and Bicester could increase flooding at Kidlington and 

therefore there should be more defences here.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management 

There should be liaison between Chiltern Railways and other authorities when they 

complete their flood risk assessment for the railway proposals between Bicester and 

Oxford

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management 

There should be agreement between all authorities to allow for climate change in the 

provision of SUDs and monitoring of their effectiveness

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management 

The Plan does not cover adequately the issue of run-off into rivers, the local plan 

needs to explore ways of holding back run-off. 

Mr Victor Smith Policy ESD.6 Sustainable Flood Risk 

Management 

Concern that housing will be built on the flood plain and the associated risk, damage 

to properties, clean up costs and obtaining house insurance. Building on flood plains 

should not be permitted unless there are no other alternatives.  

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.7 Sustainable Drainage Systems 

(Suds)

Supported

Page 35

P
a
g
e
 7

5



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD7 Sustainable Drainage Systems 

(Suds)

Agree

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy ESD.7 Sustainable Drainage Systems 

(Suds) Welcome this policy.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy ESD.7 Sustainable Drainage Systems 

(SuDS)

SuDS should be used in 'all' new development. Highways SuDS will be adopted by 

OCC. Non-Highway SuDS will be adopted by the Local Lead Flood Authority (LLFA).  

Minor wording amendments. 

Ms Carmelle Bell Thames Water Policy ESD.8 Water Resources Support this policy and its reference to the use of phasing of development to enable 

water infrastructure ahead of development where appropriate.

Mr Colin Clark Banbury and Cherwell Green Party Policy ESD.8 Water Resources New Agricultural-Chemical exclusion zone required for River Cherwell & Oxford Canal 

expanding where near railway line. Concern that Bankside contains toxic material and 

could be leaching into the Canal. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.8 Water Resources Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.8 Water Resources Agree

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy 

ESD.8 Water Resources

Fully support this policy and welcome reference to the Water Framework Directive in 

para. B.218.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.9 Protection of Oxford Meadows 

SAC

Supported

Mrs Rebecca Micklem BBOWT Policy ESD.9 Protection of Oxford Meadows 

SAC

Welcome the approach taken to biodiversity protection but have concerns with 

regards to lack  of ecological survey work in relation to some of the allocated sites.

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy ESD.9 Protection of Oxford Meadow SAC Fully support this policy and are pleased that the importance of water quality on the 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy ESD.9 Protection of the Oxford Meadow 

SAC

Policy should include a map of coverage to show where impact on Oxford Meadows 

could occur. To avoid individual planning applications missing this constraint. 

Mr Colin Clark Banbury and Cherwell Green Party Policy ESD.10 Protection and Enhancement of 

Biodiversity and the Natural 

Environment 

Plan should promote more eco-friendly farming practices. In town areas should be 

left to grow flowers, butterflies and other wildlife. Water meadows should be 

preserved. Farms should be encouraged not to flial hedges so regularly. Introduce a 

no-chemical protection zone running the length of the of the river Cherwell and 

Oxford Canal should become a designated wildlife site. Plan should prevent light 

pollution. 

Mr Colin Clark Banbury and Cherwell Green Party Policy ESD.10 Protection and Enhancement of 

Biodiversity and the Natural 

Environment 

Food security. Plan should consider agriculture; welcome support of Oxfordshire 

Woodland Project, Plan should encourage locally grown products for schools & 

hospitals. Cherwell should become a hub of farming innovation. Plan should 

encourage small farm holdings to prevent large scale agro-industry.  

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.10 Protection and Enhancement of 

Biodiversity and the Natural 

Environment

Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.10 Protection and Enhancement of 

Biodiversity and the Natural 

Environment

Agree

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy ESD.10 Protection and Enhancement of 

Biodiversity and the natural 

environment 

Object as a net gain in biodiversity is being sought which is unviable.  A more flexible 

approach should be applied to recognise that viability is a key factor.  

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy ESD.10 Protection and Enhancement of 

Biodiversity and the Natural 

A net gain in biodiversity may not always be possible. Policy should state instead 

'wherever possible'. Development Management should not be about scrutiny but Mrs Rebecca Micklem BBOWT Policy ESD.10 Protection and Enhancement of Welcome the approach taken to biodiversity protection but have concerns with 

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy ESD.10 Protection and Enhancement of 

Biodiversity and the Natural 

Environment

Pleased with the wording of this policy but it could potentially include test to ensure 

that there is protection for all watercourses, in line with the Water Framework 

Directive 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy ESD.10 Protection of the Enhancement of 

Biodiversity and the Natural 

Environment

Support policy - exception bullet point 6 should be expanded to reference 

biodiversity / natural environment of the local area. 

Mr Charles Routh Natural England Policy ESD.10 Protection and Enhancement of 

Biodiversity and the Natural 

Environment

It does not make reference to the avoidance-mitigation-compensation hierarchy set 

out in NPPF. Unclear how the Plan is consistent with paragraph 118 of the NPPF, and 

hence sound.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.10 Protection and Enhancement of 

biodiversity and the natural 

environment

There should be protection of birds by facilities being provided

Page 36

P
a

g
e
 7

6



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.11 Conservation Target Areas Supported

Mrs Rebecca Micklem BBOWT Policy ESD.11 Conservation Target Areas Welcome the approach taken to biodiversity protection but have concerns with 

regards to lack  of ecological survey work in relation to some of the allocated sites.
Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy ESD.11 Conservation Target Areas Fully support this policy and welcome the commitment to secure biodiversity 

enhancements.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy ESD.11 Conservation Target Areas Support. Expand to allow other forms of biodiversity offsetting. 

Mr Malcolm Watt Paragraph B.244 Policy ESD12: Cotswolds Area of 

Outstanding Natural Beauty 

(AONB)

Should read 'Cotswold Conservation Board' not 'Cotswold AONB Board' 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.12 Cotswold Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty (AONB)

Supported

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy ESD.12 Cotswold Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty (AONB) 

Requirement for development to support local economy, improve access to local 

services and increase opportunity for people to leave and work in local communities 

duplicates other policies in the Plan. Policy should seek high quality design that 

respects specific quality of natural beauty identified in the AONB. 

Mr Malcolm Watt Policy ESD.12 Cotswold Area of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty (AONB) 

Support Policy ESD12. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Paragraph B.247 Policy ESD.13: Local Landscape 

Protection and Enhancement

Paragraph is miss leading - re-wording suggested. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph B.249 Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape 

Protection and Enhancement

Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Assessment (September 2010) is 

misrepresentative of the area south of Saltway. Delete fifth bullet point and its 

reference to the setting of Salt Way. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Paragraph B.249 Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape 

Protection and Enhancement

Object to statement that because of topographical and physical constraints at 

Banbury 'only a limited number of strategic development sites are available for new 

housing growth'. Evidence base indicated otherwise; landscape impact assessment, 

CDC options for growth (August 2008). The Saltway is considered an historic and 

ecological corridor to be safeguarded as a Green Corridor but not by way of an 

additional buffer. Previous rejections of developments on this site were due to need 

rather than sensitivity. The South of Banbury is the least sensitive direction for 

growth in landscape terms. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy B.249 Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape 

Protection and Enhancement

EH supports the recognition of historic features of particular value around Banbury 

and Bicester in paragraph B.249

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Paragraph B.252 Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape 

Protection and Enhancement

Wroxton is a conservation village, any development will take place in the 

conservation area, what restrictions will that put on developments?

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement

The proposed relief road crosses a large BAP habitat, will cause undue visual 

intrusion in open countryside, harm the setting of the settlement of Wendlebury and 

potentially harm the setting of Alchester Roman Town. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement

Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement

Agree

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement 

ESD 13 should make reference to leisure value.

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement 

Object to policy ESD.13. Support in principle but Policy omits the open countryside 

and landscape north of Banbury from list of area of 'particular value'. Consider 

Landscape Character and Sensitivity Assessment 2009 work was based on subjective 

local opinions and planning issues. Consider mitigation measures such as Green 

Buffers offer insufficient protection. Land to the North of Banbury should be 

reassessed as 'particular high value'. 

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council SA ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement 

Consider Landscape Character and Sensitivity Assessment 2009 are flawed 

documents and don't provide sufficiently robust evidence to base an SA of sites 

around Banbury. Further evidence and careful assessment is required.  

Page 37

P
a
g
e
 7

7



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Alan Jones Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement 

Object to policy ESD.13. Support in principle but Policy omits the open countryside 

and landscape north of Banbury from list of area of 'particular value'. Consider 

Landscape Character and Sensitivity Assessment 2009 work was based on subjective 

local opinions and planning issues. Consider mitigation measures such as Green 

Buffers offer insufficient protection. Land to the North of Banbury should be 

reassessed as 'particular high value'. 

Mr Alan Jones SA ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement 

Consider Landscape Character and Sensitivity Assessment 2009 are flawed 

documents and don't provide sufficiently robust evidence to base an SA of sites 

around Banbury. Further evidence and careful assessment is required.  

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement

Policy Banbury 2 is located in an area of high visual sensitivity. Very nature of 

development is likely to cause visual intrusion. Policy should better reflect the 

balance of the landscape impact against other factors in favour of development. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement

Add protection to the setting of Conservation Areas.

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement

Policy ESD13 is supported and is considered sufficient to protect the separate identity 

of the villages and setting of locally -valued features. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement 

Policy should not override strategic allocations. This should be clarified. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement

Wording supplied highlighting leisure value of Oxford Canal and requirement to 

protect towpath and hedgerows. 

Mr Charles Routh Natural England Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement

Unclear where the areas with a high level of tranquillity are and therefore question 

whether the policy is deliverable, and hence sound.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement

EH supports the requirements of Policy ESD 13 relating to the historic environment.

Mr Victor Smith Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement 

NPPF states existing open space should not be built on unless the land is surplus to 

requirements. Land should be preserved because of its beauty and tranquillity. The 

Plan should protect and enhance valued landscape. Concern that approval is still 

being given to land within the countryside. 

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Policy ESD.13 Local Landscape Protection and 

Enhancement 

Support.

Ms Rachel Williams Oxford City Council Paragraph B.255 Policy ESD 14: Oxford Green Belt The City Council disagrees that "there is no suggestion at this stage that a wider 

review is required". The City Council will continue to press for an urban extension to 

the south of the city but until this is secured the City would wish the option for a 

selective review in other areas around the city to be retained.

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph B.256 Policy ESD 14: Oxford Green Belt Restricts new housing to exception sites. Seek an appropriate mix of housing. 

Mr Nik Lyzba JPPC / Oxford University Press Paragraph B.256 Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Support limited review of Green Belt at Langford Lane.

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph B.256 Policy ESD.14: Oxford Green Belt Include mixed use. 

Dr Ian Scargill Oxford Green Belt Network Paragraph B.256 Policy ESD.14: Oxford Green Belt The small scale review of the Green Belt in the Langford Lane area is noted.  The 

Network is pleased a review is not considered necessary to accommodate local 

housing needs. 

Colonel Terry Byrd Merton Parish Council Paragraph B.257 Policy Villages 5: Former RAF 

Upper Heyford 

The Oxford Green Belt with respect to Merton is not compliant with NPPF para 85.

Dr Ian Scargill Oxford Green Belt Network Paragraph B.257 Oxford Green Belt Support the reference to the Kidlington Gap in particular; the gap is especially 

vulnerable in the vicinity of the Gosford Grain silo and between Pear Tree and 

Yarnton. 

Page 38

P
a

g
e
 7

8



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Suzanne Bangert Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Mr & Mrs P  Ashworth Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Policy should allow for small-scale (non-strategic) development in rural areas where 

there is a defined need and not cause harm to the Green belt. South Glos Core 

Strategy Examination report found that there should be more flexibility for villages to 

accommodate small scale development changes. New policy wording supplied. 

Ms Suzanne Bangert Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Mr & Mrs P  Ashworth Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Green Belt Boundary at Merton should be altered to reflect well defined boundaries 

as per the NPPF para 85 & 86. Re-align to follow course of the Motorway. Map 

attached of proposed boundary.   

Mr David Coates Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Object to Policy ESD.14, should be amended to reflect the requirements for a small 

scale boundary review as a requirement to achieve sustainable settlements as a 

consequence of economic growth.  

Mrs Suzi Coyne Suzi Coyne Planning / Worton Farms Ltd Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Land at Worton farm  should be removed from the Local Green Space designation 

(Green Belt?). 

Mrs Suzi Coyne Suzi Coyne Planning / Worton Farms Ltd Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Land at Worton farm  should be removed from the Local Green Space designation 

(Green Belt?). 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Object to ESD14 Oxford Green Belt and the basis that the evidence base does not 

explicitly state 'exceptional circumstances' exist for a Green Belt Review. Exceptional 

circumstances include; proposal is within the national, regional and local interest, 

urgent economic need, the limited harm to the Green Belt is outweighed by 

economic benefits and that a small scale local review will produce defensible, 

permanent Green Belt Boundary.  Amendment suggested, 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Supported

Mr Michael Lea Jones Land LaSalle / Bonhams 1793 Ltd Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Support approach to Green Belt review in very exceptional circumstances. 

Mr Nik Lyzba JPPC / Oxford University Press Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Support limited review of Green Belt at Langford Lane. And should be reflected in 

Policy ESD14 and tie in with Policy Kidlington 1.  Area of search should be widened to 

include the North West in order to not restrict unreasonably the area subject to 

review. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Should rectify the anomaly where all proposals within the Green Belt  need to 

preserve the open character of the Belt, even when the proposal is for infill within 

villages where this is patently impossible.

Mr Dennis Price Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Green belt should be protected.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Supports Green Belt Protection

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Objects to the relocation of Chilterns sidings into the Green Belt at Water Eaton

Miss Emily Sparrow JPPC / Merton College Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Merton College (Oxford) maintain there is a requirement to undertake a review of the 

Oxford Green Belt to accommodate future growth. No evidence or justification to 

why a review of the Green Belt has not been carried out. NPPF states Local Plan 

should be prepared on the basis of an upto date evidence base. Green Belt review 

should focus on sustainable locations at Kidlington, Yarnton & Begbroke. Dispersal of 

development beyond the Green belt is unsustainable. 

Mr Neville Surtees Barton Willmore / J A Pye Ltd Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Support aim to undertake a Limited Green Belt Review. Review should be expanded 

to include residential land. 

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Support. Precise boundary 'inset' villages should be clarified.

Mr Chris Wardley The Inland Waterways Association Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Review of Green Belt should extend to the boundaries of the Oxford Canal at 

Kidlington.

Mrs Kiran Williams BNP Paribas Real Estate UK Ltd / Cawdor Capital Ltd Policy ESD.14 Oxford Green Belt Small scale review of the Oxford Green Belt should include Land Off Camp Road, 

Upper Heyford. 

Mr Geoff Bolton Berrys / Gleeson Developments Ltd Para B.258-261 Policy ESD.15: Green Boundaries 

to Growth

Objects to the designation of much of the Broughton Road site as a green buffer. The 

policy and related designation  on the Proposals Map should be deleted and replaced 

with a new policy relating to areas of separation.  The 'green buffer'  surrounding 

most of Banbury is a new and arbitrary designation and not based on any evidence.  A 

detailed landscape assessment is required. 

Page 39

P
a
g
e
 7

9



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph B.258 Policy ESD.15: Green Boundaries 

to Growth

Fails to ensure that buffer zones are required to maintain the distinctive identity 

between villages as well as between Banbury and its surrounding villages.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph B.260 Policy ESD.15: Green Boundaries 

to Growth

The Green Buffer zone indicated at Bodicote suggests that it has been absorbed into 

Banbury and cannot as consequence take its share o the proposed rural homes 

allocation under C234. This would mean a disproportionate and unfair effect on the 

other villages.

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Paragraph B.260 Policy ESD.15: Green Boundaries 

to Growth

The Green Buffer  zone indicated at Bodicote suggests that it has been absorbed into 

Banbury and cannot as consequence take its share of the proposed rural homes 

allocation under C234. This would mean a disproportionate and unfair effect on the 

other villages.

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Paragraph B.260 Policy ESD.15: Green Boundaries 

to Growth

See comment B.248

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Paragraph B.261 Policy ESD.15: Green Boundaries 

to Growth

Objection to the reduction of the Green Buffer at Launton from draft Plan stage as it 

in effect allows Launton to be coalesced. 

Ms Rachael Blakey Bucknell Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth The status of these is not clear

Mr Geoff Bolton Berrys / Gleeson Developments Ltd Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Objects to the designation of much of the Broughton Road site as a green buffer. The 

policy and related designation  on the Proposals Map should be deleted and replaced 

with a new policy relating to areas of separation.  The 'green buffer'  surrounding 

most of Banbury is a new and arbitrary designation and not based on any evidence.  A 

detailed landscape assessment is required. 

Mr John Braithwaite South Newington Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Support Green Buffers between Banbury and Bicester and nearby villages

Mr Rowland Bratt Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Objection to Green Buffer at Cotefield Farm, Bodicote on the grounds that it fails to 

prevent coalescence with existing settlement given development at Bankside Phase 1 

and housing allocations at Banbury 12 & 4. Proposed Green Buffer is not land that is 

of valuable landscape of historic significance.  This view is supported by recent 

Planning Application and Appeal decision on adjacent site. 

Mr Rowland Bratt Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Proposed Green Buffer provides limited scope for the growth of Bodicote given its 

allocation for 500 new homes as a Category A village within the Plan. 

Mr Rowland Bratt Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Green Buffer policy is not supported by the NPPF. The NPPF instead refers to Local 

Green Spaces which should be in Local Character and not an extensive track of land. 

Appears policy is intended to be a Green Belt without following the correct process. 

Mrs Kathryn Brown Stoke Lyne Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Concerned about the nature of the proposed ''buffer zones'', specifically between 

Bucknell and NW Bicester housing estate. What is its purpose? Would it be of any use 

for residents?

Mr Peter Brown Drayton Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Support concept of Green Boundaries, concern raised at their width which is not 

considered wide enough  on higher ground, for example at Drayton. 

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Policy not justified by evidence. Existing Countryside policy already protects land 

identified in the Green Buffer. Note that land at Warwick Road has high landscape 

capacity to accommodate development within Halcrow Study. Land at Warwick Road 

should be excluded from Policy Area. 

Mr Peter Burrows Adderbury Conservation Action Group Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth The definition of a "green boundary" needs to be included; the NPPF only defines 

Green Belt and Green space. The concept of an area between conurbations which 

remains undeveloped is supported but it needs to be observed.

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth No objection to part of the Pringles Fields forming part of the Green Buffer. 

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth No Green Boundary has been proposed for Wendlebury to protect it from the 

proposed relief road or to protect it from further development of Bicester towards 

the M40 along the A41.

Page 40

P
a

g
e
 8

0



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr John Colegrave Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Object to the proposed Green Buffer Zone adjacent Salt Way on the grounds that the 

nearest village to the south of the farm is Bloxham and therefore the matter of 

coalescence does not arise. Land at Salt Way is farm land and is therefore neither of 

high landscape nor historic value. 

Mr John Colegrave Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Object to the proposed Green Buffer Zone adjacent Salt Way on the grounds that the 

nearest village to the south of the farm is Bloxham and therefore the matter of 

coalescence does not arise. 

Mr John Colegrave Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Green Buffer policy is not supported by the NPPF. The NPPF instead refers to Local 

Green Spaces which should be in Local Character and not an extensive track of land. 

Appears policy is intended to be a Green Belt without following the correct process. 

Sam Croft RPS Planning & Development / Banner Homes Ltd  / Rowland 

Bratt

Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Policy is inappropriate and conflicts with Policy Villages 1 & 2 which direct growth to 

Bodicote. Policy conflicts with the Council's landscape evidence base. Delete policy 

and rely on Policy ESD.13 instead. 

Mr Keith Dixon Launton Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Supports green boundaries to growth

Mr Keith Dixon Launton Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Objects as the Green Buffers should be properly defined

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth NPPF does not define a Green Boundary. This policy does not appear to be in 

accordance with law and it is therefore illegal.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth NPPF does not define a Green Boundary. This policy does not appear to be in 

accordance with law and it is therefore illegal.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Supported - subject to comments on not being legally compliant and soundness

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth There is no mention of Green Buffers in the NPPF. The Green Infrastructure should be 

used in maintaining discreet boundaries to villages.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth NPPF does not define a Green Boundaries . The only reference is to Green 

Infrastructure.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Supported - subject to qualification previously mentioned

Mr Chris Hone CPRE Banbury District Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth CPRE support the provision of green buffers.

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Support principle of ESD.15 as a method of constraining growth. Unclear how policy 

can be delivered when land is in the control of developers or landowners who are not 

willing to cooperate. Examples of problems, developers are not interested in the gap 

between Hanwell and Banbury 5 where Green Buffer is proposed and it is misleading 

to suggest physical buffers such as woodland can be expected. Green Buffer is 

missing from north-west of site Banbury 2 West of Southam Road adjacent the 

cemetery as it does not seem to provide a continuous buffer for the urban boundary. 

Green Buffer should be reassessed. 

Mr Alan Jones Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Support principle of ESD.15 as a method of constraining growth. Unclear how policy 

can be delivered when land is in the control of developers or landowners who are not 

willing to cooperate. Examples of problems, developers are not interested in the gap 

between Hanwell and Banbury 5 where Green Buffer is proposed and it is misleading 

to suggest physical buffers such as woodland can be expected. Green Buffer is 

missing from north-west of site Banbury 2 West of Southam Road adjacent the 

cemetery as it does not seem to provide a continuous buffer for the urban boundary. 

Green Buffer should be reassessed. 

Mr Alan Jones SA ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Not in this context. 

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Policy ESD.15 replicates the role of Policy ESD.13 and is therefore redundant. Policy 

constrains long term housing growth. Not based on evidence. Delete policy. 

Mr Vic Keeble Chesterton Parish Council

Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth 

Support proposed Green Buffer zone. Query extent of Buffer Zone at Gagle Brook 

flood plain - inconsistent with Bicester Master Plan. Does it include flood plain? CDC 

should discuss with the Parish Council the extent of the 'Community Woodland'.

Page 41

P
a
g
e
 8

1



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth No evidence in support of Green Buffers. Buffers not related to surrounding villages 

or proposed new development. Evidence suggests Crouch Hill is subject to landscape 

sensitivity and not Salt Way. Disagree with analysis that Salt Way is Historic or has a 

heritage value. Delete Policy and map reference. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Support policy. Upper Heyford as a tourism attraction. 

Mr David Keene David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Policy is unjustified. False expectations for residents. Duplicate policy layers. Banbury 

must continue to expand. Policy ESD.13 provides sufficient protection. Delete policy. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Should be a Green Boundary defined for Upper Heyford and villages would benefit 

from specifying a village envelope to clarify what is in the village and what is 

countryside.

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Justification for Green Buffers at Banbury is unclear. Avoiding coalescence with 

villages is unnecessary for Banbury accept for at Bodicote which is allocated for 

growth at Bankside Ph1 and Banbury 4 and 12. There is no evidence in terms for 

protection of landscape features at Crouch Hill at Saltway. Insufficient evidence of the 

historic environment. Approach will constrain growth. Policy should be deleted and 

amended from proposals map. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Support principle of Policy. 

Mrs Jane Olds Stratton Audley Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Supports the zoning of the quarry areas as Local Wildlife site and the adjacent 

Landscape Buffer Zone between Stratton Audley and RAF Bicester

Mr Dennis Price Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Green Buffer at Bicester is too narrow. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Need to avoid coalescence is supported. Green buffers will enable the town to 

remain within an attractive setting and preserve historic boundaries such as the Salt 

Way, features such as Crouch Hill and retain the independence of nearby villages 

such as Hanwell.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Woodland should not be planted without first assessing existing biodiversity value. 

Green Buffers should be retained in perpetuity and management mechanisms put in 

place. 

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Green Buffer at South of Saltway - Support from expanding further. 

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Expand Green Buffer around Bodicote to include recreation ground and country park. 

See Map 229. 

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Bodicote-Bankside Site - extend green buffer across north-eastern part of the site, 

keep recreation and country park clearly separated. 

Mrs Jennifer Spear Ambrosden Parish Council Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Note difference in boundaries between Local Plan map and Bicester Masterplan. 

Masterplan includes intensive chicken farm and a group of residential dwellings 

Mr Robert Thompson Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Object to proposed Buffer Zone along the Southern and Western edge of Banbury. 

Buffer zone does not prevent coalescence with the village of Broughton as suggested, 

given its distance (2km).  Landscape to the west of Banbury is not of any significant 

value and therefore does not require protection. Position of Banbury besides the 

Motorway to the East suggest future growth will be to the West of the town and 

therefore no long term requirement for a Buffer Zone. Housing need in the short 

term is expected to add additional pressure for growth in this location. 

Mr Robert Thompson Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth The proposed Green Buffer at Broughton does not comply with the definition of Local 

Green Spaces within the NPPF as they should endure beyond the end of the Plan 

period and should be special to local communities. 

Mr Laurence Todd Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Supports Green Boundaries to growth

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Unclear why Green Buffer has not been applied to Wendlebury? 

Page 42

P
a

g
e
 8

2



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Supporting wording that Green Buffer will be kept free from built development. 

Mr Brian Little Local History Group Policy ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth *Favour a north-south zone rather than a series of buffers. 

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Paragraph B.263 The Character of the Built 

Environment

Should include RAF Bicester Airfield & Upper Heyford Airfield. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Paragraph B.264 The Character of the Built 

Environment

EH supports para B.264 in principle. However, EH would welcome an explanation of 

why the historic environment is a resource for the District, a mention of conservation 

area appraisals and management plans and the redrafting of the second sentence as 

follows: ' Heritage assets (including designated and undesignated assets) form part of 

the ...'

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Paragraph B.267-B.268 The Character of the Built 

Environment

EH supports paragraphs B.267 and B.268

Mr John Braithwaite South Newington Parish Council Policy ESD.16 The Character of the Built 

Environment

Support requirement for high quality design especially when bordering conservation 

areas or affecting historic or landscape features.

Mr Peter Brown Drayton Parish Council Policy ESD.16 The Character of the Built 

Environment

Support concept of Green Boundaries, concern raised at their width which is not 

considered wide enough  on higher ground, for example at Drayton. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.16 The Character to the built 

Environment

Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.16 The Character to the built 

Environment

Agree

Mr Chris Hone CPRE Banbury District Policy ESD.16 The Character of the Built 

Environment

The Conservation and Urban Design Strategy should be incorporated into the Local 

Plan so that both run concurrently for the Local Plan period. Sustainable construction, 

the use of locally distinctive materials and design is commended.

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy ESD.16 The Character of the Built 

Environment

Add preserving and enhancing the character and appearance of Conservation Areas.

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy ESD.16 The Character of the Built 

Environment 

Support thrust of Policy. Should refer to outline or detailed planning application. 

Should not be applied to Strategic Allocations which have their own policies. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy ESD.16 The Character of the Built 

Environment

It is pleasing to note that the Local Plan recognises the importance of the individual 

character of the district's urban centres and aims to protect it.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Policy ESD.16 The Character of the Built 

Environment 

Change title. Additional policy wording supplied. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy ESD.16 The Character of the Built 

Environment 

Support policy. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy ESD.16 The Character of the Built 

Environment 

Sustainable access to and from development. Compliant with LTP3.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy ESD.16 The Character of the Built 

Environment

EH supports the content of Policy ESD 16 but considers it does not go far enough to 

meet the requirements of the NPPF in paras. 126 and 156.  The Historic environment 

needs to be a clear fundamental element of the policy. EH proposes changes to the 

policy and offers to work with the District Council to render the policy compliant with 

the NPPF.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.16 The Character of Built the 

Environment

Buildings in Kidlington need assessing for protection

Mrs Jennifer Spear Ambrosden Parish Council Policy ESD.16 The Character of the Built 

Environment 

Policy conflicts with BSC.2 & BSC4. With respect of Design Codes - section should be 

re-written to T&PC specific input. 

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph B.272 The Character of the Built 

Environment 

Urges caution in respect of use of manual for streets as local character could be lost 

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph B.272 The Character of the Built 

Environment 

Supports this paragraph

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Paragraph

B.274 Policy ESD.17: The Oxford Canal Include 'water quality' alongside 'landscape, ecological and recreational resource.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal Supported

Page 43

P
a
g
e
 8

3



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mrs Jane Hennell Canal and River Trust Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal ESD17 conflicts with ESD18.  The canal towpath is not suitable for use by horse riders 

and due to restricted width, historic operational structures may not be suitable 

without significant improvement and investment. May also conflict with conservation 

area designation and result in conflict between users.  Request ESD17 is amended to 

read "protect and enhance" and either remove the term horse rider or insert horse 

riders where appropriate.

Mrs Jane Hennell Canal and River Trust Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal Amend the policy to allow for greater flexibility and the location of facilities not 

restricted to within and immediately adjacent to settlements.  The restriction is ok for 

recreation facilities for users of the canal but such sites may not be suitable for 

boating facilities and moorings. These are dependent on being next to the canal, 

topography, distance between facilities and land values. Amend the policy to refer to 

residential moorings or insert a new policy on residential moorings and boating 

facilities. The Trust would like to advise on wording to ensure consistency with their 

national policy.

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal Protection of Oxford Canal should cover towpath and hedgerows.

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal The towpath is not a right of way for walkers and cyclists and riders have never had 

the right to use it.

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy 

ESD.17 The Oxford Canal Welcome this policy

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal Support the designation of the Canal as a Conservation Area. Attention should be 

given to maximising the visual appearance of the Canal as it passes through Banbury's 

town centre. Castle Quay does not embrace the Canal and it is a missed opportunity. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal Include towpath and hedgerows. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal Policy should refer to protect and enhance biodiversity, 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal Wording suggested. Compliant with LTP3.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal EH supports Policy ESD17.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal It is not clear who is responsible for the Canal now that British Waterways doesn't 

exist.  

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.17 The Oxford Canal The Local Plan is not clear on how it will deal with the proposal for a marina north of 

Kings bridge

Mr Alec Arrol Kennet Properties / Thames Water Policy ESD.18 Green Infrastructure The policy is not explicit as to how designations for green infrastructure are 

annotated in the Banbury Proposals Map (Appendix 5). KPL assumes that the policy 

relates to the designations in the Key Proposals Map of ''existing green spaces'' and 

''new green space/parks and managed environmental space''. There is no explanation 

as to how sites have been chosen .

Ms Rachael Blakey Bucknell Parish Council Policy ESD.18 Green Infrastructure A network of green spaces should be introduced at Bicester

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy ESD.18 Green Infrastructure Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy ESD.18 Green Infrastructure Agree

Mrs Jane Hennell Canal and River Trust Policy ESD.18 Green infrastructure The Trust welcome ESD18 but is concerned that the canal is being promoted for use 

by horse riders as it may not be possible or desirable. It is not clear if maintenance 

means retention of the existing GI or the upkeep of the network in the future. The 

Trust suggest GI is maintained as part of a development proposal. Further definition 

needs to be given in the text.

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy ESD.18 Green Infrastructure

Support the wording of this policy. Particular support green infrastructure being 

maintained whilst protecting 'sites of importance for nature conservation'.

Mrs Jane Olds Stratton Audley Parish Council Policy ESD.18 Green Infrastructure Strongly supports the proposal for a bridleway which circumnavigates the airfield 

from Audley to Launton Road roundabout

Page 44

P
a

g
e
 8

4



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy ESD18 Green Infrastructure Supports forming a green link to create a connected network  of green infrastructure 

through the town.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy ESD.18 Green Infrastructure Support. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy ESD.18 Green Infrastructure Add 'Sustainable' 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy ESD.18 Green Infrastructure Heritage assets can also form part of a green infrastructure network. Policy ESD 16 

could be referenced within Policy ESD18.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy ESD.18 Green Infrastructure There is no need for more Green infrastructure

Mr Chris Wardley The Inland Waterways Association Policy ESD.18 Green Infrastructure Policy should recognise the role of the canal as Green Infrastructure. 

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Paragraph C.1 Introduction Supported. 

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore / Bovis Homes Paragraph C.1 Introduction Support approach.

Ms Theresa Goss Milcombe Parish Council Theme Theme C Policies  for Cherwell Places Agree with ensuring sustainable development. Not sure that CDC does this in the 

rural areas. Agree with review of Green Buffer areas as well as Kidlington. It is hoped 

that both (Banbury and Bicester) will provide employment - not just retail but 

manufacturing industries as well. It is imperative that CDC stick to its policy regarding 

villages and rural areas.

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policies for 

Cherwells Places

Policies for 

Cherwells Places

Policies for Cherwells Places Support the new hospital for Bicester

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policies for 

Cherwells Places

Policies for 

Cherwells Places

Policies for Cherwells Places The Horton Hospital is a useful facility 

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Paragraph C.3 Introduction Support Bicester Masterplan. 

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore / Bovis Homes Paragraph C.3 Introduction Support the use of Masterplans for Banbury & Bicester. 

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph C.5 Policies for Cherwell's Places Supports the aim for living not dormitory towns

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Paragraph C.6 Introduction Support -  Full integration of new business and residential areas. Securing mixed use 

development. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph C.6 Introduction Minor change. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Section C.6 Introduction Support selective Green Belt Review at area identified on the map for up to 11.3ha of 

employment land. Review should also include housing to support new jobs. Concern 

that employment only allocation will lead to in commuting.  Wording supplied. 

Mr Robert Tustain Section C.6 Banbury Suggest employment allocations should be for small / medium sized businesses and 

not distribution outlets. 

Sir Tony Baldry MP Other C.2 Bicester Bicester should seek to become a 'garden city'. The availability of significant amounts 

of former MOD land provides the opportunity for a coherent and sensible strategy. 

Sir Tony Baldry MP Other C.2 Bicester A considerably amount of new housing is likely to be built and this needs to be 

matched by opportunities for jobs in and around Bicester and the greatest 'buy-in' 

involvement of residents in designing what will continue to be the faster growing 

town in the country.

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Paragraph C.7 C.2 Bicester Support listed objectives. Comply with NPPF. 

Mr Colin Cockshaw Paragraph C.7 Bicester Object to expansion at Bicester Village. Delete Reference

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph C.7 Bicester Support Bicester Masterplan but concerned that growth in the North West is in the 

wrong location, that the eco-development is appropriately phased and the South East 

Bicester Relief Road is supported. 

Mr Ben Jackson Bicester Chamber Section C.2 Bicester The impact of growth at Bicester on the surrounding villages including Upper 

Heyford, and the impact of developing Upper Heyford on Bicester, could be better 

represented in the Local Plan. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph C.2 Bicester Policies are silent on proposed town boundaries for Bicester. It would be useful to set 

up limits to development.

Page 45

P
a
g
e
 8

5



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Richard McCulloch Section C.2 Bicester Traffic implications of development at Bicester have not been adequately assessed 

and in particular the wider network, the impact on surrounding villages, the 

operation of M4 Junction 10 and the relationship with Oxford as a commuter town.

Mrs Jane Olds Caversfield Parish Council Section C.2 Bicester Particular concern  with the junction of Howes Lane and Bucknell Road, which will not 

be appropriate or usable in terms of a ring road and in its current state could have a 

detrimental effect on the village.

Placi O'Neil-Espejo Bicester Vision Section C.2 Bicester  There is little reference to the regeneration of existing employment areas and 

potential rejuvenation of employment estates. 

CDC list of sectors desirable to concentrate upon is too restrictive.

Areas of land allocated for employment use should not be restricted to certain 

classes of employment but should be annotated as Employment Zones'.

 Bicester should have a similar LDO to Science Vale UK to achieve a clear presumption 

for development and increased employment.

There is not sufficient land allocated for employment and no mention of the 

employment catchment area which could fulfil some employment requirements.

Mr Dennis Price Section C.2 Bicester Concern of increased traffic - rat running 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Section C.2 Bicester All Strategic site should consider; master plan, vehicle access arrangements, 

residential layouts, commercial specifications, strategic improvements, pedestrians 

and cycle routes, public transport links, drainage, rights of way, transport 

infrastructure. Car & Cycle standards. Transport Assessment  /Transport Plan. 

Pedestrian and safety audits. S106 / S278 Agreements. Construction traffic 

management plan. Routing agreement. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Section C.2 Bicester List of town needs should list transport. South East relief will enable sustainable 

movement in the direction of the town. Improvements to Junction 9 M40 should be 

added to list of initiatives. Section on transport need should include improving the 

connectivity and attractiveness of pedestrian, cycle and public transport networks 

across Bicester. Benefits need to be clearer. New development will maximise 

opportunities to create an efficient and attractive public transport network within the 

town. Section should mention Garden City concept. Expand reference to EWR - 

electrification plans.  

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Section C.2 Bicester Spelling & typo's. Inconsistent - town centre taking the focus of growth. Unclear text 

regarding town centre cores. 

Ms Rachel Williams Oxford City Council Section C.2 Bicester Employment 

development

The City Council has some concerns about the shift in the type of employment 

provision at Bicester e.g. to the knowledge economy as this overlaps significantly 

with the key sectors of the city's economy.

Ms Rachel Williams Oxford City Council Section C.2 Bicester Village Future growth in the short term is being directed towards Bicester Village, an out of 

town centre location, which appears contrary to the NPPF advice which seeks to 

direct such growth to town centres.  The City Council is concerned that the proposed 

expansion at Bicester Village could seriously impact on the potential of the Westgate 

shopping centre redevelopment in Oxford.

Ms Rachel Williams Oxford City Council Section C.2 Bicester transport implications The City Council wish to be reassured that adequate infrastructure funding will be in 

place to mitigate the impact of growth at Bicester e.g. on the A34.  A programme of 

measures and funding schemes should be identified to properly mitigate any 

additional demand arising from future housing and jobs growth.

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Paragraph C.7 C.2 Bicester Support strategic objectives. Suggest amendment to bullet point a safe and caring 

community. 

Page 46

P
a

g
e
 8

6



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Section C.2 Bicester Thames Valley Police support the Masterplan process as a targeted form of 

community engagement. Object to the use of the Masterplan as an SPD as it contains 

policy consideration appropriate in the Local Plan. For Example the proposed road. 

Masterplan should also not be use to add unnecessary financial burdens. Should form 

part of the Local Plan evidence base.  

Conor Moloney BioRegional Development Group 

Paragraph C.7 C.2 Bicester 

*Scope for greater integration. NW Bicester site with the rest of the town, 

complementary innovation in sustainable development - retro fitting etc.. Extending 

the towns tourism offer through complementary attractions. E.g. RAF Bicester. 

Securing sustainable growth through new job opportunities, 

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Paragraph C.8 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Bicester

Para C.8 - C.12 - Agree with key challenges. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph C.8 Meeting the Challenges of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Bicester

Paragraph C.8 should reference Oxford and Silverstone. 

Mr Ben Jackson Bicester Chamber Paragraph C.8 Developing a sustainable economy Supports recognition of specialist skills that exist in Bicester

Mr Dennis Price Section C.8 Bicester Development at Bicester will compound flooding at Otmoor - issue insufficiently 

addressed.

Mr Robert Tustain Section C.8 Bicester Suggest Free short term parking and pay for long term. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Albion Land PLC Paragraph C.11 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Bicester

Objection. Failure to understand market Place. 

Mr Ben Jackson Bicester Chamber Paragraph C.12 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Bicester

Welcomes the potential for developing the low carbon skills area

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Paragraph C.13 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Bicester

Par C.13 - C.24 - Agree with statements.

Mr Ben Jackson Bicester Chamber Paragraph C13 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Bicester

The need to balance employment land with the increase in houses is supported but 

the plan should not be overly prescriptive on types and uses.

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Albion Land PLC Paragraph C.13 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Bicester 

Objection. Failure to understand market Place. 

Mr Colin Cockshaw Paragraph C.14 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Bicester

Object to expansion at Bicester Village on the grounds that as a major tourist 

attraction it is in an unsustainable location and inconsistent with the objectives of the 

Eco-town.  Delete reference.

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Value Retail (Bicester Village) Paragraph C.14 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Bicester

Support promotion of the sustainable expansion of Bicester Village. 

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Paragraph C.15 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Bicester 

No mention of what nature or form the appropriate mitigation for Wendlebury would 

form in the Local Plan. The Masterplan does not mention Wendlebury at all.

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Value Retail (Bicester Village) Paragraph C.15 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Bicester

Support improved links Bicester Village and Town Centre . Better access by Train 

through Evergreen 3 project. 

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Bicester Business Park Paragraph C.15 C.2 Bicester Support improved links between Bicester Business Park, Bicester Village and Town 

Centre . Better access by Train through Evergreen 3 project. 

Mr Dominic Woodfield Bioscan Paragraph C.17 Meeting the Challenge of Building 

a Sustainable Community in 

Bicester 

Opportunity to increase green space at Gavray Drive. 

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Paragraph C.17 Meeting the Challenges of Building 

a Sustainable Community in 

Bicester 

Additional challenge suggested. Police infrastructure. 

Page 47

P
a
g
e
 8

7



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph C.19 Meeting the Challenges of Building 

a Sustainable Community in 

Bicester

Paragraph C.19 should put greater emphasis in respect of connectivity to the South 

and the Oxford Regional Hub. Amendment suggested. 

Mr Ben Jackson Bicester Chamber Paragraph C.19 Meeting the Challenges of Building 

a Sustainable Community in 

Bicester

The durability of the town centre is under increasing pressure from out of town/edge 

of town retail outlets and internet shopping. The impact of proposals should be 

considered not just on the town centre but on the cumulative effect. 

Mr Dominic Woodfield Bioscan Paragraph C.21 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Bicester 

Opportunity to increase Green Infrastructure.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Paragraph C.22 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Bicester

Challenges should list archaeological deposits. Should also list Para C.122 bullet point 

1. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Paragraph C.22 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Bicester

SACs are designated for European Infrastructure and should be protected, Green 

Infrastructure can contribute towards reducing deprivation, promoting healthy living 

and reducing obesity. 

Mr Dominic Woodfield Bioscan Paragraph C.22 First Bullet Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Bicester 

Concern regarding the severing effect of  SE Ring Road. Suggest a more co-ordinated 

Green Infrastructure Strategy.  

Mr Dominic Woodfield Bioscan Paragraph C.22 Third Bullet Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Bicester 

Concern that development at Gavray Drive includes the destruction of a Local Wildlife 

site. Suggest change to reserved matters. 

Mr Dominic Woodfield Bioscan Paragraph C.22 Forth Bullet Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Bicester 

See Green Infrastructure comment

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph C.24 Meeting the Challenges of 

Ensuring Sustainable Development 

in Bicester

Support para C.24

Mr Dominic Woodfield Bioscan Paragraph C.24 First & Third 

Bullet

Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Bicester 

See Green Infrastructure comment

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Paragraph C.25 Bicester in 2031 Broadly supported.

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Value Retail (Bicester Village) Paragraph C.25 Bicester in 2031 Support expansion of Bicester Village and Town Centre as a more important retail 

and leisure centre as part of the improvement to Bicesters's self sustaining economy. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Paragraph C.26 Bicester in 2031 Housing figure 6,997 does not match housing trajectory 6,579. NW Bicester has some 

way to go before completed. Site is expected to contribute to strategic infrastructure. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Paragraph C.26 Bicester in 2031 New aspiration - sustainable transport network. Wording supplied. 

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Paragraph C.28 Bicester in 2031 Should refer to new Hospital at Bicester. 

Mr Dominic Woodfield Bioscan Paragraph C.28 Bicester in 2031 See Green Infrastructure comment

Mr Dominic Woodfield Bioscan Paragraph C.30 What will happen and where Suggest change to reserved matters. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph C.42 Employment Object to para C.42 should refer to Gateway. 

Ms Carmelle Bell Thames Water Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-Town It is TW understanding that the eco town aims to achieve water neutrality. TW 

suggests to add  new wording requiring liaison with Thames Water and Environment 

Agency to agree a water strategy with the objective of achieving a water neutral 

development.

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Concern regarding the risk associated with the delivery of few number of strategic 

sites at Bicester. Failure of 5-year housing land supply requires a 20% buffer brought 

forward in the Plan period. Preference for smaller sites. Suggest current delivery rate 

of 680 units against the Council's trajectory of 1,290 unit. 

Page 48

P
a

g
e
 8

8



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Eco-town site identified after South West RSS Plan published in May 2009. Case 

therefore for higher growth at Bicester. Question if the Eco-town site is available and 

deliverable. Will Eco-town criteria prove viable? Significant infrastructure cost e.g. 

distributor road. Flood zone 2 & 3.  Propose a dispersed approach to growth. 

Ms Rachael Blakey Bucknell Parish Council Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Questions who is leading the project. Concern regarding increased traffic, noise and 

light pollution. 

Ms Diane Clarke Network Rail Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town NR wishes clarification that the appropriate crossing is a footbridge or road bridge 

crossing to a specification agreed with NR. Level crossing is not acceptable. NR made 

representations to the planning application on the north east part of Bicester 1 

seeking contributions towards railway / station improvements. 

Mr David Coates Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Policy is unclear in respect of the exact  infrastructure requirements for the Bicester 

Eco-town.  

Mr Colin Cockshaw Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-Town Housing target for Bicester up to 2026 is significantly greater than the South East 

Regional Plan target. Object to allocation of North West Bicester. Policy does not 

reflect an aging population and high percentage of over 60s anticipated. Policy 

Bicester 1 should make provision for housing designed for older people and care 

homes and recognise that they may have special needs to be met in development. 

Mr Colin Cockshaw Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-Town Object to the proposed development at North West Bicester on the grounds that 

there is no need for development here within the Plan period, loss of countryside, 

coalescence of Bucknell, reasonable alternatives have not been considered and 

failure to meet PDL target.  Delete Policy. 

Mr Colin Cockshaw Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-Town Concern that Eco-town standards will not be met at North West Bicester. Suggest 

phasing standards more gradually and applying town wide. Delete Policy. 

Mr Colin Cockshaw Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-Town Object to North West Bicester on the grounds that it is remote form the town centre, 

existing secondary schools, main employment areas and the stations and linkages are 

poor. Suggest the Plan outlines improvements to the towns road links and public 

transport. 

Mr Colin Cockshaw Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-Town Consider a new Secondary School is required as part of the planned growth and the 

location and timing should be considered in the Plan. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-Town Local Plan should reassess design  & place shaping principals due to economic 

climate. Should reflect Garden Suburbs rather than Eco-town principals.

Mr Andrew Hickman Middleton Stoney Parish Council Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco Town The reduction in houses for the plan period from 5000 to 1794 is welcomed but this 

site in the rural area outside the existing perimeter road should not be developed.

Mr Andrew Hickman Middleton Stoney Parish Council Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco Town Planning permission for an exemplar village has been permitted although a 

masterplan for the whole site has not been delivered. Without the masterplan there 

seems to be a lack of planned infrastructure to serve this development.

Mr Andrew Hickman Middleton Stoney Parish Council Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco Town Projections have been based on unrealistic land values and it is not certain where 

total funding will come from. We must assume that the intention is to ultimately 

build 5000 houses and financial viability for the whole should be established.

Mr Andrew Hickman Middleton Stoney Parish Council Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco Town The majority of the site is productive agricultural land with DEFRA and others 

highlighting the need for food production it is questionable  whether this land should 

be used for housing.

Mr Andrew Hickman Middleton Stoney Parish Council Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco Town It is unrealistic to expect that the residents of NWB will work in the employment 

areas proposed. Many will commute away and there will also be commuting to the 

employment areas when created.

Page 49

P
a
g
e
 8

9



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Antony Ives Bicester (and villages) Against Sham Eco-town (BASE) Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Object to Bicester 1; scale of development over 1,000 acres, no consultation, no 

environmental appraisal. No study of alternatives, no public Inquiry, would harm 

Bicester and nearby villages, more vehicles and school children, Eco-town process is 

unlawful, 100% agricultural farm land, alternative site are available on Brownfield 

land, South East Plan target is only 5,000 dwg why have more? , additional car trips 

will be generated, unlikely to be 5,000 new jobs, new shops will damage town centre, 

Plan devised by Councillors from outside the area, site does not have Minster 

approval.  

Mr Antony Ives Bicester (and villages) Against Sham Eco-town (BASE) Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Site capacity is likely to be near 8,000 homes rather than advertised 5,000 homes 

given modern density standards. 

Mr Antony Ives Bicester (and villages) Against Sham Eco-town (BASE) Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Concern at scale of Bicester growth - 30,000 unto 60,000 population. 

Mr Antony Ives Bicester (and villages) Against Sham Eco-town (BASE) Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Surplus MOD land preferred for residential growth. Close to railway stations. 

Mr Antony Ives Bicester (and villages) Against Sham Eco-town (BASE) Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town There is no requirement to allocate an eco-town if a better way of meeting future 

needs exists. 

Mr Antony Ives Bicester (and villages) Against Sham Eco-town (BASE) Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Do not consider Eco-town is viable and therefore undeliverable. 

Mr Antony Ives Bicester (and villages) Against Sham Eco-town (BASE) Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Insufficient public consultation or public meetings have been carried out by the 

Council. 

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Policy is incomplete. Health and Utilities have not been specified. Timing of education 

provision will be key and needs to be integrated into the build out and delivery of 

new homes. 

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy 

Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-Town 

Not consistent with National Policy (Eco-towns - A Supplement to PPS1). If CDC is 

seeking to future proof the Local Plan should PPS1 eco towns supplement be 

removed, all elements  of the PPS1 eco town policy should be included within the 

Local Plan policy.

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Albion Land PLC Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-Town Object to reference to 'Use Classes: Sustainable Lifestyle Employment as it is not a 

use class. Should refer to B1, B2 & B8. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Albion Land PLC Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-Town Policy is too prescriptive re design & jobs created. 

Mr Steven Neal Boyer Planning / Redrow Homes & Wates Developments Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Concern at the early delivery of site. 

Mr Anthony Powell Highways Agency Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Broadly supportive of Eco-town development have concerns as to the operation of 

M40 Junctions 9 & 10 when Eco-town is developed. Minor wording changes 

suggested. 

Hon Michael Richards (Rtd) Rep form Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Objection to the mixed use housing and employment allocation at Site R2 as it was 

previously allocated green space / eco-town housing in the 2009 Eco-town Plan. Land 

is unsuitable for employment uses (Business / Warehouse) as roads and 

infrastructure are not suitable. Consider western boundary of allocation is arbitrary 

and has not been based on sound Planning arguments. Suggest any development in 

this location is sympathetically designed to respect existing properties, Site R2 should 

be residential only and should reflect Farrells document June 2009.   

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town School at heart of community

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Potential for archaeological deposits should be should be noted. Wording supplied. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Existing habitats should also be protected. Does Code Level 6 require high quality 

biodiversity mitigation, compensation and enhancement. Masterplanning exercise 

should consider biodiversity. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Growth should be concentrated near B4030, B4100 & A4095. Should mention the 

emphasis on sustainable modes including public transport. Should be more than one 

bridge / sub way to cross railway line. Effective movement strategy required. 

Connectivity to existing town important. Commercially self sustaining service. LTP3 

refers to Rapid Bus Route. 4th Bullet point should be removed. 

Page 50

P
a

g
e
 9

0



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Kate Skingley David Lock Associates Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Gallagher Estates as landowner support Policy Bicester 1 as deliverable and 

contributing to the District's Housing supply. 

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Leda Properties Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Discrepancy between Bicester 1 & Bicester Plan in respect of housing provision. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-Town It will be important to consider impacts (positive and negative), upon the wider area 

to be in accordance with NPPF paras 126, 128, 129 and 138. Add new  principle:  

'Retention of and respect for the historic significance of heritage assets within and 

adjacent to the development area, particularly the Grade II listed structures at Hinley 

Farm and Home Farmhouse, the Grade II* listed church of St Lawrence at Caversfield, 

the historic town centre and RAF Bicester.

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Support identification of North West Bicester. Concern at the level of prescriptive 

detail within policy. Insufficient flexibility. Further work required regarding inter-

relationship between strategic sites and infrastructure. 

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town Evidence base appears to be missing. Policy is vague in many areas including 

employment provision. Question what sustainable lifestyle employment is? 

Masterplan should demonstrate how the eco-town standards set in the Eco-town PPS 

will be achieved. Education provision is unclear and should be based on up to date 

population projections. Little guidance on health, access and movement & utilities. 

Code level 6 is unjustified.  Not viable or deliverable. Most of the design principles 

are general and not site specific. One job opportunity per new dwelling. 

Conor Moloney BioRegional Development Group Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town 

*Reference to Garden City should be expanded. Perhaps Garden Suburb is more 

appropriate given its size, mix of uses and residential character. This may not be 

appropriate to the level of innovation and ambition the project presents. Tension 

between Eco-town and garden cities concepts are not resolved i.e. focus on 

sustainability or environmental quality. Title should go beyond location and instead 

communicate its sustainable development intent. 

Conor Moloney BioRegional Development Group Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town 

*For the avoidance of confusion the development standards should be set out once 

only and we recommend the following standards to be included or taken from the 

Eco-town PPS.  Standards set out. 

Conor Moloney BioRegional Development Group Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town 

*Infrastructure Needs - Should refer to code level 5 and not 6. Reflecting Eco-Bicester 

One Shared Vision. 

Conor Moloney BioRegional Development Group Policy Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-town 

*Access and Movement - Should state importance of connecting the whole NW Eco-

town site with the existing town and town centre. 

Mr & 

Mrs

A S Adams Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Objection to 1,900 new homes at Graven Hill (Policy Bicester 2), demand met by 

Kingsmere and Eco-town development. 

Mr & 

Mrs

A S Adams Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Objection to line of proposed ring road and link with existing A41 on the grounds that 

it does respect the countryside or the people living in the area.  Other issues; 

increased noise and pollution at Wendlebury, rat running / safety concerns, 

inevitable coalescence of Wendlebury, Flooding of Wendlebury, additional access to 

village, further isolation of village between major routes .  Suggest link connects at 

traffic island outside Bicester. Route will impact on Green Belt & will be more 

expensive to construct due to length. 

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Delivery concerns. Preference for dispersed growth over strategic sites. Significant 

infrastructure costs.  

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill WPC does not object to the development of Graven Hill into mixed use. However, the 

criteria that it requires a relief road to enable its development and that the 

development contributes to the cost are unsustainable along the proposed route. . 

The scheme has not considered the transport movements it will create and their 

effect on the existing transport network.

Page 51

P
a
g
e
 9

1



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Tim Hibbert Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Plan is out of date. Map does not show Wendlebury or new ring road.  Route options 

were not made available. Format of questionnaire was predicated to support the 

proposal.  No thought on how to protect rural communities.  

Mr Andrew Hickman Middleton Stoney Parish Council Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Welcome the allocation

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Sites heritage has not been mentioned. Possible National Centre for Military 

Railways. 

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Policy is incomplete. Health and Utilities have not been specified. Timing of education 

provision will be key and needs to be integrated into the build out and delivery of 

new homes. Connectivity of transport links must be maximised. No mention of 

Evergreen 3 and other rail improvements. Perimeter road needs further investigation 

to minimise impact on Arncott. 

Mr Steven Neal Boyer Planning / Redrow Homes & Wates Developments Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Concern at the early delivery of site. 

Ms Ellen O'Grady Defence Infrastructure Organisation Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill The land uses listed are unduly prescriptive.  Land uses A1, A2, A3, A5 ,C1 and D1 

should be encouraged.

HCA figures indicate that 2070 new jobs could potentially be generated . It is unclear 

from where the 2470 figure in the Policy was derived.

Ms Ellen O'Grady Defence Infrastructure Organisation Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Bullet point 8 - MOD recognise the aspiration to provide a perimiter road and can 

facilitate it within the confines of the side and provide a bridge over the railway 

sidings but cannot provide infrastructure on land outside the MOD boundary.

Bullet point 11 - Redevelopment of Garaven Hill shall provide suitable connectivity to 

the town centre and when appropriate the PROW networks. MOD cannot control 

access over land outside its ownership.  The site cannot link the Bicester Business 

Park  due to land ownership constraints and the railway embankment. 

Bullet point 14 - Ecological studies have been produced as part of the Graven Hill 

planning application. MOD or its sucessors should not have to produce a survey 

examining the effects of any other developments . 

Bullet point 21 - The Council has failed to provide sufficient evidence to validate the 

requirement for self build.

Bullet point 22- No justification to require exemplary standards more onerous than 

those set at natioanl level.

Bullet point 25 - A scheme for SuDS can only be developed at Reserved Matters stage.  

Information is not suficiently detailed to justify specifications of particular techniques 

in particular parts of the site.

Mr Anthony Powell Highways Agency Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Policy text suggestion - improvements to local and strategic road network. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Graven Hill Local Wildlife Site contains Great Crested Newts, a European Protected 

Species. Ancient Woodland with notable rare species. Concern that new residents will 

disturb site. Plan should include an Ecological strategy. Bicester Wetland Reserve 

Local Wildlife Site (located between Bicester 10, 4 & 2) contains many rare species. 

Cumulative impact of development should be assessed include potential isolation of 

the LWS and disruption of to the wildlife. Impact on River Ray Conservation Target 

Area must also be assessed and must not harm the integrity of the ecology. 

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Leda Properties Map Bicester 2 Graven Hill Amend map to include Langford Park Farm within Bicester 2 Graven Hill.  

Page 52

P
a

g
e
 9

2



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Proposed new link road between A41 and A4421 will be within the setting of the 

schedule monument of Alchester Roman Town and may cause substantial harm by 

isolating the monument from its setting. It is unclear whether the proposal will 

achieve the aims of NPPF in paragraphs 126 and 132. Further consideration needs to 

be given to the acceptability or otherwise of this proposed relief road.

Mrs Jennifer Spear Ambrosden Parish Council Policy Bicester 2 Graven Hill Policy title is misleading - should be re-titled Ambrosden North West. 

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Delivery concerns. Preference for dispersed growth over strategic sites. 

Mr Andrew Hickman Middleton Stoney Parish Council Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Welcome the allocation

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Policy is incomplete. Health and Utilities have not been specified. Timing of education 

provision will be key and needs to be integrated into the build out and delivery of 

new homes. Support policy. 

Mr Anthony Powell Highways Agency Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Seek assessment and mitigation on the SRN of Policy. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Archaeological potential should be noted in Key Site Specific Design. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Support assessment - site has relatively low ecological value other than small number 

of hedgerows and trees. Boundary includes rare species of butterflies. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Delete extend phase 1 bus service. Improve walking and cycle instead. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 EH supports the key principles relating to Chesterton Conservation Area, cultural 

heritage and archaeology.

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Support inclusion of South West Bicester Phase 2 within the Local Plan. Remove farm 

buildings at Whitelands Farm from the strategic allocation, site subject to of separate 

planning application and conversion. 

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Object to the inclusion of 2.8ha of B1 employment land - provision has been 

elsewhere within the Plan. Represents 18 year supply or 35 years at depressed rates. 

Could cause visual harm to residential development. Lead to over provision. Could 

reduce housing density infrastructure delivery, reduce viability, housing supply. 

Negative impact on character and design. 

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Object to proposed housing capacity of 650 dwg site has potential for up to 750 dwg. 

Capacity testing set at 700 dwg. Enable flexibility. 

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Object to requirement for two form entry primary school, analysis demonstrates 

need for only one form with a site are of 1.2ha. Suggest a continuous site of 1ha for 

future demand. Masterplan will identify 2.2ha of land but only expect a one form 

school to be provided. 

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Object to Health - requirement to be confirmed. Countryside are already delivering a 

2.69ha health village with sufficient capacity to meet additional demand. Do not 

consider additional health facilities are required. Insufficient detail. 

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Object to requirement for community centre. Phase 1 provides a community centre 

within easy walking distance. A centre in phase 2 would likely compete. Suggest a 

local store operator could be attracted - would only require a population of 2,000-

5,000 to support rather than 5,000-10,000. 

Mr Tom While Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Support provision of land for a community wood land - object to the sole 

responsibility for management, preference partnership relationship. 

Mr Tom While Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Policy Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Support requirement for Extra care housing / self build. Requirement should form 

part of affordable housing contribution. 

Ms Gemma Brickwood Turley Associates / Sainsbury Policy Bicester 4 Bicester Business Park Unclear definition of appropriate and complementary uses and how these will help to 

secure office floorspace. Further evidence required. 

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 4 Bicester Business Park Support policy. Prestige gateway should reflect high status jobs. Want to see road 

links improved to further cement position. 

Page 53

P
a
g
e
 9

3



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Bicester 4 Bicester Business Park

The policy wording needs to be stronger and be amended to read: 'There will be no 

built development within flood zone 3'. Ideally would prefer the policy wording to 

include not having built development in Flood Zone 2 either but appreciate that this 

is aspiration and not explicitly stated in the NPPF.

Mr Anthony Powell Highways Agency Policy Bicester 4 Bicester Business Park Seek assessment and mitigation on the SRN of Policy. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 4 Bicester Business Park Permission granted - no comment. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Bicester 4 Bicester Business Park Amendment to text suggested. Policy should be clearer about pedestrian  / cyclist 

access between sites in Southern Bicester. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Bicester 4 Bicester Business Park EH supports that there should be a staged programme of archaeological work in 

liaison with statutory consultees.

Mr P Keywood Policy Bicester 4 Bicester Business Park Object to Policy Bicester 4 use class B1 not appropriate in location. Suggest more 

flexible approach including town centre uses e.g. C1 & A1. Policy conflicts with 

existing Planning Permission.  

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Bicester Business Park Policy Bicester 4 Bicester Business Park Wording at para B.62 should be incorporated into Policy Bicester 4. Proposed Tesco 

application at Bicester Business Park is considered to complement existing Business 

uses, and will provide a new access road. 

Mr P Keywood Paragraph C.67 Strategic Development: Bicester 5 - 

Strengthening Bicester Town 

Centre

Object to para C.67 on the grounds that it is not based on upto date evidence. 2012 

Update Retail Study has not yet been published.

Ms Gemma Brickwood Turley Associates / Sainsbury Paragraph C.68 Strategic Development: Bicester 5 - 

Strengthening Bicester Town 

Centre

Unclear how expansion to Town Centre is justified. Further evidence required. 

Mr Ben Jackson Bicester Chamber Paragraph C.68 Strategic Development: Bicester 5 - 

Strengthening Bicester Town 

Centre

This paragraph should be strengthened; a town centre needs to be created to meet 

the needs of 50,000+ residents as the town grows and to compete with other local 

retail centres.

Ms Gemma Brickwood Turley Associates / Sainsbury Policy Bicester 5 Strengthening Bicester Town 

Centre

Unclear how expansion to Town Centre is justified. Further evidence required. 

Mr Colin Cockshaw Policy Bicester 5 Strengthening Bicester Town 

Centre

Concern at the lack of proposed retail proposals in the town centre. In Policy Bicester 

5 insert a clear framework for future development of the town centre. 

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 5 Strengthening Bicester Town 

Centre

Support policy. Commitment required to provide shopping and leisure opportunities 

for growing town. Welcome committement to replace any town centre green spaces 

lost. Prefer Bicester Masterplan version. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 5 Strengthening Bicester Town 

Centre

Opportunities should be persued for Green Infrastructure, SuDS & biodiversity in 

buildings. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Bicester 5 Strengthening Bicester Town 

Centre

Access to town centre & movement within area. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Bicester 5 Strengthening Bicester Town 

Centre

EH would like to see a reference to the Conservation Area, potential archaeological 

interest and listed building in this policy.

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Value Retail (Bicester Village) Policy Bicester 5 Strengthening Bicester Town 

Centre

Support policy. Extension to Town Centre Boundary should be extended further to 

encompass Bicester Village. This approach would reflect WYG Masterplan for 

Specialist Retail Quarter. 

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 6 Bure Place Town Centre 

Redevelopment Phase 2

Strongly support policy. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 6 Bure Place Town Centre 

Redevelopment Phase 2

Opportunities should be perused for Green Infrastructure, SuDS & biodiversity in 

buildings. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Bicester 6 Bure Place Town Centre 

Redevelopment Phase 2

Access to town centre & movement within area. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Bicester 6 Bure Place Town Centre 

Redevelopment Phase 2

EH would like to see a reference to the Conservation Area, potential archaeological 

interest and listed building in this policy.

Mrs Vicky Aston Paragraph C.80 Strategic Development: Bicester 7 - 

Meeting the Need for Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation 

Support the Council's commitment to undertake further work on the need for sports 

facilities in Bicester.

Page 54

P
a

g
e
 9

4



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Paragraph C.83 Strategic Development: Bicester 7 - 

Meeting the Need for Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation

Support statement that there is a need to relocate facilities at Oxford Road site. 

Concern at the inconsistancy between Local Plan and Masterplan. The Masterplan 

identifies Pringle Fields within Town Centre Action Area and in the Civic and Cultural 

Quarter. 

Mr Roger Wise Paragraph C 83 Strategic Development: Bicester 7 - 

Meeting the Need for Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation

The proposed New Town Park- Pingle Field, Oxford Road Site is in a inappropriate 

location as it adjoins the Pingle Drive Road. The road carries the majority of visitors to 

Bicester Village  (5.5 million). These vehicles will give toxic emissions which will be a 

health threat to the new town park users.

Mr Donald Robinson Royal Pioneer / Stratton Audley Quarry Paragraph C.85 Strategic Development Bicester 7 - 

Meeting the Need for Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation

Object to the proposed development at Stratton Audley Quarry as a new Country 

Park on the grounds that wildlife would be disturbed, safety concerns reflecting the 

deep water  & disturbance to anglers. Quarry should continue to be used as and be 

looked after by the Royal Pioneer Angling Association.  Area outside the fishing lake 

should be developed as a Nature Reserve. Long distance footpath is unrealistic.

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Policy Bicester 7 Meeting the Need for Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation 

Support principle of relocating existing facilities at Oxford Road (Pringle Fields) and 

proposals to concentrate facilities to one site at Chesterton. Enabling cost effective 

management. Higher quality facilities. 

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 7 Meeting the need for Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation 

Strongly support policy. In particular commitment to open up green spaces to the 

wider public for leisure pursuits. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Bicester 7 Meeting the Need for Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation 

Wording suggested. 

Mr Dominic Woodfield Bioscan Policy Bicester 7 Meeting the Need for Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation 

Outline proposal at Gavray Drive compromise delivery of Green Infrastructure along 

railway line. 

Mr Keith Dixon Launton Parish Council Policy Bicester 8 RAF Bicester Supports the preservation of RAF Bicester

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 8 RAF Bicester Town Council support the continuation of flying at RAF Bicester. Support heritage 

tourism on the site with associated benefits. 

Mrs Rebecca Micklem BBOWT Policy Bicester 8 RAF Bicester RAF Bicester is a proposed Local Wildlife Site thought likely to support habitats 

and/or species of County importance. However,  this is not mentioned in the 

contextual text and it would appear that no ecological assessment of the area has 

been undertaken. This is needed to ensure that the policy is appropriate in terms of 

biodiversity impacts, to identify requirements for biodiversity protection, mitigation 

and enhancement, and to ensure compliance with NPPF paragraph 165.

Ms Ellen O'Grady Defence Infrastructure Organisation Policy Bicester 8 RAF Bicester No new assessments have been prepared/consulted on to include a policy which 

appears to contradict the existing Planning Brief (2009) for the site. It should be 

amended to state 'It will support employment, tourism, leisure, recreation, and 

community uses.' Although built in this period, RAF Bicester is not an inter-war 

airfield . 

The whole site is to be sold and therefore reference to the domestic site should be 

deleted.

Mrs Jane Olds Stratton Audley Parish Council Policy Bicester 8 RAF Bicester RAF Bicester and quarry to the north should be categorised as leisure. Support 

Technology Park but would like to see limitations on the size and style of building. 

Supports bids which maintain heritage, integrity and function of airfield. Concerns 

with any plans to increase number and size of powered aircraft regularly using the 

airfield.

Mrs Jane Olds Caversfield Parish Council Policy Bicester 8 RAF Bicester Would have concerns with any plans to increase the number and size of powered 

aircraft regularly using the airfield.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 8 RAF Bicester Sites should be given same level of protection as Local Wildlife Sites. Habitat and 

species survey's required. Pipistrellle Bat, Great Crested Newts at Stratton Audley 

Quarry. Survey required. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Bicester 8 RAF Bicester Policy should mention access to the site by public transport via Caversfield Turn bus 

stops which are on the Oxford - Cambridge Corridor. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Bicester 8 RAF Bicester EH supports this policy for its recognition of the important historical significance of 

the airfield.

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Policy Bicester 8 RAF Bicester RAF Bicester, buildings and open flying field are preserved. 

Page 55

P
a
g
e
 9

5



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Paragraph 

C.92 Burial Site in Bicester

Support the commitment to survey land to establish the suitability of ground 

conditions.

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 9 Burial Site in Bicester Support commitment on all future development to support burial provision. Feel 

wording is not robust enough. Prefer Bicester Masterplan text. 

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Bicester 9

Burial Site in Bicester

It must not be established in an area than this likely to have a negative impact on 

ground water.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 9 Burial Site in Bicester Native and local provenance planting and sowing should be encouraged within the 

landscape. 

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Policy Bicester 9 Burial Site in Bicester Desire for a burial ground should be tested further. Need and options for its location 

should be fully explored. 

Mr Brett Chambers Wendlebury Parish Council Policy Bicester 10 Bicester Gateway Although the opportunity to create more employment sites in Bicester are welcomed 

this is a clear example of Bicester spreading towards the M40 Junction 9 absorbing 

agricultural land. Access to the Roman Road is inadequate to high volume traffic and 

the knock on effect on Wendlebury and Chesterton need to be assessed.

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Policy Bicester 10 Bicester Gateway Support Bicester 10. Amendment suggested - policy should apply early in the Plan 

period.  Should make reference to car parking ratios e.g. 1:35.  

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 10 Bicester Gateway Support policy and in particular hi tech businesses and enterprise. Gateway should be 

iconic. Bicester Masterplan sets out principles more clearly. 

Mrs Rebecca Micklem BBOWT Policy Bicester 10 Bicester Gateway The policy recognises that investigation of the biodiversity of this site is needed  This 

information needs to be available to determine whether the allocation is appropriate. 

An ecological survey of the area needs to be undertaken. This is needed to ensure 

that the policy is appropriate in terms of biodiversity impacts, to identify 

requirements for biodiversity protection, mitigation and enhancement, and to ensure 

compliance with NPPF paras. 109 and 165  

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Bicester 10 Bicester Gateway

The policy wording needs to be stronger and be amended to read: 'There will be no 

built development within flood zone 3'. Ideally would prefer the policy wording to 

include not having built development in Flood Zone 2 either but appreciate that this 

is aspiration and not explicitly stated in the NPPF.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 10 Bicester Gateway Potential for significant harm from proposal. Bicester Wetland Reserve Local Wildlife 

Site (Located Between Bicester 10, 4 & 2) contains rare species. Bird interested. 

Water quality y& quantity should not be impacted upon. Indirect and cumulative 

impacts should be assessed. Potential for LWS to become isolated. Eastern part of 

site on the flood zone should be kept free from built development. Amend bullet 

point 8 to refer to 'priority'.  

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Bicester 10 Bicester Gateway Consistency of approach. Direct bus services unlikely. Emphasis on improving walking 

and cycling links to Chesterton Park development. No requirement for pedestrian 

crossing at A41. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Bicester 10 Bicester Gateway The policy should include a principle to conserve the setting of the schedule 

monument by adding: 'Conservation and enhancement of the setting of Alchester 

Roman Town Scheduled Ancient Monument and seek opportunities to better reveal 

its significance.'

Mr Richard Foot GVA / Bicester Business Park Policy Bicester 10 Bicester Gateway Support focus. Policy should be more stringent in requiring Science and high tech 

industry only. Approach would be consistent with the WYG Masterplan. Wording 

supplied. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park Stop this. Should be for industry incubators.

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park Support policy. 

Page 56

P
a

g
e
 9

6



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mrs Rebecca Micklem BBOWT Policy Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park The site falls within RAF Bicester proposed Local Wildlife Site. Despite the likely 

ecological value of the site,  it would appear that no ecological assessment of the area 

has been undertaken. This is needed to ensure that the policy is appropriate in terms 

of biodiversity impacts, to identify requirements for biodiversity protection, 

mitigation and enhancement, and to ensure compliance with NPPF paras. 109 and 

165  

Mrs Jane Olds Stratton Audley Parish Council Policy Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park Supports need for new employment locations but would like reassurance that 

buildings will not be high enough to be seen from Stratton Audley nor restrict the use 

of the airfield.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Policy Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park Archaeological survey should be noted in Key Site Specific Design. Wording supplied. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park Biodiversity should be protected and enhanced. Airfield is a proposed Local Wildlife 

Site, unimproved grassland and value for invertebrates and birds. Pipistrelle Bat 

(European Protected Species) roost recorded. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park New stops and walking routes. 

Ms Hannah Smith Indigo Planning Ltd / Albion Land Policy Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park *Object to land area identified on proposals map. A map is attached showing the 

required change. Omission Site - Land north of Skimmingdish Lane. 

Ms Hannah Smith Indigo Planning Ltd / Albion Land Policy Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park Policy should be widened to include B1, B2 and B8 Business uses to allow greater 

flexibility. Approach supported by ELS (2012). 

Ms Hannah Smith Indigo Planning Ltd / Albion Land Policy Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park Key site specific design and place shaping principles - should be subject to viability 

assessment to ensure allocation is deliverable. 

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Policy Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park Concern at traffic congestion associated with new employment site. Less jobs should 

be pursued. 

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council Policy Bicester 12 East Bicester Support policy. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Barwood Developments Policy Bicester 12 East Bicester Policy should allow for use classes B1, B2 & B8 to allow greater flexibility. Policy could 

make a South Eastern link road unviable. 

Mr Steven Neal Boyer Planning / Redrow Homes & Wates Developments Policy Bicester 12 East Bicester Support principle of the allocation of East Bicester. Consider allowance of 150 dwg in 

the Plan period is an under estimate. Developer has calculated the site is capable of 

approximately 700 dwg in the Plan period. Including early delivery of a South East link 

road. At a density of 34.4 dph the 22 ha site could supply 760 dwg. Site should be 

phased to allow early release in the first part of the Plan period. Benefits include the 

release of the roundabout at A41. Employment allocation of 18ha is not all expected 

to come forward in the Plan period. Policy should be more flexible. Changes supplied. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Policy Bicester 12 East Bicester Key site specific designation should acknowledge non-designated heritage asset - 

Medieval village of Wretchwick. Associated ridge and furrow form part of setting. 

English Heritage should be consulted on any parts of the Plan that effect the setting. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 12 East Bicester Site partly within Ray CTA. Hydrological impact concern. Advice supplied by 

Thompson Ecology still relevant. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Bicester 12 East Bicester Development which could harm a CTA should be resisted, Detailed habitat and 

species surveys should be carried out. North-eastern part of Bicester 12 is within the 

Ray Conservation Target Area and is part of BAP Priority Habitat. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Bicester 12 East Bicester Sustainable under bullet point 6. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Bicester 12 East Bicester Bicester 12 is proposed immediately adjacent to the scheduled monument of 

Wretchwick Deserted Medieval Settlement and may cause significant harm to its 

significance contrary to NPPF paragraph 126.  Need to redraw the proposal's 

boundaries to provide a greater buffer zone and conserve the setting of the 

scheduled monument.  May need amendments to the development area and other 

figures in the policy.

Mrs Jennifer Spear Ambrosden Parish Council Policy Bicester 12 East Bicester Policy title is misleading - should be re-titled Ambrosden North. 

Page 57

P
a
g
e
 9

7



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Dominic Woodfield Bioscan Policy Bicester 12 East Bicester Function of green buffer and Green Infrastructure could be improved by 

amendments to Gavray Drive. 

Sir Tony Baldry MP Other C.3 Banbury Important that the Local Plan seeks to define clear boundaries for Banbury. Including 

using long established natural boundaries such as the Salt Way.

Sir Tony Baldry MP Other C.3 Banbury There will be public debate as to exactly which sites for development should be 

included within Banbury Town, but the overall proposal seems sensible and 

proportionate.

Ms Fiona Brereton Drivers Jonas Deloitte/Aberdeen Property Investors Section C.3 Banbury  There should be an analysis of retail capacity figures to ensure the plan is compliant 

with the requirements of the NPPF. Once this is completed an assessment of the 

likely retail capacity for the town centre development sites can be identified within 

each site specific policy. This would be a more robust position to defend against out 

of centre development. The figures should be identified as Gross External Area and 

Net Sales Area.

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Paragraph C.102 - C.128 Banbury  Object to the de-allocation of land at Warwick Road in favour of land at Hardwick 

Farm. Objection to Hanwell Farm being allocated in the plan rather than a reserve 

behind Warwick Road. Contrary to evidence base which is also incomplete. No 

justification for changes in Council Committee Reports. The Council's reasons for de-

allocation relates to Landscape Sensitivity conflicts with evidence base. Further 

evidence is supplied to support objectors view - Review of Landscape work by Woolf 

Bond Planning and by FPCR. Unsure if criteria of Urban Form has been applied. 

Development at Bretch Hill has potentially greater impact on the separation of 

Drayton. 

Mr Paul Harris Section C.3 Banbury Banbury Concern at the large scale development at Banbury on two grounds; traffic 

congestion in particular at the A423 & A422 & B4100 and Visual landscape impact at 

North of Hanwell Fields on views within Stratford District. 

Mrs Theona Harrop Section C.3 Banbury Banbury Objection to line of proposed ring road and link with existing A41 on the grounds that 

it will increase traffic, sits outside the proposed development area for Bicester and is 

outside the Green Buffer Zone 

Mrs Theona Harrop Section C.3 Banbury Banbury No consideration give to the public meeting and proximity to Wendlebury Village. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph C.102 Banbury Support statement. 

Mr David Keene David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates Section C.3 Banbury Development strategy for Banbury relies on the delivery of Canalside. Comprises 34% 

of towns supply of land. Omission Site - Wykham Park Farm can be delivered. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Section C.3 Banbury Object to growth locations at Banbury & allocation at Canalside. Southern option is 

preferred as low to moderate landscape sensitivity, links to the town centre. 

Mr Robert Tustain Section C.3 Banbury Object to the growth proposals at Banbury on the grounds that; development is  

distant from the town centre, no future provision for a ring road, coalescence of 

surrounding villages (Hanwell, Bourton, Bloxham, Twyford, Adderbury), more 

distribution sheds.  Development is too large. 

Mr Robert Tustain Section C.3 Banbury All Bankside developments are disproportionate for the area. 

Mr Robert Tustain Section C.3 Banbury Suggest that two new junctions onto the M40 need to be built at Nell Bridge and 

Great Bourton to alleviate traffic from Alcan and Oxford Road respectively.  Concern 

at traffic congestion caused by accidents on M40. 

Mr Robert Tustain Section C.3 Banbury Suggest avoiding building on the flood Plain and include Flood relief proposals . 

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Section C.3 Banbury Should be analysis of retail capacity figures to ensure Plan is compliant with NPPF. 

Then assessment of retail capacity for the town centre development sites can be 

identified within each site specific policy. Figure should be identified as Gross 

External Area and Net Sales Area. 

Page 58

P
a

g
e
 9

8



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Brian Little Local History Group Section C.3 Banbury 

*Plan has a clear distinction between the old town (Parsons Street and the lane 

together with the High Street from the Cross to the former White Lion Hotel) and the 

new town (referred to as Castle Quay). Established pattern in continental Europe and 

should feature in the future plan. Clearly market place with its historic frontage is 

pivotal to the whole town centre. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph C.104 Banbury Salt Way is not an historic town boundary but a route way. This function is reinforced 

by the Sustrans Route 5. Earlier options reports make no reference to boundary. 

Delete paragraph. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Paragraph C.104 C.3 Banbury See comment B.248

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph C.107 Meeting the Challenges of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Banbury

Support first bullet point. Green Buffer policy will restrict growth. 

Mr Tim Byrne Jones Lang LaSalle / Horton General Hospital Paragraph C.119 Meeting the Challenges of Building 

a Sustainable Community in 

Banbury

Reference to numbers of employees should be removed as prone to fluctuations over 

such a time frame. 

Ms Rose Freeman The Theatres Trust Paragraph C.119 Meeting the Challenge of Building 

a Sustainable Community in 

Banbury

Para C.119 bullet point 6 states improved cultural facilities are also needed in 

Banbury. No policy includes this aspiration. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph C.119 Meeting the Challenges of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in Banbury

Local Plan should recognise that not just affordable housing but all forms of housing 

including market housing is a key issue. Amend bullet point 5. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Paragraph C.119 Meeting the Challenge of Building 

a Sustainable Community in 

Banbury

Support para C.119, C.170 & C.176 and the requirement for further Cricket Pitch 

provision. Plan should recognise the merger of two cricket clubs at Banbury and have 

regard to land ownership & availability for circ 150 dwellings at White Post Road, 

adjoin the Banbury Cricket Club site and thereby secure a separation of Banbury from 

Bodicote. 

Mr Tim Byrne Jones Lang LaSalle / Horton General Hospital Paragraph C.120 Meeting the Challenges of Building 

a Sustainable Community in 

Banbury

Incorrect reference to hospital and does not meet objectively assessed development 

and infrastructure requirements. Does not reflect future health care provision. The 

retention of healthcare provision at the Horton Hospital is secured through 

alternative mechanism and should not be referenced in the Plan. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Paragraph C.121 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Banbury

Access to services should be defined. Key environmental challenges. Second bullet 

point unclear. Managing traffic congestion duplicate. Traffic management should be 

travel. Expand to include Electric Spine and its benefits. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph C.122 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Banbury 

Protection of Salt Way is not a key environmental challenge. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Paragraph C.122 & C.124 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Banbury 

See comment B.248

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Paragraph C.122 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Banbury 

Support wording at Bullet Point 1. Apply to all other Strategic Sites. 

Mr John Colegrave Paragraph C.124 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Banbury

It is considered inevitable that further growth will be required at Banbury after 2031 

and if some residential developments prove unviable. In both instances it is 

important that all options (including land at Salt Way) remain available for further 

consideration. Delete reference. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph C.124 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in 

Banbury 

Object to Green Buffer Policy - Unnecessary and unjustified by evidence. Delete 

reference and change to landscape setting and new edge of Banbury.  

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Paragraph C.125 Banbury in 2031 Disagree with analysis that by 2031 that there will be more opportunities for travel by 

foot, bicycle and bus. Banbury 2 & 4 are some of the most remote locations while 

land to south of Saltway is not. Banbury 2 should be reduced and allocate for 

employment. 

Page 59

P
a
g
e
 9

9



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Paragraph C.126 Banbury in 2031 Support the strategy for Banbury but would have liked to see specific reference to the 

need for a new cemetery as referred to in Para C.119 (key community issues facing 

Banbury)

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Education & early Intervention Services Paragraph C.126 Banbury in 2031 Bullet point 8 amendment. 

Mr Geoff Bolton Berrys / Gleeson Developments Ltd Paragraph C.127 What will Happen and Where The Council has failed to undertake a proper assessment of the reasonable 

alternative options for major development at Banbury. The Local Plan seeks to 

provide a significant change in the number of dwellings over the plan period and 

should have triggered a further Options for Growth consultation.  

The Council failed to assess Land at Broughton Road  as a separate site. The emerging 

Masterplan presents an opportunity to undertake detailed assessment of potential 

development sites as it has been the case with Bicester . The Local Plan should not 

proceed without the publication of the Banbury Masterplan.

Mr Alan Jones Paragraph C.129-C.132 Banbury Canalside Strongly support the policy. It is vital to promote brownfield sites such as Canalside 

and Bolton road to assist regenerating the town  and reduce the need to consider 

green field sites.

Mrs Karen Jones Paragraph C.129-C.132 Banbury Canalside Strongly support the policy. It is vital to promote brownfield sites such as Canalside 

and Bolton road to assist regenerating the town  and reduce the need to consider 

green field sites.

Mrs Vicky Aston Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Object to Banbury 1: Banbury Canalside,  Policy does not make reference to outdoor 

sports provision under infrastructure or the impact on Banbury FC. (Suggested text 

supplied)

Cllr Ken Atack Cropredy Ward Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Concerned with the issue of where business will relocate. Presume that this issue will 

be covered by the Banbury Master plan.

Sir Tony Baldry MP Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside It will be good to see Canalside development take place. It should be recognised that 

a significant amount of public capital investment in making the site capable of 

development (i.e. flood defence work) and one looks to the private sector to take 

forward development. However, CDC may have to use statutory powers of 

compulsory purchase to ensure a coherent land assembly.

Mr Ed Barrett Turley Associates/ Scottish Widows / Scottish Widows Unit 

Funds Ltd

Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Proposed scale and town centre / commercial uses is not justified by commercial 

analysis or retail in respect of likely mix. Provision of significant commercial uses 

within an extended town centre boundary has the potential to adversely impact on 

vitality and viability of the established retail core. Recommend an assessment of the 

impact on the existing town centre uses. 

Ms Fiona Brereton Drivers Jonas Deloitte/Aberdeen Property Investors Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Bullet point 5- the reference to "not including any significant convenience retail": It 

should be clarified what "significant" means.  The use of appropriate quantum's of 

retail floorspace for each of the sites would address this issue.

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Lack of evidence (SHLAA) in respect of delivery of Canalside.  Site is contrary to NPPF 

para 47. Delivery concerns - site in multiple ownership, public investment needed, 

existing business require relocation, flooding, funding issues, site assembly. Housing 

allocation at Canalside should be reduced and Warwick Road allocated.  Reserve site 

approach should be reinstated. 

Ms Diane Clarke Network Rail Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Banbury 1 could provide some station benefits or a revised interchange. The Chilterns 

MSCP is separate from the Canalside scheme and it is currently part of an application 

by Chiltern Railways.

mr Robert Cronk Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Needs further detail relating to the station car parking provision. The 2009 draft SPD 

proposes at least 1000 rail user car spaces distributed to either side of the railway 

line. This should be supported by the Local Plan.

Page 60

P
a
g

e
 1

0
0



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mrs Jane Hennell Canal and River Trust Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside The Trust supports the regeneration of Canalside and wishes to work with the Council 

to deliver. The canal towpath should be improved and made more accessible. The 

quality of development fronting that canal and areas of public access will be crucial to 

the success of the project and the Trust wish to be involved in any future master 

planning of the site.

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Support regeneration of Banbury Canalside, concerns regarding viability of scheme. 

Support greater flexibility of phasing of the redevelopment of individual land 

holdings. Concern at prescriptive design criteria. 

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Object to 30% affordable housing - inflexible - should be subject to viability 

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Requirement for education - primary school is unjustified.

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Health - uncertain

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Open space - ineffective

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Access & movement - first part of sentence unnecessary

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Community Facilities - Unjustified

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Utilities - not based on evidence 

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Design - 'Innovative architecture' and 'locally distinctive materials' subjective 

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Live / work units but no B uses conflicts with Banbury 1 Policy (Use Class B1)  - Vision 

not clarified. Policy does not reflect existing uses. 

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Noise Survey - Should be considered before allocating site not at application stage

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Public art - unjustified 

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Code for sustainable homes - unjustified 

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside SPD assumes Masterplan site is in single ownership and homogenous - however 

made up of many distinct sites 

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Additional requirements for this large complex site include: Paragraph 3 

Arrangement between landowners and freeholders is not under the remit of the LPA 

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Additional requirements for this large complex site include: Paragraph 5, Policy fails 

to identify donor sites to decant businesses from the Canal site - paragraph should be 

deleted. 

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Support for the redevelopment of the Crest Hotel within the Canalside Plans. 

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Support the policy. It is vital to promote Brownfield sites such as Canalside and 

Bolton road to assist regenerating the town and reduce the need to consider green 

field sites.

Mr Alan Jones Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Strongly support the policy. It is vital to promote Brownfield sites such as Canalside 

and Bolton road to assist regenerating the town  and reduce the need to consider 

green field sites.

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Proposal is unviable and undeliverable. Subject to relocation of many small and 

medium sized businesses.  

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Strongly support the policy. It is vital to promote Brownfield sites such as Canalside 

and Bolton road to assist regenerating the town  and reduce the need to consider 

green field sites.

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Site is undeliverable; it is in multiple ownerships, unviable, and further work is 

required to relocate existing businesses and flooding issues. Amend policy to refer to 

long-term delivery. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Support policy. Welcome inclusion of listed and locally listed buildings within the 

Conservation Area. Object to bullet point 21. Enlarge site to include Railway Station & 

Grundon Site. Deliver a minor road bridge. Link road to Banbury 6. 

Mr David Keene David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Banbury Canalside is undeliverable. No mechanism is in place. Complex site. Long 

term supply - only. 

Page 61

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Canalside development is undeliverable in Plan period due to multiple ownerships 

and work yet to be completed. A development brief, development partner, public 

money investment, use of CPO powers, relocation sites & flooding issue. 

Mr Stewart Mitchell Grundon Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside The area of the Banbury Canalside Allocation should be extended to include the 

Grundon Site to the east of the railway given proximity to Station and Town Centre. 

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside

Allocating areas of the site for specific development uses would only be appropriate 

if supported with evidence from the L2 SFRA.

The Level 2 SFRA was completed after submission of the Local Plan and we have not 

had time to review whether or not it supports the policy wording evidence. We 

cannot be sure that the policy does not contravene paragraph 100 of the NPPF. Need 

more time to review the submitted L2 SFRA.

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside No objection in principle however Banbury Canalside suffers from multiple 

ownership, flood issues, and relocation of existing businesses. Banbury 2 Southam 

Road in contrast is in single ownership and deliverable.  

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Strongly support Canalside as our top priority for future housing growth. We 

recognise that due to number of landowners deliverability is difficult. CDC needs to 

show a firm commitment including options for providing employment land for 

relocations and willingness to use CPO powers if necessary.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Rare or notable species include Barn Owl, Grass Snake & Kingfisher. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Question delivery of pedestrian bridge / cycle bridge over railway line. Improvements 

to Railway Station forecourt. High quality route from the Station to the town centre. 

Bus route through Canalside to serve Banbury Rail Station via Station approach and 

Tramway Road. New bullet point proposed. 11th Bullet point - consideration of bus 

movement. 14th bullet - bus route through site. New bullet point key site specific 

design and place shaping principles. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside EH supports the policy but considers that the historic buildings/structures to be 

retained should be identified (Old Town Hall and bridge over Mill Stream) in addition 

to locally listed buildings

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Ned to deliver.

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Policy Banbury 5 - Bullet 5. What is significant retail? Quantum's of retail floor space 

would address issue.  

Ms Melissa Wilson Drivers Jonas Deloitte / CEMEX UK Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside The boundary of Banbury Canalside should be extended to factor in other adjacent 

deliverable sites to the east of the canal, including the CEMEX site, to increase the 

allocated housing delivery figure in the District's principle urban area.

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Require on-site police presence. Additional bullet point under key infrastructure. 

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside *Having reviewed the updated Level 2 Canalside SFRA, the EA no longer find Policy 

Banbury 1 unsound 

Mr Brian Little Local History Group 

Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside *Important to retain features of historic interest. E.g. a former town hall. Reference 

to Birmingham University study 'Industrial archaeology Survey of the Oxford Canal 

corridor 2001. 

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Support Banbury Canalside - Note Delivery Issues. 

Miss Heather Johnston Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Support for the redevelopment of the Crest Hotel within the Canalside Plans. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Advice supplied. 

Page 62

P
a
g

e
 1

0
2



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Minns Pension Scheme Policy Banbury 1 Banbury Canalside Support allocation of Banbury Canalside. Concern at statement that suggests the best 

means of bringing the site forward is through an outline planning application and 

masterplan. Instead suggest site comes forward as discrete sites  so that they do not 

prejudice the masterplan. Aiding deliverability. Amend last paragraph to allow for 

individual planning applications. 

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Object to allocation of Hardwick Farm. Land west of A423 identified as Site B has high 

sensitivity to development. SA (Feb 2010) acknowledges distance from services, and 

problem of severance by employment site at Grimsbury. Land west of Southam Road 

is likely to have a visual impact. Site has archaeological value. SA (2012) reiterates 

issues. No evidence to support allocation of site in preference to Warwick Road. 

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Banbury's northern boundary is unsound. Dukes Meadow Drive link road was 

specified to be a permanent limit to the northern boundary of Banbury within the 

Hanwell Fields Design Brief 1997 and planning applications have been turned down in 

the past for that reason (2007). The proposed plans will affect house values and take 

away the right to open space from the residents of Hanwell Fields.

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The site is unsuitable due to concerns with: visual and landscape impact, noise 

pollution, much of site considered unsuitable and could cause flood risk, 

development beyond Banbury's northern boundary, not contiguous to any other 

residential development, loss of agricultural land, increase pollution levels due to 

distance from town, poor transport and access, tranquillity of the cemetery would be 

destroyed. 

Ms Rachel Hanbury Turley Associates Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The employment proposals at the former SAPA site will create a noise nuisance for 

the new development

Ms Rachel Hanbury Turley Associates Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The policy does not comply with paras 109 and 123 of the NPPF

Ms Rachel Hanbury Turley Associates Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

There may be a risk that unreasonable noise restrictions would be placed on the 

former Sapa site due to the new housing development

Ms Rachel Hanbury Turley Associates Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The Policy should be revised to take account of the noise impacts of the new 

employment uses on the SAPA site and to avoid any future noise complaints. 

(wording is suggested)

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Object to policy as the inclusion of sites Banbury 2: East and West of Southam Road 

and Banbury 5: North of Hanwell Fields, and the exclusion of West of Warwick Road, 

have not been justified.  Contradicts the conclusions of the Draft Core Strategy on the 

relative sustainability of these sites.

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Altering the clear, defensible  urban boundary to the north of Banbury is not justified.  

The Plan does not explain how an effective, defensible long-term urban boundary will 

be provided, how Hanwell village and its rural setting will be protected, nor how the 

suggested Green Buffers will be achieved.  Moving the boundary requires justification 

and further detailed assessment.

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The Southam Road site would create a poor environment for new housing and may 

be more suitable for sensitively designed employment uses.

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The Plan does not justify why development south of Salt Way would be more harmful 

than development to the north of Banbury.  The strategic decision to offer greater 

protection to the Salt Way area is highly questionable and needs proper justification 

and further assessment.

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

If the proposed housing sites to the north of Banbury are approved, there needs to 

be the strongest protection for Hanwell village and its setting and a well defined 

boundary with effective green buffers where appropriate.

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Strongly object to the policy. The Plan does not justify why Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 

(North of Hanwell Fields) are now included and West of Warwick Road is excluded. 

Page 63

P
a
g
e
 1

0
3



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The Plan does not justify why the clear, defensible boundary to the north of Banbury 

which now defines the limit of built development should now be significantly altered. 

Nor how the new edge will constitute an effective, defensible long term boundary, 

how this will protect Hanwell village and how the 'Green Buffers' will be achieved.

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Plan does not justify th einclusion of East & West Southam Road. Site constraine dby 

noise, heritage and other environmental constraints. Adjoins industrial area to the 

south. Might be suitable for long term employment use. 

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Banbury 2 is less sustainable than other sites and create a poor environment for new 

housing. It is not clear that the detrimental visual impacts have been properly 

balanced. The site  is more suitable for long term employment. 

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The Plan does not justify a radical shift from the Draft Core Strategy 2010 and why 

development south of Banbury at Salt Way is deemed more harmful than the housing 

development proposed north of Banbury.

Mr Alan Jones Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Strongly object to the policy. The Plan does not justify why Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 

(North of Hanwell Fields) are now included and West of Warwick Road is excluded. 

Mr Alan Jones Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The Plan does not justify why the clear, defensible boundary to the north of Banbury 

which now defines the limit of built development should now be significantly altered. 

Nor how the new edge will constitute an effective, defensible long term boundary, 

how this will protect Hanwell village and how the 'Green Buffers' will be achieved.

Mr Alan Jones Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Plan does not justify th einclusion of East & West Southam Road. Site constraine dby 

noise, heritage and other environmental constraints. Adjoins industrial area to the 

south. Might be suitable for long term employment use. 

Mr Alan Jones Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Banbury 2 is less sustainable than other sites and create a poor environment for new 

housing. It is not clear that the detrimental visual impacts have been properly 

balanced. The site  is more suitable for long term employment. 

Mr Alan Jones Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The Plan does not justify a radical shift from the Draft Core Strategy 2010 and why 

development south of Banbury at Salt Way is deemed more harmful than the housing 

development proposed north of Banbury.

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Strongly object to the policy. The Plan does not justify why Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 

(North of Hanwell Fields) are now included and West of Warwick Road is excluded. 

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The Plan does not justify why the clear, defensible boundary to the north of Banbury 

which now defines the limit of built development should now be significantly altered. 

Nor how the new edge will constitute an effective, defensible long term boundary, 

how this will protect Hanwell village and how the 'Green Buffers' will be achieved.

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Plan does not justify th einclusion of East & West Southam Road. Site constraine dby 

noise, heritage and other environmental constraints. Adjoins industrial area to the 

south. Might be suitable for long term employment use. 

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Banbury 2 is less sustainable than other sites and create a poor environment for new 

housing. It is not clear that the detrimental visual impacts have been properly 

balanced. The site  is more suitable for long term employment. 

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The Plan does not justify a radical shift from the Draft Core Strategy 2010 and why 

development south of Banbury at Salt Way is deemed more harmful than the housing 

development proposed north of Banbury.

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Allocation of Hardwick farm does not flow from the evidence. Site more suited to 

employment. Land is undulating and sensitive. Development area should be reduced. 

Page 64

P
a
g

e
 1

0
4



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Site should not be viable from conic view point looking north from Oxford Road / 

South Bar. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East & West)

Development site is undeliverable as site is in an archaeologically sensitive location 

and close to listed buildings, affected by noise from the motorway & low landscape 

capacity. There is recognised need for a new cemetery at adjoin site - development 

here 

Mrs Rebecca Micklem BBOWT Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

It would appear that no ecological assessment of the area has been undertaken. This 

is needed to ensure that the policy is appropriate in terms of biodiversity impacts, to 

identify requirements for biodiversity protection, mitigation and enhancement, and 

to ensure compliance with NPPF paras. 109 and 165  

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West) Welcome the wording of much of the policy. However, bullet point of place shaping 

principles is in conflict with NPPF. Advise to amend  the policy to read: 'There will be 

no built development within flood zones 2 and 3. Also issues of access and aggress 

regarding Normal Way need to be discussed with CDC emergency planners as there is 

a risk in allocating a site where safe access could not be achieved.

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Site Location Plan Attached. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Bedworth Trading Ltd support allocation of Banbury 2 for residential development for 

approx 800 dwg.  Site in single ownership. EIA indicates no physical or environmental 

constraints. Infrastructure requirements supported. Sustainable location. Site is 

integral to Plan Strategy & Vision. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Support in principle Banbury 2 however request minor wording change to Policy. 

Development area is 43ha in size. Number of homes to be built is 800. 

'Approximately' should refer to a 10% margin of error. Delete reference to health 

provision. Delete reference to off-site contributions. Place shaping principles should 

be proportionate to application (if outline or detailed). Opportunity to connect to 

Country park should only refer to land in developers control. Development 

description should acknowledge Banbury 2 is close to employment & residential 

uses, that landscape/ visual impact and historic sensitivity can be addressed through 

applications. 

Mr Wayne Neale Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Objection to Ban 2 on the grounds of visual impact, loss of agricultural land, setting of 

Banbury, noise pollution from M40, flood risk, poor transport, 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Whilst supporting the allocation, it has increased 'hope value' for residential 

development attached to the land to the north of Hardwick Hill Cemetery which is 

needed to secure the extension to the existing cemetery.  TC would like to see an 

additional allocation of the field to the north of the cemetery for a cemetery 

extension.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 2 Hard wick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and Wes)

Potential BAP Priority Habitat outside site boundary to the east and north-eat. Great 

Crested Newt Survey required. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 2 Hard wick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and Wes)

New bullet points proposed. Public transport link to service other strategic 

developments, the town centre, railway station, commercially self-sustaining. New 

bullet point - transport assessment / travel plans. 

Mr Graham Simpkin The London crematorium Company plc Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The policy fails to recognise the importance of Banbury Crematorium and the 

associated Garden of Remembrance and is unsound, unjustified and not effective.

Mr Graham Simpkin The London crematorium Company plc Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Alternatives which would have less impact on the crematorium have not been 

considered

Mr Graham Simpkin The London crematorium Company plc Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

This is a sub-regional facility and it is likely that the impact of development has not 

been recognised by neighbouring authorities

Mr Graham Simpkin The London crematorium Company plc Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

It is essential that the setting of the Garden of remembrance is preserved for 

mourners

Mr Graham Simpkin The London crematorium Company plc Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

New housing will intrude and dominate the views within the Garden of 

Remembrance

Page 65

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Graham Simpkin The London crematorium Company plc Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The policy is worded to allow for mitigation to be provided to protect new residents 

from the crematoria which means that if interpreted literally the policy will allow 

development to take place close to the Crematorium and Garden of Remembrance 

Mr Graham Simpkin The London crematorium Company plc Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

The Policy could be made sound if there was a fifty metre buffer between the 

crematorium and new development to the south and if this was planted and made 

accessible for the public. (wording is suggested)

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

EH supports the key principles relating to and archaeological survey, Hardwick House 

and the Hardwick Medieval Village. However, EH is concerned with the potential 

impact of development on the heritage assets close to the site. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Remove from Plan - Green Belt

Maggie Watts Policy Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Object to the proposed development at Dukes field. 

Mr Brian Little Local History Group Policy Banbury 2

Hardwick Farm , Southam Road 

(East and West) *Important to ensure Hardwick lost village and Hanwell do not lose their identity. 

Mr Peter Brown Drayton Parish Council Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Development at West of Bretch Hill will be impossible to meet the requirements of 

ESD 15 & ESD16 & Paragraph C.136. No justification for site over others. 

Development will impact on the setting of Wroxton Abbey & Withycombe Farm. 

Mr Peter Brown Drayton Parish Council Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Development at West of Bretch Hill will be impossible to meet the requirements of 

ESD 15 & ESD16 & Paragraph C.136. No justification for site over others. 

Development will impact on the setting of Wroxton Abbey & Withycombe Farm. 

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning/Bloor Homes Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Support allocation of land at Bretch Hill as residential mixed use development. Site is 

allocated 400 dwg early in the Plan period. Environmental features will be protected. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Site should not be visible from Wroxton Abby Parkland. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Site is high landscape value, would ruin Wroxton Abbey, Grade II Wroxton Abbey 

Park and Wroxton and Drayton Conservation Area. It would extend visual edge of 

Banbury Skyline / urban views.  Land is remote from transport corridor and would 

have significant accessibility and traffic impact issues. Reliant on junction at Warwick 

Road and the triple roundabout s at Cromwell Road, Ruscote Avenue and Orchard 

Way. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill No objection in principle however some sections of the site are not deliverable due to 

landscape quality and sensitivity. Land at Southam Road has no such serious 

challenges. 

Robin Parker Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Object to the inclusion of this site

Robin Parker Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Bretch Hill needs regeneration not new houses next to it

Robin Parker Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Is concerned with the effect of development on the local environment

Robin Parker Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill The proposals will cause traffic problems and safety issues

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Support this allocation as the most appropriate green field site for future 

development.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Policy should be widened to include undesignated below ground archaeological 

deposits. Archaeological survey should be noted in Key Site Specific Design. Wording 

supplied. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill No Comment. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Green infrastructure. Unlikely existing bus service will be re-routed. Existing services 

will be upgraded in respect of frequency. Emphasis on effective walking and cycling 

to existing bus stops. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill EH supports the key principles relating to the historic environment.

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Remove from Plan - for now. 

Page 66

P
a
g

e
 1

0
6



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Require on-site police presence. Additional bullet point under key infrastructure. 

Mr Brian Little Local History Group Policy Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill

*Good opportunity to produce a tidy edge to Banbury and engage greater interest in 

the wider estate subject to the Brighter Futures Campaign. 

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Paragraph C.137 Strategic Development: Banbury 4 - 

Bankside Phase 2 (links to 'Policy 

Banbury 12: Land for the 

Relocation of Banbury United FC'

Planning application gave permission for no more than 1,070 homes and not 1,092. 

Unclear on additional 22 or 82 homes at Cotefield farm or 21 homes at rear of 33 

Oxford Road. 

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Paragraph C.137 Strategic Development: Banbury 4 - 

Bankside Phase 2 (links to 'Policy 

Banbury 12: Land for the 

Relocation of Banbury United FC'

See comment 5 above. 

Mrs Jennifer Glynn Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Object to dropping of 'Bodicote' from the name of the proposal when bulk of 

development is in the parish of Bodicote.  Banbury 4 & 12  are similarly miss-named 

as they lie in the Parish of Bodicote. Banbury 4 should be removed from the Local 

Plan. 

Mrs Jennifer Glynn Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Object to proposal allocating 1,092 dwellings at Bankside Phase 1 on the grounds that 

Condition 6 of the Planning Application limits growth to 1,070 dwellings to comply 

with Polices in the South East Plan. 

Mrs Jennifer Glynn Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Object to allocation at Bodicote/Bankside as policy fails to enhance or protect village.  

Allocation is disproportionate to the scale of the village size as growth would be 

equivalent to almost all the growth allocate to villages in category 1. Allocation in 

effect joins Bodicote to Banbury.  

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Delay to Bankside Phase 1 will have a knock on effect with phase2.

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Delete Green Buffer at Bankside Phase 2. 

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Omission site - land adjacent Bankside Phase 1. Site provides a logical and sustainable 

extension  to existing commitment. Infrastructure provided by first phase. Possible 

redistribution of uses between Banbury 12.  Outdoor sports provision should reflect 

scale of provision already planned for Phase 1 and if they exceed standards set out in 

BSC.11 should count towards that provision. Reference to extra care homes and their 

location and scale should be determined through discussions. Delete reference to self-

build housing. Remove reference to noise mitigation associated with M40 as this can 

be resolved at Planning Application stage. Reference to Public Art as CIL requirement 

should be deleted. Requirement for sustainable construction measures should be 

removed.  

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Evidence base does not support allocation. Replace with Saltway. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Development does not avoid coalescence with neighbouring settlements - Strategic 

Objective 12 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 No objection in principle however Phase 1 of the site has ground contamination 

issues. Southam Road does not have any issues. Plan should acknowledge 

importance of Banbury 2 which is a key deliverable site.  

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 It would significantly add to problems created by increased traffic flows. Evidence 

supporting the early planned extension is out of date with junctions already at 

capacity. CDC missed opportunity to gain developer funding for a South East link road 

when approving the first phase. There is a need for a Southern Link Road. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 We are concerned with further coalescence with Bodicote.

Page 67

P
a
g
e
 1

0
7



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Banbury United Football Club need to re-sit in order to develop Canalside but 

consideration needs to be given to suitable bus service for supporters by bus from 

the town and the railway station. An alternative site could be found to the north east 

of the M40 junction.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Potential BAP habitat (Broadleaved woodland) around rugby ground. No Comment. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Possible access issue. Access through Bankside Phase 1 could cause capacity issues at 

A4260/Weeping Cross. Could be served by phase 1 bus service. New bullet points 

suggested - provision of bus terminus, walking & cycling connection with existing 

football club, transport assessment / travel plans. 

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Land east of Oxford Road is located in Bodicote Parish. BAN 4 to be renamed BOD 4 

and for this to count towards village Category 1 share of 250 units. The remaining 

land should be removed. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Should include a new principle: 'An archaeological survey will be required due to 

close proximity to areas of potential archaeological interest'.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 The impact on SO11 should not be positive given the lack of a requirement for an 

archaeological assessment prior to any development.

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Keep. 

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Policy Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Require on-site police presence. Additional bullet point under key infrastructure. 

Mr Brian Little Local History Group Policy 

Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2

*Concern at the inadequacy of road infrastructure. With no southern entry to M40 

pressure on the old Oxford Road and Bankside itself maybe intolerable. 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Paragraph C.141 Strategic Development: Banbury 5 - 

North of Hanwell Fields

Policy provides no explanation of how the aspiration for a single masterplan will be 

deliverable. Site in multiple ownership. Plan should consider what the masterplan 

should include and require a design brief. 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Paragraph C.141 Strategic Development: Banbury 5 - 

North of Hanwell Fields

Object - Site Allocation can deliver significantly more units than 400 and still deliver 

high quality design. 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Support allocation Banbury 5 in principle. 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Object - Site Allocation can deliver significantly more units than 400 and still deliver 

high quality design. Total site area is 25.5ha equating to approximately 540 units. 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Employment - does not define 'rural fringe' 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Infrastructure - scale of urban extension is insufficient in size to support employment 

and services without viability analysis. 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Key site Specific Design and Place Shaping Principles - Unclear if this is a aims and 

objectives list or validation checklist. 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Objections to some principles; limitation to what is achievable in respect of layout.

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields New footpaths, accessibility & travel plans  - should be subject to three tests of CIL

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields street frontages - more detail on flexibility required, soft urban edge - this should not 

automatically mean low density.

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Strategic landscaping - should make reference to the importance of strategic 

landscaping in relation to topography - Policy should enable flexibility 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Rights of way - should enable flexibility for diversions of paths 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Green Buffer - should be proportionate and take into account topography 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Public open space - policy should enable commuted sums to the LPA for formal 

recreation. Sums could be spent on other facilities such as existing playing fields on 

Hanwell Fields or Drayton school rather than be provided on site as s106/Developer 

Contributions. 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Green Infrastructure - should be subject to three tests of CIL

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Archaeological survey - provide further detail in relation to specific heritage assets 

Page 68

P
a
g

e
 1

0
8



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Lighting - criteria are over onerous for outline application 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Public art - vague 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Climate change - Should comply with Building Regulations only 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Surface water - further detail required in regards to future management / maintained 

preference 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields SuDS Strategic FRA is not an appropriate assessment to inform the location of SuDs 

within an allocation. Policy should be flexible. 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Extra care homes - Policy lacks detail and justification in respect of need, viability and 

delivery. A definition should be provided together with evidence of delivery by RSLs 

or equivalent. 

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields 3 existing dwellings - buildings have no special justification for their inclusion .

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Agricultural land quality - detailed management plan appears unnecessary until a 

detailed design is included. Retention of good quality soil could be conditioned and 

providing allotments within a s106 at a later stage. 

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Site at Warwick Road features equally if not better in sustainability terms as Hanwell 

Fields. No new evidence to justify de-allocation at Warwick Road. Site should be 

allocated for housing development. 

Mr John Davis Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields There has been no consultation with residents who were told there would be no 

further housing

Mr John Davis Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The boundaries of the site have been changed

Mr John Davis Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Schools are already full 

Mr John Davis Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields No extra facilities are planned

Mr John Davis Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Flooding is already a problem at Warwick Road and Dukes Meadow 

Mr John Davis Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The development combined with other development in the area will be too much for 

services and facilities

Mr John Davis Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The Horton hospital will not be able to cope meaning people will have to travel to 

Oxford

Mr John Davis Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields There is enough housing for sale plus the permission at Bankside to enable demand 

to be met.

Mr John Davis Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields A lack of jobs means a lack of buyers

Mr John Davis Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Shops have closed and there is nothing for young people to do. 

Mr John Davis Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The planning of Banbury has become a complete fiasco.

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The site has been previously rejected by CDC and Planning Inspector due to being 

unsustainable and this is still the case. There are no plans for education, no 

employment area within easy walking distance, no plans for health care, impacts on 

anti-social/policing issues, development north of Dukes Meadow Drive which is the 

northern Boundary of the town, demise of agricultural land, urbanisation of the 

gateway to Banbury with impact on the character of the landscape and outlook from 

Hanwell Fields and Hanwell village, changing of the 2 right of way footpaths.  

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fileds Principle of Banbury 5 supported. Housing numbers should be increased to 550. 

Delete reference to employment land. Object to single point of access. Object to 

community centre. Key criteria should be delivery / viability. 

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Object to policy as the inclusion of sites Banbury 2: East and West of Southam Road 

and Banbury 5: North of Hanwell Fields, and the exclusion of West of Warwick Road, 

have not been justified.  Contradicts the conclusions of the Draft Core Strategy on the 

relative sustainability of these sites.

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Altering the clear, defensible  urban boundary to the north of Banbury is not justified.  

The Plan does not explain how an effective, defensible long-term urban boundary will 

be provided, how Hanwell village and its rural setting will be protected, nor how the 

suggested Green Buffers will be achieved.  Moving the boundary requires justification 

and further detailed assessment.

Page 69

P
a
g
e
 1

0
9



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The Plan does not justify why development south of Salt Way would be more harmful 

than development to the north of Banbury.  The strategic decision to offer greater 

protection to the Salt Way area is highly questionable and needs proper justification 

and further assessment.

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields If the proposed housing sites to the north of Banbury are approved, there needs to 

be the strongest protection for Hanwell village and its setting and a well defined 

boundary with effective green buffers where appropriate.

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents SA Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Do not see how the overall conclusions on the sustainability of sites Banbury 2 and 

Banbury 5 can be reached on the evidence available.

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Strongly object to the policy. The Plan does not justify why Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 

(North of Hanwell Fields) are now included and West of Warwick Road is excluded. 

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The Plan does not justify why the clear, defensible boundary to the north of Banbury 

which now defines the limit of built development should now be significantly altered. 

Nor how the new edge will constitute an effective, defensible long term boundary, 

how this will protect Hanwell village and how the 'Green Buffers' will be achieved.

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Banbury 2 is less sustainable than other sites and create a poor environment for new 

housing. It is not clear that the detrimental visual impacts have been properly 

balanced. The site  is more suitable for long term employment. 

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The Plan does not justify a radical shift from the Draft Core Strategy 2010 and why 

development south of Banbury at Salt Way is deemed more harmful than the housing 

development proposed north of Banbury.

Mr Alan Jones Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Strongly object to the policy. The Plan does not justify why Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 

(North of Hanwell Fields) are now included and West of Warwick Road is excluded. 

Mr Alan Jones Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The Plan does not justify why the clear, defensible boundary to the north of Banbury 

which now defines the limit of built development should now be significantly altered. 

Nor how the new edge will constitute an effective, defensible long term boundary, 

how this will protect Hanwell village and how the 'Green Buffers' will be achieved.

Mr Alan Jones Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields

Mr Alan Jones Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Banbury 2 is less sustainable than other sites and create a poor environment for new 

housing. It is not clear that the detrimental visual impacts have been properly 

balanced. The site  is more suitable for long term employment. 

Mr Alan Jones Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The Plan does not justify a radical shift from the Draft Core Strategy 2010 and why 

development south of Banbury at Salt Way is deemed more harmful than the housing 

development proposed north of Banbury.

Mr Alan Jones SA Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Do not see how the overall conclusions of the SA of Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 can be 

reached on the evidence presented. There are serious issues about Banbury's long 

term capacity to expand given its topography and physical constraints. The 

sustainability of these sites is questionable and the potential mitigating measures 

needs further evidence and further careful assessment.

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Strongly object to the policy. The Plan does not justify why Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 

(North of Hanwell Fields) are now included and West of Warwick Road is excluded. 

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The Plan does not justify why the clear, defensible boundary to the north of Banbury 

which now defines the limit of built development should now be significantly altered. 

Nor how the new edge will constitute an effective, defensible long term boundary, 

how this will protect Hanwell village and how the 'Green Buffers' will be achieved.

Page 70

P
a
g

e
 1

1
0



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Plan does not justify th einclusion of East & West Southam Road. Site constraine dby 

noise, heritage and other environmental constraints. Adjoins industrial area to the 

south. Might be suitable for long term employment use. 

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Banbury 2 is less sustainable than other sites and create a poor environment for new 

housing. It is not clear that the detrimental visual impacts have been properly 

balanced. The site  is more suitable for long term employment. 

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields The Plan does not justify a radical shift from the Draft Core Strategy 2010 and why 

development south of Banbury at Salt Way is deemed more harmful than the housing 

development proposed north of Banbury.

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Extends development beyond new distributor road, which provides a clear boundary 

to development and would extend the over the local landscape ridge with impact on 

the Hanwell Village Conservation Area. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields No objection in principle however land to the North of Hanwell Fields sites on the 

ridge line and is therefore prominent in visual amenity terms. Banbury 2 is more 

discreet in landscape terms. Plan should acknowledge importance of Banbury 2 

which is a key deliverable site. 

Mr Wayne Neale Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Objection to Ban 5 on the grounds of being previously dismissed, public objection, 

unsustainable location, high commuting, no confirmed services, land is of high 

landscape value, Hanwell Filed was designed as the Urban edge, rights of way, loss of 

countryside

Mr Wayne Neale Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Concern at the lack of school provision at Ban 5 and wider. 

Mr Wayne Neale Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Concern at the lack of heath provision, e.g. Doctors Surgery

Mr Wayne Neale Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Concern at the lack of Retail provision e.g. shops 

Mr Wayne Neale Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Concern at the lack of community facilities

Mr Wayne Neale Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Limit of development previously agreed at Dukes Meadows Drive

Mr Wayne Neale Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Concern regarding traffic congestion and formation of rat runs

Mr Wayne Neale Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Loss in House values in Hanwell Field 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Accepts the need to meet housing delivery and bring forward additional sites to 

achieve this. However, development of additional areas should not take place instead 

Canalside and should not be implemented until the planned Bankside has been 

completed. The site is adjacent to a recently developed site and feel that it would be 

better to have a period of stability.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Primary schools will depend on housing mix, tenure and build rate. Spare capacity in 

other schools. Text should reflect that of Banbury 3. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Brown long-eared maternity roost and two semi-improved grassland fields present. 

Woodland to the north of BAN5 contains Natters Bat. Woodland should be retained. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Public transport services to other strategic sites. New bullet point; walking & cycling, 

transport assessment & plans. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields EH supports the key principles relating to the historic environment.

Page 71

P
a
g
e
 1

1
1



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Christopher Taylor Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Objects to the proposed development due to landscape and environmental impact, 

including the adverse impact of light pollution on the Hanwell Community 

Observatory.  It is not clear why the site is being proposed given that the site was 

previously refused permission and was only proposed as a reserve site in the draft 

Core Strategy.  The revocation of the South East Plan is imminent and when this 

happens the basis for the Plan's housing figures will disappear. Reference is made to 

previous representations made on the site by the objector.   

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Remove from Plan - Green Belt

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Remove from Plan. Traffic issues. Unsustainable location. Flooding risk. Visual 

sensitivities. 

Mr Brian Little Local History Group Policy Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields *Important to ensure Hardwick lost village and Hanwell do not lose their identity. 

Mr Alec Arrol Kennet Properties / Thames Water Policy Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 KPL continues to support this allocation. It plays and important role in meeting 

employment land requirements during the LP life time, as evidenced by the 

completion of its first phase.

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 Welcome key site specific design and place shaping principles. In particular bullet 

point 6. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 Site is locate close to Schedule Monument and ancient hedgerow that marks 

Oxfordshire / Northamptonshire county boundary. 

Mrs Rebecca Micklem BBOWT Policy Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 Despite the identification of potential habitat loss in the Sustainability Appraisal, it 

would appear that no ecological assessment of the area has been undertaken. This is 

needed to ensure that the policy is appropriate in terms of biodiversity impacts, to 

identify requirements for biodiversity protection, mitigation and enhancement, and 

to ensure compliance with NPPF paras. 109 and 165  

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40. Pleased to see that all built development will be rolled back outside modelled Flood 

Zone 3 in line with Level 2 SFRA.

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Barwood Developments Policy Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 Site should be developed to its maximum potential for B2 & B8 uses while 

maintaining flood mitigation measures. Policy should clarify land area where its 

states 6.3 ha net remaining. To ensure flexibility. Map attached. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 Supports the development of this site but would like to see a limit on B8 uses.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Policy Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 No further archaeological survey required. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 Banbury Sewage Farm has records of many rare species. New survey required. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 Question walking distance assumption. Poor public transport access. A road line has 

been safeguarded. Emphasis on improving pedestrian and cycling links to the railway 

station. New bullet point - transport assessment / travel plans. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 Need high value industry and not warehouse.

Mr Ed Barrett Turley Associates/ Scottish Widows / Scottish Widows Unit 

Funds Ltd

Policy Banbury 7 Strengthening Banbury Town 

Centre

Support principal of extending town centre boundary to include Spiceball 

Development Area.

Mr Ed Barrett Turley Associates/ Scottish Widows / Scottish Widows Unit 

Funds Ltd

Policy Banbury 7 Strengthening Banbury Town 

Centre

Plan is silent on future scale of retail and leisure development within Banbury Town 

Centre. Should include retail targets. 

Mr Chris Hone CPRE Banbury District Policy Banbury 7 Strengthening Banbury Town 

Centre

It needs to be ensured that development proposals in certain parts of the town do 

not compromise the sustainability of the town centre as a whole.

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Banbury 7 Strengthening Banbury Town 

Centre

Where there is a change of use from Less Vulnerable to More Vulnerable 

development in Flood Zones 2 and 3, need to consider flood risk to future users . 

Access and egress to be considered in line with Level to SFRA.

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 7 Strengthening Banbury Town 

Centre

Supports this policy and in particular residential uses above ground floor level.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 7 Strengthening Banbury Town 

Centre

Opportunities should be pursued for Green Infrastructure, SuDS & biodiversity in 

buildings. 

Page 72

P
a
g

e
 1

1
2



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 7 Strengthening Banbury Town 

Centre

Re-phase Canalside bullet. Banbury bus Station - text unclear. Redevelopment of the 

bus station should improve bus routeing and passenger waiting environment. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Banbury 7 Strengthening Banbury Town 

Centre

Would like to see a reference to the Conservation Area and listed buildings within 

this policy.

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 7 Strengthening Banbury Town 

Centre

Push ahead and improve car parking.

Mr Brian Little Local History Group 

Policy Banbury 7 Stregthening Banbury Town Centre *Should be leisure related and not retail led. Demand for a store would best be met 

within Castle Quay when the opportunity arises. 

Mr Brian Little Local History Group 

Policy Banbury 7 Stregthening Banbury Town centre

*The historic town centre must remain the primary focus of future tourism. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons Paragraph C.157 Strategic Development: Banbury 8 - 

Land at Bolton Road 

Reasoned justification for Banbury 8 does not acknowledge; multiple ownerships, 

land disposal, not deliverable, requirements for indoor sports provision & why it 

should be an exemplary demonstration with Policy BSD1-5. 

Mr Ed Barrett Turley Associates/ Scottish Widows / Scottish Widows Unit 

Funds Ltd

Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Should include retail floorspace target for Bolton Road. 

Ms Fiona Brereton Drivers Jonas Deloitte/Aberdeen Property Investors Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road This policy is supported.  However there should be recognition within the policy that 

viability should be taken into account when balancing competing policy 

requirements. Or alternatively viability should be considered as a stand alone policy 

elsewhere within the plan.

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Policy conflicts with NPPF Para 154  - Council should be transparent to the likelihood 

of using CPO powers.  

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Supported subject to Banbury Masterplan. 

Kirill Malkin Quod / Gala Leisure Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Gala Leisure own the leasehold for Land at Bolton Way until 2023 where they run a 

successful and commercially viable business for the last 13 years. No approach has 

been made to Gala Leisure in respect of alternatives sites or their requirements. The 

proposed indicative alternative site set out in the Bolton Road SPD is unsuitable for 

the their business needs, being a third the size and in a first floor location. Gala 

Leisure have no immediate intention to move. 

Kirill Malkin Quod / Gala Leisure Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Should no suitable relocation site be identified Gala Leisure would be forced to leave 

the Banbury Market with the associated economic impact - loss of 18 jobs. Proposal 

is contrary to aims of the NPPF and Sustainable Development. Policy is undeliverable 

without engagement with local businesses. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Support the principle of regenerating Land at Bolton Road. We would not like to see 

historic buildings demolished and would like to see links to the old town and Parsons 

Street. Needs to include car parking provision and a town centre supermarket which 

the town currently lacks. It presents the opportunity to develop historic outbuildings 

to the rear of Parsons Street.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Archaeological survey should be noted in Key Site Specific Design. Wording supplied. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Opportunities should be pursued for Green Infrastructure, SuDS & biodiversity in 

buildings. Green spaces will need to be managed in perpetuity with funding and 

delivery mechanisms considered. Bat survey required. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Amend bullet point 9. New bullet point - design of car park, travel plans / travel 

assessment. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road EH supports the key principles relating to the historic environment.

Mr Victor Smith Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Building any more shops, offices or industrial premises is not sustainable. Agree to 

the redevelopment of Bolton Road, Provision of additional shops out of town is 

wrong.

Mr Robert Tustain Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Support Bolton Road redevelopment. Suggest development includes a Supermarket, 

Theatre & Cinema.  Object to a Hotel proposal. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Include residential and underground car parking.

Page 73

P
a
g
e
 1

1
3



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Welcome inclusion of policy. Policy should recognise that viability should be taken 

into account when balancing competing requirements. Should viability form a stand 

along policy within the plan? 

Mr Brian Little Local History Group Policy Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road *Essential that there are links to the old town. 

Mr Ed Barrett Turley Associates/ Scottish Widows / Scottish Widows Unit 

Funds Ltd

Policy Banbury 9 Spiceball Development Area Inclusion of retail and leisure uses within Spiceball development area are considered 

to compliment town centre location. 

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Banbury 9 Spiceball Development Area In direct conflict with footnote 20 (page 24) of NPPF. Wording needs to change to 'A 

Flood Risk Assessment will be required for any future planning application' in line 

with NPPF requirements.

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 9 Spiceball Development Area Support Cultural Quarter . The town needs a site for a new library and facilities such 

as a theatre/cinema and art gallery. It needs to include car parking, probably on 

ground floor to prevent possible flood damage.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 9 Spiceball Development Area Opportunities should be pursued for Green Infrastructure, SuDS & biodiversity in 

buildings. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 9 Spiceball Development Area New bullet point - pedestrian & cycle route, sustainable modes of transport, 

transport assessment / travel plans. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 9 Spiceball Development Area Go ahead.

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 10 Bretch Hill Regeneration Area Support proposal that will assist in reducing high levels of  deprivation in western 

Banbury

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 10 Bretch Hill Regeneration Area Opportunities should be pursued for Green Infrastructure, SuDS & biodiversity in 

buildings. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 10 Bretch Hill Regeneration Area Green infrastructure. Unlike to deliver direct bus service. Bullet point 4 - amendment 

suggested. Review existing traffic calming measures. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 10 Bretch Hill Regeneration Area Go ahead - meet energy conservation.

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Paragraph C.170 Strategic Development: Banbury 

11 - Meeting the Need for Open 

Space, Sport and Recreation 

Support para C.119, C.170 & C.176 and the requirement for further Cricket Pitch 

provision. 

Ms Fiona Brereton Drivers Jonas Deloitte/Aberdeen Property Investors Paragraph 1.52 Banbury masterplan It is assumed the Banbury Masterplan will include retail capacity figures but these 

figures should be included in the Local Plan as well

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Paragraph C.176 Strategic Development: Banbury 

11 - Meeting the Need for Open 

Space, Sport and Recreation 

Support para C.119, C.170 & C.176 and the requirement for further Cricket Pitch 

provision. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 11 Meeting  the Need for Open Space, 

Sport & Recreation

Supports the identified deficiencies and the creation of a liner park north -south, and 

the relocation of Banbury United.

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Paragraph C.180 Strategic Development: Banbury 

12 - Land for the Relocation of 

Banbury United FC

Has traffic survey's been undertaken? Traffic problems at Bloxham Road & Banbury 

at Oxford Road.  

Mrs Vicky Aston Policy Banbury 12 Land for the Recreation of Banbury 

United FC

Support relocation of of Banbury FC & welcome further engagement. 

Mrs Jennifer Glynn Policy Banbury 12 Land for the Relocation of Banbury 

United FC

Object to the allocation of Banbury Football Club at Banbury 12 on the grounds that it 

does not respect the identity of Bodicote and will increase traffic. Suggest allocation 

is removed from the Plan and alternative location found. 

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Policy Banbury 12 Land for the Relocation of Banbury 

United FC 

Objection to the relocation of Banbury FC on grounds of unsustainable location and 

traffic congestion trough the town . Alternative site suggested between Station Road 

and the Motorway. 

Miss Heather Johnston Policy Banbury 12 Land for the Relocation of Banbury 

United FC

Objection to the relocation of Banbury FC on grounds of unsustainable location and 

traffic congestion trough the town . Alternative site suggested between Station Road 

and the Motorway. 

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Policy Banbury 12 Land for the relocation of Banbury 

United FC 

Possible redistribution of uses between Banbury 4. Allocation should be reflected in 

gross terms.

Mr Gerard McCrory Banbury Utd FC Policy Banbury 12 Land for the Relocation of Banbury 

United FC 

Promotes alternative site for Banbury United FC. 

Page 74

P
a
g

e
 1

1
4



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 12 Land for the Relocation of Banbury 

United

Banbury United Football Club need to re-sit in order to develop Canalside but 

consideration needs to be given to suitable bus service for supporters by bus from 

the town and the railway station. An alternative site could be found to the north east 

of the M40 junction.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 12 Land for the Relocation of Banbury 

FC

Potential BAP habitat (Broadleaved woodland) around rugby ground. No Comment. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 12 Land for the Relocation of Banbury 

FC

New location is not sustainable. Consider pedestrian & cycling links. 

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Policy Banbury 12 Land for the Relocation of Banbury 

FC

Re-label BOD 12 and not BAN 12. Concern at relocation of FC to the South of the 

town as will cause traffic congestion along Oxford Road. Suggest locating in the 

north. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 12 Land for the Relocation of Banbury 

FC

Go ahead.

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency

Paragraph 

C.181 Strategic Development: Banbury 

13 - Burial Site Provision in 

Banbury

Support the commitment to survey land to establish the suitability of ground 

conditions.

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Banbury 13

Burial Site Provision in Banbury

It must not be established in an area than this likely to have a negative impact on 

ground water.

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 13 Burial site provision in Banbury   TC would like to see an additional allocation of the field to the north of the cemetery 

for a cemetery extension. Noted that developer contributions will be sought towards 

costs but inflated land prices would make a negotiated sale improbable. Noted the 

intention of progressing this matter through the Local Neighbourhoods DPD but TC 

questions whether  this will have the same weight. Without and Strategic allocation 

CDC will need to use CPO powers as it did to acquire the original cemetery.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 13 Burial Site Provision in Banbury Native and local provenance planting and sowing should be encouraged within the 

landscape. 

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 13 Burial Site Provision in Banbury Needed. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Policy Banbury 14 Banbury Country Park TC supports the aspiration to provide a community woodland, Whilst this is highly 

desirable TC already manages a Country Park which is closer o the town for the 

benefit of Banbury residents, and this is pertinent to where future maintenance 

responsibility for the site might reside. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Policy Banbury 14 Banbury Country Park Archaeological survey should be noted in Key Site Specific Design. Wording supplied. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Banbury 14 Banbury Country Park Support. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Banbury 14 Banbury Country Park Site is not in a sustainable location. Text on pedestrian and cycling access to public 

transport services.  

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Banbury 14 Banbury Country Park Mention could be made of the Grade II listed lock and Lock Cottage at the north end 

of the proposed Country Park.

Mr Antony Watts Hanwell Fields Development Action Group Policy Banbury 14 Banbury Country Park Worthless. Support public footpaths only. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Section C.4 Kidlington Support approach at Kidlington given settlement size and market position. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Section C.4 Kidlington Plan should make decision in respect of re-development potential of Policy HQ site. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Section C.4 Kidlington Clarity required in respect of Stratfield Brake and evidence base - open space review. 

Amendments suggested. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Barwood Developments Section C.4 Kidlington Policy should set out a reasoned justification for the exceptional circumstances for 

the alteration of the green belt. Extent of Green Belt Review boundary is not 

supported by NPPF para 85 as it will need to be reviewed at the end of the 

development plan period & does not define a boundary using physical features. 

Approach excludes housing. Selective review should occur urgently and before 

submission of the Local Plan. 

Page 75

P
a
g
e
 1

1
5



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Section C.4 Kidlington Text that refers to Kidlington should appear in one location. Area of search for Green 

Belt review should be widened to include land at Begbroke Science Park. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Section C.4 Kidlington New issue; transport links between Oxford & Bicester, improving frequency and 

quality of bus service. Rename airport. Mention Water Eaton Parkway and the wider 

Evergreen project. 

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Section C.4 Kidlington Support business growth at Oxford Airport but believe that there should be 

restrictions on operations

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Section C.4 Kidlingon Is concerned about the traffic impact of more development at Langford Lane

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph C.188 C.4 Kidlington Update population figures.

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph C.188 C.4 Kidlington Population figure for Kidlington & Gosport is an underestimate. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph C.190 C.4 Kidlington Support. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph C.190 C.4 Kidlington Support proposed Kidlington Masterplan. Like reassurance that it will include an up 

to date reassessment of local housing need and review of all housing options and the 

housing target of 259 will be exceeded. Wording supplied. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph C.192 What Will Happen Where C.92 should refer specifically to Begbroke Science Park & not just Begbroke.  Object to 

the chosen approach at Kidlington in not releasing land from the Green Belt within 

the Local Plan but within subsequent DPD

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph C.192 What will Happen and Where Text suggestion. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph C.192 What will happen when and where Include housing need. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph C.193 What Will Happen Where Object to C.193 sentence does not make sense as Employment Allocations within 

inset area are already outside Green Belt and that second part of sentence is out of 

date. Text supplied. 

Mr Nik Lyzba JPPC / Oxford University Press Paragraph C.194 Strategic Development: Kidlington 

1 - Langford Lane Technology Park 

Concern policy only applies to 'some additional employment land' in Kidlington 

rather than requirement identified in ELR for between 9.3 - 11.3 ha. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Paragraph C.195 Strategic Development: Kidlington 

1 - Langford Lane Technology Park 

Object to C.195, Oxford Technology Park is needed now. 

Mr Tom Ashley Turnberry Planing Ltd / Oxford University Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Report sets out history and background of Begbroke Science Park, provides a brief 

overview of the Universities development strategy, discusses in more detail the 

recent and future growth in scientific research at the University, explains why 

begbroke Science Park is considered the University to be the most appropriate 

location for scientific research, explores the scale of the development that could be 

required at the Science Park during 2031 to support the growth of scientific research 

& draws together the analysis for 'exceptional circumstances' in support of a small 

scale review of the Green Belt boundaries around the Science Park.  

Mr Tom Ashley Turnberry Planing Ltd / Oxford University Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Small Scale Green Belt review for Langford Lane should be expanded to include 

Begbroke Science Park. Wording supplied. Reflecting future demand for expansion & 

'exceptional circumstances'. 

Mr Will Cobley Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Blenheim Palace Estate Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Support small scale review of Green Belt, NPPF Para 83. Policy and supporting text 

should be amended to a proper review to ensure boundaries are defensible in the 

long term. 

Mrs Suzi Coyne Suzi Coyne Planning / Worton Farms Ltd Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Land at Worton farm  should be removed from the Local Green Space designation 

(Green Belt?). 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Object to Policy Kidlington 1, policy does not bring forward much needed 

employment land quickly enough. Text supplied. Bullet points within policy 

supported. 

Page 76

P
a
g

e
 1

1
6



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Support selective green belt review at Kidlington for employment land but review 

should also include a review of residential options.  Concern at unsustainable 

commuting. Paragraph B.33 should introduce a restriction on the scope of growth of 

Oxford Airport. Consideration of design issues; height of buildings, connectivity 

within Kidlington Masterplan. Amendments suggested. 

Mr Alan Jones Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Support policy and small scale local review of the Green Belt at Langford Lane  / 

London Oxford Airport. Securing high quality employment land in this location may 

alleviate pressure from the more valuable inner Green Belt. 

Mr Nik Lyzba JPPC / Oxford University Press Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Support limited review of Green Belt at Langford Lane. And should be reflected in 

Policy ESD14 and tie in with Policy Kidlington 1.  Area of search should be widened to 

include the North West in order to not restrict unreasonably the area subject to 

review. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park It does not mention the site of the proposed station.

Mrs Rebecca Micklem BBOWT Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park The proposal is adjacent to Rushy Meadows SSSI, and overlaps with Langford 

Meadows LWS and Lower Cherwell Valley CTA. However, it would appear that no 

ecological assessment of the area has been undertaken. This is needed to ensure that 

the policy is appropriate in terms of biodiversity impacts, to identify requirements for 

biodiversity protection, mitigation and enhancement, and to ensure compliance with 

NPPF paras. 109 and 165  

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park No issues in principle with the policy and welcome the provision of SuDS. However, 

an opportunity to reduce flood risk has been missed. This could include de-culverting 

or diverting Thrupp Ditch.  Remediation of contaminated land could have been 

included as a key design principle.

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Barwood Developments Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park De-allocate Land identified at Kidlington from the Green Belt & allocate as 

Employment. Land is available, suitable and achievable for employment 

development. Map attached. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Minor wording amendments.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Many species present - Barn Owl, Hobby & Kingfisher, Otter, Water Vole. Rushey 

Meadows SSSI adjoins south-western boundary of proposed Green Belt review. 

Lower Cherwell Valley Conservation Target Area and Lowland Meadow BAP Priority 

Habitat. Direct or indirect damage should be considered. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Connectivity with village centre, Oxford, Bicester and Water Eaton Parkway. New & 

existing development. Improvements needed to public transport, walking & cycling. 

Bus service should be developed to all day - growing demand of enterprise in area. 

Mr Roger Smith Savills / The Bulford trust Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Support small scale review of the Green Belt on the northern edge of Kidlington as 

this provides opportunity for residential development & to address open space 

deficiency.  Area of search should be expanded to the east of the Langford Lane 

Technology Park and East of Banbury Road (north of the Moors). 

Mr Neville Surtees Barton Willmore / J A Pye Ltd Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Support aim to undertake a Limited Green Belt Review. The scope of review area 

needs to be increased in size to present realistic options for development. Omission 

Site: Land to the South of Langford Locks is suitable for employment land given its 

sustainable location, constrained day railway line & Canal, containment, urban 

character, non-historic setting & need for employment land. Land would form a 

continuation of employment land to the north and logical extension. Will reduce 

commuting. Limited Green Belt Review area is removed from Central Kidlington. 

Page 77

P
a
g
e
 1

1
7



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Policy Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Support principle of structured framework. 

Mr Tom Ashley Turnberry Planing Ltd / Oxford University Paragraph C.197 Strategic Development: Kidlington - 

Strengthening Kidlington Village 

Centre

Support reference to Begbroke Science Park. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph C.197 Strategic Development: Kidlington 

2 - Strengthening Kidlington 

Village Centre

Object to overestimation of additional comparison goods retail floor space.

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph C.197 Strategic Development: Kidlington 

2 - Strengthening Kidlington 

Village Centre

Amend para C.197 to reflect the increased allowance made in projections to tackle 

under-representation of comparison floor space and any identified future over 

trading  at Kidlington. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph C.199 Strategic Development: Kidlington 

2 - Strengthening Kidlington 

Village Centre

Support extension to Kidlington Village Centre.

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Policy Kidlington 2 Strengthening Kidlington Village 

Centre

Mention the key objective to secure the space behind buildings in the High Street for 

a vehicle delivery road so that the High Street is eventually pedestrianised. Cross 

reference to Kidlington Infrastructure requirements.

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Policy Kidlington 2 Strengthening Kidlington Village 

Centre

Support Kidlington Masterplan. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Policy Kidlington 2 Strengthening Kidlington Village 

Centre

Opportunities should be perused for Green Infrastructure, SuDS & biodiversity in 

buildings. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Kidlington 2 Strengthening Kidlington Village 

Centre

Policy should mention links to public transport. Link to Langford Lane & Airport is 

poor to Water Eaton & Oxford. 

Mr Tom Ashley Turnberry Planing Ltd / Oxford University Paragraph C.200 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in the Villages and Rural Areas

Support reference to Begbroke Science Park. 

Sir Tony Baldry MP Other C.5 Our Villages and Rural Areas A number of houses are left to be built in the villages overall. As part of the Local Plan 

process villages should be encouraged to carry out their own neighbourhood 

planning exercise. It is going to be more sensible for housing numbers to be met by 

villages volunteering to take new houses rather than housing numbers being imposed 

upon them.

Sir Tony Baldry MP Other C.5 Our Villages and Rural Areas Thought could be given to whether it is  possible , with the support of Parish Councils, 

for planning permission to be granted in villages for new housing on the 

understanding that such affordable housing is for people with local connections.

Colonel Terry Byrd Merton Parish Council Section C.5 Our Villages and Rural Areas Proposals are too prescriptive and will seriously inhibit Neighbourhoods/Parish Plans 

and disable localism.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Section C.5 Our Villages and Rural Areas Section duplicates Kidlington & Airport. 

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Section C.5 Our Villages and Rural Areas It is not clear if Gosford is treated as a separate entity to Kidlington 

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Section C.5 Our Villages and Rural Areas Infilling is fine but the street scene and layout needs to be taken into account

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Section C.5 Our Villages and Rural Areas The Parish have attended Parish workshops and these have assisted in forming 

policy. They do not consider that the preparation of the Parish Neighbourhood plan is 

needed and will accept that the Local Plan will fulfil its requirements. 

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Section C.5 Our Villages and Rural Areas It is considered that there is not enough in the Plan to protect village services and 

facilities. 

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Section C.5 Our Villages and Rural Areas Agree in principle with the overall strategy. 

Page 78

P
a
g

e
 1

1
8



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mrs Margaret 

Elizabeth

Mason Paragraph C.201 Meeting the Challenges of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in the Villages and Rural Areas

Support the proposal to improve mobile phone and internet services in the village 

and therefore improve home working in rural communities. 

Mr Peter Burrows Adderbury Conservation Action Group Paragraph C.202 Meeting the Challenge of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in the Villages and Rural Areas

Large estates on the edge of as yet unspoilt conservation areas/historic villages e.g. 

Adderbury, would destroy the appeal of the area to the tourist industry.

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Para graph C.202 Meeting the Challenge of Building 

Sustainable Villages and Rural 

Areas

Supports the aim of living villages 

Mrs Margaret 

Elizabeth

Mason Paragraph C.202 Meeting the Challenges of 

Developing a Sustainable Economy 

in the Villages and Rural Areas

Support the provision of Sport and Recreation facilities in rural areas 

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph C.205 Meeting the Challenge of Building 

Sustainable Villages and Rural 

Areas

There should be a presumption in favour of retaining village services

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Paragraph C.205 Meeting the Challenge of Building 

Sustainable Villages and Rural 

Areas

Will sports facilities, present and proposed meet the lack of sports facilities in 

Banbury?

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Paragraph C.206 Meeting the Challenges of Building 

Sustainable Villages and Rural 

Areas

Objection to strategy as it seeks to direct growth only at the existing sustainable 

settlements at expense of smaller villages. Wording supplied. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph C.208 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in Our 

Villages & Rural Areas

Oxford Meadows SAC located 4km from Langford Lane Technology Park. 

Mrs Margaret 

Elizabeth

Mason Paragraph C.208 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in the 

Villages and Rural Areas

Developments should include adequate off-road parking 

Mr Peter Burrows Adderbury Conservation Action Group Paragraph C.209 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in our 

Villages and Rural Areas

The continual pressure for the development of the larger estates will only exacerbate 

the need for travel.

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph C.209 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in Our 

Villages & Rural Areas

Support mixed development and sustainable travel. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology Paragraph C.209 Meeting the Challenge of Ensuring 

Sustainable Development in our 

villages & rural areas

Ref to enhancing the quality of our natural, built and archaeological heritage. 

Mrs Jennifer Glynn Paragraph C.210 Our Vision and Strategy for Our 

Villages and Rural Areas 

Object to coalescence of Bodicote. 

Mrs Ruth POWLES Kirtlington Parish Council Paragraph C.210 Our Vision and Strategy for Our 

Villages and Rural Areas

Plans fails to meet infrastructure requirements in Bicester including East West Rail 

and Project Evergreen 3.  Suggest out of town rail station. Improvements to A34. 

Concern at rat runs. 

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Paragraph C.210 Our Vision and Strategy for Our 

Villages and Rural Areas 

Disagree that villages are protected - Bodicote is over run. 

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Paragraph C.211 Our Vision and Strategy for Our 

Villages and Rural Areas

Wroxton is a conservation village, any development will take place in the 

conservation area, what restrictions will that put on developments?

Mrs Ruth POWLES Kirtlington Parish Council Paragraph C.211 Our Vision and Strategy for Our 

Villages and Rural Areas

Plans fails to meet infrastructure requirements in Bicester including East West Rail 

and Project Evergreen 3.  Suggest out of town rail station. Improvements to A34. 

Concern at rat runs. 

Page 79

P
a
g
e
 1

1
9



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph C.214 What will happen and where Development should not be allowed on the basis of arguments that would enable 

services to be maintained.  The community should be consulted.

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Paragraph C.214 What will happen and where Objection to strategy as it seeks to direct growth only at the existing sustainable 

settlements at expense of smaller villages. Wording supplied. 

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Paragraph C.216 What will Happen and Where No explanation provided for the reduction in the overall level of growth in the Rural 

Areas. Rural areas require sufficient housing to support new homes and provide 

choice. 

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Paragraph C.216 What will Happen and Where No explanation provided for the reduction in the overall level of growth in the Rural 

Areas. Rural areas require sufficient housing to support new homes and provide 

choice. 

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph C.218 What will Happen and Where Support this paragraph on design

Mr Peter Burrows Adderbury Conservation Action Group Paragraph C.220 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

The evidence base, methodology and assessment of each village has not been set out 

to enable comparisons to be made.

Colonel Terry Byrd Merton Parish Council Paragraph C.220 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

CRAITLUS  only covered 33 settlements of approximately 90. Why not all of them  or 

any other number of them?. The Bicester SE relief road will have a significant effect 

for Merton but CRAITLUS would not be revised.  The paragraph makes no mention of 

maintaining or improving Sustainability.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph C.220 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

Para C220 does not set out the methodology and assessment to derive the  village 

growth and  to enable comparison.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph C.220 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

Para C220 does not set out the methodology and assessment to derive the  village 

categorisation and  to enable comparison. SHLAA has not been made available.

Mrs Karen Jones Paragraph C.220-232 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

Strongly Support this policy. Agree that the Status of Hanwell should be Category C.

Mr Mike Robinson Carter Jonas LLP / Hill Residential Paragraph C.220-C.239 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

Chesterton scored higher(26 out of a score of 30) than seven of the 'Category A' 

villages and should be included as a Category A village. 

The amount of housing in Group 3 should be increased to meet rural needs in 

suitable villages. 

A greater proportion of development should be allowed where there is support from 

the Parish Council .

Mr Peter Burrows Adderbury Conservation Action Group Paragraph C.221 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

There is no attempt to evaluate and compare services in different areas e.g. a service 

which is available 12 hours a day 5 days a week compared to 2 hours twice a week.  

They should be rated differently.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph C.221 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

The use of CRAITLUS is questioned because it does not demonstrate the availability in 

time or distance of village service provision / facility only that provision may exist. 

The SHLAA is still not available to comment on and inform for the production of a 

Neighbourhood Plan.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph C.221 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

CRAITLUS  and SHLAA  have been used to inform  village categorisation. The SHLAA is 

still not available to assess accuracy and compliance and CRAITLUS has been 

questioned as some  of the methodology used could deliver flawed data.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph C.222 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

States that the principle of categorisation is well established and if this is the case 

where is the methodology?

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph C.222 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

States that the principle of categorisation is well established. Just because this was 

used for previous plans does not make it appropriate now. 

Cllr Ken Atack Cropredy Ward Paragraph C.223 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

Pleased to see the concept of clusters has remained within the plan. This 

arrangement has been acknowledged by Parish Councils as a sensible way forward.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph C.225 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

Do not support Addebury as a Category A village.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph C.225 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

There is insufficient evidence base to include Bloxham in the Category (No through 

bus service to Oxford and lack of public transport makes accessing the hospital  

provision costly).

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Paragraph C.225 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

Wroxton is a Cat B village. Does this preclude minor development?

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph C.225/230 Policy Villages 1: Village 

categorisation

Lower Heyford should be removed from the list of 'clustered' villages as it is not 

linked to Steeple Aston.

Page 80

P
a
g

e
 1

2
0



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Paragraph C.225 Policy Villages 1: Village 

Categorisation 

Bodicote is included in a Category A village - suitable for minor development or 

infilling, however allocated 400 dwg. Village categorisation is confusing. 

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Support the inclusion of Deddington as a Category 1 settlement.

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Questions if there is a need for the policy as Policy villages 2 indicates which are the 

most sustainable villages. 

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation The 'type of development' specified is ambiguous and it is not clear if this relates to 

development within the village or on the edge. The term minor development is open 

to interpretation. 

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation There is no justification for the reduction in the amount of dwellings in the rural areas 

and focusing too much development in Bicester will force local people away the rural 

areas to find homes. 

Ms Suzanne Bangert Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Mr & Mrs P  Ashworth Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Policy should allow more minor development in category C villages. 

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Policy should be amended to include a reference to the need for new allocations to 

be provided as extensions to villages. No consistency with Policy Villages 2. 

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Support approach based on sustainability however it should be recognised that 

improvements to Category A village swill support surrounding smaller settlements. 

Mr Roger Cooke Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation The policy is unsound because their classification is fundamentally wrong and hence 

the numbers allocated are wrong. It has not taken into account sustainability and 

ability to cope with extra development.

Mr Russell Crow Barton Willmore / Taylor Wimpey UK Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Hook Norton is more sustainable than other settlements in Group 2 and is as 

sustainable as Deddington  which is considered a Group 1 settlement in Policy 

Villages 2. Hook Norton has better site options for future growth in term so limiting 

impact on character of villages and locating growth near to existing facilities. The 

CRAITUS assessment of total network travel time and distance contains significant 

assumptions and is inconsistent with ONS data. Promote Hook Norton to Group 1 or 

take a higher proportion of growth in Group 2. 

Mrs Jennifer Glynn Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Development proposed at Bankside Phase 1 conflicts with policy for small scale infill 

development.  

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Reasons set in C.220 to C222

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Reasons set in C.220 to C222

Ms Theresa Goss Milcombe Parish Council Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Milcombe is down as category B  and the satellite villages have no bearing on this 

village. Infilling and conversions are noted in the policy but never put into practice.  

Bloxham is noted as category A - minor development - but the PC would don't call 

minor the development that has already taken place in Bloxham.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Reasons set in C.220 to C222

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Disagree with reference to Bloxham, as previously stated - flawed methodology used 

Mr Peter Hardman Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Object to the categorisation of the Sibfords as Category A when previous report by 

Craitilus suggests they are category villages B or C. Suggest that Category A status is 

widened to encompass the villages of Epwell, Swalcliffe, Tadmarton, Shutford and 

Shenington. 

Mr Andrew Hickman Middleton Stoney Parish Council Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Unclear as the reasoning behind the categorisation of Middleton Stoney within 

Category B since the village has no shop, primary school, no new employment  

prospects and is only served by a subsidised bus service which could be discontinued 

at any time. Should revise category to reflect sustainability.

Page 81

P
a
g
e
 1

2
1



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mrs Miranda Rogers Stansgate Planning / P S Coles Will Trust Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Assessment require for the settlement hierarchy of settlements. Why forms of 

development are proposed e.g. infill, conversions ect. Policy should include housing 

identified for local need, particularly where it contributes to improvements within 

the settlement. Shenington should be included in a Category A village. Shenington is 

a sustainable location with many services. Only large village in the North West of the 

District. Other smaller settlements have been promoted above it. High house prices. 

Miss Sian Holland Stansgate Planning / Brasenose College Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Support inclusion of Cropredy as a Category A village. Good range of services and 

facilities. Important northern centre for Claydon, Wardington, Mollington, Prescote, 

Williamscote and Great Bourton. Support provision of new housing for growing 

population, aging population and smaller households. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Remove Kidlington. 

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Wroxton is a Cat B village. Does this preclude minor development?

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents Policy Villages 1 Village Categoriasation Strongley support. Agree Hanwell Village should be category C and suitable for no 

new development except conversions. It is a small village of 120 houses, few facilities 

and porr trasnport links. Not a sustainable location for growth. 

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Support Hanwell village as a category C settlement, one of the least sustainable as it 

has few services and poor transport. 

Mr Alan Jones Policy Villages 1 Village Categoriasation Strongley support. Agree Hanwell Village should be category C and suitable for no 

new development except conversions. It is a small village of 120 houses, few facilities 

and porr trasnport links. Not a sustainable location for growth. 

Mrs Karen Jones Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Strongly Support this policy. Agree that the Status of Hanwell should be Category C.

Mr Rob Linnell Savills / Trinity College Oxford Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Support the identification of Wroxton as a Category B village. Wroxton has a good 

range of services and facilities and it is a sustainable village in close proximity to the 

main service centre of Banbury.

Mrs Helen Metcalfe Fritwell Parish Council Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Fritwell should not be included as a Category A village. It is the smallest in its group 

and does not have the services and facilities the other villages have. The 

infrastructure is at capacity and the CRAITILUS report does not include Fritwell within 

the top 10 villages assessed as being within 30 minutes of key services. It is included 

in an area of poor accessibility and has a score of a Category B village.

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Messrs Markham Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Policy should extent to previously developed land. Too restrictive for example 

infilling within Category B and conversions in Category C. For example would prevent 

redevelopment in Charlton or Ottmoor.  

Ms Louise Morton Quadrant Town Planning Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Restricting development to conversions in category 3 villages is not justified as the 

evidence base shows a need for more affordable housing

Ms Louise Morton Quadrant Town Planning Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation The policy does not allow smaller Brownfield sites to come forward in villages to 

meet Brownfield land targets

Ms Louise Morton Quadrant Town Planning Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation The Policy is contrary to the NPPF which promotes a presumption in favour of 

development 

Ms Louise Morton Quadrant Town Planning Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation The policy is a shift away from the adopted local plan.

Ms Louise Morton Quadrant Town Planning Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Support is given for the Craitlus Study which uses sustainability criteria

Ms Louise Morton Quadrant Town Planning Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation No consideration is given to the positive environmental effects of development in 

villages

Mr Mary Mulley Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation The Sibfords should not be a category 1 village as other villages in the group are 

much larger

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Support Adderbury as a Category A service centre village. 

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Support Ambrosden as a Category A service centre village. 

Page 82

P
a
g

e
 1

2
2



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr George Reynolds Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Smaller category 3 villages should receive more development to help maintain 

services and facilities. A lack of new dwellings will lead to larger extensions or 

demolition of existing dwellings.  Infilling should be permitted in these villages. 

Mr Mike Robinson Carter Jonas LLP / Hill Residential Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Chesterton scored higher(26 out of a score of 30) than seven of the 'Category A' 

villages and should be included as a Category A village. 

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Minns Estates Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Category B villages should be recognised as suitable for minor development 

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Minns Estates Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Enslow should be linked with Bletchingdon due to the proximity of the villages and 

should be a category B village 

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Minns Estates Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation There is a need for affordable housing in the rural areas which  will not be met by this 

policy

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Minns Estates Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Infilling is likely to result in no more than 3 dwellings and therefore affordable 

housing will not be secured under Policy BSC3.  

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Minns Estates Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation In order to be justified and effective Policy villages 2 should be amended to permit 

minor development in category 2 villages

Mr Roger Smith Savills / The Bulford trust Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Kidlington should not be classified as a Category A village as it is the Districts third 

largest settlement with a population of 13,000 and a sustainable location for 

development. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Category not justified by evidence base. Object to reference of only minor 

development. Highest levels of growth should be directed at the most sustainable 

locations.  

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons /  Mintondale Development Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation The categorisation of villages within Group A is not justified. 

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Better define 'Minor development'

Mrs E Walker One Property Group Phase 2 Planning and Development Ltd Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Policy should include minor development for the satellite villages under category B. 

Helping to provide a balanced housing strategy which will take into account local 

housing needs in rural areas a and helping people to stay local. 

Sutton Berry Morris Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Policy is too restrictive. Category B settlements should reflect the Adopted Local Plan 

Category 2 settlements listed in Policy H14. Policy should include an exception for 

awkward development in uncomforting locations such as farm years, haulage yard or 

commercial businesses.

Mrs Kiran Williams BNP Paribas Real Estate UK Ltd / Trustees of Norman Collision 

Foundation

Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation Support Ambrosdon as a category A village and supporting paragraphs C.225, C.226 & 

C.229. 

Ms Wrigley Julie Savills/ plumb Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation *Milton residents do not use facilities in Bloxham or Adderbury, they go to Banbury

Ms Wrigley Julie Savills/ plumb Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation *Infilling is generally not supported as it leads to a loss of valuable spaces but small 

scale affordable may be a possibility.

Ms Wrigley Julie Savills/ plumb Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation *Milton would like to remain a cat 3 village

Ms Wrigley Julie Savills/ plumb Policy Villages 1 Village Categorisation *There should be a mechanism for the village to put forward small scale one of sites 

for affordable housing

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph C.226 Policy Villages 1: Village 

Categorisation

The character of the village should be considered in the design of new development

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph C.227 Policy Villages 1: Village 

Categorisation

The character of the village should be considered in the design of new development

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Paragraph C.227 Policy Villages 1: Village 

Categorisation

Minor development should have regard to the size and role of the village. 

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Paragraph C.227 Policy Villages 1: Village 

Categorisation

Minor development should have regard to the size and role of the village. 

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Paragraph C.227 Policy Villages 1: Village 

Categorisation

Reinstate village envelope policy. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph C.228 Village Categorisation Infilling needs a wider definition to allow for sensible and acceptable minor additions 

to Category B villages.

Sutton Berry Morris Paragraph C.228 Policy Village 1: Village 

Categorisation

Definition of infill should be more flexible to include sites within the established built 

framework. 

Page 83

P
a
g
e
 1

2
3



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Colonel Terry Byrd Merton Parish Council Paragraph C.229 - C330 Policy Villages 1: Village 

Categorisation

Is Blackthorn significantly closer to Ambrosden than Merton is?

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph C.229 Policy Villages 1: Village 

Categorisation

Adderbury cannot act as a service centre because of lack of facilities, in both suitable 

locations and provided at times to meet the time scales of its residents.

Mr Paul Morley Cropredy Parish Council Paragraph C.230 Policy Villages 1: Village 

Categorisation

The approach taken for housing development is both realistic and proportional. It is 

an improvement on the 2006 draft paper. The idea of clusters was raised by Cropedy 

PC in 2009/10 and seems to have been adopted.

Mr Paul Morley Cropredy Parish Council Paragraph C.233 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth Across the Rural Areas

The approach taken for housing development is both realistic and proportional. It is 

an improvement on the 2006 draft paper. The idea of clusters was raised by Cropedy 

PC in 2009/10 and seems to have been adopted.

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph C.234 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth Across the Rural Areas

Welcomes the amendment in numbers since the draft Core Strategy

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph C.234 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth Across the Rural Areas

Minor change. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph C.234 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth Across the Rural Areas

Housing numbers in Group 2 should be allocated pro rate to the size of each village. 

Equal share would have a disproportionate impact on smaller villages.

Mr Paul Morley Cropredy Parish Council Paragraph C.234 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth Across the Rural Areas

The approach taken for housing development is both realistic and proportional. It is 

an improvement on the 2006 draft paper. The idea of clusters was raised by Cropedy 

PC in 2009/10 and seems to have been adopted.

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Paragraph C.234 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth Across the Rural Areas

Bodicote is located in Group 1 - does 500 target include existing permissions at 

Cotefield Farm and 33 Oxford Road. 

Mr Peter Atkin Pegasus Group / Prudential Pensions Ltd Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

More development should be allocated to the larger villages

Ms Suzanne Bangert Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Mr & Mrs P  Ashworth Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Policy should include a numerical range and be less prescriptive. 

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Disagree with approach - SHLAA out of date. No SA undertaken of distribution 

approach. Concern at the reliance of Neighbourhood Plans to allocate land. Bloxham 

is fourth largest settlement - should take greater proportion of growth.  Omission site 

- Tadmarton Road, Bloxham. Capacity for 55 dwg including open space, new car park 

for school. Unclear how village target for 1000 dwg has been reached in absence of 

SHMA. Unclear if Bodicote target has been met by Bankside allocation?    

Mr Phil Clark Bloor Homes Ltd (South Midlands) Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas 

Overall scale of growth can't be known until more detailed assessments have been 

undertaken. Local Plan should not cap development in rural areas. Supporting text 

should set criteria for suitable, sustainable and available sites to come forward. 

Mr Roger Cooke Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Development in Category 1 villages should be limited unless there is proven ability to 

cope with more houses whilst the majority of the houses should be built in smaller 

villages in conjunction with providing them facilities. If a village is considered too 

small, it should be clustered with nearby villages to take a number of houses and 

improved facilities between them.

Mr Russell Crow Barton Willmore / Taylor Wimpey UK Ltd Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

By using evidence supplied to Policy BSC.1 which shows a requirement for 24,1999 

dwg across the plan period relating to economic aspirations and same distribution of 

growth, Group 2 villages should receive 273 dwg rather than 189 a 44% increase. 

Given concerns over availability of sites, a greater reliance on Hook Norton is 

supported. Support approach to divide growth 'broadly equally' amongst villages. 

Concern at the robustness of CRAITLUS.  

Mr Keith Dixon Launton Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distributing growth in the rural 

areas

Growth of 83 dwellings per village is not minor development for Launton as it will be 

a 5.6% increase in development

Page 84

P
a
g

e
 1

2
4



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Keith Dixon Launton Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distributing growth in the rural 

areas

There is a loss of a presumption against extending the village envelope.  In Launton 

there is no land available for development so it would have to be on the edge.

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Policy Villages 2 Policy Villages : Distributing 

Growth across the rural areas

Welcomes the amendment in numbers since the draft Core Strategy

Mr Robert Gardner Policy Villages 2 Villages and Rural Areas Support policy and approach to distribute growth broadly equally between 

settlements. 

Mrs Jennifer Glynn Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Bankside Phase 2 will take up almost all the Rural Villages quota of 500 dwg. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Housing Across the 

Rural Areas

The under note to the table should be the date just after the last statutory plan i.e. 

2001 for equitable purposes.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Housing Across the 

Rural Areas

The under note to the table should be the date just after the last statutory plan i.e. 

2001 for equitable purposes.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Housing Across the 

Rural Areas

The date used for counting completions places villages such as Bloxham that have 

had substantial development at a disadvantage when  the allocation of the 500 is to 

occur.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Housing Across the 

Rural Areas

Disagree see previous notes

Mr Peter Hardman Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Housing Across the 

Rural Areas

Object to the allocation of housing between villages in Group 2. This should not be 

divided 'broadly equal' but should be 'proportionate' to the existing settlements

Mr Andrew Hickman Middleton Stoney Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

The precise allocation for villages in Group 3 will be set out in a Local 

Neighbourhoods Development Plan. Given that development will be restricted to 

infilling and conversions, there will be a large element of speculation as to the 

properties and sites that are included and thus cannot be precision in the figure. Is it 

merely aspiration?

Mrs Miranda Rogers Stansgate Planning / P S Coles Will Trust Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Policy lacks justification for housing numbers, split and settlement hierarchy. 

Assessment of outstanding housing requirement and sustainability of villages. To 

include Shenington. Consideration of individual housing targets for each settlement. 

Breakdown to be left to Neighbourhood DPD. Reference to Windfall to be deleted as 

separate allowance. Housing targets should inform housing allocations. Danger that 

housing allocations will be met in one village to the detriment of others. 

Miss Sian Holland Stansgate Planning / Brasenose College Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Policy lacks justification for housing numbers, split and settlement hierarchy. 

Assessment of outstanding housing requirement and sustainability of villages. To 

include Shenington. Consideration of individual housing targets for each settlement. 

Breakdown to be left to Neighbourhood DPD. Reference to Windfall to be deleted as 

separate allowance. Housing targets should inform housing allocations. Danger that 

housing allocations will be met in one village to the detriment of others. Figure for 

Cropredy should be increased beyond indicative 38. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Remove Kidlington. 

K W Janes Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural areas

Objects to new homes at Bloxham as this is not sustainable development

K W Janes Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural areas

There is little information in the Plan about the villages

K W Janes Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural areas

The bus service is not adequate to travel to work and elsewhere 

K W Janes Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural areas

Bloxham has received a lot of development since 2006 and the services are full and  

fail frequently 

K W Janes Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural areas

More development will lead to more congestion

K W Janes Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural areas

Incorrect information about schools is being used to make decisions

Page 85

P
a
g
e
 1

2
5



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Vic Keeble Chesterton Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth across the 

Rural Area Object to the use of shared housing numbers between grouped villages. Numbers 

appear arbitrary. Numbers should be replaced with more flexible targets and 

Kidlington should be excluded from the list of smaller villages. 

Cllr Mike Kerford-Byrnes The Astons and Heyfords Ward Policy Villages 2 Distributing Housing Growth 

Across the Rural Areas

Include a further caveat in the rural allocations to stating that they will be limited by 

the availability of necessary supporting infrastructure. Finmere and Fritwell will be 

particularly disadvantaged by the 'broadly equal' division of allocations under Group 

2.

Mr Mike Kerford-Byrnes Finmere Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distributing Housing Growth 

Across the Rural Areas

The availability of adequate infrastructure should be a factor in the allocation of 

houses in rural areas. The Plan should reflect this as a policy.

Mr Mike Kerford-Byrnes Finmere Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distributing Housing Growth 

Across the Rural Areas

Housing provision within a village group should not be allocated 'broadly equally'. 

The Policy should reflect that the allocations are approximately proportional to the 

relative population of the villages within the group.

Mr Rob Linnell Savills / Trinity College Oxford Policy Villages 2 Distribution Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Support the allocation of 259 dwellings to the Group 3 villages which includes 

Wroxton. Trinity Collage is liaising with Wroxton Parish Council and CDC to draw up 

proposals. The precise number of dwellings to be allocated to Wroxton will be 

confirmed vias the Local Neighbourhood Plans DPD as per LP paragraph C.236.

Trinity College reserves the right to submit further representations on the Local Plan 

should the number of dwellings to Group 3 be altered.

Mr Colin Macklin Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Concern raised in respect of traffic impact of proposed new development on the 

village of Aynho. Environmental impact has not been considered. 

Mrs Margaret 

Elizabeth

Mason Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Affordable housing should be included within village Plan housing target. Object to 

over allocation of housing at Steeple Ashton. 

Mrs Helen Metcalfe Fritwell Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across Rural 

Areas

The total number of homes should not be distributed 'broadly equally'. Group 2 

varies in terms of size, population, services , infrastructure, accessibility and 

opportunities for employment. Fritwell should not accommodate the same number 

of homes as larger villages. Home numbers should reflect  on a pro-rata basis the 

village size, population, quality and sustainability of services, infrastructure and 

accessibility.

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Mr Roger Freeman Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Policy should clarify that scale of growth is a minimum figure. Distribution can't be 

uniform. Additional sites maybe acceptable subject to environmental constraints. 

Mr Paul Morley Cropredy Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

The approach taken for housing development is both realistic and proportional. It is 

an improvement on the 2006 draft paper. The idea of clusters was raised by Cropedy 

PC in 2009/10 and seems to have been adopted.

Mr Mary Mulley Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

There will be  a loss of character of Sibford and its surroundings

Mr Mary Mulley Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

New development will be out of character with the village

Mr Mary Mulley Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

People will have to travel long distances on minor roads to work

Mr Mary Mulley Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Sibford is the other side of the Banbury to the motorway

Mr Mary Mulley Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

There will be an increase in traffic contributing to global warming

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas 

Support overall number of homes in Villages 2 but consider housing distribution 

should be allocated to individual villages through a more detailed assessment. Policy 

should reflect sites. In advance of Local Neighbourhoods DPD - Policy should set out 

criteria for sustainable development. 

Page 86

P
a
g

e
 1

2
6



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Jonathan Porter Barton Willmore / Archstone Land Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas 

Support policy Villages 2 and its aim to commit substantial housing to the villages. 

Consider the precise number of homes to be allocated to an individual village cannot 

be known until a detailed assessment ha seen undertaken. Policy should make it clear 

that the overall figure and distribution of homes are approximate and subject to 

availability of suitable sites. Concern that Policy y could stifle growth. In advance of 

Local Neighbourhoods DPD - Policy should set out criteria for sustainable 

development. 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Object to Kidlington category as a village, Kidlington has larger more complex housing 

needs , 259 dwellings is not based on sufficient evidence about present and future 

housing needs and an underestimate of its population. 

Mr George Reynolds Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Villages are not equal in size nor sustainability. Object to diving 'Broadly equally'. Lack 

of SHLAA & Neighbourhoods DPD. 

Mr Mike Robinson Carter Jonas LLP / Hill Residential Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

The amount of housing in Group 3 should be increased to meet rural needs in 

suitable villages. 

A greater proportion of development should be allowed where there is support from 

the Parish Council .

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

How many houses have already been built within the villages? Should group 1 be split 

to sub divide Launton & Ambrosden. 

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Berkeley Homes (Oxford & Chiltern) Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Villages identified in Group 3 are not capable of delivery growth allocation of 259 

dwg. With exception of Kidlington, Weston on Green & Yarnton remaining villages 

are Category B and only suitable for infilling and conversions. The first three are 

restrict by Green Belt. Council is lacking a SHLAA. Unclear if Bankside development 

counts towards Bodicote figure.  Group 3 village growth should be distributed to 

Group 1 as it is more sustainable. Group 3 should instead form windfall allowance. 

Mrs Jennifer Spear Ambrosden Parish Council Policy Villages 2 Distribution of Growth across the 

Rural Areas

Object to Distribution off Growth figures in rural areas. Between 2050-2550 dwg are 

to be built in Ambrosden as opposed to 500 split between 6 parishes. Description 

should be village not parish. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Object to inclusion of Bloxham in category - clearly of larger scale. Policy is not 

flexible and relies on windfall sites. Not based on evidence - settlements should be 

individually assessed. 

Mr Oliver Taylor Framptons /  Mintondale Development Ltd Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth across the 

Rural Areas

Group A allocation of 500 dwg not based on evidence or delay at Banbury / Bicester. 

There should be no upper limit of growth at Villages. 

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Unclear the limits to growth that apply to the three inset villages, although Kidlington 

is dealt with at Begbroke & Yarnton it is less clear.  

Mrs Sarah Caroline Turner Policy Villages 2 Distribution of growth across the 

rural areas

Object to scale of housing growth proposed in category A. Suggest figure is reduced 

and demand directed towards the NW  Bicester Eco-town. or distributed amongst 

other villages. 

Ms Alison Wright Savills for the Estate of the Late J W Tustain Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth Across the 

Rural Areas

Support allocation of Milcombe as a Category 3 village. Object to an equal 

distribution of growth of 22 dwg between the 12 group 3 villages. Suggest land 

adjacent to Oak Farm, Milcombe has capacity for 40 dwg. Forthcoming 

Neighbourhood Development Plan should allocate site.  Plan attached. 

Ms Wrigley Julie Savills/ plumb Policy Villages 2 Distributing Growth to the rural 

areas

*The growth at Adderbury and Bloxham is not matched by facilities and 

infrastructure, the policy should require this.

Mr Peter Burrows Adderbury Conservation Action Group Paragraph C.235 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth across the Rural Areas

It should be clearly demonstrated why Adderbury should be a category A village.  If 

this is to be the case, Adderbury should not accommodate more development than 

any other category A village.  The policy is contrary to the NPPF which indicates it is 

up to local people to develop a Neighbourhood Plan in conformity with the Local 

Plan.

Sam Croft RPS Planning & Development / Banner Homes Ltd  / Rowland 

Bratt

Paragraph C.235 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth across the Rural Areas

Clarification sought on the quantum of development at bankside attributed to 

Banbury and Bodicote. In particular when considering rural housing numbers. 

Page 87

P
a
g
e
 1

2
7



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph C.235 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth across the Rural Areas

Contrary to the principles in the Localism Act and the NPPF in which it is for local 

people to develop a Neighbourhood Plan in general conformity with the strategic 

policies of the local plan.

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph C.235 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth across the Rural Areas

There is confusion with the terminology 'Local Neighbourhoods Development Plan 

Document which will be interpreted as the Neighbourhood Development Plan 

produced by villages.  Neighbourhood Development Plans allow villages to state the 

number of dwellings and where they are to be accommodated in the village.

Mrs Valerie Russell Bodicote Parish Council Paragraph C.235 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth Across the Rural Areas

What is the timetable for the Local Neighbourhood DPDs?

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph C.236 Distributing Growth in the Rural 

areas

The figures should be equally divided between the villages

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph C.236 Distribution of Housing Across the 

Rural Areas

There is confusion with the terminology 'Local Neighbourhoods Development Plan 

Document which will be interpreted as the Neighbourhood Development Plan 

produced by villages.  Neighbourhood Development Plans allow villages to state the 

number of dwellings and where they are to be accommodated in the village.

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Paragraph C.236 Policy ESD.10: Protecting and 

Enhancement of Biodiversity and 

the Natural Environment

No evidence supplied for the equal distribution of growth between settlements. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Paragraph C.238 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth Across the Rural Areas

Local Plan will not 

Mrs Trish Redpath Kidlington Parish Council Paragraph C.238 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth Across the Rural Areas 

Text should make reference to reassessment of housing need and review of all 

housing developments. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph C.239 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth Across the Rural Areas 

Ignores that the last adopted plan was in 1996 and as consequence ignores the 

contribution of some villages where development took place prior to 2011.The date 

should be the least statutory plan i.e. 2001

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph C.239 Policy Villages 2: Distributing 

Growth Across the Rural Areas 

The start date should be taken from 13th of December 2004, last statutory Plan at 

CDC.

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Para graph C.241 Policy Villages 3: Rural Exception 

Sites 

Support the provision of Rural Exception sites  

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Policy Villages 3 Rural Exception Sites Support the provision of Rural Exception sites  

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy Villages 3 Rural Exception Sites Supported

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy Villages 3 Rural Exception Sites Agree

Mr Rob Linnell Savills / Trinity College Oxford Policy Villages 3 Rural Exception Sites The policy is largely consistent with the advice in NPPF to allow cross subsidisation 

with open market housing. However, there is no basis for the 25 % threshold of open 

market homes. It is recommended that the policy refers to an 'element of affordable 

housing' rather than having a fixed amount in line with the requirement for flexibility  

in paragraph 50 of the NPPF. 

It is recommended that the policy is amended to allow for schemes supported by the 

local community to deliver facilities and services as well as affordable housing.

Mrs Jennifer Spear Ambrosden Parish Council Policy Villages 3 Rural Exception Sites Support policy. Ability for small scale market housing to support viability of rural 

exception sites should be retained. Does not address self build and serviced plots. 

Policy should encourage self builds. Definition of affordable housing should be 

extended to include subsidised low cost sale, entry level housing for sale, private 

rented accommodation & intermediate. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Policy Villages 3 Rural Exception Sites Delete 'Within or'. New rural exception sites policy should apply beyond settlement 

boundaries. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Paragraph C.248 Policy Villages 4: Meeting the 

needs for Open Spaces, Sport and 

Recreation.

The statement of an evidence base does not accord with the population general view.

Page 88

P
a
g

e
 1

2
8



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph C.248 Policy Villages 4: Meeting the 

needs for Open Spaces, Sport and 

Recreation.

There is no evidence submitted or referenced to substantiate this statement.

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Table Table 12 Rural Sub Areas: Open Space Will any increased sports facilities in Banbury be supplemented by proposed facilities 

in the rural villages.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy Villages 4 Meeting the needs for Open 

Spaces, Sport and Recreation.

The policy doesn't take into account sports played by the female population.

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy Villages 4 Meeting the needs for Open 

Spaces, Sport and Recreation.

Agree - subject to qualification previously mentioned

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Policy Villages 4 Meeting the needs for Open 

Spaces, Sport and Recreation.

The rural north shows no reference to hockey pitches, netball courts, or to tennis 

courts.

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Policy Villages 4 Meeting the Need for Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation

Minor Amendment

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Policy Villages 4 Meeting the Need for Open Space, 

Sport & Recreation 

Will any increased sports facilities in Banbury be supplemented by proposed facilities 

in the rural villages.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Villages 4 Meeting the Need for Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation 

Green Infrastructure should include linear routes and green corridors for village sand 

rural areas. 

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy Villages 4 Meeting the need for Open Space, 

Sport and Recreation

Small plots are costly to maintain

Mrs Jennifer Spear Ambrosden Parish Council Policy Villages 4 Policy omits Ambrosden under provision of open space. While either are a number of 

facilities within the Parish these are all controlled by the MOD and are not available 

for public use. Two small LEAFs, no open space and no facilities within the school. 

Policy should be amended to provide additional provision. 

Cllr Theresa Goss Bloxham Parish Council Paragraph C.250 Meeting  the needs for Open 

Spaces, Sport and Recreation.

This again references the DPD as the point of reference rather than a NDP.

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Paragraph C.257 Policy Villages 5: Former RAF 

Upper Heyford 

Further development should be explored to make the site more sustainable 

recognising the planned development at Upper Heyford

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Paragraph C.257 Policy Villages 5: Former RAF 

Upper Heyford 

The Plan should comply with NPPF and increase housing supply recognising that the 

sites at Bicester will not be deliverable quickly 

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Para C.257 Policy Villages 5: Former RAF 

Upper Heyford 

The Plan should allow for more development at Upper Heyford.

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph C.257 Policy Villages 5: Former RAF 

Upper Heyford 

Delete final sentence. Upper Heyford is an unsustainable site and the current 

development was only permitted in order to preserve the heritage assets. Make clear 

that this development is set within strict limits and will not be expanded.

Mr Steven Pickles West Waddy ADP Paragraph C.257 Policy Villages 5: Former RAF 

Upper Heyford 

Support commitment to review the potential to accommodate development at Upper 

Heyford, subject to improvements to transport links and social infrastructure. 

Mrs Vicky Aston Sport England Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford Object as policy as it does not make reference to existing sports facilities at RAF 

Heyford. 

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford The Plan should allow for more development at Upper Heyford and there should be 

an early review

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford More development should be located at Upper Heyford

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford The Policy is not positively prepared and is unsound. All employment uses should be 

allowed on the site not just high quality allowing for the re-use of existing buildings.

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford The policy is repetitious regarding public transport use and development respecting 

the conservation area

Page 89

P
a
g
e
 1

2
9



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Paul Burrell Pegasus Group / Dorchester Group Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford The requirements on the site should be reduced and the policy should say 'a primary 

school or other school as may be appropriate'

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore / Bovis Homes Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford Supporting inclusion of site for approx 760 dwg with supporting infrastructure, 

primary school and community, recreation and employment opportunities. Welcome 

possible extension of site beyond 2031. 

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford We are pleased that the need for remediation of contamination for any further 

significant development has been addressed.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford Amend bullet points. Wording supplied. 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford EH supports the reference to the historical interest of this former airfield.

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford Support. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy Villages 5 Former RAF Upper Heyford Supported

Ms Rhianon Boulton Turley Associates / Western Power Distribution Paragraph D.1 The Infrastructure Delivery Plan Western power own a number of strategic electricity distribution circuits in the 

District which they would normally expect developers to pay to relocate if needed

Ms Rhianon Boulton Turley Associates / Western Power Distribution Paragraph D.1 The Infrastructure Delivery Plan Western power would normally seek to retain the position of certain electricity 

circuits 

Ms Rhianon Boulton Turley Associates / Western Power Distribution Paragraph D.1 The Infrastructure Delivery Plan There are no restrictions in terms of the position of new development and its 

overhead lines but advise that these are taken into account

Ms Rhianon Boulton Turley Associates / Western Power Distribution Paragraph D.1 The Infrastructure Delivery Plan WPD should be consulted about development proposals

Mr Jack Moeran Environment Agency Paragraph D.1 The Infrastructure Delivery Plan Pleased with the IDP. However, wish to reiterate that water infrastructure must be in 

place before development coming forward.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Education & early Intervention Services Section D Infrastructure Delivery Plan Unclear what private sector partners are? Builders or education services? Does not 

mention special education. Nursery provision should be 'normally' supplied in new 

primary schools. No mention of youth facilities or Children centres. Why is education 

provision proposed at Kidlington when no housing is proposed?

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Section D Infrastructure Delivery Plan No comment. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Appendix D.0 Kidlington & Rural Areas Public rights of way. New bullet walking & cycling. LTP3 Policies CW1-CW5. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Appendix D.1 Infrastructure Plan Bicester Under Park & ride; add developers and Bicester Village as partners. Under East West 

Rail add Chiltern Railways & OCC as partners. Under Evergreen 3 add OCC as partner. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Appendix D.1 Banbury Include public transport - what level of detail appropriate? 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Appendix D.1 Kidlington Amend Access to Oxford with Northern approaches to Oxford. London Oxford Airport 

is not the responsibility of OCC - regulated by DFT & CAA. Include public transport.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Appendix D.1 Rural Areas Include public transport. 

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Paragraph D.2 Infrastructure Delivery Plan Object to the plan as it is reliant upon a temporary Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) 

and that the infrastructure requirements would be superseded by the final IDP.  The 

IDP should take account of John Harman's report and the NPPF.

Page 90

P
a
g

e
 1

3
0



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Section D.4 The Infrastructure Delivery Plan Developer contributions are required to maintain appropriate level of policing for 

new and existing population. Should refer to police infrastructure. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Paragraph D.9 The Infrastructure Delivery Plan Support definition of 'Priority' & 'Less Critical'

Mrs Vicky Aston Sport England Policy INF1 Infrastructure Suggest sport and infrastructure is added to list of infrastructure in Policy INF 1 

Infrastructure. 

Ms Carmelle Bell Thames Water Policy INF1 Infrastructure The policy should be amended to include 'utilities' in the list of infrastructure 

requirements. This is supported by paragraphs 156 and 162 of the NPPF.

Whilst the levels of growth in the LP are not considered to be unmanageable, 

infrastructure upgrades will be required (Bicester in particular) and developers 

should work with Thames Water to draw up water and drainage strategies. The exact 

scale and location will be determined once there is a clear phasing plan.

Mr David Coates Policy INF1 Infrastructure Consider Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) contains insufficient costing information. 

It is unclear the relationship between the IDP, the developer contributions SPD and 

the Community Infrastructure Levy. (Suggested amendments supplied)

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Policy INF1 Infrastructure Support the requirement for development proposals to demonstrate that 

infrastructure requirements can be met

Mr Chris Gaskell SSE Power Distribution Policy INF1 Infrastructure At this stage SSEPD provide only general guidance. Connections for new development 

can be provided subject to cost and timescale. Where existing infrastructure is 

inadequate, the costs of any upstream reinforcement would normally be apportioned 

between developer and DNO (Distribution Network Operator. Maximum time-scales 

in these instances would not exceed around 2 years and should not impede delivery 

of any proposed housing development. SSEPD have already begun the process of 

undertaking reinforcement works in the Bicester area to provide significant additional 

electrical capacity which would be available in 3-4 years. 

Existing overhead lines can remain in place. Where this is not practicable agreement 

will be needed with SSEPD prior to submission of a planning application.

Mrs Jennifer Glynn Policy INF1 Infrastructure Concern of electricity blackouts caused by power station closures. 

Ms Theresa Goss Adderbury Parish Council Policy INF1 Infrastructure Supported

Cllr Timothy Hallchurch MBE Policy INF1 Infrastructure Concern relating to the retention of local pubs, shops and some local businesses. A 

number of local examples quoted. 

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Policy INF1 Infrastructure Policy INF1 does not address the key issues of viability and cost in the preparation of 

the Local Plan. The Plan should be revised to take account of viability testing for Local 

Plans by John Harmon and the NPPF requirements.

Mr Chris Hone CPRE Banbury District Policy INF1 Infrastructure Large housing sites within urban areas must be provided with effective infrastructure 

to ensure their overall sustainability, and there must be an effective partnership 

between the Council and other relevant authorities to secure this, set up at an early 

stage of the planning process.

Mr Gareth Jones Policy INF1 Infrastructure The plan is seeking to address deficiencies for indoor sport and recreation. Future 

facilities need to meet the challenges of population growth, expectation and demand  

pressures. The representation details the specific need of facilities for a number of 

sports.

Mr Vic Keeble Chesterton Parish Council Policy INF1 Infrastructure Plan lacks a credible Infrastructure Delivery Plan. No mention of the North Relief 

Road. Howes Lane and Lords Lane are totally inadequate. 

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP Policy INF1 Infrastructure No viability assessment of sites. No delivery mechanism for the Country Park. Gaps in 

evidence. Additional consultation required in respect of Infrastructure. 

Page 91

P
a
g
e
 1

3
1



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Anthony Powell Highways Agency Policy INF1 Infrastructure Plan is not clear about funding or delivery of key transport schemes noted within the 

document. Concern that IDP is only in Draft. Should be finalised at this stage. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations Policy INF1 Infrastructure Support approach. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport Policy INF1 Infrastructure Amend bullet point 2. 

Mr Carl Smith Gosford and Water Eaton Parish Council Policy INF1 Infrastructure There should be a CiL and Charging schedule which deals with flood defences, 

parking management, highway improvements, improvements to sport management, 

maintaining Stratfield Brake footbridge across the Oxford Canal and along with other 

necessary items

Mr Laurence Todd Policy INF1 Infrastructure There should be supporting Infrastructure to new housing development

Mr Laurence Todd Policy INF1 Infrastructure The developers and companies such as Chiltern railways should pay contributions 

towards Infrastructure

Mr Neil Williams Policy INF1 Infrastructure The local roads cannot take any more traffic.

Mr Neil Williams Policy INF1 Infrastructure The school, doctors surgery and dental surgery are all at capacity. There needs to be a 

review of local services before housing is built. More services will be needed

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Policy INF1 Infrastructure Developer contributions are required to maintain appropriate level of policing for 

new and existing population. Policy wording to be amended to reflect police 

infrastructure. 

Ms Rachael Blakey Bucknell Parish Council Table Table 13 Infrastructure Plan: Bicester Masterplan has not considered how energy, water and sewage needs of new industry 

and housing are going to be met. 

Mr Colin Cockshaw Table Table 13 Infrastructure Plan: Bicester Education - 

Mr Vic Keeble Chesterton Parish Council

Table Table 13

Infrastructure Plan: Bicester Support rational behind park and ride provision at Bicester. Query if South East Relief 

Road will access the Park and Ride facility. Recommend a footpath is made for local 

residents at Chesterton to access site and the footpath / cycle way is extended to 

connect other villages. 

Mr David Keene David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates Table Table 13 Infrastructure Plan: Bicester IDP contains no costings. No cost for Canalside or the relocation of existing 

employment uses or Banbury FC. Plan should be supported by a robust IDP. 

Mrs Ruth POWLES Kirtlington Parish Council Table Table 13 Infrastructure Plan: Bicester Plans fails to meet infrastructure requirements in Bicester including East West Rail 

and Project Evergreen 3.  Suggest out of town rail station. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Waste Management Table Table 13 Infrastructure Plan: Bicester Support reference to Bicester RE-use and Sustainable Living Centre. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology Table Table 13 Infrastructure Plan: Bicester IDP lacks reference to ecology and Green Infrastructure.  Amendment supplied. 

Mr Charles Routh Natural England Table Tables 13-16 Infrastructure Plan Advise adequate consideration for the delivery of the natural environment 

aspirations of the Plan within tables 13-16.

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Table Table 13 Infrastructure Plan: Bicester Agree that infrastructure is critical and should be provided prior to development. 

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Table Table 13 Infrastructure Plan: Bicester Reference to park and ride facility originally intended for North West Bicester 

Residents and not wider. Land has already been transfer to Oxfordshire CC - no 

longer a requirement in policy. Further clarity required. 

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Table Table 13 Infrastructure Plan: Bicester Support reference to police infrastructure. Under current status add 'to maintain an 

appropriate level of service', additional floor space required at Bicester Police Station 

to accommodate impact of growth, 

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Table Table 14 Infrastucture Plan: Banbury Object to Table 14. Does not reflect viability. 

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning Table Table 14 Infrastructure Plan: Banbury Support proposed housing trajectory for land at West of Bretch Hill. 

Page 92

P
a
g

e
 1

3
2



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Table Table 14 Infrastructure Plan: Banbury Support reference to police infrastructure. No Plans to relocate Thames Valley Policy 

HQ from Kidlington. Additional floor space required at Banbury Police Station to 

maintain appropriate level of service and impact on growth. 

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Table Table 15 Infrastructure Plan: Kidlington No Plans to relocate Thames Valley Policy HQ from Kidlington. Delete from table. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Table Table 16 Infrastructure Plan: Rural Areas Mention the Free School.

Mrs Ruth POWLES Kirtlington Parish Council Table Table 16 Infrastructure Plan: Rural Areas Plans fails to meet infrastructure requirements in Bicester including East West Rail 

and Project Evergreen 3.  Suggest out of town rail station. Improvements to A34. 

Concern at rat runs. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Environment & Energy Strategy Team Section E.1 Monitoring Arrangements Monitoring targets should be positively worded.  E.g. Permissions granted contrary to 

EA advise and AONB lost to development. 

Mr Charles Routh Natural England Section E.1 Monitoring Arrangements Monitoring indicator 'Area of biodiversity habitat/number of species' should show 

clearly what it is measuring. Advise that a pragmatic but meaningful indicator is 

chosen.  Amend Indicator 'Amount of AONB lost to development' to 'Permissions 

granted contrary to AONB advice'.

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Section E.1 Monitoring Arrangements Consistent under  supply of housing. 20% buffer should apply.  

Ms Helen Lease RPS / Thames Valley Police Section E.1 Monitoring Arrangements Proposed monitoring is insufficiently flexible. New monitoring section that stipulates 

that any policy objective that is failing should be reviewed and changes made to the 

Plan. 

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph E.6 The Monitoring Framework Supports this paragraph

Mr Alasdair Jones Marrons / Hallam Land Management Paragraph E.6 The Monitoring Framework Housing monitoring should be measured against the trajectory and policy targets for 

Banbury & Bicester. Combining monitoring areas risks not having a five year housing 

land supply and consequently growth being redirected to rural areas and not 

Banbury. Windfall target should be broken up between Banbury, Bicester and the 

Rest of the District.  Wording supplied. 

Ms Julia Edwards Corylus Ltd Paragraph E.9 The Monitoring Framework Objects that villages are grouped as they need to be looked at on a village by village 

basis

Mr Geoff Bolton Berrys / Gleeson Developments Ltd Paragraph E.10-E.12 Building  Sustainable Communities The Plan does not contain contingency measures in the event that strategic housing 

sites do not come forward within the planned timescales. The deliverability of sites 

has not been supported by the required evidence and the Plan should not proceed 

without publishing a SHLAA update, Infrastructure Plan and a viability assessment 

and there should be then an opportunity for submitting representations.  Have 

concerns with the deliverability / timescale of the following sites: Banbury 1, Banbury 

2 and Banbury 4. 

Cllr James Macnamara The Astons and Heyford Ward Paragraph E.14 Building Sustainable Communities Coordinating the number of new schools will require serious commitment to the 

county School Organisation Stakeholder Group.

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Paragraph E.16 Theme Three - Ensuring 

Sustainable Development

New indicator to monitor Green Belt loss. 

Mr Geoff Bolton Berrys / Gleeson Developments Ltd Table Table 17 Proposed Housing Trajectory The Plan does not contain contingency measures in the event that strategic housing 

sites do not come forward within the planned timescales. The deliverability of sites 

has not been supported by the required evidence and the Plan should not proceed 

without publishing a SHLAA update, Infrastructure Plan and a viability assessment 

and there should be then an opportunity for submitting representations.  Have 

concerns with the deliverability/timescale of the following sites: Banbury 1, Banbury 

2 and Banbury 4. 

Page 93

P
a
g
e
 1

3
3



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Mr J Phipps Map 5.2 Key Proposals: 

Bicester

 Key Proposals: Bicester  The LP contains no evidence why it is necessary to identify land as green buffer to 

the east of the allocation for North West Bicester and therefore is not justified. The 

LP is not consistent with national policy as it does not contain a criteria based policy 

against which any development on a 'green buffer' - a locally designated site will be 

judged. This frustrates the delivery of a developable site for housing which is needed 

to improve the supply  of housing in the District.

Ms Sarah Hamilton-Foyn Pegasus Group / Persimmon Homes - 1 of 3 Table Table 17 Housing Trajectory Support housing trajectory - Hanwell Fields. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith Table Table 17 Proposed Housing Trajectory Update to reflect Kidlington allocation.

Ms Chloe Jones Boyer Planning Table Table 17 Proposed Housing Trajectory Support the use of Greenfield sites to meet housing need. 

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd Table Table 17 Proposed Housing Trajectory Housing trajectory is supported in principle - in particular early delivery of Banbury 2. 

Greater need for housing in Banbury. 

Mr Steven Neal Boyer Planning / Redrow Homes & Wates Developments Table Table 17 Proposed Housing Trajectory Housing trajectory is not realistic. Period between 2016 - 2022 is unlikely to deliver a 

rate of 100 dwg per annum. Early deliver concerns with Graven Hill and North West 

Bicester Eco-town. East Bicester is capable of early delivery. 

Mr Tom Whild Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Countryside Properties (Bicester) Ltd Table Table 17 Proposed Housing Trajectory Object to proposed housing trajectory delaying development at North West Bicester 

until 2022/2023 and after the completion of phase 1 South West Bicester. No 

capacity or infrastructure constraints to prevent development from beginning as 

early as September 2014 subject to planning application process being successful. 

Expect phase 2 to start well before the conclusion of phase 1. Sites can be managed 

as one. Housing trajectory in Plan differs from trajectory in Masterplan. Delivery rate 

should be raised from 75dwg pa to 80. 

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Table E.2 Proposed Housing Trajectory Plan does not cover requirement for a 5-year housing land supply or trajectory. Plan 

has not met housing target since 2006 - requirement for 20% buffer brought forward 

in the plan period. 

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Table E.2 Proposed Housing Trajectory Completions to commence within exemplar site in 2013/14. For wider site, 

occupation to begin in 2017/18 rising to 150 per annum once exemplar is fully 

occupied. Construction estimated to begin in 2015/16. 

Ms Gemma Brickwood Turley Associates / Sainsbury Table E.3 Proposed Employment Trajectory Bicester Business Park estimated employment floorspace (46,200 sqm) does not 

match extant outline planning permission (50,250 sqm). 

Mr Colin Clark Banbury and Cherwell Green Party Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Plan should be supportive of other CDC strategies & be holistic. Plan should cross 

refer to Housing Needs Estimate and Low Carbon Strategy. Welcome a risk analysis of 

Plan. Welcome emphasis on sustainability - safeguarding green spaces & biodiversity, 

intention to walk and cycle, self build. Plan should be considered in the context of 

other neighbouring plans. 

Mrs Maureen Cossens Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Insufficient evidence of how cleaned water from sewage works will be dispersed. 

Increasing flood risk from River Ray.  Proposed attenuation measures (Reed beds and 

Ponds) offer inadequate protection. Suggest new sewage works with different 

outflow area. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Add following documents to evidence base; RSS (May 2009), Ove Arup's Report 

Economic and Social Impacts of a Potential Eco-town at Weston Otmoor (Jan 2009), 

Oxford Technology Park: The Compelling Case (Dec 2009) & (Oct 2012)  &A Small 

Scale Local Green Belt Review for Oxford Technology Park (forthcoming). 

Mr Rob Linnell Savills / Trinity College Oxford Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Not ware of any published SHLAA in the District. The LP could be found unsound in 

that is not consistent with NPPF paragraph 159. SHLAA should be published prior to 

examination of the LP to justify the number of dwellings in the rest of the District.

Page 94

P
a
g

e
 1

3
4



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base See comment 1.3

Ms Cathleen Nunn Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Plan based on a lack of evidence. 

Ms Cathleen Nunn Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base SFRA is out of date. 

Ms Ellen O'Grady Defence Infrastructure Organisation Appendix Appendix 3 Procedural: consultation & 

evidence

Given the introduction of fundamental and significant changes at a late stage, the 

Council should have afforded another consultation stage. The process followed does 

not comply with para. 2.4 of the SCI.  The following documents were not available to 

the public: Affordable Housing Viability Assessment Update 2012, Retail Study 

Update 2012, Strategic Housing Land Viability Assessment 2012, and Strategic 

Housing Market Assessment 2012. The lack of accessible information is not in 

compliance with para. 6.6 of the SCI.

Mr Anthony Powell Highways Agency Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Concern that Integrated Transport and Land Use Studies for Banbury, Bicester and 

the rest of Cherwell Rural Areas are out of date. Questions regarding the package of 

infrastructure measures needed for each study area remaining outstanding. 

Mr Anthony Powell Highways Agency Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Plan should provide clarification as to the operation of M40 J11 and whether the 

proposed development in the district can be accommodated on the key junction that 

provides access to Banbury. 

Mr Anthony Powell Highways Agency Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Content that M40 Junction 9 can mitigate development at Graven Hill and C site. 

Although still require further evidence to support Eco-town. 

Mr Anthony Powell Highways Agency Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Attached: Cherwell Local Plan Technical Note 01 prepared by Parsons Brinckerhoff - 

28 September 2012. Issues include; M40 Junction 9, 10 & 11 as well as access to 

Oxford. 

Mr Charles Routh Natural England Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Unclear how the biodiversity, landscape and amenity value of each site has been 

considered. The Plan is considered unsound unless the Council demonstrates how it 

has addressed paragraphs 110 and 165 of the NPPF and paragraphs 98 and 99 of 

ODPM Circular 06/2005 in the process of allocating sites. On biodiversity terms, 

advise that at least a phase one survey should be undertaken for each allocated site.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base EH welcomes the historic environment related documents listed in Appendix 3 but 

expected to see listed the Historic Environment Record and EH's Heritage at Risk 

Register.

Miss Emily Sparrow JPPC / Merton College Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base There is a clear need for further employment land and affordable housing. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Local Plan should be based on a full and robust evidence base of housing need 

including consideration of Household formation rates, Net Inward Migration, 

Backlog/ Hidden Homeless, Census 2011, Housing Vacancy Rates, Economic Factors, 

Off-setting a falling work age population, addressing affordability, duty to cooperate, 

Non-delivery of Local Plan Allocations, Phasing Policy, Spatial Distribution & 

Flexibility. Plan does not consider historic shortfall and persistent under delivery. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Incomplete evidence base, SHMA and SHLAA unavailable.  Oxfordshire SMA (2007) is 

out of date.  Draft SHMA 2012 - does not reflect inward migration or newly forming 

households. 

Mr Matthew Williams Drivers Jonas DeLoitte / Aberdeen Property Investors Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Welcome refresh of the Council's retail evidence base. As per NPPF paragraph 161. 

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence Base Evidence base is not up to date. Policies relating to  housing mix are not robust. 

Council has not published SHMA & IDP. Undermines consultation on plan and 

SEA/SA. Plan will require further consultation. 

Ms Melissa Wilson Drivers Jonas Deloitte / CEMEX UK Appendix Appendix 3 Evidence base The Local Plan evidence base is not robust.  The Council does not have an up to date 

SHLAA and the latest Housing Land Supply Position Update note (August 2012 

indicates that it can only demonstrate a 3.2 year housing supply.  This undermines 

development being brought forward in accordance with the spatial strategy and 

increases the threat of unplanned greenfield and rural development.  The Council's 

AMR indicates the Council broadly agrees with the suitability of the CEMEX site at 

Merton Street.

Page 95

P
a
g
e
 1

3
5



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Steven Neal Boyer Planning / Redrow Homes & Wates Developments Map 5.1 - 5.2 Key Proposals - Map Should show new link road on the South east of Bicester. 

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Maps Maps Maps Map 5.1 and the eight thematic maps are poor quality being too detailed and too 

small. 

Mr Geoff Bolton Berrys / Gleeson Developments Ltd Map 5.2 Banbury Banbury Key Proposals Objects to the designation of much of the Broughton Road site as a green buffer. The 

policy and related designation  on the Proposals Map should be deleted and replaced 

with a new policy relating to areas of separation.  The 'green buffer'  surrounding 

most of Banbury is a new and arbitrary designation and not based on any evidence.  A 

detailed landscape assessment is required. 

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Map 5.2 Key Proposals: Bicester Concern that Pringle Fields falls within both the Town Centre Action Area and Green 

Buffer. 

Mr Peter Chambers David Lock Associates Map 5.2 Key proposals Bicester Residential development of 500 homes at Gavray Drive Bicester is supported.  

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Appendix Appendix 5.2 Bicester Extend Bicester Gateway to include Faccenda Chicken Farm for better frontage. 

Omission Site. 

Ms Ellen O'Grady Defence Infrastructure Organisation Map Map 5.2 Key Proposals: Bicester The proposed green buffer sits within MOD land ownership boundary, reducing 

developable land. The buffer cuts off the safeguarded Energy Centre areas as 

contained within the submitted planning application. This part of the policy is 

unsound. 

Mrs Jane Olds Stratton Audley Parish Council Map Map 5.2 Key Proposals: Bicester Supports the zoning of the quarry areas as Local Wildlife site and the adjacent 

Landscape Buffer Zone between Stratton Audley and RAF Bicester

Mr Alec Arrol Kennet Properties / Thames Water Appendix Appendix 5 Banbury Proposals Map Object to the designation of Grinsbury Reservoir as green open space. KLP has no 

plans to  permit public access and CDC has not approached KPL regarding the future 

of the site. Without some form of enabling development KPL would not support 

public access on this site. The designation provides no means to implement changes 

that would be supported by the landowner.

Mr Rowland Bratt Map Map Banbury The Green Buffer should be removed from proposals maps at Cotefield Farm, 

Bodicote. 

Mr John Colegrave Map Map Banbury Suggest that the Green Buffer is removed from proposals maps at Wykham Park Farm 

adjacent Salt Way. 

Mr Robert Thompson Map Map Banbury Suggest Green Buffer is removed from the Proposals Map at South of Broughton 

Road and that this land is allocated for residential development within the Local Plan. 

Mr Will Cobley Terrence O'Rourke Ltd / Blenheim Palace Estate Map Map 5.5 Kidlington Map 5.5 should be amended to include a wider area of search than  depicted. Map 

supplied. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Appendix Appendix 5.1 Proposed Submission Policies Map Remove Oxford Technology Park, Langford Lane, Kidlington form the Oxford Green 

Belt. 

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

Appendix Appendix 5.5 Kidlington Insets Amend legend to state 'Oxford Technology Park' and not 'Langford Lane Technology 

Park'.  

Mr Nik Lyzba JPPC / Oxford University Press Map Map Kidlington OUP support Policy Kidlington 1 however they have concerns about its identification 

on the map. Element of pre-determination. Suggest notation is changed to reflect 

wider area of review. 

Mr Roger Smith Savills / The Bulford trust Map Map Kidlington Amend map to extend Kidlington 1 to include land east of Banbury Road and north of 

The Moors to allow small scale review of the Green Belt to provide for a mix of uses. 

Alex Wilson Barton Willmore /A2 Dominion Map 5.3 Bicester Insets Plan depicts a rectangle shape for the site. The precise boundaries and extend of 

development will be determined through a Masterplanning process.

Mr Ed Barrett Turley Associates/ Scottish Widows / Scottish Widows Unit 

Funds Ltd

Consultation Consultation Consultation Extension to consultation period not granted. Request made on the grounds that the 

Retail study Update was not finalised. 

Page 96

P
a
g

e
 1

3
6



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr David Broadley Aylesbury Vale DC Consultation Consultation Consultation Request for an extension to consultation period. 

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG Other Other Other Public consultation has not complied with T&C Planning Act or the Localism Bill. No 

member of the public who resides in Hanwell Fields estate has been asked to consult 

or provide opinion on the 2012 local plan.

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council Consultation Consultation Consultation Difficult to 'round robin' such lengthy document in the time allocated.

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society Consultation Consultation Consultation The Proposed Submission Draft Local Plan is very different document to the Draft 

Core Strategy. Containing new policies, revised housing numbers and new set of 

allocated sites. Including some previously rejected. E.g. Banbury 2. At pre-submission 

stage there is limited opportunity to comment on these new proposals. 

Mr Colin Macklin Consultation Consultation Consultation Insufficient consultation has been carried out with Aynho Parish Council.

Mr Wayne Neale Consultation Consultation Consultation Insufficient community consultation

Ms Cathleen Nunn Consultation Consultation Consultation Community has not been consulted. 

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Resourcing Resourcing Resourcing Plan is silent on resourcing issues, to adequately deliver plan and ensure aims are 

achieved and monitored.

Ms Angela Atkinson Marine Management Organisation General Other Bicester Master Plan The geographical area of the document does not include  any area of sea or tidal river 

and therefore the MMO has no comments.

Ms Claire Berry West Northants Joint Planning Unit General Other Local Plan and Bicester Masterplan West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit has no comments on either the Proposed 

Submission Local Plan or the draft Bicester Masterplan.

Ms Rachael Blakey Bucknell Parish Council General Other General Number of jobs proposed will be difficult to deliver. Propose a  new 'Industrial 

Development Officer'. Delivery strategy is vague. 

Ms Gemma Brickwood Turley Associates / Sainsbury General Other Inconsistencies with other 

planning policy documents

Plan is inconsistent with Bicester Masterplan - Town centre Boundary. 

Mr Ben Jackson Bicester Chamber General Other Bicester Masterplan The Local Plan contradicts  the Masterplan in places.  The Local Plan should be 

aligned with the masterplan which better meets the town's needs.

Mrs Susan Mackrell Bicester Town Council General Other Draft Bicester Masterplan Plan should be flexible and not set out limitations and determinants. Town is fast 

growing and this will put strains on transport, employment, health, education and 

social and community challenges. Welcome specific chapter on Bicester and 

supporting Bicester Masterplan. Master plan duplicates Bicester Local Plan Chapter. 

Concern raised at inconsistencies. 

Mr Charles Routh Natural England General Other Draft Bicester Masterplan A number of allocations ( in particular Bicester 3) have significant roads running 

through green space provision. This is likely to detract from the value of such space.

Mr & 

Mrs

A S Adams General Other Map The 'Framework Masterplan' leaflet does not depict Wendlebury. 

Mr Alec Arrol Kennet Properties / Thames Water General Other LP structure and content Part C of the LP covers the 3 main settlements and, the villages and rural area. It is 

noted CDC does not intend to progress a site specific allocation DPD and that the 

Master Plans for Bicester and Banbury are progressed as SPDs. SPDs cannot make site 

allocations and this requires the LP to ensure that it has made all the necessary 

allocations within Bicester and Banbury to deliver the development requirements for 

the lifetime of the LP. Having a LP which concentrates on strategically important sites 

and progresses smaller sites through a site allocations DPD provides greater 

flexibility. CDC approach does not make the LP unsound but underpins why KPL 

considers parts of the LP unsound.  

Cllr Ken Atack Cropredy Ward General Other Canalside Happy with the Local Plan which demonstrates a sound and legally compliant 

document subject to relocation of business from Canalside.

Ms Angela Atkinson Marine Management Organisation Other Other Other The geographical area of the document does not include  any area of sea or tidal river 

and therefore the MMO has no comments.

Mr Peter Bateman Framptons/ Amber Developments General Other General Design of height & extent of built development - could make reference to topography 

Mr John Braithwaite South Newington Parish Council General Local Plan General Welcomes the general aims and policies set up in the Local Plan and considers the 

Plan well funded.

Page 97

P
a
g
e
 1

3
7



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Gemma Brickwood Turley Associates / Sainsbury General Other Retail Level of retail provision at North West Bicester Eco-town, Graven Hill, South West 

Bicester Phase 2 & East Bicester are unjustified. 

Mrs Kathryn Brown Stoke Lyne Parish Council General Other Other Agree with the premise that Bicester Town needs to be improved 

Mrs Kathryn Brown Stoke Lyne Parish Council General Other Retail Bicester already has more supermarkets than many other towns

Mrs Kathryn Brown Stoke Lyne Parish Council General Other Other Light pollution from Bicester is already an issue in surrounding villages. What can be 

done to prevent the impact of lighting new roads and development? What proposals 

are there to mitigate noise pollution? What compensation are in place for those 

affected by the SE Link Road?

Colonel Terry Byrd Merton Parish Council General Other Other 466 pages of documents are a significant challenge  to any reader. Nonetheless it 

reflects on hard work and the covering summary leaflet is particularly well done.

Colonel Terry Byrd Merton Parish Council General Other Other Local Plan allocates resource to the ''already haves - more sustainable'' at the 

expense of the ''have nots - less sustainable''. There is a danger of this latter group 

becoming  unsustainable. Merton Parish received negligible mention in the Plan with 

no specific mention in the Sustainability Appraisal.

Mr Tim Byrne Jones Lang LaSalle / Horton General Hospital General Other Other Expect future documents e.g. Site Allocation Document to consider development 

needs of Horton General Hospital 

Mr Philip Collett General Other Motoway M40 issues - Canal, River Cherwell l & Railway all run north south. Road near M40 are 

over crowded. Junction 9 acts as a junction for two other routes. 

Mr Philip Collett General Other Motorway Junctions Maps A-D supplied - depicting example junctions onto Motorways at M27 & 

proposed at M40

Mr Richard Cutler Bloombridge LLP / Hill Street Holdings / Oxford Technology 

Park

General Other Other Report Attached: Bloombridge Appendix: Commentary on the Social-Economic 

Profiles of Bicester, Banbury & Kidlington prepared by Colin Buchanan & Partners' 

April 10 & Hill Street Holdings * Bloombridge Report Oxford Technology Park the 

Compelling Case Part 2 (Oct 2012), Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage Strategy, 

Preliminary  Transport appraisal, Extended Phase 1 Habitats Survey

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG General Other Other The Local Plan misleads the public by adopting the revoked SE Plan for a greater 

housing number than is actually required. The fixed 5 year housing land supply has 

been fulfilled with planning permissions at Bankside 1 and Canalside.

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG General Other Other Areas designated on the local plan have not been measured or assessed on equal or 

fair criteria. Banbury 5 has been added to the plan yet West of Warwick Road has 

been removed without a valid reason. Saltway is considered equal to Banbury 5 and 

Banbury 2 but is not present in the Local Plan. Banbury 5 has more negative points 

than positive according to the sustainability report and 70% of respondents to the 

draft plan said they opposed it; yet the site has been added.

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG General Other Banbury Masterplan The Local Plan is misleading: Disconnected to previous plans, with sites previously 

dismissed, and incorrect information to justify their choice. The underlying Banbury 

master Plan has not been consulted on or issued. 

Poor quality of documentation and incoherent website.

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG General Other Other CDC have failed to deliver houses in the past, failed to regenerate the Town Centre, 

create jobs and opportunities and provide infrastructure. CDC has a poor track record 

delivering large housing projects (Phase 1 Hanwell Fields, Banbury 5). Finance is key 

to deliver a housing Plan yet Bankside 1 is a failure due to no finance for builders or 

buyers.

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG General Other Other Lack of proposed infrastructure for education, transport, health and water. The Plan 

has  only 1 area allocated for employment use and no answers to tackle crime, 

antisocial behaviour and policing.

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG General Other Other Local Plan is environmentally unsound: no wildlife survey has been conducted, 

excessive development in the Green Belt, CDC Brownfield delivery is lower than 

Government targets, aesthetics and prominent position of Banbury 5 and landscape 

impact of Banbury 2.

Page 98

P
a
g

e
 1

3
8



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons General Other Rural Employment Opportunities Omission - New policy that encourages the provision of rural employment 

opportunities with the rural areas not confined to existing settlement boundaries. 

The policy should be criteria base and focused on PDL and other operation sites. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Montpelier General Other Other New Policy - Encouraging the provision of specialist housing to meet the needs of the 

elderly. Should recognise that specialist accommodation provides employment 

opportunities - development maybe suitable on employment land (B1 Use's or where 

general employment is located near residential development. NPPF para 17 & 50. 

Ageing population - between 2008 -  2033 population will increase by  25,300, over 

65-79 expected to grow by 77% & additional 19,600 people aged 65. Supported by 

Cherwell Community Plan 2006-2011. 

Ms Rose Freeman The Theatres Trust General Other Other Not a Local Plan but a Development Management document including elements of 

the Core Strategy. Plan is too long and deals with minutia of proposed developments. 

Plan should describe broad principles and parameters of future development with 

detail expanded in lower documents. 

Mrs Jane Hennell Canal and River Trust General Other New Policy The Trust suggests that for the plan to be justified when considered against 

reasonable alternatives and as a response to the known pressure for moorings of all 

types, either Policy ESD17 is amended to include specific section on moorings, 

including residential moorings, or preferably a new policy is inserted into the 

document to cover the provision of all types of moorings and boating facilities.  

Without such a policy the plan does not give clear guidance on this type of 

development and therefore may not be positively prepared.  The Trust would wish to 

advise on the wording of the policy to ensure consistency with its national policy 

which seeks to promote residential moorings as an alternative housing choice and 

recommends off line moorings in either basins or lay-bys to reduce the number of on 

line moorings i.e. those alongside canal banks.

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities General Other Other New Pedestrian and cycle bridges - too vague 

Ms Caroline Huett Indigo Planning Ltd / McKay Securities General Other Other Good accessibility to public transport - no evidence to justify

Mr Chris Hone CPRE Banbury District General Other Other CPRE supports the concept of sustainability which is embraced throughout the plan.

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith General Other Building Sustainable Communities Local allocation for Kidlington. 

Cllr Andrew Hornsby-Smith General Other Other Provide new section explaining the development pressure on Kidlington. 

Ms Patricia Jesson Wroxton & Balscote Parish Council General Other Parish Plans There is no mention of Parish Plans

Urmi Kenia Savills / Barwood Strategic Land LLP General Other General Wording throughout plan should be positively written 'development will be 

permitted unless...' rather than current wording development will not be permitted 

where...' 

Cllr Mike Kerford-Byrnes The Astons and Heyfords Ward General Other Other Endorse comments by Cllr James Macnamara ref 194

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society General Other Housing Numbers Concern a housing Numbers. Increase in Plan target at Banbury and Bicester do not 

reflect extension to Plan period. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society General Other Natural & Historic Environment Do not believe the Plan recognises the importance of the Natural & Historic 

environment. Noted in Core Assets but given very little exposure in the rest of the 

plan. Clarity required on the weight afforded the protection of the built and natural 

environment. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society General Other Banbury South-to-East Link Road Plan is silent on additional road infrastructure within Banbury. Concern given existing 

capacity issues and additional housing numbers. Need for a South East link road. 

Recommend a route corridor is allocated. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society General Other Village Bias Plan has a village bias in respect of growth. 

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society General Other Sustainable Communities Support policies on housing mix. Should also apply to existing housing stock. Retain 

family homes. 

Page 99

P
a
g
e
 1

3
9



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Rob Kinchin-Smith Banbury Civic Society General Other Natural & Historic Environment Support reference to natural, built and historic as core assets. Concern at the lack of 

policies cover the built and historic environment. Policy ESD.16 is confusing and not 

really about the built environment. Welcome commitment to Article 4 Directions, 

concern that policy applies to village sonly and not Oxford Canal, Upper Heyford and 

RAF Bicester. LPA should use its enforcement power to police. 

Cllr Duncan Ledger Bletchingdon Parish Council General Other Neighbourhood Plan Bletchingdon Parish Council are preparing a Neighbourhood Plan that will 

incorporate hamlets of Heathfield and Enslow.  May challenge planning restrictions 

placed upon Enslow. 

Mr Nik Lyzba JPPC / Oxford University Press General Other Household Waste Plan should acknowledge household waste and commercial waste recycling centre 

has been approved on the site and identified in the Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste 

Local Plan. Amendments supplied. 

Ms Lucy Murfett South Oxon DC General Other Other No comment. 

Mr Wayne Neale General Other Banbury Masterplan Banbury Masterplan has not been consulted upon 

Ms Cathleen Nunn General Other NPPF Plan is not compliant with NPPF.

Mrs Jane Olds Stratton Audley Parish Council General Other General PC welcomes both plans which have been well thought out and structured.

Placi O'Neil-Espejo Bicester Vision General Other Bicester Masterplan Concerned with inconsistencies between the LP and the Bicester Masterplan

Mr Dennis Price General Other Other Unclear definition used throughout. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations General Other Other Wording should be consistent with NPPF. A lot of repetition and inconsistency in 

particular the policies for sites.  

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations General Other Other Propose separate policies for public transport, walking & cycling. Public transport 

needs to be considered in the wider context. Plan should consider opportunities 

between modes. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations General Other SuDS All sites should consider SuDS. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations General Other Phasing Phasing of education statement varies in detail. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Business & Skills Team General Other Other Support plans to growth economic sectors. UTC maybe unrealistic. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Enterprise & Innvoation Team General Other Oxfordshire LEP Economy section should mention Oxfordshire LEP and in particular the relationship 

with Bicester. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Waste Management General Other Household Waste New residential development will put pressures on existing Household Waste 

Recycling Centres (HWRCS). Contributions should be sought towards increased 

capacity and re-use facilities. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Community Safety, Fire & Rescue General Other Other Currently emergency cover requirements are appropriate but are subject to regular 

review. Oxfordshire Fire & Rescue Service (OFRS) assumes access to proposed sites 

will comply with Approved Document B to the Building Regulations Volumes 1 & 2. 

Recommend access to water hydrants & relevant codes. Support the use of 

Automatic Water Suppression Systems .Recognise flood management. Proposed 

development may have an adverse affect on emergency response times. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology General Other Natural and Built Environment Phase 'Natural & Built environment should include historic environment. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology General Other Other Phase 1 survey carried out at options for growth stage are no longer current and 

additional survey work is required. In all development existing landscape, and 

biodiversity features should be retained. Bicester site should be screened for Brown 

Hairstreak butterfly. Development that impacts on Conservation Target Areas should 

be resisted. Detailed habitat surveys should be carried out. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology General Other Other Support aim to achieve net gain in biodiversity. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Library Services General Other Libaries Libraries are good - Banbury, Bicester & Kidlington libraries are core libraries. 

Adderbury, Deddington, Hook Norton designated as community libraries. New library 

at Banbury & Bicester. Increased  pressure. 

Page 100

P
a
g

e
 1

4
0



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Education & early Intervention Services General Other Other Policy detail is variable. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Education & early Intervention Services General Other Other Disagree - rural schools are not closing, OCC policy seeks to resist this trend. Excess 

demand. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport General Other Other Lot of repetition and inconsistency in the document, particularly in policies for 

individual sites. Public transport considerations are picked up in some strategic 

development policies but no in others and the same with walking and cycling. 

Potential for new transport policies to remove repetition. Consistency errors. 

Financial contributions should be used to pump prime cross town services that link 

the town centre with core transport interchanges. Operate at a regular frequency. 

Contributions should be used to upgrade public transport infrastructure. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport General Other Transport Wider public transport network and sustainable transport links within the 

development towns need to be considered rather than only in terms of access to 

individual strategic development sites. Opportunities and integration between 

modes, especially walking, cycling & public transport in order to maximise journeys 

by sustainable means. All sites are capable of supporting SuDS. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport General Other Terms of Reference Clarify terms; knowledge economy, green knowledge & visitor economy.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport General Other Terms of Reference Define terms Performance Engineering, eco-innovation hub along the Oxford - 

Cambridge technology corridor. Contradictions in reference to skills shortage / highly 

skilled. Excellent transport links should mention public transport. Home working & 

flexible working benefits should be expanded. List of employment development 

should include logistics and distribution and tourism.  

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport General Other Other Plan is missing reference to sustainable modes & modal shift. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Highways and Transport General Other Other Wording could be clearer. E.g. are mixed developments only sought in town centres. 

Should cover sustainable modes. 

Mr Charles Routh Natural England General Other Structure of Local Plan All policies  in the plan relate to 'Ensuring sustainable development' . The third theme 

would be better titled 'Ensuring a sustainable environment'. 

Mr Charles Routh Natural England General Other Light pollution There is no reference to light pollution other than in the context of Hanwell 

Community Observatory. As consequence it is unclear how the plan is consistent with 

paragraph 125 of the NPPF, and hence sound.

General Other Empty Properties Does the Local Plan consider NPPF para 5.1 bring back into residential use empty 

housing and buildings using CPO powers.

Mr Victor Smith General Other Other While there is reference to existing employment conditions there does not appear to 

be any correlation between spare space and anticipated future employment. 

Mr Victor Smith General Other Other NPPF states that were a Neighbourhood Development Plan has been adopted and a 

planning application conflicts with the Plan, planning permission should not normally 

be approved. When a Planning Officer rejects an application because it contravenes 

the Local Plan his recommendation should not in future be ignored. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd General Other Other Object to policies BSC5, BSC6, BSC7, BSC10, BSC12, ESD1. ESD2, ESD8, ESD10 & 

ESD17. Inconsistent references to Council. 

Mr Chris Still Gladman Developments Ltd General Other Other Report attached: Assessment of Future Housing Requirement in Cherwell, A Report 

for Gladmans October 2012 

Ms Clare Streatcher The Coal Authority General Other Other Have no specific comments to make at this stage.

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations HRA Habitats Regulation 

Assessment

Habitats Regulation Assessment HRA conclusion need to be explained in full. 

Page 101

P
a
g
e
 1

4
1



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Charles Routh Natural England HRA Habitats Regulation 

Assessment

Habitats Regulation Assessment The HRA report assessed the Proposed Submission Draft May 2012. Assuming that 

there are no material differences between this and the consultation document 

(August 2012)  we have no reason to disagree with the report's conclusion that the 

plan will have no effect on any European sites.

Mr Alec Arrol Kennet Properties / Thames Water DtC Duty to Cooperate Duty to Cooperate The Plan should discuss the duty to cooperate and Cherwell should work with the City 

Council

Mr Alec Arrol Kennet Properties / Thames Water DtC Duty to Cooperate Duty to Cooperate Wording is suggested to be added that acknowledges that the housing requirements 

of the City Council cannot be met in the City and that Cherwell will work with other 

authorities to identify how needs are met. 

Janice Bamsey West Oxfordshire District Council DtC Duty to Cooperate Duty to Cooperate West Oxfordshire District Council support the continued on-going engagement 

between the two Local Authorities and in particular future joint work on the 

assessment of the wider traffic implications of development, a review of the Green 

Belt near Oxford Airport, the scale of employment growth upon Local Jobs, 

commuting Patterns and the West Oxford economic objectives. 

Mr Phil Brown Savills for Magdalen Development Company / Kennet 

Properties Ltd

DtC Duty to Cooperate Duty to Cooperate Plan should reference the Duty to Cooperate. 

Mr David Coates DtC Duty to Cooperate Duty to Cooperate No reference to the 'Duty to Cooperate'. No understanding of cross-boundary issues. 

Housing provision, transport infrastructure & journey to work catchments. Para A.6 

could be the relocation for considering this issue. 

Ms Rachel Williams Oxford City Council DtC Duty to Cooperate Duty to Cooperate Stronger reference should be inserted in the Plan to the Duty to co-operate, similar to 

the wording proposed as a modification by the Inspector to the South Oxfordshire 

Core Strategy, recognising the established needs within the Central Oxfordshire Sub-

region and identifying the importance of cross-boundary working in the attempt to 

address these needs.

Laura Vale of the White Horse DtC Duty to Cooperate Duty to Cooperate Under the 'duty to cooperate' we have reviewed your proposed submission local plan 

and Bicester masterplan and have no comments to make. This is an interim response 

as we are still awaiting confirmation under a delegated decision.

Mr Alec Arrol Kennet Properties / Thames Water Omission site SLE.1 Employment Development Grinsbury Reservoir is the only remaining site within Banbury that could bring 

forward new employment land without either further extending the boundaries of 

Banbury in an unsustainable manner, or introducing employment uses next to more 

sensitive uses. 

An employment led mixed use development could help enabling publicly accessible 

green open space provision and establishing a potential link between Spice Ball Park 

and Site allocation 'Banbury 14'. Further uses could include leisure provision linked to 

that provided by the Oxford Canal and the reservoir.

After completion of the Banbury Flood Alleviation Scheme, the majority of the site 

will be removed from flood zone 3. This is identical to the effect on Canalside 

(Banbury 1).

Sam Croft RPS Planning & Development / Banner Homes Ltd  / Rowland 

Bratt

Omission site SLE.1 Employment Development Object to the Plan delaying employment allocation into subsequent DPD. Omission 

Site - Cotefield Business Park, site identified in plan under policy BO5. Suitable for 

employment development. Refer to Masterplan Concept Study. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Albion Land PLC Omission site SLE.1 Employment Development Omission Site for employment - Land off Waterworks Lane, Banbury. Plan attached. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Mr C Hawes Omission site SLE.1 Employment Development Omission Site - North East Quadrant of Junction 9 M40. Plan attached. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Mr D Mahon Omission site SLE.1 Employment Development Omission Site for employment - Land off Waterworks Lane, Banbury. Plan attached. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Barwood Developments Omission site SLE.1 Employment Development Omission Site - Land Comprising Twenty-Twenty Cricket Ground, Thorpe Way - 

Allocate for commercial use

Page 102

P
a
g

e
 1

4
2



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Barwood Developments Omission site SLE.1 Employment Development Omission Site - Land at M40 should be allocated for employment or identified as an 

area of Development restraint to meet potential needs for economic development 

that are anticipated. Should a major investor not be accommodated on land at 

Overthorpe Road. Map attached. 

Mrs Kiran Williams BNP Paribas Real Estate UK Ltd / Cawdor Capital Ltd Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission Site - Land off Camp Road, Upper Heyford. Land located adjacent Policy 

Villages 5: Upper Heyford. Majority of land is located in the Green Belt. Support local 

plan polices relating to housing growth. Site suitable for residential development. 

Located next to the New Settlement Area and employment opportunities at RAF site.  

Site is deliverable. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Barwood Developments Omission site SLE.2 Securing Dynamic Town Centres Omission Site - Kraft Factory, Southam Road - Suitable for major retail food store, 

hotel and limited non food retail development. Will not adversely affect vitality and 

viability of the town centre. The requirements of a food store operator can not be 

met at land at Bolton Road which is unavailable and assembly would require CPO 

powers. Failure to allocate a food store will impede sustainable economic growth. 

Will provide jobs, enhanced retail offer and add to retail choice, accessible location 

well connected to the town centre. 

Mr Reuben Bellamy CALA Homes Ltd Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission Site - South Lodge Riding Stables, Bicester. Site is suitable, available and 

viable and has no physical or technical constraints and is in a single ownership. 

Compliant with NPPF para 147  & 157.  Capacity for 220 units. Offers a logical 

rounding of the Bicester edge and is in easy walking distance of open space 

employment opportunities at RAF Bicester. As well as retail/ leisure and medical 

facilities at Bure Farm. Preliminary landscape, ecology, transport and drainage / flood 

risk work have not identified any issues. 

Mr Geoff Bolton Berrys / Gleeson Developments Ltd Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Land South of Broughton Road is considered to be deliverable for up to 400 

dwellings. It could make a significant contribution to the 5 year housing land supply 

and facilitate the expansion of existing community facilities in Banbury. It should be 

identified as a potential reserve site.

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission site - Warwick Road, Banbury should be allocated. Further evidence is 

needed in respect of the Quantum of growth at the rural villages. 

Mr Steven Brown Woolf Bond Planning / Miller Strategic Land Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission Site - Land off Warwick Road, Banbury. Site allocated in Draft Plan as the 

first reserve site. Located in a sustainable location close to shops, services, schools 

and frequent bus service. Topography of site means it is visible from the West and 

forms an urban backdrop to the site. Vegetation marks the boundary to prevent long 

distance views. There is a range of residential styles. Site is not subject to flood, 

environmental and other known constraints. A masterplan for the site indicates 

public open space & retail could be provided. Baseline tech studies on highways, 

ecology, noise, landscape, visual impact, heritage & archaeology.  Site capacity is 

12ha or 300 dwg.  Omission site should replace either Hardwick Farm or Hanwell 

Field . Review Banbury Section once Banbury Masterplan is prepared. 

Ms Gemma Care Barton Willmore /Bicester Sports Association Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission Site: Pinglefields - Suitable for retail or residential development, 

Mr Russell Crow Barton Willmore / Taylor Wimpey UK Ltd Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission Site - Bourne Lane; site located north of Hook Norton, on the Western Side 

of Bourne Lane. 3.28ha site size. Adjacent landlocked parcel of land owned by District 

Council. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Mr J Phipps Omission BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution The Plan is not positively prepared in the provision of sufficient housing land to meet 

the objectively assessed housing needs of Cherwell District. Additional land needs to 

be identified for housing in locations that are available, suitable and achievable. Land 

shown in the accompanying plan meets these criteria and should be allocated for 

housing on the proposals map. (No site description or name given - triangular parcel 

of land north of the A4095 and bounded by the A4100 to the west and Fringford 

Road to the east (Bicester))

Page 103

P
a
g
e
 1

4
3



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Ian Inshaw Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution The Plan should retain the rail link  between Graven Hill and Arncott sites of the MoD 

depot and the Arncott and associated MoD sites should be included in the 

development framework .

Mr David Keene David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission Site - Land at Wykham Park Farm. Design and Access Statement  supplied. 

1000 new homes and 2 ha employment land (B1 & B2). Local Centre (A1, B1, A2-A5, 

D2 & D1.  New entry primary school. Green Infrastructure & Transport Infrastructure. 

Road, light & drainage. No issue with Coalescence with Bodicote. Site is deliverable. 

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Leda Properties Omission Site Bicester 2 Graven Hill Omission Site - Exclusion of land at Langford Park Farm for Bicester 2 is unjustified by 

evidence. 

Mr Tom Smailes Kemp & Kemp / Leda Properties Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission site - Langford Park Farm measures 12ha and can deliver approximately 390 

dph enabling Policy Bicester 1 target to be met. Sustainable location with good access 

to Station and Town Centre. Encourages connectivity with adjacent communities.  

Miss Emily Sparrow JPPC / Merton College Omission Site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission Sites - Merton Collage Land; land at Begbroke (west of A44), land at Pear 

Tree, land at Yarnton (West of A440) & land at Gosford Bridge, Kidlington. 

Mr Neville Surtees Barton Willmore / J A Pye Ltd Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission Site - Land at Webb Way - suitable for residential development. Located in a 

sustainable location. Within built up area on three sides. Would create a definitive 

and defensible boundary. Kidlington is a sustainable settlement. 

Mr Bruce Tremayne CPRE Bicester District Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission Site - Shipton-on-Cherwell quarry. Should not be ignored. 

Ms Melissa Wilson Drivers Jonas Deloitte / CEMEX UK Omission Site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution CEMEX site east of the railway line at Merton Street Banbury is a brownfield site 

previously in employment/industrial use. CEMEX no longer has operational 

requirements for the site and considers it suitable for residential led mixed use 

development.  The site is in an accessible location in close proximity to a wide range 

of services and facilities including the railway station and Banbury town centre.  

Development of this site would help meet housing requirements, would ensure 

efficient use of land, and link development at Canalside with the Cattle Market 

redevelopment.

Berry Morris / Tappers Farm Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission Site - Land at White Post Road, Bodicote. Site area 2.192 ha. Canalside site 

is undeliverable. Site surrounded by development including at Bankside. Bodicote will 

remain separated at Saltway, Kingsfield and Cricket Club. 

Mrs Kiran Williams BNP Paribas Real Estate UK Ltd / Trustees of Norman Collision 

Foundation

Omission site BSC.1 District Wide Housing Distribution Omission site - Land of Merton Road, Ambrosden should be allocated for residential 

development and the framework boundary re-drawn. Site is located in a sustainable 

village with access to key services. Site is deliverable and has no significant 

infrastructure issues. Forms a logical extension to the settlement boundary. 

Mr Mark Recchia Banbury Town Council Omission site Banbury 13 Burial Site Provision in Banbury Whilst supporting the allocation, it has increased 'hope value' for residential 

development attached to the land to the north of Hardwick Hill Cemetery which is 

needed to secure the extension to the existing cemetery.  TC would like to see an 

additional allocation of the field to the north of the cemetery for a cemetery 

extension.

Mr Geoff Bolton Berrys / Gleeson Developments Ltd SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA The SA does not clarify how the need  for additional growth and alternative sites 

were assessed and why other previously excluded sites were not included in the 

Proposed Submission LP.  The  SA doe into demonstrate that for the growth of 

Banbury the plan is the most appropriate strategy when considered against 

reasonable alternatives. as required by NPPF para 182.

Mr Rowland Bratt SA ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth There has been no Sustainability Appraisal of Policy ESD 15. 

Mr John Colegrave SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA Policy has not undergone Sustainability Appraisal.  

Page 104

P
a
g

e
 1

4
4



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA Why have you ignored the results of the report

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA Why doesn't the report look at other areas other than those proposed

Mr Malcolm Finch HFDAG SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA Why hasn't the report been conducted on an equal and fair system

Mr Alan Jones Hanwell Village Residents SA Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and West)

Do not see how the overall conclusions on the sustainability of sites Banbury 2 and 

Banbury 5 can be reached on the evidence available.

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council SA ESD.15 Green Boundaries to Growth Not in this context. 

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council SA Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road Do not see how the overall conclusions of the SA of Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 can be 

reached on the evidence presented. There are serious issues about Banbury's long 

term capacity to expand given its topography and physical constraints. The 

sustainability of these sites is questionable and the potential mitigating measures 

needs further evidence and further careful assessment.

Mr Jayne Gordon Hanwell Parish Council SA Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Do not see how the overall conclusions of the SA of Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 can be 

reached on the evidence presented. There are serious issues about Banbury's long 

term capacity to expand given its topography and physical constraints. The 

sustainability of these sites is questionable and the potential mitigating measures 

needs further evidence and further careful assessment.

Mr Alan Jones SA Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road Do not see how the overall conclusions of the SA of Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 can be 

reached on the evidence presented. There are serious issues about Banbury's long 

term capacity to expand given its topography and physical constraints. The 

sustainability of these sites is questionable and the potential mitigating measures 

needs further evidence and further careful assessment.

Mrs Karen Jones SA Banbury 2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road Do not see how the overall conclusions of the SA of Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 can be 

reached on the evidence presented. There are serious issues about Banbury's long 

term capacity to expand given its topography and physical constraints. The 

sustainability of these sites is questionable and the potential mitigating measures 

needs further evidence and further careful assessment.

Mrs Karen Jones SA Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Do not see how the overall conclusions of the SA of Banbury 2 and Banbury 5 can be 

reached on the evidence presented. There are serious issues about Banbury's long 

term capacity to expand given its topography and physical constraints. The 

sustainability of these sites is questionable and the potential mitigating measures 

needs further evidence and further careful assessment.

Mr David Keene David Lock Associates / Gallagher Estates SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA SA underplays sustainability of Wykham Park Farm. Scoring low in terms of access to 

the town centre and employment areas. Cycle way and bus route available. Omission 

site will deliver 1.66ha of employment land., a local centre. Conversely Canalside 

does not support economic growth. Proposal at Saltway would enhance the wildlife 

corridor. Landscape sensitivity report highlights land west of Bretch Hill as having a 

high sensitivity. Site will improve services and access to facilities including schools & 

recreation facilities. Site is in one ownership and  is deliverable. Site is sustainable. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

Canalside Sustainability is overstated. Unclear what the alternative sites are? Delivery risk 

associated with CPO powers & viability. Issues not addressed by the SA. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

Hardwick Farm SA fails to adequately justify sites inclusion within the Plan despite acknowledging 

disadvantages. Sites has low landscape capacity due to visual sensitivity, ecological & 

archaeological value and noise.  

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

West of Bretch Hill SA fails to give adequate justification as to how the site would achieve the objective 

of reducing poverty and social exclusion. Justification is not site specific. SA 

overstates community benefits against landscape sensitivity. 

Page 105

P
a
g
e
 1

4
5



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

North of Hanwell Fields SA fails to record sustainability credentials. 

Ms Rebecca McAllister Hives Planning / Oxford Diocesan Board of Finance / trustees 

of the Adderbury and Milton Feoffee Charity

SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

South Banbury  - Omission Site SA does not reflect benefits - well connected to existing services including Schools, 

supermarket, hospital and employers. Good permeability. Located in least sensitive 

location re landscape. Deliver new cricket pitch. Secure separation of Banbury & 

Bodicote. Reduce poverty and social exclusion, deliver affordable housing, protect 

biodiversity and access to countryside and accessibility by sustainable modes. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Barwood Developments SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA No assessment of Para B.53 that retail outside two town centres will not be 

supported. 

Mr Peter Frampton Framptons / Barwood Developments SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA SA has not assessed alternative strategies for the provision of employment land at 

Banbury. No consideration of need. 

Mr Paul Morley Cropredy Parish Council SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA The number of dwellings proposed for villages such as Cropedy and the smaller 

villages that make up the cluster is about right. It should reflect current population 

and the type and mix of housing, and materials should reflect the characteristics of 

the village.

Ms Sinéad Morrissey Rapleys LLP / Bedworth Trading Ltd SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA Table 8.1 - Banbury Sites is inconsistent. Full benefits of Banbury 2 are not recognised 

relative to other sites. Approximately 800 dwg to meet housing targets. Reduction in 

poverty and social exclusion through mixed tenure. Wider benefits of open space, 

schools and local retail. Directly adjacent established housing and employment. 

Minor positive effects in relation to health, road congestions. Banbury 2 is considered 

better relative to Banbury 3 & 5. Inconsistency within Theme 2 Housing and SA 

objective 1 as sites should be assessed relative to each other. Table 8.3 refers to 

positive cumulative effect in respect of new development - this is not recognised in 

Table 8.1 reference Banbury 2. 

Ms Cathleen Nunn SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA Lack of information regarding renewable energy & consideration given to sustainable 

sourcing of material and flood risk. Object to BAN5 & BAN2. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Strategic Planning Consultations SA Sustainability 

Appraisal

SA SA should show how site / policy performs against each of the sustainability 

objectives to facilitate easier comparison. Policies have not been considered against 

flora and fauna or landscape. Biodiversity is mentioned only in a more general way. 

Education and extra care homes for the elderly have not been included. BAN1 limited 

opportunities to retain sites in Banbury for small businesses. BAN2 - disagree with 

minor effects on biodiversity. Report does not reference HRA and impact on Oxford 

Meadows (SAC).  

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SA Box 2.1 Our Vision for Cherwell District Should refer to Historic Environment. List as challenge and objectives. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SA Table 5.1 10 Landscape and Historic Assets District contains around 16000 undesignated heritage assets recorded on the Historic 

Environmental Record. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SA Table 6.1 SA Framework Support Objective 12. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SA Bicester 1 North West Bicester Eco-

Development 

Mitigation section should refer to further archaeological survey work. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SA Bicester 2 Graven Hill Mitigation section should refer to a phrase of archaeological investigation. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SA Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park Mitigation section should refer to further archaeological survey work. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SA Bicester 12 East Bicester Deserted medieval village of Wretchwick and surrounding furrows & earthworks 

could be considered a major constraint. Should be listed as a major negative impact. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SA Banbury 2 Hard wick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and Wes)

Impact on setting of grade II* listed building of Hardwick House. Negative impact. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SA Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 No archaeological features found. Site lies near WW1 munitions factory - no remains 

extend this far. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SA Banbury 8 Land at Bolton Road Requirement for desk based assessment & trenched archaeological field evaluation. 

Page 106

P
a
g

e
 1

4
6



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Archaeology SA BAN14a Banbury Country Park Mitigation section should refer to further archaeological survey work. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Objective 10 Need for networks of habitats should be included. Does not have full access to SA. 

Habitats Regulation Assessment (Oxford Meadows SAC) will also need to be 

explained. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Bicester 2 Graven Hill Does not consider harm to LWS and UK & European Protected Species. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Bicester 3 South West Bicester Phase 2 Result of survey required - little evidence. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Bicester 4 Bicester Business Park Consent granted. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Bicester 10 Bicester Gateway BIC 10 adjoins western boundary of LWS but LWS outside site boundary. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Bicester 11 North East Bicester Business Park Disagree, unimproved grassland takes along time to be created is loss can not be 

easily mitigated. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Bicester 12 East Bicester Bicester 12 is part within Ray Conservation Target Area and potential BAP Priority 

Habitat. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Banbury 2 Hard wick Farm, Southam Road 

(East and Wes)

Survey required. Grater Crested Newts. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Banbury 3 West of Bretch Hill Query minor negative. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Banbury 4 Bankside Phase 2 Agree - given information supplied. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Banbury 5 North of Hanwell Fields Potential ecological constraint. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Banbury 6 Employment Land West of M40 Agree - given information supplied. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Banbury 12 Land for the Relocation of Banbury 

FC

Query minor negative. 

Mr Daniel Round OCC - Ecology SA Kidlington 1 Langford Lane Technology Park Disagree - survey work yet to be carried out. Important and protected habitat and 

species could be indirectly affected. 

Mr Charles Routh Natural England SA Sustainability 

Appraisal 

Sustainability Appraisal No comments to make on this document.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage SA Sustainability 

Appraisal 

SLE.4 The SA fails to identify the potential harm of the proposed relief road on the Achester 

Roman Town 

Mr Martin Small English Heritage SA Sustainability 

Appraisal 

Bicester 12 SA fails to recognise the substantial harm that development within the setting of the 

scheduled monument of Wretchwick Deserted Medieval Settlement might cause.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage SA Sustainability 

Appraisal 

ESD.16 EH agrees with the SA conclusion in the assessment of this policy and proposed 

mitigation measure but considers more changes are required for the policy to accord 

with the NPPF.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage SA Sustainability 

Appraisal 

Bicester 1 SA fails to identify the potential impact of the proposed development on the 

designated  heritage assets within and close to the North West Bicester Eco-Town 

(Bicester 1). EH agrees with the suggested mitigation but more detail is required.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage SA Sustainability 

Appraisal 

Bicester 2 The SA fails to identify the potential harm from this section of the relief road on the 

historic environment.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage SA Sustainability 

Appraisal 

Bicester 5 EH does not see the justification for the SA's conclusion that Bicester 5 will enhance 

the town centre conservation area.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage SA Sustainability 

Appraisal 

Bicester 10 EH concurs with the SA conclusion in terms of the policy impact on the historic 

environment.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage SA Sustainability 

Appraisal 

Bicester 12 SA fails to recognise the substantial harm that development within the setting of the 

scheduled monument of Wretchwick Deserted Medieval Settlement might cause.

Mr Martin Small English Heritage SA Sustainability 

Appraisal 

Banbury 2 EH concurs with the SA conclusion for this Policy.

Page 107

P
a
g
e
 1

4
7



Appendix D: Summary of Representations

Mr Dominic Woodfield Bioscan SA Sustainability 

Appraisal 

SA Concern at SA process. Concern at the proposed use of amenity space adjacent 

Gavray Drive for informal recreation compromising ability to manage land (a 

designated wildlife site). 

* Asterisk denotes late representation 

Page 108

P
a
g

e
 1

4
8



Banbury 10

Banbury 5

Banbury 2

Banbury
4

Banbury
3

Bankside
Phase 1
(Approved)

Banbury
1

Banbury
12

Banbury 7

Banbury
14

Banbury
6

Banbury 8 Banbury 9

(c) Crown copyright and database right 2013. Ordnance Survey 100018504

Key

Banbury Circular Walk/Oxford Canal Trail

Existing Employment Sites

New Employment Sites

Mixed Use (Housing and Employment)

Strategic Housing Sites

Land at Bolton Road

Spiceball Development Area

Expanded Town Centre

Town Centre Extension (Area of Search)

Existing Retail Parks

Bretch Hill Regeneration Area (Indicative boundary)

New Green Space and Parks

Existing Green Space

Green Buffer

South Northamptonshire

Strategic Developments:

1 Banbury Canalside

2 Hardwick Farm, Southam Road East and West

3 West of Bretch Hill

4 Land at Bankside Phase 2

5 North of Hanwell Fields

6 Employment land west of M40

7 Strengthening Banbury Town Centre

8 Land at Bolton Road

9 Spiceball Development Area

10 Bretch Hill regeneration area

12 Banbury United FC relocation

14 Banbury Country Park

0 1,000 2,000500 Meters

DRAFT

P
a
g
e
 1

4
9



P
a
g

e
 1

5
0

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



Bicester 8

Bicester 6

Bicester 5

Bicester 12

Bicester 1

Bicester 2

Bicester
3

South-West
Bicester
Phase 1
(Approved)

Gavray Drive
(Approved)

Bicester 4

Bicester
10

Bicester
11

(c) Crown copyright and database right 2013. Ordnance Survey 100018504

Key

Existing Employment Sites

New Employment Sites

Mixed Use (Housing and Employment)

Strategic Housing Sites

Bure Place Redevelopment

Existing Town Centre

Town Centre Extension (Area of Search)

Existing Retail Parks

New Green Space and Parks

Existing Green Space

Green Buffer

Tourism Development

Strategic Developments:

1 North-West Bicester: Eco-Town

2 Graven Hill

3 South-West Bicester Phase 2

4 Bicester Business Park

5 Strengthening Bicester Town Centre

6 Land at Bure Place Car Park

8 RAF Bicester

10 Bicester Gateway

11 North-East Bicester Business Park

12 East Bicester

0 1,000 2,000500 Meters

DRAFT

P
a
g
e
 1

5
1



P
a
g

e
 1

5
2

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



(c) Crown copyright and database right 2013. Ordnance Survey 100018504

Key

Existing Village Centre

Strengthened Village Centre

Limited Green Belt Review

Existing Green Space

Green Belt

Strategic Developments:

1 Accomodating Employment Needs (Area of
Search)

2 Strengthening Kidlington Village Centre

0 500 1,000250 Meters

Kidlington 1

Kidlington
2

Kidlington
1

DRAFT

P
a
g
e
 1

5
3



P
a
g

e
 1

5
4

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k



 

   

Executive 
 

Update on Major Programmes 
 

4 March 2013 
 

Report of Head of Transformation 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To provide an update on progress in implementing robust governance of major 
change projects. 
 

 
This report is public 

 
 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
(1) Note the work done to embed the governance standards for the Place 

Programme and Transformation Programme for Cherwell District Council and 
South Northamptonshire Council, including acting on guidance offered by 
Internal Audit. 

 
(2) Note the development of a Statement of Recommended Practice in relation to 

how major projects are managed, and the forthcoming opportunities for 
Members to be briefed on the methodology. 

 

(3) Note the plans to acquire temporary project management resources to ensure 
the robust delivery of the council’s major projects, and build future project 
management capacity. 

 
 
Executive Summary 

 
2 Introduction 
 
2.1 In September 2012, Executive received an update on the implementation of 

the governance structure for the Council’s major projects agreed earlier in 
the year.   

 
2.2 This report is to further update members on the progress made in 

implementing the governance, and its extension into project management, 
now set out in a Statement of Recommended Practice (SoRP).  A similar 
report is being considered by the SNC Cabinet. 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 155



 

   

 Proposals 
 
2.3 This report proposes continuing to develop and implement the governance 

arrangements for major projects as previously agreed. 
 

2.4 It also proposes some opportunities for Members, both those directly involved 
in projects and those with a wider general interest, to be briefed on the SoRP. 

 
2.5 Finally, it outlines a proposal being made through the budget-setting process 

to add temporary project management expertise in support of delivering our 
major projects. 
 

 
Background Information 

 
Validating the approach 

 
2.6 In May 2012 Cherwell District Council’s Executive and South 

Northamptonshire Council’s Cabinet approved a governance structure for the 
Councils’ major projects.  This was  intended to ensure that the Councils’ 
limited management and financial resources are focussed on the top priorities, 
and that there is transparency of resource commitment, risk exposure and 
alignment of major projects with each Council’s strategic objectives.   
 

2.7 At the project management level, both Councils had previously promoted the 
use of a tailored version of the standard Prince 2 project management 
methodology.  Tailored in different ways, with different document templates, 
work was done to harmonise the two into a single methodology that was as 
paperwork-light as possible while retaining the strengths of the methodology 
as a system of controls and checks.  Specifically, those strengths are 
transparency and accountability, the principle of managing by exception, and 
alignment with the programme governance structures agreed for both 
councils. 

 
2.8 As described in the September update, , Internal Audit scoped a two part 

“Added Value” review of the structure and overall approach to project and 
programme management in July 2012.  Review 1 was carried out in August 
and comprised: 
 

• Assessing the approach and implementation of the new governance 
structure for the Place and Transformation programmes and subsequent 
projects;  

• Reviewing the adopted methodology and supporting processes and 
controls; and  

• Identifying any risks to the above approach and providing 
recommendations on any possible areas for improvement.  

 
2.9 In summary, the findings of the audit were that “the new governance structure 

provides an inclusive programme and project management structure where 
Council Members can help to drive projects forward” specifically: 
 

• There is a clear governance structure  

• A high quality project and programme methodology is being implemented 

• The methodology uses a light version of ‘Prince 2’ and will be facilitated 

Page 156



 

   

through ‘Project in a Box’ software.  
 

But that: 
 
§ Implementation and adoption of methodology and controls is varied 
§ We need to implement minimum project standards.  

 
2.10 The audit also identified some areas of risk, linked to the inconsistent 

application of the methodology across the two organisations, and the need to 
have tighter controls at the start-up of projects: “Project managers are from a 
variety of backgrounds meaning inconsistent levels of control are implemented 
for each project… additional roles could assist in the implementation of the 
methodology and controls and provide valuable support for the delivery of the 
projects.” 

 
2.11 In response to this constructive guidance, the Statement of Recommended 

Practice (SoRP) draws together the project management methodology, the 
governance arrangements, and the recommendations from the audit, into a 
single document.  It functions as a manual for anyone developing a project 
proposal or involved in delivery, and provides the basis for training and 
development for all people involved in delivering projects, inside and outside 
of the Major Programmes. 

 
2.12 In addition, a growth bid is in place to provide further fixed term project 

management experience in support of the two major programmes, and to 
develop in-house staff through offering secondments as project support 
officers, with appropriate training and skills-building opportunities.   

 
2.13 By taking these actions, we will address the only amber/red finding identified 

by the review, that of Implementation: “Resourcing, skills levels and general 
support are impacting on the ability to implement the desired governance 
structure, methodology and supporting controls”. 

 
2.14 The second part of the review is scheduled for quarter four and will examine 

our progress. 

 
The Statement of Recommended Practice  

 
2.15 The SoRP is intended as a “how to” manual for anyone involved in project 

delivery or governance, and to provide the backbone to training and 
development for those people. 
 

2.16 It comprises five sections: 

 
1. What projects are and why manage them differently from “business as 

usual” 

2. The Cherwell District and South Northamptonshire Councils’ methodology 

3. People and roles in project organisations 

4. Techniques and training 

5. Programmes and Portfolios 

2.17 The SoRP has been drafted with input from HR and the Training and 

Page 157



 

   

Development team to ensure a format, use of language, and structure that 
lends itself to communicating and training at all different levels of project 
involvement and all different levels of detailed knowledge and execution, 
through a wide range of delivery methods. 
 

2.18 Member champions, participating in governance at the project board level, will 
be invited to a short briefing to run through the key parts of the approach and 
ensure they know what to expect from their project manager and delivery 
team.  Member champions for our major projects are: 

 
Eco Bicester Councillor Wood 
Bicester Town Centre Councillor Bolster 
Banbury Developments Councillor Gibbard 
Brighter Futures in Banbury Councillor Donaldson 

 
2.19 Other members will have the opportunity to attend a general background 

briefing outlining the reason behind having a project management approach, 
and the key principles being followed.  Dates are to be agreed. 
 
Governance implementation to date 

2.20 Programme Board meetings have been scheduled; unfortunately adverse 
weather conditions forced the cancellation of the November meetings.  
January’s Place Programme Board met as planned, and future meetings are 
in train to happen as planned, aligned to meetings of the Joint Arrangements 
Steering Group. 
 

2.21 The online project office system described in the September update has been 
tailored to produce succinct, standard reports to project boards, and a higher 
level report across all projects, to the programme boards.  This is contributing 
to reducing the amount of paperwork required by project managers, and 
ensures a consistency of information at all levels. 

 
2.22 Work described in the September update, to input the required project 

information into the online project office system and configure the appropriate 
reports for project and programme boards has been completed as planned. 

 
The project information is now being maintained and reported on by Project 
Managers on a day to day basis.  Based on feedback from users of the project 
office system further licenses and training have been procured to allow team 
members and others contributing to projects inside and outside the council, to 
access and update the system. 

 
 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
Option One There is no alternative option. Members have already 

approved the general approach to maximising the 
effective use of scarce resource through the organisation 
of projects into programmes.  This report seeks simply to 
update members. 
 

  
  
 

Page 158



 

   

Consultations 

 

JMT Have considered and adopted the SoRP. 

Leader of the Council  

 
Implications 

 

Financial: The growth bid for £125,000 p.a. for three years is being 

considered through the formal budget setting process. 

 Comments checked by Karen Curtin, Head of Finance 
and Procurement 0300 003 0106 

Legal: There are no legal implications of the proposals set out in 
this report. 

 Comments checked by Kevin Lane, Head of Law and 
Governance 0300 003 0107 

Risk Management: This proposed approach to embedding the governance 
arrangements will help to facilitate a robust approach to 
the management of organisational risk. 

 Comments checked by Claire Taylor, Corporate 
Performance Manager 01295 221563 

 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 
An accessible, value for money council 
 
Lead Member 

 
Councillor Barry Wood,  
Leader of the Council  
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

1 Statement of Recommended Project Management Practice 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Pat Simpson, Programme Manager 

Pat.Simpson@cherwellandsouthnorthants.co.uk 

0300 0030112 

Contact 
Information 

0300 0030108 

Jo.pitman@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk 

 

Page 159



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

Cherwell District Council & South Northamptonshire’s 

Project Management 

Statement of 

Recommended 

Practice 
A guide for everyone involved in delivering projects 

Pat Simpson, Programme Manager 
05/02/2012 
 

Page 161



Table of Contents 

 

South Northamptonshire and Cherwell District Councils’ Project Management 

Statement of Recommended Practice .....................................................................1 

Context..............................................................................................................1 

Projects, what they do and how they are managed ...............................................1 

What is a project? .............................................................................................1 

What do projects do? ........................................................................................2 

Why have a project management method?.......................................................2 

Project Management at South Northamptonshire and Cherwell District Councils3 

The three stage project management process..................................................5 

The controlled start stage of project management ............................................5 

The Pre-Project stage of a controlled start 5 

The Initiation stage of a controlled start 6 

The delivery stage of project management .......................................................9 

Monitoring delivery 10 

Delivery Monitoring 11 

The controlled close stage of project management.........................................12 

Summary of activity, people, and documents for each of the stage in the process

........................................................................................................................13 

The people involved in project management........................................................13 

Roles and Responsibilities ..............................................................................14 

Project Management tools, techniques and training ...........................................15 

Project information system “Project in a Box” .................................................15 

Microsoft Project .............................................................................................16 

Skills building and training...............................................................................16 

Page 162



Programmes and Portfolios ...................................................................................19 

Programme Management ...............................................................................19 

Place Programme: 19 

Transformation Programme: 19 

What do the Programme Boards do?..............................................................20 

Governance Tools 21 

Monitoring Delivery of the Programmes..........................................................21 

Schedule of Meetings......................................................................................21 

 

ANNEXES 

A Documentation and controls summary      
 i 

B Project Brief and PID Template       
 iii 

C Major Projects stakeholder engagement strategy     ix 

D Major Projects resource management strategy     
 xv 

E Major Projects risk management strategy      xxi 

F Major Projects issue resolution strategy      
 xxiiii 

G An Approach to benefits realisation in the Transformation Programme  
 xxix 

H Project Role Descriptions        xxxv 

I Standard RAG Assessment guide       xlvii 

J Sponsor’s guide to the project management process    
 xlix 

K Programme Governance Structure chart      
 li 

L Programme Board Terms of Reference      
 liii 

M Glossary of terms         lv 

Page 163



 

For further information about any project or programme management matter, or if you have 
comments and suggestions in relation to the contents of this SoRP, please contact the 
SNC/CDC Programme Office: 

 
Pat Simpson 

Programme Manager 

Tel: 0300 0030112 

Pat.simpson@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk 

  

Tim Pack 

Project Manager 

Tel: 01327 322215 

Tim.pack@southnorthants.gov.uk 

 

Page 164



South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through Programmes  Page | 1 

South Northamptonshire and Cherwell District Councils’ Project 

Management Statement of Recommended Practice 

Context 

This policy framework constitutes a statement of recommended practice in project 

management for both South Northamptonshire and Cherwell District Councils.  Both councils 

have previously had their own versions, both based on the standard PRINCE2 methodology, 

and both tailored and stripped down to varying degrees.  This new, single statement of 

recommended practice, replaces all previous guidance, but is an updated and similarly 

stripped down version of PRINCE2. 

All projects – any standalone piece of work outside of “Business as Usual” and intended to 

bring about a change is something – should be delivered in line with this guidance; there are 

specific authorisation point for projects valued at more than £50,000 or which impact both 

councils or more than one service.  

1. Projects, what they do and how they are managed  

1.1. What is a project? 

The standard PRINCE2 definition is: A project is a temporary organisation created for the 

purpose of delivering one or more business products according to the agreed business case. 

So what does that mean?  A project in this context is not a piece of work, it is a temporary 

organisation.  Just as the whole council has a chief executive responsible for everything the 

whole organisation does, and directors with specific responsibilities, senior managers with 

responsibility for councils resources, people, and performance, a project is an organisation 

with someone in charge and accountable for what is done, some other roles responsible for 

delivering or supplying things, managing the money, making sure the right skills are 

available etc.  It is a replica organisation, set up for a short period, to do something that isn’t 

part of the day to day work of the whole organisation. 

Chief Executive Project Sponsor

Corporate 
Management Team

Project Board

Service delivery 
managers

Project Manager

Corporate Management 

Organisation

Project 

Management Organisation

Accountable for what is 

delivered

Responsible for deciding 

and specifying what is to be 

delivered, when and at 

what cost

Delivers what is required

    

Page 165



 Page | 2               South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through 

Programmes 

 

 

1.2. What do projects do? 

Projects are distinct from “business as usual”, because they exist to change things – the 

things that make up “business as usual”, whether that’s the buildings in a town, or the 

process to deliver a service.  Projects are the means by which we introduce change. 

There are real differences between “business as usual” and projects: 

Business as usual Projects 

Steady state: “the way we do things 

round here” 

Change: projects are the means by which 

change is introduced 

Permanence: the established structures, 

policies and operations making up the 

organisation 

Temporary: projects are set up, deliver 

their products, and closed down. 

Organised by function: business 

management structures supported by an 

establishment 

Cross functional: projects involve a team 

of people with different skills working 

together on a temporary basis to introduce 

change that impacts others outside that 

team.  Projects often cross the functional 

divisions and can span different 

organisations. 

Continuous: medium and long term 

strategic  plans 

One-off: every project is unique. 

Certainty of purpose and objectives Uncertainty: projects deal with threats and 

opportunities over and above those 

associated with the normal course of 

business; projects are more risky. 

1.3. Why have a project management method? 

Project management is defined by PRINCE2 as the planning, delegating, monitoring and 

control of all aspects of the project, and the motivation of those involved, to achieve the 

project objectives within the expected performance targets for time, cost, quality, scope 

benefits and risks. 

We have established that a Project is about delivering something new or changed, for 

example an extension to a house.  The extension is made up of a number of different things, 

referred to in project-management speak as products: a roof, some walls, some windows, 

some wiring etc.  The purpose of project management is to keep control over those products 

– to make sure the roofer doesn’t turn up on site before the foundations are in. 

Page 166



South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through Programmes  Page | 3 

Project management is the planning, delegating, monitoring and control of all aspects of the 

project, and the motivation of those involved, to achieve the project objectives within the 

expected performance targets for time, cost, quality, scope benefits and risks. 

The second purpose of using a project management tried-and-tested methodology is that 

projects are inherently risky: using a sound approach to control them increases the likelihood 

of success. 

2. Project Management at South Northamptonshire and Cherwell 

District Councils 

 

South Northamptonshire and Cherwell District Councils share a project management 

methodology based on the tried and tested PRINCE2 industry standard approach.  The 

methodology follows these principles: 

• to ensure continued business justification for the project during its delivery 

• learning from experience 

• uses defined and agreed roles and responsibilities 

• work is planned, monitored and controlled on a stage by stage basis 

• objectives are delivered within defined tolerances with defined delegated authority – 

the principal of management by exception 

• work is defined as the delivery of products with clear scope and quality standards 

• the methodology is tailored and scaled to suit the project environment 

The methodology is built on the elements: 

• A business case, to answer the WHY? question 

• A project organisation to answer the WHO? question 

• Specifying quality answers the WHAT? question 

• Plans, to set out the HOW?  HOW MUCH? and WHEN? questions 

• Risk, to deal with the WHAT IF? question 

• Change, to allow IMPACT to be assessed 

• Progress monitoring, to answer the ARE WE THERE YET? question, and the SHOULD 

WE KEEP ON GOING? question 

Page 167



 Page | 4               South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through 

Programmes 

It is scalable to suit small or large projects, and its use is recommended for all projects 

undertaken within both councils.  However, its use is recommended if your project is going to 

use more than £50,000 of Council money, or if it brings change to more than one service or 

council.  

Page 168



South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through Programmes  Page | 5 

2.1. The three stage project management process 

 

 

 

Defining the project 

Options appraisal 

Corporate 

commitment 

Do we have a viable 

and worthwhile 

project? 

 

Detailed definition 

of the project in 

terms of time, 

cost, quality, 

scope, risk and 

benefits 

Project 

organisation set 

up 

Formal approval to 

proceed 

 

Managing the delivery 

of products 

Managing risk and 

resources 

Reporting progress 

and exceptions to the 

Board 

Go/no go decisions at 

stage ends 

 

Embedding the 

change 

Follow-on actions and 

handover 

Decommissioning the 

project organisation 

Lessons learned 

A summary of the documents, records and reports recommended in each of the three stages 

is given at Annex A. 

2.2. The controlled start stage of project management 

Managing a project begins before the formal start of a project is agreed by senior 

management. There are two stages to the start-up: pre-project work to determine if there is a 

viable and worthwhile project and then the formal documenting of what the project is for 

agreement and sign off by corporate management. 

In theory, projects start with a mandate from senior management to do something.  In reality 

this mandate may be a casual conversation to investigate some options, or a minute from a 

Council committee.  It may be an idea from within the team set out as a short proposal.  

Whatever form it takes, it is often not recognised as a mandate until the project is well into 

being specified. 

The SNC & CDC Methodology does not require a mandate, but if you’ve got one, it’s always 

helpful. 

2.2.1. The Pre-Project stage of a controlled start 

The recommended starting point for all projects is a Project Brief, but you are unlikely to be 

in a position to set one out without doing quite a lot of pre-work to clarify what is desirable 

and necessary to achieve the objectives you have in mind.  This might include an options 

appraisal, talking to suppliers to get indicative costs, researching what others have done etc.  

Once you have a project in mind, and have some broad parameters, you can set out the 

Project Brief.  A template for this document is available from the programme office, from the 

intranet, and is also attached as ANNEX B.  The project brief is prepared in order to get 

broad approval to spend further time and effort in working up a project in greater detail.  It 

sets out in broad terms the purpose of the project and the reason it is being proposed.  It 

gives a summary of the Business Case for implementing this change, the main deliverables 

and outputs that will arise, how they will be used and the benefits they will accrue, the key 

Controlled Start: 
Pre-project 

Controlled Start: 
Initiation 

 
Delivery 

Controlled  
Close 

CONTROLLED START DELIVERY CONTROLLED 

Page 169



 Page | 6               South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through 

Programmes 

risks, the main stakeholder groups, and the likely resources required to bring it about – 

financial, effort, knowledge and skills. 

 

Authorisation to proceed to initiation 

If the project, were it go ahead, looks likely to cost less than £50,000 and/or affect just one 

directorate in one Council, then corporate approval to process lies with the Head of Service.  

For all other projects, the project brief is owned by a JMT member whose responsibility it is 

to get JMT’s approval to develop the project further.   

2.2.2. The Initiation Stage of a controlled start 

If approval to go further with a proposed project is granted, the project brief is developed into 

much greater detail as the Project Initiation Document (PID).  Small projects, within a single 

directorate and/or using less than £50,000 of council money, can go straight from PID to 

delivery, with the approval of the Head of Service. 

For all other projects, at this stage the project should be registered with the programme 

office, and the nominated project manager given access to the councils’ project 

management information system called “Project in a Box” and briefed on the use of the 

scheduling tool and risk register tool of that system.  While the PID is in development, and 

before the project is approved, the programme office will provide any support and training for 

the prospective project manager to use the system. 

Compiling the Project Initiation Document (PID) 

The main body of the PID is an extension of the Brief, but covers in more significant detail 

the objectives, the products, what’s in and out of scope, dependencies and interfaces with 

other things, a detailed organisation chart for the project, and very importantly the business 

case for doing it.  The business case will need to cover capital and revenue costs, forecast 

for return on investment, a profile of the spending and return, savings and cashable 

efficiencies.  For projects not governed by Programme Management, the service accountant 

is the key contributor to building the business case.  Projects within a Programme will be 

assigned a project accountant. 

The governance and controls sections of the PID 

The PID has other sections, not used in the Brief, which are concerned with the governance 

of the project specifically:   

How the project is going to engage with stakeholders.  The Stakeholder Engagement 

Strategy provides context for developing a plan for the project, and is attached as Annex C.   

What standards and quality thresholds are going to be applied, and how will tests be used.   

What resources are going to be used by the project – money, skills, people, knowledge, 

information, assets etc., and how are they to be acquired and accounted for.  The Project 

Resource Management Strategy provides the context for developing a project resource plan, 

and is attached as Annex D.   

The schedule for delivery.  This is usually in the form of a Gantt chart which gives a line by 

line duration or delivery point for each of the products listed earlier in the PID.  The schedule 

Page 170



South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through Programmes  Page | 7 

should be compiled using the “Project in a Box” Planner tool.  Where the project is large, 

complex, or being managed externally MS Project is often used for scheduling.  This is quite 

compatible with Project in a Box and is an acceptable option, although the costs of purchase 

and training lie with the service. 

 

The project’s approach to risk.  The Project Risk Management Strategy (based round the 

joint SNC CDC Risk and Opportunity Management Strategy) provides the context for 

developing a risk management plan for the project, and is attached as Annex E.  The risks 

register should be compiled using the “Project in a Box” Planner tool. 

Tolerances are a key, but much under-used tool in project control.  However well you plan, 

something you have costed at £10 will come in at £9.50 or £11.  Something you planned to 

be complete next week will in fact be a fortnight late; something planned to be delivered in 

red is now only available in blue.  Project tolerances set out clearly the discretion the project 

is giving to its project manager to make decisions when things aren’t exactly as set out in the 

PID; tolerances are the linch-pin to managing by exception.   

Anything which comes along which has the ability to change the cost, duration, quality or 

deliverables should not simply be accommodated but assessed as part of a formal change 

control process.  The Issue Resolution and Change Control Strategy provides the context 

for developing a project –specific approach to resolving issues and managing change, and is 

attached as Annex F. 

The purpose of the PID is to get agreement as to what is being produced when, at what cost, 

to what quality, by whom, and with what level of control.  A good PID will allow a project 

manager to get on with delivering, without having to seek decisions from the Project Board, 

or to escalate issues to senior management.  The PID is owned by a member of JMT whose 

responsibility it is to present it to JMT for their approval and agreement.  

Page 171



 Page | 8               South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through 

Programmes 

Page 172



 

South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through Programmes P a g e |9  

2.3. The delivery stage of project management 

Depending on the size and complexity of what is to be delivered, the project may be broken 

up into stages.  At the end of each stage the business case is reviewed by the board to 

ensure it is still valid and that there is still a business justification for the project.  The board 

is responsible for agreeing to progress to the next stage. 

Delivery is focused on the creation of the products set out in the PID, to the specified quality, 

using the agreed resources in the agreed amount of time.   

Managing delivery is the responsibility of the Project Manager; the Project Sponsor retains 

accountability.  There are six key areas the Project Manager must control, and a set of key 

tools for the Project Manager to use in managing the delivery: 

1. Cost: the project budget must be profiled and monitored at an agreed frequency with the 

service accountant.  A standard format for project accounting has been agreed and 

should be used by all projects.  It can be uploaded into “Project in a Box” where 

information can readily be extracted in automatically generated reports. 

2. Timescales: a Project Schedule should be “baselined” at the time the PID is agreed.  

This means it is fixed in place, so that if a date moves, that movement is captured as a 

variance and not just accepted without comment.  Sometimes, if a significant change to 

the planned delivery timetable is required, an alternative schedule has to be developed, 

known as an exception plan.  It is not good practice to simply change the end date!  

Nothing is learned about how change can best be managed if changes to the plan are not 

recorded and examined.  Key milestones and/or a critical path should be identified within 

the project schedule and those milestones are replicated in the Corporate Performance 

Management Framework and reported on quarterly.   The project schedule should be 

stored and monitored in “Project in a Box” where it can readily be extracted in 

automatically generated reports. 

3. Quality: the products created must all be fit for purpose and meet the quality criteria 

established by the senior customer.  There are two tools for ensuring the products are fit 

for purpose is the Product Definition Document, and the Work Package.   

4. Scope: The scope is as agreed in the PID but throughout the project’s life, questions, 

suggestions and problems will all come along, and constitute issues which need to be 

resolved.  Some of these issues will require serious consideration in light of the agreed 

scope, and may result in requests for change.  The Issues Resolution plan for the project 

will set out how this is done, including the role of a change authority board, but all issues 

must be captured and recorded in the project Issues Log, which is maintained in “Project 

in a Box”. 

5. Risk: risks change throughout the project, and decisions are required about whether to 

attempt to reduce or remove them, or to accept them.  These decisions are made in the 

context of the project’s risk plan, and are recorded in the Risk Log, which is maintained in 

“Project in a Box”. 

6. Benefits: The objectives of a project are concerned with what the individual products 

collectively deliver in terms of improvements and change, and the project manager must 

Page 173



 

 Page | 10               South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through 

Programmes 

be concerned that the purpose is kept in view and not lost in the business of delivering 

products. 

2.3.1. Monitoring delivery 

Monitoring delivery is the responsibility of the Project Sponsor.  Monitoring delivery uses a 

standard project report generated from information collated and updated by the project 

manager, and stored centrally in “Project in a Box”.  For small projects which are not using 

“Project in a Box”, a standard paper template Project Status Report is available from the 

programme office, and covers the same information.   

The sponsor should receive a Project Report at agreed, regular intervals from the Project 

Manager.  Very often these reports are produced for Project Board meetings where there is 

an agreed schedule. 

Project reports are automatically generated from the project information stored and updated 

in “Project in a Box” and comprise 

• Summary information about the people involved in the project, the objectives, and 

stages. 

• A standard seven-criteria RAG assessment: 

o Budget status – are we on track 

o Schedule status – are we on time 

o People – are the people or skills Required available as planned 

o Quality – are quality specifications being met 

o Issues status – how are we managing problems, off-spec delivery, and 

requests for change 

o Risk status – new risks, closed risks, escalated risks 

o Communications and stakeholders – are the stakeholders facilitating or 

impeding delivery 

Guidance for how to make a Red, Amber or Green assessment is given at Annex I. 

• A budget monitoring spread sheet 

• An extract from the Project Schedule 

• A list of open risks at Red or Amber, with the actions planned  

• A list of open issues at Red or Amber, with the actions planned 

The Project Board is ultimately responsible for assurance that the project remains on course 

to deliver the desired outcome of the required quality to meet the Business Case defined in 

the Project Initiation Document, and therefore has a key role in monitoring delivery.  While 

the board need not meet unless there are exceptions to the agreed plan, it is common 

Page 174



 

South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through Programmes P a g e |11  

practice to have regular meetings to satisfy the assurance role and to receive the project 

manager’s highlight report. 

The Board must meet towards the end of each stage, or the end of the project if it has just 

one stage.  A these meetings the Project Manager must provide sufficient information to 

enable the board to review success to date, approve the plan for the next stage or the 

project close, confirm the continuing business justification for the project and acceptability of 

the risks.   

Some decisions will be escalated to the Project board where they are out with the tolerances 

agreed in the PID. 

A standard agenda template and standard Action Log are provided for the management of 

board meetings. 

2.3.2. Delivery Monitoring 

 

 

 

 

Page 175



 

 Page | 12               South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through 

Programmes 

2.4. The controlled close stage of project management 

 

The final stage of all projects is the decommissioning of the project organisation, the return 

to the business of any assets commandeered by the project such as rooms or equipment, 

and the preparation of outstanding acceptance processes and handover of follow-on actions. 

 

Page 176



 

South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through Programmes P a g e |13  

2.5. Summary of activity, people, and documents for each stage in the process 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

Defining the 

project: 

What needs to 

change, and why? 

What does the 

changed thing look 

like?  How best to 

change it (Options 

appraisal)?  What 

might it cost in 

money and skills. 

Who’s affected? 

Do we have a 

viable and 

Putting together a 

detailed definition 

of the project: why, 

what, when, how 

much, to what 

quality, within what 

bounds.  Includes a 

comprehensive 

business case, 

detailed schedule 

with milestones, 

stakeholder plans, 

risk plan. 

 

Managing the 

delivery of products 

to specified quality 

as set out in the 

PID, in context of 

plans. 

Managing risk and 

resources. 

Reporting progress 

and exceptions to 

the Board. 

Engaging with 

stakeholders. 

Embedding the 

change. 

Follow-on actions 

and handover. 

Decommissioning 

the project 

organisation. 

Lessons learned 

captured. 

Create: a Project 

Brief 

Refer to: council 

strategic priorities 

Create: a Project 

Initiation 

Document (PID).   

Refer to: 

Resource, risk 

management, 

issue resolution 

and stakeholder 

engage-ment 

strategies. 

Controlled close Delivery Controlled 

start: 

initiation 

Controlled 

start: pre-

project 

P
e
o
p
le
 

Talk to as many 

people with expert 

knowledge as 

possible both about 

the subject and 

finance, procure-

ment, legal, 

communications.   

 

Identify the project 

organisation with 

named people (and 

Members). Identify 

necessary “subject 

matter experts”. 

Involve finance, 

comms, ICT & 

legal.   

Sponsor is 

accountable, 

Project Manager 

responsible for 

delivering what’s 

set out in the PID.  

Project Board 

makes decisions 

about exceptions. 

Create: product 

descriptions. 

Update: risk 

register, issues 

log. 

Review: business 

case. 

Report: highlights 

and exceptions in 

relation to time, 

cost, resources 

and quality. 

Project 

organisation is 

disbanded and 

thanked.  

Programme Office 

closes project and 

hands off 

performance data 

monitoring. 

Create: End 

project report, 

lessons learned 

log, final accounts.   

Prepare: metrics 

for monitoring 

delivery (in P+) 

over coming years. 

Page 177



 

 Page | 14               South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through 

Programmes 

 

3. The people involved in project management 

 

3.1. Roles and Responsibilities 

Role descriptors for all the project organisation roles are attached as Annex H.  In summary 

they are: 

The Project Sponsor (sometimes referred to as the Executive) is ultimately responsible for 

the project, supported by the Senior User and Senior Supplier.  The Sponsor’s role is to 

ensure that the project is focussed throughout its life cycle on achieving its objectives and 

delivering a product that will achieve the forecast benefits.  The Sponsor has to ensure that 

the project gives value for money, ensuring a cost-conscious approach to the project, 

balancing the demands of business, user and supplier. 

Throughout the project, the Sponsor ‘owns’ the Business Case. 

The Project Board is responsible to corporate or programme management for the overall 

direction and management of the project and has responsibility and authority for the project 

within the remit set by corporate or programme management and reflected in the PID. 

The Project Board is ultimately responsible for assurance that the project remains on course 

to deliver the desired outcome of the required quality to meet the Business Case defined in 

the Project Initiation Document.  The Project Board is not a democracy controlled by votes.  

The Sponsor is the key decision maker because he/she is ultimately responsible to the 

business.  He/she is supported by the Senior User and Senior Supplier. 

The Senior Supplier represents the interests of those designing, developing, facilitating, 

procuring, implementing, and possibly operating and maintaining the project products.  This 

role is accountable for the quality of products delivered by the supplier(s).  The Senior 

Supplier role must have the authority to commit or acquire supplier resources required. 

If necessary, more than one person may be required to represent the suppliers. 

The Senior User is responsible for specifying the needs of those who will use the final 

product(s), for user liaison with the project team and for monitoring that the solution will meet 

those needs within the constraints of the Business Case in terms of quality, functionality and 

ease of use. 

The role represents the interests of all those who will use the final product(s) of the project, 

those for whom the product will achieve an objective or those who will use the product to 

deliver benefits.  The Senior User role commits user resources and monitors products 

against requirements.  This role may require more than one person to cover all the user 

interests.  For the sake of effectiveness the role should not be split between too many 

people. 

Page 178



 

South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through Programmes P a g e |15  

The Project Manager has the authority to run the project on a day-to-day basis on behalf of 

the Project Board within the constraints laid down by the board. 

The Project Manager’s prime responsibility is to ensure that the project produces the 

required products to the required standard of quality and within the specified constraints of 

time and cost.  The Project Manager is also responsible for the project producing a result 

capable of achieving the benefits defined in the Business Case.  

Project Assurance is independent of the project manager and is concerned with ensuring 

that the project remains consistent with, and continues to meet, a business need and that no 

change to the external environment affects the validity of the project.  Project Assurance 

must therefore monitor Stage and Team Planning, Work Package preparation and quality 

review preparation. 

 

4. Project Management tools, techniques and training 

4.1. Tools 

4.1.1. Project information system “Project in a Box” 

The main tool available for organising, storing and presenting project information at SNC and 

CDC is a product called “Project in a Box”. 

This online project office system has been procured to allow project information to be stored 

in one place but made available to all, and will allow Officers and Members to have a simple 

view of the current position of any individual project or the programme as a whole.  Provided 

the project manager keeps the information up to date. 

The system has capacity for up to 20 project managers and 40 project team members, with 

unlimited view-only capacity, managed on a password and permissions basis. 

When a project brief is approved, or if a project has started with a PID which is approved, the 

project manager is recommended to register the project with the Programme Office which 

will set up the project within the system and provide initial coaching in how to use the 

Planner tool, comprising a scheduler, risk register and issues register. 

Formal training from system specialists will be provided as soon as possible after the project 

manager is identified, although group sessions are always preferred.  If there is a gap, 

Programme Office staff will provide support to project managers as they become used to 

using the system to update their information and produce their reports. 

Individual documents can be protected and made available only to certain users, and 

individuals can be assigned rights to view, or modify whole projects’ documentation or a 

single file. 

View-only access is through a browser over the internet, with username and password 

access.  Project Sponsors will assign view-only access and with their project manager 

determine individual users’ and documents’ permissions and rights. 

Page 179



 

 Page | 16               South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through 

Programmes 

The system is designed to present information visually and the intention is to move away 

from printed reports and towards on-screen reports, each saved within the system as a read 

only file, thus providing an audit trail of reports throughout the life of the project.  Printed 

reports can be generated. 

 

4.1.2. Microsoft Project 

For large complex projects, Microsoft Project may be used as the scheduling tool.  License 

costs must be picked up by the service concerned, as must training to use the tool, and the 

resulting Gantt chart file stored within Project in a Box so that the information can be 

extracted into reports, and for version control.   

 

4.2. Skills building and training 

Both councils are committed to supporting their staff in the successful delivery of projects, 

and in building capacity within their staff, developing skills, knowledge and experience. 

A formal training and development programme for all Members and staff involved in project 

governance and delivery is available through HR, to ensure both a general level of 

background understanding, and some specific skills and knowledge, leading where 

appropriate to a qualification.  Anyone who is assigned, as part of their job role, a project role 

or participation as a project team member should have participation in this training and 

development programme listed as a necessary training element, in their appraisal 

documentation (EDPR). 

 

4.2.1. Outline Training Content: the methodology  

 

1.  Project Sponsors and board members (Members of JMT, some elected Members…) 

Learning Outcomes:  

Understand project management principles   

Understand the SNC/CDC programme and project management methodology (suggest 

including copies of the PRINCE2 and MSP pocketbooks in the training) 

Projects in programmes 

 Standalone projects 

Understand the role of Sponsor/Member Champion 

 Responsibilities – sponsor as corporate representative, not service champion 

 Characteristics and relationship with Project Manager 

 Project organisation and the other project team roles 

 The role within a programme 

 Setting up projects so Sponsors aren’t bothered by constant questions from PMs!  

Trust,  tolerances and the meaning of exception reporting 

Page 180



 

South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through Programmes P a g e |17  

Familiarity with the tools you will need to use, and which other project team roles will be 

using 

Suite of control documents (Brief, PID, project reports, project close and follow-on 

actions report) 

Suite of governance strategies and their objectives 

Project in a Box – accessing and viewing the project information being stored and 

updated by the Project Manager 

Performance Plus project scorecard and corporate risk register (owned by the 

sponsor, managed by the performance office).  Training from Performance Team. 

  

2. Project managers and project support officers 

These people may be secondees, or external agency staff.     

Learning outcomes: 

Understand the SNC/CDC programme and project management methodology (suggest 

including PRINCE2 foundation exam in the training for secondees) 

Basic principles of PRINCE2 (supported by online learning package) 

Projects in programmes 

 Standalone projects 

Understand the relationship between the Project Manager and Sponsor 

Understand the project board roles of Sponsor, customer and supplier 

Understand the project controls and governance structures 

Familiarity with the tools  

Suite of control documents and reports (Brief, PID, project reports, project close and 

follow-on actions report) 

Records: issues, risks, and financial logs 

Schedules and milestone reporting 

Definition documents: product definitions and work packages 

Major Projects governance strategies and how to use them 

Project in a Box – detailed training  

Performance Plus project scorecard and corporate risk register (owned by the 

sponsor, managed by the performance office, data provided by PM).  Training from 

Performance Team. 

 

3. Members of a project team  

Learning outcomes: 

Overview of the SNC/CDC programme and project management methodology  

Projects in programmes 

 Standalone projects 

Page 181



 

 Page | 18               South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through 

Programmes 

Understand the relationship between the Project Manager and Sponsor, Project Manager 

and Project Team 

Understand the project board roles of Sponsor, customer and supplier 

Familiarity with the tools  

Definition documents: product definitions and work packages 

Project in a Box – detailed training in the specific areas they will be required to 

update 

 

4. Corporate support  (legal, finance, communications, performance) 

Learning outcomes: 

Overview of the SNC/CDC programme and project management methodology  

Projects in programmes 

 Standalone projects 

Understand the relationship between the Project Manager and Sponsor, Project Manager 

and Project Team 

Understand the project board roles of Sponsor, customer and supplier 

Familiarity with the governance strategies and derived project plans for communications, 

resource management, the project budget, risk management  

Reporting requirements – frequency and format of updates 

Project in a Box – detailed training in the specific areas they will be required to update 

Delivered to same-discipline groups (i.e. comms team, accountancy team..) via subject-

specific briefing note (supported by personal briefing) 

 

5. General interest 

Learning outcomes: 

There is a governance structure, and the reasons why 

There is a project management methodology and the reasons why 

That there is support and training for people involved in project delivery 

 

Additional skills and support 

The Programme Office can support the deployment of a range of useful techniques such as 

stakeholder engagement planning, risk identification workshops, resource planning and 

dependency mapping.  

 

Page 182



 

South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through Programmes P a g e |19  

6. Programmes and Portfolios 
 

a. Programme Management 

In May 2012, SNC’s Cabinet and CDC’s Executive approved the governance structure for 

the Council’s major projects.   

Nine major projects and programmes are organised into two programmes (Governance chart 

at Annex J): 

i. Place Programme: 

• Two Sustainable Urban Extensions (Brackley and Towcester) (SNC) 

• Silverstone (SNC) 

• Bicester Eco-town programme (CDC) 

• Bicester town centre (CDC) 

• Brighter Futures in Banbury programme (CDC) 

• Moat Lane regeneration  (SNC) 

• Banbury Developments programme (CDC) 

ii. Transformation Programme: 

• ICT standardisation and harmonisation programme (SNC and CDC) 

• Services transformation programme (SNC and CDC) 

Each project has a Project Board.  The Project Board comprises a Member Champion and 

Officer Sponsor, a representative of the main “customer” of the project’s outputs, and a 

representative of the main “supplier” of the project’s outputs.   Also on the Project Board is a 

representative of the Communications function, Finance function and Legal function.  Project 

Boards may have other members, but this is the minimum. 

The project board has a minimum standard agenda and a recommended meeting frequency 

of monthly; this is variable according to the needs of the project, and subject to approval of 

the Member Champion. 

Each programme has a Programme Board, made up of the Member Champion and Officer 

Sponsor of each of the projects.  The Programme Boards have Terms of Reference 

(attached as Annex K) but their primary function is to ensure the projects are delivering in 

line with corporate strategic objectives.   

The link between the Project Boards and the Programme Board is the Senior Responsible 

Owner (SRO). 

For the Place Programme, Calvin Bell, Director of Development is the SRO. 

Page 183



 

 Page | 20               South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through 

Programmes 

For the Transformation Programme, Martin Henry, Director of Resources is the SRO. 

The Programme Boards are made up like this: 

CDC Councillor SNC Councillor Officer/Project 

Sponsor 

Project 

Cllr Wood Cllr M Clarke Sue Smith Programme Owners 

Place Programme 

Cllr Wood - Calvin Bell Bicester EcoTown 

Cllr Bolster - Chris Stratford Bicester Town Centre 

Cllr Donaldson - Ian Davies Brighter Futures in Banbury 

Cllr Gibbard - Chris Stratford Banbury Developments 

- Cllr R Breese Andy Preston Urban Extensions 

- Cllr Fordham Andy Preston Silverstone 

- Cllr Fordham Chris Stratford Moat Lane Regeneration 

Transformation Programme 

Cllr Turner 

Deputy: Cllr 

Kerford-Byrnes 

Cllr McCord 

Deputy: Cllr S 

Clarke 

Jo Pitman ICT Standardisation and 

Harmonisation 

Cllr Wood Cllr McCord Jo Pitman Service Transformation 

 

b. What do the Programme Boards do? 

Programme governance is concerned with ensuring that potentially high profile and large 

investments by the Council deliver outcomes in line with the Council’s strategic objectives 

and priorities.  The Board’s serve a dual function; they ensure political buy-in, influence and 

engagement for all 9 major projects whilst also having a key role in maintaining focus on 

delivering the outcomes and managing any risks arising from the projects.  

A key part of the Boards’ role is to have oversight of the way resources are used by projects, 

agreeing and monitoring a strategy for resource management within the constituent projects 

(money, assets, people, information, skills) and resolving issues where scarce resources are 

demanded on by other projects in the Programme, or from “business as usual” requirements.  

Lack of clarity on resource usage can put projects, and the ultimate delivery of strategic 

objectives, at risk. 

A further key role is to ensure that all stakeholders are engaged with the programme and to 

agree and monitor a strategy for engagement and communication in relation to the 

programme.  Pro-active engagement with stakeholders is a key part of risk mitigation. 

Page 184



 

South Northamptonshire & Cherwell District Councils |Transforming through Programmes P a g e |21  

The standard Programme Board agenda item is a high level update from the project sponsor 

on the current position of each constituent project or programme, highlighting variance 

against planned time, cost and quality, any key risks that compromise overall delivery of the 

programme objectives, and any intransigent issues and the actions being taken to deal with 

them.   

i. Governance Tools 

The Programme Boards have agreed a set of strategies to provide a standard approach to 

how projects connect with corporate functions.  These are Programme-wide approaches in 

relation to resource management (including a standard approach to project accounting and 

budget monitoring), stakeholder engagement, issue resolution, and risk management.  

These provide the context for the constituent projects to develop their resource management 

plans, engagement plans etc. 

 

c. Monitoring Delivery of the Programmes 

In accordance with the objective of wanting to ensure transparency, accountability and 

Member awareness of all projects, standard milestones for major projects are included in the 

Corporate Performance Management Framework (PMF), giving clear visibility of progress 

being made to all Members, not just those with a role in the two programmes. 

Formal reports will be produced on a quarterly basis as part of the on-going performance 

management process. Performance reports will be received by both Executive at CDC and 

Cabinet at SNC, and Scrutiny (CDC) / Review and Development Committees (SNC). Project 

and Programme Boards will review progress and performance on a monthly basis.   

This approach to using the standard PMF to report progress will mean that all Members, not 

just those with a role of “champion” in the two programmes, will have ready access to 

information about how these important projects are developing in line with their priority status 

within each council. 

In addition, project boards will receive detailed status reports from their project managers, a 

summary of which will be presented to the overarching Programme Board.   

 

d. Schedule of Meetings 

Dates for the Place Programme Board have been planned to coincide with Joint 

Arrangements Steering Group, which itself fulfils the function of Transformation Programme 

Board 

 

 

Page 185



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

Executive 
 

Performance Management Framework 
2012/13 Third Quarter Performance Report  

 
4 March 2013 

 
Report of the Head of Transformation and  

Corporate Performance Manager 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report covers the Council’s performance for the period 01 October to 31 
December 2012 as measured through the Performance Management Framework.  
 

 
This report is public 

 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To note the many achievements referred to in paragraph 1.3. 

(2) To identify any performance related matters for review or consideration in 
future reports identified in paragraph 1.4  

(3) To note progress on issues raised in the Quarter two report highlighted in 
paragraph 1.5 

 
 
 
Executive Summary 

 
 Introduction 
 
1.1 This is a report of the Council’s performance in the third quarter of 2012/13 

measured through the performance management framework. The report 
covers key areas of performance, these are: performance against the 
Council’s 17 public pledges; financial performance, human resources 
performance and customer feedback as well as progress against the 
Corporate Priorities and associated performance measures. 

 
The scorecard also contains performance information surrounding the 
Corporate Plan, Corporate Equalities Plan, Brighter Futures in Banbury, Major 
Programmes and Significant Partnerships. 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 187



 

   

To measure performance we use a ‘traffic light’ system where Green is 100% 
of the target met, Amber 90% and above, and Red below 90% and detailed 
performance indicators and commentary is presented in the appendices to this 
report.   

 
1.2 Although this is primarily a report of corporate performance, the Council’s 

performance management framework also includes monitoring at the 
directorate level against service plans and strategies. The majority of 
operational performance issues are dealt with at service and directorate level. 
However significant service successes and issues are reported upwards and 
where appropriate included in this report.  

1.3 Proposals  

The Executive is asked to note the significant progress made in delivering the 
Council’s objectives.  
 
 
Performance Highlights 
 
Particular highlights include: 

 
Cherwell: A District of Opportunity 

• 103 affordable homes have been delivered within the district at the end of 
Quarter three, exceeding the target of 100 homes and supporting 
opportunities for developing self builds. 

• Strengthening the leisure and retail facilities in Banbury and Bicester, Bolton 
Road is making good progress, a meeting has been held with Aberdeen 
Properties, and possible design solutions have been taken forward to a 
meeting with a potential supermarket.  

A Cleaner Greener Cherwell  

• The Council has been involved in a successful county-wide partnership bid 
(led by the Health Service) that has secured funding to run the Warm Homes 
Healthy People scheme again this winter.  Extensive promotion is planned. 

• Eco Bicester houses are expected to for building to start in early 2013 
following discharge of planning conditions and obligations. Building of houses 
has not started as yet. 

A Safe, Healthy and Thriving District 

• Oxfordshire County Council has a list of 78 families as part of the Thriving 
Families group to share with the attendees of the fortnightly Joint Agency and 
Tasking Coordination Group.  

• 75% of grass pitches in South West Bicester Sports Village are constructed 
(drained and seeded) but work has now been suspended until ground 
conditions improve in the spring.  

• Funding and planning approvals have been given for the new hospital on the 
existing site. Awaiting financial close and construction is due to start in early 
2013. 

Page 188



 

   

• Support volunteering across the district – This is now reporting as Green, 
development through Voluntary Organisations Forum, plus reactive support 
on one to one basis has been delivered. Volunteering arrangements with 
Citizens Advice Bureau are now back on track and volunteers have been 
successfully placed with several organisations. 

 
           An Accessible Value for Money Council 

• Secure savings of £800,000 to help meet medium term financial deficit has 
been achieved to date and savings built into the draft 2013/14 budget. (note: 
by the time of this meeting of the Executive, the budget will have been set). 

• Improving our website and access has been furthered by the Webteam and 
the Customers Services team who meet monthly to review the ‘top tasks’ 
features on the homepage to ensure the high demand services are easily 
accessible online. A re-branding exercise is underway to have the same look 
and feel across all service pages providing a seamless view for the customer. 

• The average speed to answer calls has improved to 1minute 9seconds from 
1minute 27seconds, with a decrease of 20.8% calls being abandoned. 

1.4 General Overview 

The performance management framework allows Councillors to monitor the     
progress made in delivering our objectives and to take action when 
performance is not satisfactory, risks to performance are identified or new 
issues arise. The report also contains direction of travel to highlight areas 
prior to them becoming an issue. There are a number of such items identified 
in this report and we recommend officers should report on the latest position, 
implications, and the action they are taking in the next quarterly performance 
report. These are: 

Cherwell: A District of Opportunity  

• The Brighter Futures in Banbury programme is reporting Amber due to 
significant changes with the theme leads, this is a potential risk to the 
programme. Currently the programme is broadly on track with funding support 
given to the Banbury Street Pastors and also integration with the Thriving 
Families project supporting some of the most vulnerable families in Banbury. 

A Cleaner Greener Cherwell 

• The recycling rate is below the 2011/12 outturn due to a growth in landfill 
tonnage especially since street sweepings can no longer be composted. 
Landfill tonnage is up 1000 tonnes on last year, half of this is due to a change 
in policy from the Environment Agency. We continue to strive to increase the 
recycling rate within the district with a target of above 57% for 2013/2014. 

A Safe Healthy and Thriving District 

• The roll out of the “best bar none” scheme is reporting as Amber and has 
done for the last 3 performance reports. A steering group of members and 
lead assessors (had to be trained) have been identified. This was initially 
delayed due to assessors requiring training. A meeting held at South 
Northants Council has identified a local training course, all assessors will be 
trained during April 2013. Two day training course has been confirmed in 

Page 189



 

   

Northampton. Partnership Inspector Storey is currently working on the 
delivery plan. 

• Support the local NHS to retain and develop health services at the Horton 
General Hospital – This is reporting as Amber. The Community Partnership 
Network is in transition to examine a range of new roles regarding the health 
and social care sector reforms.  In the meantime Oxford University Hospitals 
Trust is continuing to respond to a very challenging financial savings target 
which when coupled with technological improvements in clinical care and 
continuing national changes and directives to how services are to be 
delivered means that further service change at the Horton appears inevitable. 

An Accessible Value for Money Council  

• The number of complaints referred to the Ombudsman for Quarter 3 is 7, an 
increase of 4 from Quarter two. 6 of these complaints were within Planning 
and all related to the permission given for two garages. The remainder 
complaint was regarding business rates. 

1.5         Issues raised in the Quarter two performance report with progress for Quarter 
three. The RAG is included in the below with an indication of whether the 
issue has been rectified or is on-going. 

Issues raised in the Quarter 2 
Report 

Progress update 

Delivering 500 new homes in 
year is off target with a 
provisional figure of 121 
completions at mid-year 

This is still reporting as Red, this is due 
to an ambitious target, taking into 
account the current economic climate 
and has been reported as red all year. 
However South West Bicester is 
progressing and Bankside development 
has been agreed. 

Secure implementation of new 
policy for Developer 
contributions 

This is reporting as Amber this is due to 
the new policy not yet having been 
implemented as the focus on the Local 
Plan has been the priority. It is likely 
that this target will be red at year end.   

Processing of major applications 
within 13weeks (NI 157a) 

This is still reporting as Red, 4 out of 16 
applications determined within time. 
Given the current difficult economic 
climate and the need to deliver growth, 
the management approach has been 
one of ensuring sound planning 
outcomes (by allowing time to amend 
applications and negotiate planning 
obligations) rather than concentrating 
on the 13 week deadline.  With low 
numbers of major applications the 
percentage of applications is a volatile 
measure and this also makes it difficult 
to achieve.  Notwithstanding this 
objective we have reviewed our 

Page 190



 

   

approach in the light of government 
proposals and have agreed a set of 
actions to address performance on 
majors.  Those applications with 
complex S106 will always be difficult to 
meet, but the actions should result in 
improved performance without 
prejudicing the stated philosophy. 
 
 

% Planning appeals allowed 
against refusal decision 

This is now reporting Green due to no 
appeals allowed in Quarter 3 

 
 
1.6       In this report we show that at the third quarter the Council continues to    

make strong progress on delivering its ambitions to improve the services 
delivered to the public and against key projects and priorities.  The report also 
highlights a small number of areas which the Council needs to keep under 
review to ensure targets are met. It also demonstrates the Councils proactive 
performance of management of issues raised. 

 
Background Information 
 
           Progress on issues raised in the last Executive performance review and 

any change in performance from the last Quarter report. 
Quarter three performance report identified areas where targets had not been 
met or in some areas where emerging issues had been identified. Below are 
the issues raised and an update on progress. 

  
2.1      Overview of Performance 
 

Paragraphs 2.1 – 2.13 provide a more detailed summary of the Councils 
performance against its comprehensive performance and risk framework. The 
detailed performance indicators and commentary against each of these are 
contained within appendices A to F. 

 
2.2      Corporate Scorecard – Corporate Plan Pledges  
 

The Corporate Scorecard includes the 17 pledges which were included in the 
2012/13 Council Tax Leaflet and sent to every household in Cherwell.  Of 
these are 14 Green, 3 Amber and 0 Red.  These pledges directly reflect the 
Council’s four strategic priorities and public priorities.  

 
Positive Performance 
 
Resources Directorate 

• Improve level of customer satisfaction with our services – Cherwell District 
Council’s new Citizen Panel is in operation, the first Annual Survey has been 
completed with a satisfaction of 75% achieved. 
 
Community and Environment Directorate 

• Deliver 100 affordable homes in the District and support opportunities for self-
build and developing self-build skills – Target has been achieved, 103 homes 

Page 191



 

   

have been delivered at the end of Quarter 3. Homes are now starting to be let 
in Kingsmere Bicester by Bromford Housing. 
 

• Continue to give Cherwell residents the opportunity to take advantage of low 
cost discounted insulation under the new Green Deal replaces discount 
funding - The Green Deal Community Interest Company (CIC) partners have 
submitted a bid for Dept. for Energy and Climate change (DECC) funding to 
assist with start-up. A separate start up bid has been made by the council in 
connection with Eco Bicester (the CIC scheme does not depend on these 
bids being successful). The Council has been involved in a successful county-
wide partnership bid (led by the Health Service) that has secured funding to 
run the Warm Homes Healthy People scheme again this winter.  Extensive 
promotion is planned. 
 

• Continue working with our partners to provide support to the most vulnerable 
individuals and families in the District - Oxfordshire County Council now has a 
list of 78 families to share with Joint Action Tasking and Coordination Group 
for focussed interviews. This reflects solid partnership working achieved as 
part of the Brighter Future in Banbury Programme. 
 
 
Performance Areas of Concern  
 
Resources Directorate 
No areas to report 
 
Development Directorate 
No Areas to report 
 
Community and Environment Directorate 

• Increase the household recycling rate to 60% - Reporting as Amber. 
Recycling rate is looking to be below 11/12 outturn due to a growth in landfill 
tonnage especially since street sweepings can no longer be composted.  
Landfill tonnage is up 1000 tonnes on last year and half this is due to a 
change in policy from the Environment Agency. Typically Cherwell recycles 
around 1200tonnes (which equates to 2%) and this is now getting sent to 
landfill. We are working with County Council to look at other options. 

 

• Reduce the Council's carbon footprint by 4% by further improving the energy 
efficiency of our buildings and vehicles – Reporting as Amber. There has 
been a delay in retrieving the data but at mid-year emissions had reduced by 
2.8% against the 4% target.  There is a risk that the 4% target will not be fully 
met. 

 
2.4      Corporate Scorecard: Financial Performance  
 

There are two finance targets, relating to predicated variance against revenue 
and capital budgets. Both are Green. There are no issues of concern at this 
point.  

 
2.5      Corporate Scorecard: Human Resources  
 

Page 192



 

   

Two Human Resources indicators are monitored: staff turnover; days lost 
through sickness; and organisational resilience.  Turnover and sickness are 
both reporting Green.  

 
2.6      Corporate Scorecard – Customer Feedback 
 

Three key measures are covered: speed of telephone response, customer 
satisfaction as measured through bi-annual mystery shopping and customer 
complaints. Speed of response calls is currently reporting Amber as referred 
to earlier. 

 
2.7       Corporate Programmes   
 

The ‘major programmes’ template attached as appendix C. This new template 
reflects the Council’s ambitious improvement programme around place based 
regeneration and development and service transformation to deliver 
improvement and efficiency.  

 
It should also be noted that the template covers both Cherwell and South 
Northamptonshire programmes, reflecting the shared nature of the agenda. 
There is one area reporting as Amber relating to Cherwell detailed below 

 
- ICT Shared Services - While the budget status on this project is green the 
overall amber status reflects the schedule position with 45% of the work 
streams currently being at amber with 10%, one work stream being at red.  
That work stream is the remote access work, the proposed delivery of which 
is currently not compatible with Windows 8. 

 
2.8     Corporate Equalities Plan  
 

The corporate equalities plan is a cross-council plan that aims to improve 
customer access, tackle inequality and disadvantage, build strong 
communities and improve community engagement. It also ensures that the 
Council is compliant with all equalities legislation.  

 
During the last year there have been a number of changes to the legislation 
and the Council’s plans and polices reflect this. As legislation changes 
Cherwell District Council equalities policies are reviewed. Details in Appendix 
D – All reporting Green 

 
2.9     Brighter Futures in Banbury  
 

The Brighter Futures in Banbury programme is a long term and strategic 
priority for the Council and the Cherwell Local Strategic Partnership. It is part 
of a wider county approach to break the cycle of deprivation and tackle 
disadvantage. In Banbury the programme aims to address seven key themes: 

 
1. Early Years community learning and young people’s attainment 
2. Employment support and skills 
3. Family support and Not in Education Employment or Training (NEET) 
4. Financial Inclusion and Housing 
5. Health and wellbeing  
6. Safer and stronger communities 
7. Performance and Community Engagement 

 

Page 193



 

   

Full Details in Appendix E – Missing data from partners, overall reporting as 
Amber as detailed above. 

 
2.10     Significant Partnerships  
 

The Council has identified 17 partnerships as significant due to the level of 
resources involved, and the impact on the local community.  Many of the most 
significant and difficult issues we face, crime, the environment, economic 
development, can only be tackled if agencies work together.  Of these 
partnerships 7 are county wide (including the County Local Strategic 
Partnership and its supporting thematic partnerships) the remaining 
partnerships are specific to the Cherwell district and directly support our 
strategic priorities. Appendix F – Overall reporting as Green 

 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
3.1 This report presents the Council’s performance against its corporate 

scorecard for the second quarter of 2012/13. It includes an overview of 
successes, areas for improvement and emerging issues to be considered.   

The following options have been identified. The approach in the 
recommendations is believed to be the best way forward 

 
Option One (1) To note the achievements referred to in paragraph 1.3 

(2) To recommend that officers report in the fourth quarter 
on the items identified in paragraph 1.4 where 
performance was below target or there are emerging 
issues or risks. 

(3) To agree the recommendations outlined in paragraph 
1.5 and 1.6 identifying areas of improvement and 
areas of further consideration for review.  

 
Option Two To identify any additional issues for further consideration 

or review.  
 

 
Consultations 

 
No specific consultation on this report is required. However, it should be noted that 
several indicators are based on public consultation or customer feedback.   
 
Implications 

 

Financial: Financial Effects – The resource required to operate the 
Performance Management Framework is contained within 
existing budgets. However the information presented may 
lead to decisions that have financial implications. These 
will be viewed in the context of the Medium Term Plan & 
Financial Strategy and the annual Service & Financial 
Planning process. 

Efficiency Savings – There are none arising directly from 
this report. 

Comments checked by Sarah Best, on behalf of Head of 
Finance, 0300 0030106 

Page 194



 

   

Legal: There are no legal issues arising from this report.  

 Comments checked by James Doble on behalf of the 
Monitoring Officer, 0300 0030107 

Risk Management: The purpose of the Performance Management Framework 
is to enable the Council to deliver its strategic objectives.  
All managers are required to identify and manage the 
risks associated with achieving this.  All risks are logged 
on the Risk Register and reported quarterly to the Audit 
Committee. 

Comments checked by Claire Taylor, Corporate 
Performance Manager. 

Data Quality Data for performance against all indicators has been 
collected and calculated using agreed methodologies and 
in accordance with Performance Indicator Definition 
Records (PIDRs) drawn up by accountable officers. The 
council’s performance management software has been 
used to gather and report performance data in line with 
performance reporting procedures. 

Comments checked by Louise Tustian, Senior 
Improvement & Performance Officer. 

 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 
The Performance Management Framework covers all of the Council’s Strategic 
Priorities  
 
Executive Lead Member 

 
Councillor Nicholas Turner    
Lead Member for Performance Management and Improvement 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix A 
Appendix B 
Appendix C 
Appendix D 
Appendix E 
Appendix F 

Performance Summary Scorecard  
Corporate Business Plan 
Major Programmes 
Equalities 
Brighter Futures in Banbury 
Significant Partnerships 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Louise Tustian 2 

Contact 
Information 

Tel: 01295 221786 

Louise.tustian2@Cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk 

 

Page 195



Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



   

CHERWELL DISTRICT COUNCIL   
Executive 
March 2013 

 
Performance Summary – Corporate Business Plan – Third Quarter 2012     
 
      
 
Key to Performance Report 
 
Corporate Priorities        Performance Indicators **   

Green On track  towards outcomes Green On or over target 

Amber  Making progress Amber Up to 10% under target 

Red Not making progress Red More than 10% under target 

 
** please note there are monthly, quarterly and annual targets, where appropriate in-year RAG status is adjusted accordingly.  
 
RAG     Red Amber Green Status 
DOT     direction of Travel compared to previous quarter   
 
Contents – 
Appendix A – Performance Summary Scorecard 
Appendix B – Corporate Business Plan 
Appendix C – Major Programmes 
Appendix D – Equalities 
Appendix E – Brighter Futures in Banbury 
Appendix F – Significant Partnerships 

 

              
 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
7



Performance Summary Scorecard           Appendix A 

CDC Quarter 3 Performance Report         page 2 

Corporate Pledges   

A District of Opportunity 

Service Tasks Q1 
RAG 

Q2 
RAG 

Q3 
RAG 

Latest Commentary 

Strategic 
Planning & the 
economy 

Continue to support skills development, 
apprenticeships & job clubs in order to reduce the 
number of young people not in education, employment 
or training 

Green Green Green 

On track 
 

Strategic 
Planning & the 
economy 

Complete the local plan as the foundation for economic 
growth in the district 

Green Green Green 

On track 

Regeneration & 
housing 

Deliver 100 affordable homes in the District and 
support opportunities for self-build and developing self-
build skills 

Green Green Green 

103 homes delivered to end of Q3  
Target achieved.  Homes now starting to be let at Kingsmere Bicester by Bromford Housing. 

Regeneration & 
housing 

Continue to strengthen the leisure & retail facilities in 
Banbury & Bicester Town Centres 

Green Green Green 

Bicester Town Centre redevelopment works are progressing slightly ahead of programme and on 
target to open in summer 2013 on a date to be advised soon.  Recent announcements by Tesco have 
caused much consternation for all Stakeholders and the site staff are continuing to work to the 
planned programme 
Bolton road: Meeting held in December with Aberdeen Properties to discuss ideas and potential 
occupier interest.  Potential design solution is to be taken forward to a meeting with a supermarket 
operator by Aberdeen Properties architects in January. 
Spiceball:  The Environment Agency have confirmed they are happy with the findings of the 
environmental works for the Spiceball site which allows working with Scottish Widows architects on 
potential uses and design.  

A Cleaner Greener Cherwell 

Environmental 
Services 

Increase the household recycling rate to 60% Green Green Amber 
Recycling rate is looking to be below 11/12 outturn due to a growth in landfill tonnage especially 
since street sweepings can no longer be composted.  Landfill tonnage is up 1000 tonnes on last year 
and half this is due to a change in policy from the Environment Agency 

Environmental 
Services 

Improve local residents' satisfaction with street & 
environmental cleanliness continuing our successful 
programme of neighbourhood litter blitzes 

n/a Green Green 

The recent Annual Customer Satisfaction Survey placed satisfaction with street and environmental 
cleanliness at 69%   

Environmental 
Services 

Reduce the Council's carbon footprint by 4% by 
further improving the energy efficiency of our 
buildings and vehicles 

Green Green Amber 

There has been a delay in retrieving the data but at mid-year emissions had reduced by 2.8% against 
the 4% target.  There is a risk that the 4% target will not be fully met. 

Regeneration & 
housing 

Continue to give Cherwell residents the opportunity 
to take advantage of low cost discounted insulation 
under the new Green Deal replaces discount funding 

Green Green Green 

Green Deal preparations continue.  The Green Deal Community Interest Company (CIC) partners 
have submitted a bid for Dept. for Energy and Climate change (DECC) funding to assist with start-up.   
A separate start up bid has been made by the council in connection with Eco Bicester (the CIC 
scheme does not depend on these bids being successful). 
Grants to part fund energy efficiency improvements to private rented accommodation (including 
insulation) continue to be available in the form of Cherwell Energy Efficiency Project (CHEEP) grants. 
The Council has been involved in a successful county-wide partnership bid (led by the Health 
Service) that has secured funding to run the Warm Homes Healthy People scheme again this winter.  
Extensive promotion is planned. 

P
a
g

e
 1

9
8



Performance Summary Scorecard           Appendix A 

CDC Quarter 3 Performance Report         page 3 

Strategic 
Planning & the 
economy 

Begin construction of the Eco-Bicester houses Green Green Green 

Construction of the houses is expected to begin in early 2013 following the discharge of planning 
conditions and obligations 

A Safe Healthy And Thriving District 

Public 
protection & 
Development 

Work with local police and licence holders to roll out 
the "best bar none" scheme which will help make our 
town centres safer in the evenings 

Amber Amber Amber 

Potential steering group members and lead assessors identified. This was initially delayed due to 
assessors requiring training. A meeting held at South Northants Council has identified a local training 
course, all assessors will be trained during April 2013. Two day training course has been confirmed 
in Northampton. Partnership Inspector Storey is currently working on the delivery plan. 

Community 
Services 

Continue working with our partners to provide 
support to the most vulnerable individuals and 
families in the District 

Green Green Green 

Oxfordshire County Council now has a list of 78 families to share with Joint Action Tasking and 
Coordination Group for focussed interviews. 

Community 
Services 

Complete the layout of the sports pitches at the 
South West Bicester Sports Village and finalise 
plans for the Pavilion 

Green Green Green 

75% of grass pitches are constructed (drained and seeded) but work now suspended until ground 
conditions improve in the spring.  Work to the cycle track is being progressed 

Community 
Services 

Inspire young people to take up new sporting 
opportunities during the Olympic Year 

Green Green Green 
Initiatives delivered with North Oxfordshire School Sports Partnership 

Community 
Services 

Support the local health sector in building a new 
community hospital in Bicester 

Green Green Green 
Funding and planning approvals given for the new hospital on the existing site.  Awaiting financial 
close and construction start in early 2013. 

An Accessible Value for Money Council 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Secure savings of at least £800,000 to help meet 
the medium term financial deficit 

Green Green Green 
Over 100% achieved to date and built in to Draft 13/14 budget. 

Transformation 
Improve level of customer satisfaction with our 
services 

Amber  Green Green 
CDC’s new Citizen Panel is in operation, the first Annual Survey has been completed with a 
satisfaction of 75% achieved. 

IT 
Continue to improve our website, the ease of 
accessing our services & giving feedback online 

Green Green Green 

The Web team and customer services meet monthly to review the top tasks featured on the home 
page.  This ensures high demand services are easily accessible on line.  A re-branding exercise is 
underway to have the same look and feel across all service pages providing a seamless view for the 
customer.  

Financial and Human Resources Performance  

Finance  & 
Procurement 

Percentage variance on revenue budget 
expenditure against profile (+2%/-5%) 

Green Green Green 
-2% at Q3  -  refer to Executive Quarter 3 Finance and Procurement Report 

Finance & 
Procurement 

Percentage variance on capital budget expenditure 
against profile (+2%/-5%):   

Green Green Green 
0% at Q3  incl slippage subject to agreement at March Cabinet. Refer to Executive Quarter 3 
Finance and Procurement Report.  

HR Staff turnover (voluntary leavers) Green Green Green 
There were five  voluntary leavers in Q3  

HR Number of days lost through sickness Green Green Green 

Average day’s sickness per FTE was 4.72 days for April – December which is higher than the same 
period last year which was 4.06 days. 
58% short term absence and 42% long term absence 
Sickness has increased on the same period  last year which was 2.7 days per FTE 

Customer 
Services 

Speed of response to telephone calls Red Red Amber 
Average speed to answer calls in Q3 was 1 min 9 seconds with 20.8% of calls abandoned 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
9



Performance Summary Scorecard           Appendix A 

CDC Quarter 3 Performance Report         page 4 

CDC Corporate Priorities 2012-2013 

A DISTRICT OF OPPORTUNITY  

Work with partners to tackle disadvantage in the district 

Tasks Q1 Q2 Q3 Latest Commentary 

Support vulnerable residents through tough times focussing on 
homelessness prevention and housing advice at current levels of 
performance 

Green Green Green 

The number of households in temporary accommodation in December was 31.   Use of temporary 
accommodation remains within the target level and so this indicator is on track. 

Support local people into work (Job Clubs &  apprenticeships) and 
prepare for the impact of Government reform to welfare and the benefits 
system 

Green Green Green 

. 
On track 

Deliver the Brighter Futures in Banbury programme Green Green Amber 

2012/13 programme priorities established.  Review of performance indicators and data underway 
due to extent of changes since Brighter Futures Programme commenced.  Funding support given to 
Banbury Street Pastors.  Thriving Families initiative integrated locally within Brighter Futures 
activities. 
Whilst the programme is on track the Amber signifies on-going changes with theme leads. There is 
a risk that reference will suffer due to on-going change.  

Balance economic development and housing growth 

Promote local economic development through business advice and 
support, inward investment and the Local  Enterprise Partnerships 

Green Green Green 
 
 

Progress the Community Housing Project with HCA  investment partner 
(31 dwellings) 

Green Green Green 
Good progress being made.  First dwellings should be achieved in this financial year. 

Deliver 500 new homes including through planned major housing 
projects. 

Red Red Red 
The Local Plan policies are aimed at achieving economic growth and maintaining housing supply.  
However market conditions are affecting the level of house building. 

Develop a robust and locally determined planning framework 

Prepare an Infrastructure Plan for CDC & prepare for introduction of 
Community Infrastructure Levy 

Green Green Green 
A draft Infrastructure Plan is contained within the Local Plan.  Community infrastructure Levy will 
proceed once the Local Plan is submitted. 

Secure implementation of new policy for Developer contributions Green Amber Amber 
The new policy has not yet been implemented whilst work has focussed on completing the Local 
Plan. 

Protect and enhance the quality of the built environment by completion 
of Conservation Area Reviews and strong design guidance for all new 
developments 

Amber Green Green 

A number of Conservation Area Appraisals have been completed including the Oxford Canal with 
SNC.  Design guidance is being prepared as part of the pre application forum on all strategic sites in 
the Local Plan. 
There are 60 conservation areas in the district and there is a rolling plan to complete 6 per year. 
 

Work to improve the quality and vibrancy of our town centres and urban areas 

Progress the commercial development of Bicester Town Centre and 
consider the plans for development of the community building 

Green Green Green 

Bicester Town Centre progressing well and on target to open as planned summer 2013 
The community building is slightly delayed due to the necessary procurement protocol with plans 
expected to be submitted in March. 

Complete a Masterplan for Bicester Green Green Green 
The draft Masterplan has been consulted upon and will be completed once the Local Plan is adopted 

P
a
g

e
 2

0
0



Performance Summary Scorecard           Appendix A 

CDC Quarter 3 Performance Report         page 5 

Tasks Q1 Q2 Q3 Latest Commentary 

Complete a Masterplan for Banbury Green Green Green 
A draft plan is in preparation by White Young Green on behalf of CDC - the concept Masterplan has 
been adopted by CDC Executive. 

Make progress on the Canal Side Regeneration programme in Banbury Green Green Green 
The Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) is nearing completion to accompany the preparation of the 
development programme for the site. 

Prepare detailed planning guidance for the future redevelopment of the 
Bolton Road area in Banbury 

Green Green Green 
The SPD is nearing completion to accompany the preparation of a development programme for the 
site 

 
Performance Measure 

Q1 Q2 
Target 

12/13  
Q3 

RAG & 
DOT 

Progress commentary 

Housing 

Number of households living in temporary accommodation (NI 156 ) 26 32 33 31 Green ââââ 
Effective prevention of homelessness continues to ensure minimal use of 
temporary accommodation 
 

Housing advice: repeat homelessness cases 0 0 1 0 Green àààà  
Effective homelessness prevention continues to ensure zero cases of 
repeat homelessness  
 

No of affordable homes provided (cumulative) 27 66 100 103 Green áááá Target achieved 

Benefits 

Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax 

Benefit new claims and change of circumstances (NI181) 
6.06 
days 

6.88 
days 

11 days 6.8 days Green àààà  

Performance slipped back in December due to reduced performance on 
new claims.  However this was compensated by a higher proportion of 
automatically processed changes.  Overall well within target. 
 

Average time taken for new Housing Benefit / C Tax claims 20.38 

17.55 
days  
Sept 
2012  

18 days 
profiled 

17.06 
days Dec 
2012 

Green áááá 

Performance remains just within target.  However it slipped back 
significantly compared to the two previous months.  This was due to 
reduced resources available to Capita as staffed used up annual leave 
entitlement ahead of Capita’s leave year ending.  This was further 
compounded by sickness.  Moving forward further challenges will be 
presented by preparation for Year End and significant testing required for 
the new iworld release.  Therefore it is possible that performance in the 
final quarter will be outside of the target. 
 

Average time taken for Housing Benefit /C tax changes of circumstances 4.97 

5.71 
days 
Sept 
2012 

9 days 
profiled  

5.6 days 
Dec 2012 

Green áááá 
A high proportion of automatically processed changes in December 
mitigated the reduced staff resource at Capita.  Consequently 
performance exceeded the target and is expected to continue.  

BV079bi.05 % HB Recovered: Overpayment 

87.31
% 
 June 
2012 

81.56% 
Sept 
2012 

78% 
83.69% 
Dec 2012 

 
Green áááá Consistently above target throughout Q3 

BV079bii.05 % HB Recovered: including outstanding 

12.76
% 
June 
2012 

22.41% 
Sept 
2012 

33% 
31.91% 
Dec 2012 

Amber áááá  

BV079biii.05 % HB O'Pay: Written Off 
0.37% 
June2
012 

1.17% 
Sept 
2012 

4% 
1.83% 
Dec 2012 

Green ââââ  

P
a
g
e
 2

0
1



Performance Summary Scorecard           Appendix A 

CDC Quarter 3 Performance Report         page 6 

 
Performance Measure 

Q1 Q2 
Target 

12/13  
Q3 

RAG & 
DOT 

Progress commentary 

Development 

Net additional homes provided - NI 154 44 77 500 106 Red  áááá 
Provisional figures only as all housing must be reconciled officially at the 
end of a financial year – total so far 227 

Processing of major applications within 13 weeks (NI 157a) 50% 16% 60% 25% Red  áááá 

4 out of 16 applications determined within time 
Given the current difficult economic climate and the need to deliver 
growth, the management approach has been one of ensuring sound 
planning outcomes (by allowing time to amend applications and negotiate 
planning obligations) rather than concentrating on the 13 week deadline.  
With low numbers of major applications the percentage of applications is 
a volatile measure and this also makes it difficult to achieve.  
Notwithstanding this objective we have reviewed our approach in the light 
of government proposals and have agreed a set of actions to address 
performance on majors.  Those applications with complex S106 will 
always be difficult to meet, but the actions should result in improved 
performance without prejudicing the stated philosophy. 

NI 157b Processing of minor applications within 8 weeks 88% 80% 65% 69% Green ââââ 69 out of 109 applications determined within time in Q3 

NI 157c Processing of other applications within 8 weeks 86% 88% 80% 86% Green ââââ 232 out of 270 applications determined in time in Q3 

% Planning appeals allowed against refusal decision 0% 77% 30% 0% Green áááá No appeals allowed in Q3  

Conservation Areas Appraisal target n/a 4 6 0 Amber 

Four conservation area appraisals are nearing completion.  The public 
consultation for Hornton was on 13 December 2012.  After a six week 
consultation period the document will be finalised and submitted in 
February 2013.  Cropredy will be consulted on in January and final 
document submitted in March 2013.  South Newington will be consulted 
on in February 2013 with final submission in April.  North Newington will 
be consulted on in February 2013 with final document to be submitted in 
April. 

Percentage of Conservation areas with published Management Plans - 60 100 60 Amber 
There are 60 conservation areas and 80 % have character appraisals and 
60% have management plans in place 

Percentage of houses developed on previously developed land 6 57.1 25 38 Green The figure is for Q3 only – this is an annual indicator linked with NI 154 
net additional homes therefore mid-year figures are only a guide 

Supply of ready to develop housing sites – 5 year land supply 
62.10
% 

n/a 100% n/a ANNUAL 
At April 2012 there was a 3.1 year land supply for deliverable housing 
sites which does not meet the government requirement of 5 years plus a 
buffer. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
a
g

e
 2

0
2



Performance Summary Scorecard           Appendix A 

CDC Quarter 3 Performance Report         page 7 

A SAFE, HEALTHY AND THRIVING DISTRICT 

Work with partners to support the development of safe and thriving local communities and neighbourhoods 

Tasks Q1 Q2 Q3 Latest Commentary 

Continue to provide wide range of recreational activities/opportunities 
for young people across district 

Green Green Green 
Recreation Activators continue to provide opportunities across the District 

Work with partners to maintain already low levels of crime in the district Green Green Green 

All targets on track. 

Reduce chronic Anti-Social Behaviour cases Green Green Green All outstanding Top Ten Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) cases progressing 

Reduce the number of metal theft incidents Green Green Green 

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1963 amended to make the purchase of scrap metal for cash illegal.  All 
scrap metal dealers with premises compliant.   
Itinerant scrap metal dealers still able to purchase scrap metal from customers if exempt under 
section 3b of the act.  All itinerant dealers on CDC register advised of requirement to seek 
exemption. 
 

Work with partners and businesses to support public health and safety Green Green Green 
Primary Authority Partnership with Sainsbury’s still performing well.  New Primary Authority 
Partnership with National Caterers Association (NACSS) being explored. 
 

Support the local community, voluntary and not for profit sectors to play an active role in the district 

Work with the local voluntary sector to provide advisory services for the 
local community 

Green Green Green 
Quarterly reviews held with Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) in respect of all aspects of the contract.  
Full review of contract implementation to be undertaken during Q4. 

Support volunteering across the district Green Amber Green 

Development through Voluntary Organisations forum plus reactive support on one to one basis as 
requested.  Volunteering arrangements with CAB are now back on track and volunteers have been 
placed with several organisations. 
 

Provide good quality recreation and leisure opportunities in the district  

Establish the Trust arrangements to secure the long term future of 
Banbury Museum and maintain access for the community 

Green Green Green 
Project milestones reached.  Shadow board have held their first meeting and work streams have 
been established and progressed as necessary 

Support improvement of local health facilities, services and standards across the district 

Work to promote active and independent lifestyles amongst older people Green Green Green Working with older people groups across the district to help make them more sustainable  

Work with partners to deliver 40 active lifestyle sessions monthly for 
older people 

Green Green Green 
Reduced number of sessions delivered in December due to holidays 

Support the local NHS to retain and develop health services at the 
Horton General Hospital 

Amber Green Amber 

The Community Partnership Network is in transition to examine a range of new roles regarding the 
health and social care sector reforms.  In the meantime Oxford University Hospitals Trust is 
continuing to respond to a very challenging financial savings target which when coupled with 
technological improvements in clinical care and continuing national changes and directives to how 
services are to be delivered means that further service change at the Horton appears inevitable. 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
3



Performance Summary Scorecard           Appendix A 

CDC Quarter 3 Performance Report         page 8 

 
Performance Measure 

Q1 Q2 
Target 
12/13  

Q3 
RAG 
& 

DOT 
Progress commentary 

Community Safety 

% Residents when asked say they feel safe in town centres n/a n/a 54 59 Green áááá Annual customer survey shows an improvement on previous year 

% of nuisance cases dealt with within the prescribed timescale 
(maximum of 48 hours 

98.78 94.8 96 96 Green áááá 
Drop in performance in December due to 2 cases being delayed 

% of nuisance cases resolved within 8 weeks 100 99 96 95 Amberââââ 
Performance slipped in November but was back on target in December. 

Number of anti-social behaviour incidents involving high and 

medium risk victims 
11 8 28 4 

Amber 
áááá 

Year to date figure is 23 against a profiled target of 21 
No high risk ASB cases received during the quarter.  This reflects the early 
intervention approach taken by the ASB co-ordinator and the team by 
monitoring repeat callers and responding before the problem becomes 
chronic. 
 

Reduce all crime incidents reported by 1% (per 1000 Pop) 13.5 14.8 57.2  14 
Amber 

ââââ 

Profiled target is 43 and mid-year actual is 42.2 
Although performance slipped in November overall the district is on a 
trajectory to make a 1% reduction. 
 

Reduce violence against the person with injury incidents 

by 5% (per 1000 Population) 
0.84 0.9  3.84 0.7 Green ââââ 

Profiled target is 2.88 and actual is 2.46 
Night time economy policing is continuing to impact on levels of violence 

Reduce domestic burglary incidents reported 

by 5% (per 1000 Population) 
0.31 0.25  1.44 0.35 Green áááá 

123 burglaries from April – Dec (0.9%) 
Good work at the beginning of the year is keeping the partnership on track 
although October and November saw a sharp rise in burglary.  These spikes 
occur and are largely due to individuals locally or small teams from out of the 
area.  Police disruption through targeted patrol/interaction with likely suspects 
and focussed investigation usually recovers the situation. 
 

Leisure 

Increase participation in active recreation by 1% (NI 8) n/a n/a  22.4 24.9 Green áááá 
Annual figure from Active Survey Dec 2012 - shows increase in sport take up. 
 

Maintain current levels of visits/usage to the modernised 
district leisure centres, Spiceball, Bicester and Kidlington 

309,900 308,409  
1,164,75

6 
276,53
9 

Green ââââ 

SLC and KGLC figures slightly up on December 2011.   BLC swimming 
figures down as a consequence of play “n” teach pool closure.  Also to note is 
Parkwood have upgraded Legend system and have had difficulties pulling off 
data from the system.  Further analysis to be undertaken 
 

Maintain current levels of visits/usage to Woodgreen Leisure, 
North Oxfordshire Academy and Cooper School 

22,018 35,645  88,822 42,145 Green áááá 
Sites performing well however some cancellations due to frozen pitches 

 

 

 

 

P
a
g

e
 2

0
4



Performance Summary Scorecard           Appendix A 

CDC Quarter 3 Performance Report         page 9 

A Cleaner, Greener District 

Provide excellent waste collection and recycling services, working to reduce the amount of waste produced and to increase recycling across the district 

Tasks Q1 Q2 Q3 Latest Commentary 

Reduce the amount of waste sent to landfill Green Amber Red 
Landfill tonnages are almost 1000 tonnes up on last year which is attributed to a change of policy re 
street sweepings from the Environment Agency 
 

Maintain the current high levels of customer satisfaction with our 
recycling and waste collection services 

Green Green Green 
Customer satisfaction levels in the latest satisfaction survey are good.   For further information 
please see associated report 

Work to ensure our streets, town centres, open spaces and residential areas are clean, well maintained and safe 

Work with local communities to continue the programme of 
neighbourhood litter blitzes 

Green Green Green 
Litter blitz programmes on track – next blitz is Glory Farm in January 

Work to reduce our impact on the natural environment, limit our use of natural resources and support others in the district to do the same 

Work with partners to improve the energy efficiency of homes & enable 
more residents to achieve affordable energy bills 

Green Green Green 
Continuing to work with United Sustainable Energy Agency (USEA) to improve energy efficiency of 
homes 

Work with partners to support the development of Eco-Bicester as a national exemplar, creating a vibrant place where people choose to live, to work and spend their leisure time in sustainable ways 

Work with partners to progress the delivery of the vision for Eco-
Bicester 

Green Green Green 
The Project Team continues to work with partners to progress the development of Eco Bicester and 
the delivery of the vision. 

Start work on site for the initial housing development at North West 
(NW) Bicester 

Green Green Green 
Work expected to start on the housing development at North West Bicester in early 2013 

Ensure continued opportunities for local people to participate in the Eco-
Bicester programme 

Green Green Green 

A planning application to extend the use of the Eco Bicester demonstration building was submitted 
in December.  The building will continue to provide opportunities for local people to participate.  The 
project team continues to ensure local people participate for example through press releases, 
events and websites. 

 
Performance Measure 

Q1 Q2 
Target 

12/13  
Q3 

RAG & 
DOT 

Progress commentary 

Environmental 

Percentage of waste recycled or composted 60.1 60 60 58 Amber ââââ 
Recycling rate is similar to last year but composting is up and dry 
recyclates is down.  Street sweepings are now excluded   

Residual household waste per household in kgs per hh 107 kg 109kg not set  n/a 
 

Number of fly tips – cumulative figure with annual target 96 210 467 359 Green ââââ   

Number of risk based food premises inspections completed 180 341 
464 

profiled 
515 Green áááá 

Performance is good and we are ahead of the planned target for this time 
in the year.  January and February however are busy months and this will 
reduce this early lead. 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
5



Performance Summary Scorecard           Appendix A 

CDC Quarter 3 Performance Report         page 10 

An Accessible, Value for Money Council 

Provide value for money and a financially sound organisation, minimising the impact of smaller council budgets on frontline and priority services 

Tasks  Q1 Q2 Q3 Latest Commentary 

Develop and implement an effective approach to address the financial 
impact of Government welfare reform 

Green Green Green 
Local Government Resources Review (LGRR) project is managing requirements and analysis 

Ensure the Council's budget is matched to strategic priorities 
demonstrating and promoting the Council's commitment to value for 
money and effective service delivery 

Amber Amber Amber 

Reflected in budget plans 

Work with partners to reduce Council costs 

Implement/embed shared back office systems to secure efficiencies Green Green Green On-going and on track – HR and Legal outstanding 

Implement a Shared ICT service Green Green Green 
Phase two of the programme of ICT standardisation is currently being undertaken and the 
November Programme highlight report is reporting Green and on target.  An additional temporary 
ICT desktop resource is in place to help mitigate a 44% increase in service requests. 

Explore further opportunities with partners to share or provide services, 
thereby reducing costs or maximising income 

Green Green Green 
Discussions continue 

Demonstrate that we can be trusted to act properly for you by being transparent about our costs and performance 

Improve the information available to the public about our costs and 
performance, and promote understanding, accountability and 
opportunity 

Green Green Green 

Performance reports published regularly 

Consult with local residents in a cost effective manner to ensure the 
Council has a good understanding of local priorities 

Green Green Green 
The new citizen’s panel has been consulted with the community and the satisfaction results are 
positive. See separate Annual Satisfaction report for further details on the results. Overall 
Satisfaction with services provided has increased from 68% to 75%. 

Work to ensure we provide good customer service through the delivery of high quality and accessible services 

Improve levels of satisfaction with and access to information provided 
by the Council 

Green n/a Green 

The new citizen’s panel has been consulted with the community and the satisfaction results are 
positive. Levels of satisfaction with access to information have increased, Cherwell Link remains the 
most popular source of information about the Council increased from 57% to 66%. 
 

Improve access to services and advice by increasing online payment 
and appointment options 

Green Green Green 
Online forms have been developed and are available on our website for Planning, Enforcement and 
Planning Pre App enquiries.  Access to webcasting is now available on mobile and tablet devices.  
Currently in the process of moving to a hosted online forms package. 

 
Performance Measure 

Q1 Q2 
Target 

12/13  
Q3 

RAG 
& 

DOT 
Progress commentary 

Finance 

 
Percentage of Council Tax collected 

29.82 57.93 
87 

profiled  
86.16 

Amber 
áááá 

 

Percentage of NNDR collected 32.91 60.04 
87.5 
profiled  

87.5 
Green 
áááá 

 

P
a
g

e
 2

0
6



Performance Summary Scorecard           Appendix A 

CDC Quarter 3 Performance Report         page 11 

 
Performance Measure 

Q1 Q2 
Target 

12/13  
Q3 

RAG 
& 

DOT 
Progress commentary 

Percentage of Invoices paid within 30 days 98.2 98.9 98.3 98 Green ââââ Christmas period resulted in invoices being delayed 

Customer Services 

% Telephone calls abandoned  9.9 9.8 10 20.8% Red ââââ 
Average length of call waiting is 1 minute 09 seconds  

Number of Stage One complaints received 49 48 228 35 Green áááá 
 

Number of Stage Two complaints received 3 3 8 5 
 

Amber 
ââââ 

 

Number of Stage Three complaints received 6 1 4 1 Red àààà 
8 received so far this year against a target of 4 for the year 

Number of complaints referred to Ombudsman 
 
9 
 

3 19 7 Red ââââ 
During Q3 7 Ombudsman complaints were received.  The six in Planning all 
related to the permission given for two garages and there was another case 
regarding business rates.    

Car parking revenue 
£381.44
5 

£416,82
0 

£1,512,8
11  

£331,3
02 

Green ââââ 
Drop in income due to festive free parking periods 
Total income to date £1,129,567 v target of £1,129,313 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
7



P
a
g

e
 2

0
8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

 

 

 

Business Plan 

2012/13 
 

Introduction 

Appendix B 

Page 209



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 2 

 

 

Welcome to Cherwell District Council’s business plan for 2012/13. This document sets out 
the Council’s aims and objectives for the coming year, taking into account the priorities and 
aspirations of the communities and people who live and work here. Our business plan is 
based on a strategic understanding of the challenges and opportunities facing our district 
and consultation with local businesses and residents to determine local requirements.  In 
2008 we set out four priorities in our corporate strategy and improvement plan. This 
business plan represents the final year of that 5 year strategy.  

During 2011/12 the Council has continued to deliver high quality services, new projects and 
innovations. Some highlights include: 

• our work to support local people in times of economic hardship through our job clubs 
and apprenticeship schemes 

• the delivery of over 100 affordable new homes in the district 

• commencing work on the redevelopment of Bicester Town Centre  

• working to support the voluntary sector with a new advisory and volunteering contract 
established with the Citizen’s Advice Bureaux improving access to advice services 
for residents across the district 

• ensuring high rates of recycling, street cleanliness and neighbourhood litter blitzes to 
improve the quality of our local environment  

Looking forward we face many opportunities and challenges and during 2012/13 we are no 
less ambitious.  Our capital programme outlines projects in excess of £18m which will bring 
direct benefit to the district; these include redevelopment in Banbury and Bicester town 
centres, investment in both affordable housing and sports provision within the district.  

2012/13 is the third year we have frozen council tax. We have been focused in our pursuit of 
efficiencies, working to make savings in the way we run the Council whilst protecting 
frontline services. An example of this is our innovative partnership with South 
Northamptonshire Council where a joint Chief Executive and Senior Management Team will 
save the Council a total of £686,000 per year whilst maintaining our core and frontline 
services.   

During 2012/13 we are aiming to make further efficiency savings of £800,000 and to 
maintain existing levels of performance across core services. This business plan outlines our 
performance pledges for the year, our major projects and key objectives. We remain 
committed to working effectively with our partners to ensure high quality services are 
delivered in times of financial constraint. We are also keen to use the new freedoms for local 
communities and public service providers to provide better and more locally determined 
services. 

We hope you find this business plan useful, and if you have any feedback or would like to 
discuss the business plan in more detail please get in touch using the contact details on 
page 13. 
 
Councillor Barry Wood Sue Smith  

  

Leader of Cherwell District Council  Chief Executive, Cherwell District and South 
Northamptonshire Councils 

Page 210



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 3 

 

An overview of Cherwell  

 

Cherwell District covers an area of 590 square kilometres (228 square miles) in north 
Oxfordshire. Named after the River Cherwell which flows through it, the District is located 
between London and Birmingham, at the most northern point of the South East region, 
where it meets the West Midlands and East Midlands. Cherwell borders Oxford City, South 
Oxfordshire, Vale of White Horse, West Oxfordshire, Aylesbury Vale, South Northants and 
Stratford on Avon Districts. The M40 passes through Cherwell and there are good rail 
connections to both London and Birmingham. 
 
Approximately 137,600 people live in in the district with more than 62 per cent of the 
population living in the principal centres of Banbury, Bicester and Kidlington; the remainder 
in more than 70 smaller settlements of between 50 and 3,500 people. The majority of the 
District (85 per cent) is made up of attractive farmland with 14 per cent lying within the 
Oxford Green Belt, contributing to making Cherwell the twelfth least densely populated 
district in the South East.  
 
The District also has a rich built heritage, with approximately 3,000 listed buildings and more 
than 50 conservation areas. The population of Cherwell increased by almost 12 per cent 
between 1991 and 2001 and has increased by at least 4.5 per cent since then. Growth 
predictions of a further 8 per cent by 2016 and a cumulative 15.6 per cent by 2026 are 
significantly higher than regional and national rates. Most of the recent growth has been in 
the towns of Banbury and Bicester and this will continue. Bicester’s population is projected to 
grow by 13.8 per cent between 2001 and 2016. The Council is working with its partners to 
ensure that the levels of housing growth required across the District can be accommodated, 
while protecting and enhancing the character of our urban centres, villages and landscapes.  
 
Cherwell’s population’s profile is changing. The 2001 Census showed that 3.9 per cent of the 
district’s population was of non-white ethnic origin. These low numbers were generally highly 
dispersed, apart from high concentrations in some Banbury wards (such as Grimsbury 
where 10.9per cent was of black or minority ethnic origin). 2006 estimates indicate that the 
non-white population has grown to 5.9per cent overall. In 2001 7.5 per cent of the population 
considered themselves to belong to a group other than white British. By 2006 this had grown 
to 10.7 per cent. Research and experience demonstrates that this growth has come and 
continues to come from migrant workers from Polish and other Eastern European 
communities.  
 
Cherwell now has the highest proportion of 0-15 year olds in Oxfordshire and there is strong 
demand from parents and their children for affordable activities for young people. By 2031 
the population is forecast to age dramatically, with numbers in each of the over 65, over 75, 
and over 85 bands increasing by at least 23 percentage points above national rates, and by 
more than 47 percentage points for over 85s. We have to continue anticipating the future 
services required by our older population, building on our strong track record of ensuring the 
needs of older residents are met. The Council is focused on ensuring that our services are 
accessible to all people living in the District.  
 
 
 

 
For more information about the county and district go to https://data.oxfordshireobservatory.info/IAS/ 

 

Page 211



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 4 

 

 

Council Priorities and Business Plan 2012/13 

 

Our long term vision for the district is ambitious. Working with our partners in the public, 

private and voluntary sectors we are aiming to build a district with a diverse economy. We 

are working to secure opportunities for all, and to help grow vibrant, thriving communities 

connected by a sense of pride, place and purpose. 
 

To help deliver this vision the Council has four strategic priorities. These priorities shape the 

work we do, our services, plans and major projects. They are outlined below: 

 

Our business plan for 2012/13 is based around these four strategic priorities, with each 

having a set of key objectives, actions and targets. These are outlined in more detail on 

pages 5 to 8. In addition to our strategic priorities we have an ambitious programme of 

projects which will help to deliver long term benefits to the district. These are: 

è Eco-Bicester delivery of the Eco-Bicester development, helping to provide an innovative 

and sustainable place to live and work   

è Bicester Town Centre Redevelopment improving the retail and leisure offer in Bicester 

town centre 

è Banbury Brighter Futures working to address disadvantage and health inequalities in 

Banbury town 

è Joint Working and Service Transformation reducing the base cost of back office 

services to protect frontline and core service delivery 

Page 212



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

A District of Opportunity  
 

 

Develop a robust and locally determined planning framework. 

• Complete a draft local development framework  and submit for 

adoption 

• Prepare an Infrastructure Plan for Cherwell District and prepare for 
introduction of Community Infrastructure Levy  

• Secure implementation of new policy for Developer contributions 

• Protect and enhance the quality of the built environment by completion 

of Conservation Area Reviews and strong design guidance for all new 

developments 

Balance economic development and housing growth. 

• Deliver 500 new homes including through planned major housing 

projects 

• Deliver 100 affordable homes in the district 

• Promote local economic development through business advice and 

support, inward investment and the Local Enterprise Partnerships 

• Progress the Community Housing Project with HCA investment partner 
(31 dwellings) 

Work with partners to tackle disadvantage in the District. 

• Support vulnerable residents through tough times focusing on 

homelessness prevention and housing advice at current levels of 

performance 

• Work with our partners to reduce the number of young people not in  

• education employment or training across the district  

• Support local people into work (job clubs and apprenticeships)  and 

prepare  

• for the impact of the Government reform to welfare and the benefits 

system  

 

Work to improve the quality and vibrancy of our town centres and urban 

areas. 

• Progress the commercial development of  Bicester Town Centre and 

consider the plans for development of the community building 

• Complete a Masterplan for Bicester 

• Progress Canalside regeneration & redevelopment of the Bolton Road 

area in Banbury. 

Page 213



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A Cleaner, Greener District  
 

 

Provide excellent waste collection and recycling services, working to 

reduce the amount of waste produced and to increase recycling across 

the district. 

• Increase the household recycling rate to 60% 

• Reduce the amount of waste sent to landfill 

• Maintain the current high levels of customer satisfaction with our 

recycling and waste collection services 

 

 

Work to ensure our streets, town centres, open spaces and residential 

areas are clean, well maintained and safe. 

 

• Improve levels of residents’  satisfaction with street and environmental 

cleanliness  

• Work with local communities to continue the programme of 

neighbourhood litter blitzes 

 

 

 

Work to reduce our impact on the natural environment, limit our use of 

natural resources and support others in the district to do the same. 

• Reduce the Council’s carbon footprint by 4% (includes buildings, fleet 

mileage etc.) 

• Work with partners to improve the energy efficiency of homes and 

enable more residents to achieve affordable energy bills 

 

 

 

Work with partners to support the development of Eco-Bicester as a 

national exemplar, creating a vibrant place where people choose to live, 

to work and spend their leisure time in sustainable ways. 

 

• Work with partners progress the delivery of the vision for Eco-Bicester  

• Start work on site for the initial housing development at North West 

Bicester 

• Ensure continued opportunities for local people to participate in the 

Eco-Bicester programme 

Page 214



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A Safe, Healthy and Thriving District  

Work with partners to support the development of safe and thriving 

local  

communities and neighbourhoods.  

 

• Continue to provide a wide range of recreational activities and 

opportunities for young people across the district  

• Work with partners to maintain already low levels of crime in the 

district  

• Work with partners and businesses to  support public health, safety 

Support the local community, voluntary and not for profit sectors to 

play an active role in the district. 

• Work with the local voluntary sector to provide advisory services for 

the local community  

• Support volunteering across the district 

• Adopt an integrated  community development approach to ensure the 

Council’s provides value for money and addresses local need 

Provide good quality recreation and leisure opportunities in the district. 

• Progress the sports pitches at the South West Bicester sports village 

• Maintain current high levels of visits/usage to district leisure centres 

• Establish the Trust arrangements to secure the long term future of 

Banbury Museum and maintaining access for the community 

Support improvement of local health facilities, services and standards 

across the district. 

• Work to promote active and independent lifestyles amongst older 

people  

• Support the local NHS to retain and develop health services at the 

Horton General Hospital  

• Continue to support new and improved health services in Bicester and 

the surrounding area 

Page 215



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

An Accessible, Value for Money Council 

 

Provide value for money and a financially sound organisation, 

minimising the impact of smaller council budgets on frontline and 

priority services. 

• Develop and implement an effective approach to address the financial 

impact of Government welfare reform  

• Understand and plan for the implications of the Local Government 

Resources Review specifically the changes to localisation of business 

rates and council tax benefit 

• Secure savings of £800,000 taking account of the national changes to 

Local Government Funding 

• Ensure the Council’s budget is matched to strategic priorities 

demonstrating and promoting the Council’s commitment to value for 

money and effective service delivery. 

 

Work with partners to reduce Council costs. 

• Implement/embed shared back office systems and services to secure 

efficiencies 

• Implement a shared ICT service 

• Explore further opportunities  with partners to share or provide 

services, thereby reducing costs or maximising income 

 

 

Demonstrate that we can be trusted to act properly for you by being 

transparent about our costs and performance. 

• Improve the information available to the public about our costs and 

performance, and promote understanding, accountability and 

opportunity  

• Consult with local residents in a cost effective manner to ensure the 

Council has a good understanding of local priorities 

 

Work to ensure we provide good customer service through the delivery 

of high quality and accessible services. 

• Improve levels of customer satisfaction with our services  

• Improve  levels of satisfaction with and access to  information 

provided by the Council  

• Improve access to our services and advice by increasing online 

payment and service options 

 

Page 216



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 9 

 

Performance Pledges 2012/13 
 

Every year from the key objectives and actions detailed across our strategic priorities several 

are highlighted as performance pledges. They are key activities that reflect local priorities 

and these pledges demonstrate our commitment to the delivery of important local services 

and new projects to help make Cherwell a great place to live.  Our pledges are included 

within the council tax leaflet that goes to every household in the district, every quarter the 

Council’s Executive reviews progress and in our annual report, published at the end of each 

financial year.  For 2012/13 our pledges are: 

 

è Continue to support skills development, apprenticeships and job clubs in order to reduce the  

number of young people not in education, employment or training. 

è Deliver 100 affordable homes in the district and support opportunities for self build and      

developing self build skills 

è Continue to strengthen the leisure and retail facilities in Banbury and Bicester town centres. 

è Complete the local plan as the foundation for economic growth in the district.  

 

è Increase the household recycling rate to 60%  

è Improve local residents’ satisfaction with street and environmental cleanliness continuing our 

successful programme of neighbourhood litter blitzes.  

è Reduce the Council’s carbon footprint by 4% by further improving the energy efficiency of our 

buildings and vehicles.  

è Continue to give Cherwell residents the opportunity to take advantage of low cost, discounted 

insulation until the new Green Deal replaces discount funding. 

è Begin construction of the Eco-Bicester houses.  

 

è Continue working with our partners to provide support to the most vulnerable individuals and 

families in the district.  

è Support the local health sector in building a new community hospital in Bicester  

è Complete the lay out of the sports pitches at the South West Bicester sports village and 

finalise   plans for the pavilion.  

è Inspire young people to take up new sporting opportunities offered throughout the district        

during the Olympic year.   

è Work with the local police and licence holders to roll out the ‘best bar none’ scheme which 

will     help make our town centres safer in the evenings. 

 
 

è Secure savings of at least £800,000 to help meet the medium term financial deficit  

è Improve levels of customer satisfaction with our services. 

è Continue to improve our website, the ease of accessing our services and giving feedback 
online 

An Accessible, Value for Money Council  

A Safe, Healthy and Thriving District 

 

A Cleaner, Greener District 

A District of Opportunity  

Page 217



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 10 

 

A focus on delivery  

 

Performance, accountability and transparency  

As part of our annual business planning process 

we follow a clear cycle. We consult with business 

and residents to understand local priorities, we 

work with our partners to agree priorities and 

objectives and set a budget to deliver them, finally 

our services develop plans to ensure we meet our 

commitments and we monitor and report upon our 

progress.  

During operational service planning every staff 

member has a performance appraisal and is set 

targets and objectives to ensure they are working 

to meet the Council’s priorities.  

We report our performance on a quarterly basis 

and it is reviewed by the Executive. This role is 

undertaken by the lead Executive Member for 

performance and organisational change. A 

monthly performance briefing note is also 

published on our website. 

 
Improvement and Innovation 

The Council has robust plans in plans to deliver improvement and increased efficiency given 

the challenging national economic circumstances currently being faced. 

During 2012/13 we have a transformation programme that aims to deliver savings of at least 

£800,000. We will achieve this through mixture of exploring opportunities for joint working 

with neighbouring authorities and a good example of this is our plan to develop a shared ICT 

service during 2012. We will also work with our suppliers to identify procurement savings, 

reduce our energy costs, increase the amount of our services that can be accessed online 

and generally improve our business processes.  

As well as working to reduce our basic costs we are focused on delivering improvement 

through innovation. Over the last few years we have developed a number of innovative 

approaches and for 2012/13 some of our show case projects include development of Eco-

Bicester, the Bicester town centre redevelopment and work to regenerate Bolton Road in 

Banbury. Our Miller Road housing project aims to improve skills for local young people and 

deliver self-build affordable housing, this work will continue during 2012/13 and has been 

shortlisted for a national innovation award by the Local Government Chronicle.   

 

Reporting our performance  

Page 218



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 11 

 

Every quarter we review our performance. The table below outlines our performance 

scorecard. As with any business we report on a number of measures with reflect the 

council’s priorities and core activities. These include the performance pledges, customer 

feedback and resources. We also review our business plan targets, the performance of key 

council services, major programmes and projects and our work with commercial and 

voluntary sector partners.  

This approach helps to ensure we monitor the performance of our whole organisation. 

Where we identify issues we report actions to be taken to the Executive.  

Details about our performance and expenditure are published on a monthly basis and can be 

found on the finance and performance pages of our website. www.cherwell.gov.uk   

 

Managing our Resources  

As a result of the comprehensive spending review in 2010 it was announced that the Council 

would receive a 26% reduction in formula grant for the period 2011/12-2014/15. Cherwell 

District Council has a strong track record of delivering significant efficiency savings and 

since 2007/08 we have reduced our base budget by 33%. For 2012/13 we have met the 

challenge of setting a robust budget in line with our priorities. The revenue budget for 

2012/13 is outlined below.  

Revenue Budget 2012/13  

Strategic Priority 

2012/13 Budget  

Spend per 

Head of 

Population 

% spend by 

strategic 

priority 

  £'s Net £ % 

A District of Opportunity. 4,225,073 30.51 32% 

A Cleaner Greener Cherwell. 4,130,962 29.83 31% 

A safe, healthy and thriving Cherwell. 2,546,326 18.39 19% 

An accessible , value for money council 2,340,247 16.90 18% 

Total Net Service Expenditure 13,242,608 95.61  

Centrally Controlled Items 1,416,624  10.24  

Total Net Expenditure 14,659,232  105.86  

 

Page 219



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 12 

 

Capital Budget 2012/13 

The Council also has an ambitious capital programme and an aspiration to regenerate the 
two market town towns of Banbury and Bicester whilst not forgetting to invest adequate 
financial capital resources across the rest of the district for the people who live and work 
here. We aim to do this by delivering high quality programmes which will significantly boost 
the economic prosperity of the area and create much needed jobs and investment. 
 
Cherwell District Council has a main Capital Investment Programme for 2012/13 with some 
schemes going up to 2014/15. The total cost of the strategy is £18.7m of which £13.7m is 
planned to be spent in 2012/13. The programme is funded through a mixture of grants, 
capital receipts and other Council resources. 
 
Like all public sector organisations, we face challenging economic conditions. The main 
schemes into which the capital investment is being focused, will help to achieve better 
housing conditions, improved vehicles for refuse collection and recycling, and more 
environmentally friendly facilities for the tax payers of the district to use. The table below 
shows the schemes approved for the 2012/13 Capital Programme. 
 

Capital Scheme Profile for 
2012/13 

 
New Schemes 12/13  

   
Capital Bid Scheme Title 

2012/13 
£000s 

Bicester Town Centre 
Redevelopment 

 £5,000,000   Ferriston Roof Repairs £18,500 

South West Bicester Sports Village  £829,000   Thorpe Way Roof Repairs £10,000 

Bicester Pedestrianisation  £250,000   
Discretionary Housing 
Grants 

£325,000 

Sports Centre Modernisation 
Programme 

 £249,000   
Mandatory Disabled 
Facilities Grant 

£860,000 

Old Bodicote House  £236,000  
Cherwell Community Led 
Housing Programme  

£2,333,332 

Land Claypits Lane Bicester  £187,000   District of Opportunity £3,546,832 

Purchase of Temp Accommodation 
Bryant House and Edward St 

 £132,000   
Recycling Bank 
Replacement Programme 

£25,000 

Disabled Facilities Grants  £100,000   
Environmental Services 
Vehicle Replacement 
Programme 

£425,000 

Bicester Cattle Market Car Park  
Phase 2 

 £90,000   
Environmental 
Improvements Grimsbury 

£30,000 

Dashwood Road Affordable 
Housing 

 £66,000   Cleaner and Greener £480,000 

 
Biomass Heating for 
Bicester Leisure Centre 

£385,000 A selection of additional schemes 
each totalling under £50,000 

£310,000 
 

 Energy Efficiency Projects £80,000 

Total 
 £ 

7,449,000  
 

ICT Infrastructure 
(Business Case) 

£220,000 

   
Accessible Value for 
Money 

£685,000 

Grand Total  £12.2 m  TOTAL £4,711,832 

 

More details about our budget can be found in the Council’s budget book which 

accompanies this document and is available on the finance pages of our website. 

www.cherwell.gov.uk 

  

Page 220



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 13 

 

 

 

 

Getting in touch  

 

Throughout the year the Council provides opportunities for local people to have their say. 

Whether this be through customer satisfaction surveys, budget consultation, consultation on 

new projects and services, talking to local business organisations or feedback via our link-

points or web site we are keen to listen to what people like and what needs to be improved. 

Our consultations are published on our one-stop consultation portal which can be found at:  

http://consult.cherwell.gov.uk/portal/ 

However, if you would like to feedback back about any other matter you can do so using the 

contact details below.  

Click 

8888 

Consultation inbox: consultation@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 
To find and email your ward councillor: http://modgov.cherwell.gov.uk/mgFindCouncillor.aspx 

Call 

)))) 

The Performance and Consultation team: 01295 221575 

Customer Services: 01295 227001 

Write 

**** 

The Performance and Consultation Team 
Bodicote House 
Bodicote 
Banbury 
Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA 

 

For general enquiries our contact details are via the web site www.cherwell.gov.uk or the 
customer service team 01295 227001.  

 

Page 221



Cherwell District Council Business Plan   2012/13 

 

 
  Page 14 

 

 

 

Alternative formats 

 

This document is available in alternative formats and languages, please contact 01295 

227001:  

 

Page 222



Appendix C

Programme Council
Quarter 1

30/06/2012

Quarter 2

30/09/2012

Quarter 3

31/12/2012

Direction 

of Travel
Comments on Performance

Eco Town Bicester Cherwell District Council A G G ð
The exemplar planning permission is the first eco-town planning permission to be granted nationally.  A 

business case for the business centre is currently in development.

Bicester Town Centre Cherwell District Council G G G ð
The main structure are in place and external cladding is being applied.  The car park decking is almost 

complete.  All slippage has been recovered and the project is back on track.

Banbury Brighter Futures Cherwell District Council G G G ð
2012/13 programme priorities established. Review of performance indicators and data underway due to extent 

of change since BF Programme commenced. Funding support given to Banbury Street Pastors. Thriving 

Families initiative integrated locally with BF activities.

Moat Lane South Northants Council G G G ð

The full application has been made and is being considered by the Planning Department with a planned 

determination date of February 14 2013.  Progression has been made with regards to determining the 

archaeology mitigation works required by the County archaeologist.  These wills tart in January in conjunction 

with the demolition works, and will take approximately six weeks.

Silverstone South Northants Council G G G ð

The Silverstone UTC Groundbreaking ceremony took place on Friday 14 December 2012.  At the project 

steering group that day Gresham college confirmed they now have appointed the Principal Designate, Neil 

Pattinson, previously chief engineer at McLaren Automotive.  Planning approval for the Silverstone UTC was 

granted by SNC Development control Committee on 1 November 2012 for the construction of a new school 

within the circuit.. catering for up to 576 students between the ages 14 -19.  Enabling works and construction 

commenced on site at the beginning of December and will be the first building as part of Phase 1 of the 

Silverstone Masterplan.

Sustainable Urban Extensions

                  Brackley
South Northants Council G G   A ò

The project is moving towards a conclusion with all the work now focussed on issuing a decision notice.  

Progress is currently delayed due to landowners seeking increased value which could have an impact on the 

viability of the scheme in the long term.

Sustainable Urban Extensions

                  Towcester
South Northants Council   A   A G ñ

The applicant is now working towards requirements of the agreed PPA and has submitted amended plans.  

Consultation is under way.  Work is about to start on design standards and viability testing.  Other key issues 

that still need to be resolved are education provision, the relief road and community infrastructure contributions.

ICT Shared Services
Cherwell District Council & 

South Northants Council 
G   A   A ò

While the budget status on this project is green the overall amber status reflects the schedule position with 

45% of the workstreams currently being at amber with 10% , one workstream being at red.  That workstream is 

the remote access work, the proposed delivery of which is currently not compatible with Windows 8.

Service Transformation
Cherwell District Council & 

South Northants Council
G G G ð

Service Transformation is currently still at the project definition stage but has a green status because planning 

and definition work on some of the key elements such as SNC relocation and EDRM scoping and business 

case preparation is under way

Major Programmes 2012/13 :  Quarter 3

Transformation Programme

Place Programme

P
a
g
e
 2

2
3



P
a
g

e
 2

2
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Appendix D

Quarter 1

30/06/2012

Quarter 2

30/09/12
Quarter 3

31/12/2012
Comments on performance

  To ensure Cherwell District Council and our 

  Partners treat the public fairly regardless of their 

  background or way of life

G G G

Effective consultation events this quarter have included both the Cherwell Disability forum and Faith Forum 

consulting on the following topics:  Stop Hate UK launch in Cherwell, Impact on the Community with regards to the 

forthcoming Welfare Reform

  To improve our services to the older generation 

  within the Cherwell district
G G G No information has been provided this quarter - to be updated Q4

  To ensure all our services both internal and external 

  are accessible to all Equality Groups at a high 

  standard

G G G No complaints received this quarter under discrimination

  To break the cycle of deprivation within the district 

  (Brighter Futures in Banbury Programme)
G G G

2012/13 programme priorities established. Review of performance indicators and data underway due to extent of 

change since Brighter futures Programme commenced.  Funding support given to Banbury Street Pastors.  Thriving 

Families initiative integrated locally with Brighter Futures activities.

  Promote integration between communities and 

  groups through the use of sport, leisure, cultural 

  activities and opportunities for community 

  involvement

G G G

Good progress made.  Music project with young homeless people, Lanntern project before Christmas with residents 

of Ruscote Ward.  Several Taking Part projects with older people improving Quality of Life across a variety of 

indicators using various artforms.  Large scale Community Arts Lantern making project in Bicester.

Building Strong and Cohesive Communities 

Corporate Equalities Plan 2012/13 : Quarter 3

Fair Access and Customer Satisfaction

Tackling Inequality and Deprivation

P
a
g
e
 2

2
5



Appendix D

Quarter 1

30/06/2012

Quarter 2

30/09/12
Quarter 3

31/12/2012
Comments on performance

Corporate Equalities Plan 2012/13 : Quarter 3

  Gain better engagement and work with young 

  people within the district
G G G Youth Councils supported in Bicester and Banbury.

  Establish links with minority 

  representation/community groups to help 

  improve services 

n/a G G

The Outreach Team in addition to their 'normal' work attended the following event:

Electric Fire Blanket testing; Parish Liaison Meeting; Bicester and Banbury foodbank; Bicester and Banbury 

Jobclubs; Horsefair doctors surgery; Neithrop Library; CAB project and Age Uk

  Raise internal awareness of diversity within our 

  community 
G G G

No "Knowing your Community" events have taken place this quarter.  The next event is planned for February 2013 

and is themed "offender release into the community" and is being planned in partnership with Bullingdon Prison.

  Review and publicise all documentation in line 

  with government framework
G G G All documents are published on Cherwell District council website in line with government legislation

  Review CDC performance against Achieving 

  criteria to maintain/improve standards
G G

Annual Equality Self Assessment is currently being undertaken by the corporate Policy Officer and members of the 

Corporate Equality Steering Group.  Completion due for the beginning of February 2013.  An area for improvement 

document will be created after this.

  Ensure staff and services promote and embed 

  equality into their work
G G

Q3 has seen the majority of Bodicote House staff complete the Fair and Aware training modules.  Q4 will see the 

Depot staff receive their training and a proposal for Member Fair and Aware training.

  Maximise output from the Equality & Diversity 

  Steering Group
G G

The Corporate Equality Steering Group meet during November 2012 but received very low attendance.  A potential 

reason for this could be caused by some key members due to leave the organisation in early 2013.  The next 

meeting is booked for late February 2013 whereby membership and a potential discussion to create a joint steering 

group between Cherwell and South Northants will be discussed.

Positive Engagement and Understanding

`P
a
g

e
 2

2
6



Appendix E

Quarter 1 

30/06/2012

Quarter 2 

30/09/2012

Quarter 3

31/12/2012
Comments on Performance

A A Awaiting comments from OCC

A A Awaiting comments from OCC

G G Awaiting comments 

G G

G G

Support skills development/apprenticeships/job clubs to 

reduce NEETS (19+) 

Business Development

Employment Support & Skills : Cherwell District Council (CDC)

Brighter Futures in Banbury Programme 2012/13 :  Quarter 3

Early Years, Community Learning & Young Peoples Attainment : Oxfordshire County Council (OCC)

Family Learning Programme

Improve educational attainment through better skills in 

numeracy / maths and more effective family 

engagement

Job ClubsP
a
g
e
 2

2
7



Appendix E

Quarter 1 

30/06/2012

Quarter 2 

30/09/2012

Quarter 3

31/12/2012
Comments on Performance

Brighter Futures in Banbury Programme 2012/13 :  Quarter 3

G G

A A

This programme has been cancelled and is to be replaced with a 'Talent Match' service which has now been created 

helping to match and develop skills to provide local sources of employment for people living in Brighter Future in 

Banbury wards.

G G G

CDC is working with Registered Providers on the 2011-15 affordable homes programme.  Excellent progress has 

been made on future opportunities and the Homes and Communities Agency has praised Cherwell's "Investment 

Ready" approach.  Further investment has been made available through CDC's Investment Partner status with the 

HCA, the  Places for Change programme and the Empty homes funding.

G G G

CDC has been establishing customers whose income will reduce as a result of the welfare reforms, - e.g. customers 

affected have been telephoned and this has been supplemented by a letter where appropriate.  This work has 

resulted in various outcomes such as discretionary housing payments and changed circumstances by the customer.  

Further work is on-going regarding the implications of the size criteria for social housing and joint work is in place with 

G G G
Joint working in place to understand impact of changes to Supporting People funding programme and greater links to 

health and wellbeing agenda.

G G G

The Green Deal was launched in October 2012.  CDC is a member of the Community Interest company (CIC) which 

will implement the Green Deal via the United sustainable energy Agency (USEA).  Loft insulation is now free.   The 

change to a loan (from a grant) with no upfront costs will result in the costs being recouped from the customers utility 

bills. 

G G G
A strategic priority for Cherwell District Council.  There is a strong continued emphasis on homelessness prevention 

measures.

A A A
Although there are some successful programmes in place it will be some while before we can ascertain whether the 

overall aim of increasing life expectancy in these wards has been achieved

A A A Data is reported annually in arrears so no update due until Quarter 4.

Financial Inclusion & Housing : Cherwell District Council

Health & Wellbeing   : Oxfordshire County Council

Improve life expectancy with improved overall health 

and well-being

Housing for our most vulnerable residents

Ensuring homes are safe, warm and well managed

Preventing Homelessness

Increase supply & access to housing

Developing financially & socially sustainable 

communities

Reducing high rates of teenage pregnancy

Skills

Career Ladders :

12 Ladders to be developed with Brightsparks

P
a
g

e
 2

2
8



Appendix E

Quarter 1 

30/06/2012

Quarter 2 

30/09/2012

Quarter 3

31/12/2012
Comments on Performance

Brighter Futures in Banbury Programme 2012/13 :  Quarter 3

G n/a n/a

G G

G G G
A number of community events have taken place over the summer and we have had high visibility within our 

communities.

Provide performance reports and Connecting 

Communities events

Safe & Strong Communities   : Thames Valley Police

Build a safer and more connected community, where 

residents feel socially included

Performance & Community Engagement : Cherwell District Council

Family Support & NEETS (Under 19) : Oxfordshire County Council /HUB

Provide support to families and young people not in 

employment education or training

P
a
g
e
 2

2
9



P
a
g

e
 2

3
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Appendix F

Quarter 1

Performance

Quarter  2 

Performance

Quarter  3 

Performance
Comments on Performance

  Oxfordshire Partnership Board G G G Agendas received and Officer attendance at meetings

  Health and Well Being Partnership 

  Board (H&WB)
A G G

The shadow Health and Wellbeing partnership structure is in place and well established with a range of county 

wide priorities set for 2012/13 and beyond.  The Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Consortium as a key player in 

this new structure is in place and recently accredited for full operation from April 2013.

  Environment and Waste Partnership G G G
Environment and Waste Partnership working well - issue regarding flow of funds within the OWP has now been 

resolved.

  Oxfordshire Safer Community Partnership (OSCP) G G G Attendance at OSCP Group on-going.  Actions on PCC, county Plans, CCTV and strategies progressing.

  Oxfordshire Stronger Communities 

  Alliance (OSCA)
G G A

Watching brief kept on Oxfordshire Stronger Communities alliance.  It doesn't seem to achieve much other than 

networking opportunities through its meetings.

  Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEP)

  (Oxfordshire)
G G G

  Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEP)

  (South Midlands)
G G G

  Cherwell Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) G G G

LSP has a slimmed down structure and workload to accommodate reduced support resources available.  Terms of 

Reference amended to reflect new arrangements.  Board members will be encouraged to take a more proactive 

role in setting the Board's agenda.

  Cherwell Safer Community Partnership  (CSCP) G G G
At the last meeting LPA Commander informed the group of outstanding success so far.  LPA Commander is now 

Colin Paine.

Significant Partnerships 2012/2013 : Quarter 3

Sub-Regional Partnerships

Cherwell-specific Partnerships

Both Local Enterprise Partnerships are at an early stage of development.

Cherwell District Council is active in both to ensure they support the achievement of local economic priorities

P
a
g
e
 2

3
1



Appendix F

Quarter 1

Performance

Quarter  2 

Performance

Quarter  3 

Performance
Comments on Performance

Significant Partnerships 2012/2013 : Quarter 3

  Cherwell M40 Investment Partnership (CHIP) G G G
Day to day work through CHIP, providing services to business, continued and statistics are recorded under 

Business Development and Jobs created

  Banbury Town Centre Partnership (BTCP) G G G

Cherwell District Council is active within the BTCP and is working to ensure that the development of the Banbury 

Masterplan strengthens the Town Centre with a close input from the BTCP. 

In addition, CDC is working with BTCP on the application of the Portas Review into Town Centres.

  Bicester Vision (BV) G G G

Cherwell District Council is an active member of Bicester Vision with the Chief Executive, Treasurer.  We 

have engaged Bicester Vision in advising on the economic dimension of the Bicester Masterplan and the potential 

to increase employment in the town and the marketing of the town for inward investment

  Kidlington Village Centre Management Board G G G No Management Board meetings held this quarter but work is progressing on the Kidlington Masterplan.

  Homelessness Strategy Partnership G G G On track

  Cherwell RSL Partnership & Sanctuary 

  Housing Group
G G G On track

  NW Bicester Strategic Delivery Board G G

  Banbury Brighter Futures G G G

2012/13 programme priorities  established.  Review  of performance indicators and data underway due to extent of 

change since Brighter Futures programme commenced.  Funding support given to Banbury Street Pastors.  

Thriving Families initiative integrated locally with BF activities.

P
a
g

e
 2

3
2



 

   

Executive  
 

2012/13 Quarter 3 Finance Report 
 

4 March 2013  
 

Report of Head of Finance and Procurement 
 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
This report summarises the Council’s Revenue, Capital, Procurement action plan and 
Treasury performance for the first 9 months of the financial year 2012/13 and 
projections for the full 2012/13 period.  
 
These are measured by the budget monitoring function and reported via the 
Performance Management Framework (PMF) informing the 2013/14 budget process. 
 
 
 
 

This report is public 
 

 
 
Recommendations 

 
The Executive is recommended: 
 
(1) To note the projected revenue and capital position at December 2012. 

 
(2) To note the Q3 performance against the 2012/13 investment strategy. 

 
(3) To note the contents and the progress against the Corporate Procurement 

Action Plan (detailed in Appendix 1) and the Procurement savings achieved 
at December 2012 (detailed in Appendix 2). 

 
 
Executive Summary 

 
Introduction 

1.1 In line with good practice budget monitoring is undertaken on a monthly basis 
within the Council. The revenue, capital, treasury and procurement position is 
reported monthly to the Joint Management Team and formally to the 
Executive on a quarterly basis. This report includes the position at Q3 – 
December 2012. 

 
1.2 The revenue and capital expenditure in Q3 has been subject to a detailed 

review by Officers and reported monthly to management as part of the 
corporate dashboard.  

Agenda Item 9

Page 233



 

   

1.3 The treasury performance has been reviewed regularly and reported to the 
Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee who undertake the governance and 
monitoring role. 
 

1.4 We continue to consult with our treasury advisors Sector on a regular basis 
regarding counterparties, understanding risk and diversification of the 
portfolio. 
 

1.5 The procurement action plan is reviewed monthly and exceptions are 
reported to the Procurement Steering Group. 
 

1.6 The LGRR project team continues to meet regularly and analyse any new 
intelligence or respond to consultations so that we can evaluate the 
implications for the Council, its residents and its finances. 
 
Conclusion 

 
1.7 Due to the downturn in the economy, impact of the credit crunch on Council 

services and the volatility of the financial markets, the Council is keeping a 
watching brief on any challenges that they may need to face which may result 
in a redirection of budgets.  

 
1.8 The variances on the revenue and capital projections are within the Council’s 

stated tolerances of +2% / -5%.  
 
1.9 The Council has a General Fund Revenue reserve to meet any budgetary 

surplus or deficit. 
 
1.10 At the end of quarter 3, interest received was 27% more than budgeted and 

shows a positive result across both funds. This was mainly due to higher than 
planned balances when creating the budget (as we had a higher level of 
capital programme slippage from 2011/12), obtaining better than projected 
rates from our investments, and the change in allocation of funds.  
 

1.11 Performance against treasury strategy and procurement action plan is on 
track. 
 

1.12 The Chancellor’s Autumn Statement was delivered on 5 December 2012 and 
the settlement was received on 19 December. The LGRR project team has 
processed this intelligence and implications for the 2013/14 budget which was 
reported to the January 2013 Executive. 
 

 
 
Background Information 

 
 
Revenue Projected Outturn 2012/13 
 
2.1 We are currently projecting to be on track to budget at the year end.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 234



 

   

DEC 2012  PROJECTIONS 
Full-Year 
Budget 

Projected 
Out-turn 

Projection 
Variance 

 2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 

 £000's £000's £000's 

DIRECTORATES     

Community & Environment 8,496 8,372 (124) 

Resources 3,059 2,802 (257) 

Development 4,469 4,333 (136) 

    

Net Expenditure Services 16,024 15,507 (517) 

 
Executive Matters 
Increase in Investment Income   (240) (240) 

Transfer to Reserves  757 757 

Net Position 16,024 16,024 0 

 
Net Revenue Projected (under) / overspend 
2012/13 @ December 2012   0 

 
 

 
 
 
2.2 Community and Environment shows a projected underspend of £124k.  
  

The previously reported underspend (primarily relating to Environmental 
Services and the new dry recyclables contract) has been partly offset by 
overspends such as agency costs, reductions in recycling credits and the 
Christmas free parking period in Community Services. 
 

Page 235



 

   

2.3 Resources shows a projected underspend of £257k. 
 

This primarily relates to Service Assurance with a projected underspend due 
to Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit expenditure and subsidy. There is 
also a projected underspend on Discretionary Rate Relief. 
 
In addition there are underspends relating to a reduced external audit contract 
and consultancy fees. 
 

2.4 Development shows a projected underspend of £136k. 
 
This primarily relates to areas within Development Control where Advice has 
a saving on consultancy, Appeals are showing an underspend due to low 
spend on professional fees and income is exceeding the current budget, this 
has been adjusted in the 2013/14 budget. 
 

2.5 Executive Matters 
We are projecting additional investment income of £240,000 for the reasons 
detailed later in the report in Para 3.4. 
 
This together with the net £517,000 underspend in services projects a 
transfer into general fund reserves of £757,000. This has been considered in 
forming the 2013/14 budget. 
 

 
Capital Projection 2012/13 
 
2.5 Total capital spend to December 2012, including commitments, amounts to 

£2.295m. This represents 12% of the total annual budget and 16% of the 
periodic budget. 

 

 

DEC 12  PROJECTIONS 
Full-Year 
Budget 

Projected 
Out-turn 

Projection 
Variance 

 2012/13 2012/13 2012/13 

 £000's £000's £000's 

DIRECTORATES     

Community & Environment Total 3,370 1,274 (2,096) 

Resources Total 399 399 0 

Development Total 15,403 8,144 (7,259) 

Capital Total 19,172 9,817 (9,355) 

Analysed:-     

Identified Slippage – Com & Env   1,912 

Identified Slippage - Development   7,114 

Variance After Slippage   (329) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 236



 

   

The Capital Budget for 2012/13 can be analysed as follows:- 
 

Capital Budget 2012/13 £000’s 

Approved Capital programme for 2012/13 (including 
Supplementary) 9,455  

 
Slippage from 2011/12 Programme  9,717  

   19,172  

 
2.6 The projected 2012/13 spend for capital schemes as at December 2012 is 

currently  £9.8m , the slippage predicted is shown below: 
 

Description 

ANNUAL 
BUDGET 

£000 

Slippage 
Required 

£000 Comments 

Biomass Heating for Bicester Leisure Centre 385 365 Timing 

Replacement Cabling Infrastructure for CCTV 
and Of 48 48 Timing 

Football Development Plan in Banbury 20 20 Timing 

South West Bicester Sports Village 1,366 1,136 Timing 

Urban Centres Improvements 15 15 Timing 

Implementing Vehicle Parks Proposals 20 20 Timing 

Sports Centre Modernisation Programme 249 249 Retention 

Energy Efficiency Projects 80 30 Timing 

Mini MRF [Materials Recovery Facility] 29 29 Timing 

Community and Environment Total 2,212 1,912   

        

Cherwell Community Led Programme 2,076 1,700 Timing 

Bicester Cattle Market Car Park Phase 2 90 90 Timing 

Bicester Pedestrianisation 250 250 Timing 

Future Regeneration Schemes Preliminary Prof 
Fees 52 25 Timing 

Old Bodicote House 225 179 Timing 

Bicester Town Centre Redevelopment 9,980 4,500 Timing 

Photovoltaic at Bodicote House & Banbury 
Museum 350 220 Timing 

Disabled Facilities Grants 964 100 Timing 

Discretionary Grants for Domestic Properties   325 50 Low demand 

Development Total 14,312 7,114   

 
 
Treasury Management Performance Q3 2012/13 
 
Update on Cherwell’s Treasury Performance  
 
3.1  The Treasury Management Strategy for 2013/14, which includes the Annual 

Investment Strategy was taken to Council for approval on 25 February 2013. 
It sets out the Council’s investment priorities as being: Security of Capital; 
Liquidity; and Yield 
 

3.2  The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on 
investments commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity. In the 

Page 237



 

   

current economic climate it is considered appropriate to keep investments 
short term to cover short term cash flow needs but also to seek out value 
available in significantly higher rates in periods up to 12 months with highly 
credit rated financial institutions, using Sector’s suggested creditworthiness 
approach, including sovereign credit rating and Credit Default Swap (CDS) 
overlay information provided by Sector: this applies in particular to 
nationalised and semi nationalised UK banks. 

 
3.3 Given the turmoil in peripheral Europe, our investments list does not have 

direct exposure to any sovereign debt of Portugal, Ireland Greece, Spain or 
Italy and that includes their national banks,. However, indirectly the banks on 
our lending list, in all probability do have exposure in some shape or form to 
either or both. Our lending criterion is very stringent and only the very largest 
banks are considered through negotiable securities, providing us with the 
greatest liquidity and flexibility. 

 
3.4  Investment rates available in the market have continued at historically low 

levels. The average level of funds available for investment purposes was 
£82.7m. These funds were available on a temporary basis, and the level of 
funds available was mainly dependent on the timing of precept payments, 
receipt of grants and progress on the Capital Programme and ECO Bicester.  

 
Investment performance at 31 December 2012 was: 
 

Fund 

Amount at 31 
December 

2012  
Interest 
Budget 

Actual 
Interest Variance 

Rate of 
return % 

 
TUK  0  90,538 105,913 15,375 1.95% 

Investec 11,742,224  64,687 110,731 46,044 1.17% 

In House 70,456,931  488,626 599,541 110,916 1.34% 

Total 82,446,881  643,851  816,264  172,412 1.37% 

 
3.5 At the end of quarter 3, interest received was 27% more than budgeted and 

shows a positive result across all funds. This was mainly due to higher than 
planned balances when creating the budget as we had a higher level of 
capital programme slippage from 2011/12, obtaining better than projected 
rates from our investments, and the change in allocation of funds between 
Investec , TUK and in-house.  
 

3.6 As a result we have reviewed our interest projection for the year and we are 
currently projecting we will receive additional investment income of £240k 
after the deduction of interest in respect of Eco town funds which will be 
returned to the Eco Town funding amount. The amount in respect of the Eco 
Town funds is anticipated to be approximately £150k which will be transferred 
to the project funds. 

 
 
Procurement Action Plan and Record of Savings 2012/13 
 
4.1 Progress against the Council’s procurement action plan is detailed under 

Appendix 1 with a record of savings achieved to January 2013 detailed under 
Appendix 2. 

 

Page 238



 

   

4.2 The Joint Procurement Team has been in place since July 2012 and has been 
working on a joint forward plan to provide savings targets and support a range 
of programmes across the Councils including the Build! Affordable Home 
Programme, the South West Bicester Sports Village project, the Canalside 
Regeneration Options Appraisal, the Bicester Civic Centre build project, Fleet 
Management software, Corporate Bookings Software and a number of HR 
related exercises related to the Joint Management Team. 

 
4.3 The procurement target for securing ongoing cashable savings in 2012/13 is 

£150,000 and to date total savings achieved amount to £106,424. Non-
cashable savings of £48,285 and capital savings of £269,000 have also been 
secured.  

 
4.4 A significant number of projects have been capital or programme based, such 

as the property condition surveys, the fleet management software and the 
Build! Affordable Homes Programme, which has seen substantial savings 
against budget to date – e.g. an estimated £235,000 saving against the South 
West Bicester new build project. 

 
4.5 Further to the first meeting of the Officer Procurement Working Group with 

Stratford-on-Avon Council a work plan was submitted to the three way Joint 
Arrangements Steering Group in February. The work plan was agreed and is to 
be followed up on from March with a forward plan across all three Councils 
identifying projects suitable for joint procurement exercises over the short and 
longer term. Work groups will be scheduled for each opportunity to establish 
savings targets and agree project timetables.  

 
 
Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options 

 
5.1 This report illustrates the Council’s performance against the 2012/13 

Financial Targets for Revenue, Capital, Treasury and Procurement 
Monitoring. 

 
The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is 
believed to be the best way forward 
 
Option One To review current performance levels and considers any 

actions arising. 
 

Option Two To approve or reject the recommendations above or 
request that Officers provide additional information. 

 
 
Consultations 

 
The revenue and capital position has been subject to regular review by the Corporate 
Management Team. 
 
The investment and procurement strategies have been subject to regular review with 
Members and the Joint Management Team. 
 
 
 

Page 239



 

   

Implications 

 

Financial: Financial Effects – The financial effects are as outlined in 
the report.   
Efficiency Savings – There are no efficiency savings 
arising directly from this report however the budget 
2012/13 was based on a number of efficiencies. In 
addition we made a public promise of £800k savings 
which are being actively pursued as part of the 2013/14 
budget setting process. 

 Comments checked by Beth Baines, Strategic Finance 
Accountant 01327 322223 

Legal: There are no legal implications. Presentation of this report 
is in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

 Comments checked by Kevin Lane, Head of Law and 
Governance, 01295 222045. 

Risk Management: The position to date highlights the relevance of 
maintaining a minimum level of reserves and budget 
contingency to absorb the financial impact of changes 
during the year. 

It is essential that the treasury annual report is considered 
by the Executive as it demonstrates that the risk of not 
complying with the Council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy has been monitored in 2011/12. 

 Comments checked by Nicola Jackson, Corporate 
Finance Manager 01295 221731. 

 
Wards Affected 

 
All 
 
Corporate Plan Themes 

 
An Accessible and Value for Money Council 
 
Executive Portfolio 

 
Councillor Ken Atack   
Lead Member for Financial Management 
 
 
Document Information 

 

Appendix No Title 

Appendix 1 
Appendix 2 

Record of progress Against Procurement action Plan 2012/13 
Procurement Savings Achieved April to Dec 2012 

Background Papers 

None 

Report Author Karen Curtin, Head of Finance  

Beth Baines, Strategic Finance Accountant 

Page 240



 

   

Viv Hichens, Corporate Strategic Procurement Manager 

Karen Muir, Project Accountant 

Contact 
Information 

01327 322223 

beth.baines@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk  

 

Page 241



Page 242

This page is intentionally left blank



Cherwell District Council 2012/13 PROJECTED REVENUE & CAPITAL OUTTURN AT 31st January 2013 

Appendix 3 - Record of Progress Against Joint Procurement Action Plan for 2012/13  
 

Page 1 of 3 

8.1 Embed the use of the Joint Procurement Strategy objectives across the Council and ensure good governance and full compliance 

Action Status Progress Narrative 

 

• Rollout and reinforce the strategy and compliance with 
the Contract Procedure Rules across both Councils. 

 
 
 

• Enhance the scrutiny and policy development role of the 
Procurement Steering Group Strategy Group. 

 
 

 
Onward going  
 
 
 
 
Onward going 

 
1-2-1 training sessions with officers on a project by project basis 
supplemented by attendance at team, divisional and directorate 
meetings and meetings with operational managers and 
supervisors. 
 
Recent focus on Community Right to Challenge and drawing up 
of schedule and criteria for challenges. The Joint Contract 
Procedure Rules provide a corporate approach to challenges.  
 

8.2 Sustainability   

Action Status Progress Narrative 

 

• Ensure sustainability is addressed with each 
procurement exercise by utilising the sustainability 
questions within the stakeholder questionnaires and 
encouraging sustainability to be included within 
evaluation criteria as well as the assessment/pre-
qualification stages. 

 
 
 

• Encourage project officers to break down larger 
contracts to match SME and Social Enterprise capacity 
where appropriate.  

 
Onward going  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Onward going  
 

  
Sustainability is being addressed with each exercise from 
purchase of Refuse Collection Vehicles to paper used in the multi-
functional printers to the recently implemented buildings 
maintenance framework. Good progress is being made with the 
biomass boiler installation tender for Bicester Leisure Centre and 
a corporate biomass fuel supply contract is being put in place to 
provide a sustainable supply for the three biomass boilers 
installed across the district.  
 
A productive meeting with the Leader of the Council and the 
Federation of Small Businesses has led to a link to opportunities 
at the Council being posted on the FSB website. The property 
maintenance framework tender broke the requirements down into 
three lots with substantial local SME interest. 

P
a
g
e
 2

4
3



Cherwell District Council 2012/13 PROJECTED REVENUE & CAPITAL OUTTURN AT 31st January 2013 

Appendix 3 - Record of Progress Against Joint Procurement Action Plan for 2012/13  
 

Page 2 of 3 

 

8.3 Value for money and transparency  

Action Status Progress Narrative 

 

• Deliver significant cost and efficiency savings; 
Cherwell District Council - £150,000 target and 
South Northamptonshire £100,000 target. 

 
 

 
Behind target 
 
 

 
Cashable savings year-to-date of £106,424 against a Q3 
target of £112,500. Non-cashable savings of £48,285 and 
capital savings of £9000.  
A significant number of projects have been capital or 
programme based, such as the Build! Affordable Homes 
Programme, the South West Bicester Sports Village project, 
the Canalside Regeneration Options Appraisal, the Bicester 
Civic Centre build project, Fleet Management software, 
Corporate Bookings Software and a number of HR related 
exercises to do with JMT. All of these projects are being 
delivered below budget and are reducing the running costs of 
the Council – e.g. the Corporate Bookings Software will 
enable online booking facilities across a range of services 
24/7.  
 
 

8.4 Joint Working   

Action Status Progress Narrative 

• Deliver a joint working forward plan that reflects the 
procurement requirements of both Councils across 
2012/13 

 
 

Onward going 
 
 
 
 

The joint forward plan is taking in all areas with a particular 
focus on Environmental Services (Vehicles & wheelie bins), 
ICT Phase 2 (including a hosted sales and booking system 
and maintenance agreements) and Facilities Management 
(including planned and reactive maintenance). 
 

8.5 Transformation   

Action Status Progress Narrative 

• Provide procurement support to programme office 
as required, offering innovative solutions to deliver 
the transformation agenda. 

 

Onward going  
 

Substantial support being provided to the Build! Affordable 
Homes Programme, the SW Bicester Sports Village project, 
the Bicester Civic Centre build project, and the regeneration 
options appraisals for Spiceball and Canalside in Banbury.  

P
a
g

e
 2

4
4



Cherwell District Council 2012/13 PROJECTED REVENUE & CAPITAL OUTTURN AT 31st January 2013 

Appendix 3 - Record of Progress Against Joint Procurement Action Plan for 2012/13  
 

Page 3 of 3 

 

8.6 Collaboration, Selling and Marketing  

Action Status Progress Narrative 

 

• Collaboration with Stratford 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Promote existing contracts open to other authorities 
which can be sold on in 2012/13: 
o Report back quarterly on progress and any 

additional savings or discounts achieved for 
either Council 

 
 
 
 

 
Onward going 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Commenced with no 
outcome as yet.  
 
 
 

 
Further to the first meeting of the Officer Procurement 
Working Group with Stratford-on-Avon a work plan was 
submitted to the three way Joint Arrangements Steering 
Group in February. The work plan was agreed and is to be 
followed up on from March with a forward plan across all three 
Councils identifying projects suitable for joint procurement 
exercises over the next three to five years. Work groups will 
be scheduled for each opportunity to establish savings targets 
and agree project timetables.  
 
 
The internal audit contract has been actively promoted to 
Oxford City Council and Northampton Borough Council. 
 
The dry waste recycling services contracts have been actively 
promoted to Oxford City Council and the approach is currently 
being discussed with Stratford-on-Avon DC. Volume discounts 
will benefit both Cherwell District Council and SNC.  

8.7 Develop the corporate contract management methodology and promote 
across all service areas 

 

Action Status Progress Narrative 

• Maintain a Council wide register of all 
contracts/agreements for all term contracts with a 
lifetime value of more than £10K.  

 

• Rollout the Contracts Management Steering Group 
across both councils. 

Onward going 
 
 
 
Still to be progressed 

A joint contracts register is now in place with information as to 
contracts at both councils publicised across both Oxfordshire 
and Northamptonshire.  
 
Contract management is being reviewed on a project by 
project basis with the steering group initiative put back to 
2013/14.  

 

P
a
g
e
 2

4
5



P
a
g

e
 2

4
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



$3slu0cuv.xls

Service Area Contract Description Contract Value

Cashable 

with budget 

reduction

Non-

cashable
Capital

Various P Cards £48,285

Environmental Services Refuse Collection Vehicles £290,000 £450 £9,000

Environmental Services

Vehicle Spare Parts - No price increase.(saving 

of £1286) Savings full CPI & 2.5% prompt 

payment discount.(saving of £918) £2,204

Environmental Services

Public Toilets Cleaning. No price increase. 

Prices held at 2011-12 prices.(saving £3725) 

Plus 3.25% early payment discount.(£3459) 

(However Becca thinks this part may have 

already been taken into account when budgets 

were prepared at the end of last year) £7,184

Environmental Services

Pest Control. Price increase of 2.4%. Saving 

3.5% - 2.4% = 1.1% = £351 £351

Regeneration & Estates

Heating - no price increase. Saving 3.5% = £303 

plus prompt payment £477

Regeneration & Estates

Cooling - Price increase 2.4%. Saving 3.5% - 

2.4% = 1.1% = £69.28 plus prompt payment 

discount £384

Finance & Procurement Internal Audit £30,400

Regeneration & Estates

Door & Shutter Maintenance - fixed price for 2nd 

yr £65

Regeneration & Estates Water Hygiene - 1% increase £265

Regeneration & Estates Lift Maintenance - fixed price for 2nd yr £34

Regeneration & Estates Office Cleaning £361

Regeneration & Estates Coffee Machines £2,438

Environmental Services Public Toilet Maintenance £158

Regeneration & Estates PAT Testing £234

Regeneration & Estates

Maintenance of UPS Sytems, Generator, 

Inverter Battery Systems £1,173

Regeneration & Estates Out of Hours Answering Service £1,407

Environmental Services Traffic Management £1,300

Urban & Rural Fairground Preparation £3,038

Licensing Car Park Machine Maintenance £240

Regeneration & Estates Car Park Barriers & Bus Station Gates £138

Finance Paper for MFD's £250

Finance/Urban & Rural Cash Collection £1,573

Regeneration & Estates Reactive Maintenance £9,000

Communications Cherwell Link Distribution £5,000

Media Monitoring Software £2,000

Corporate Consultation Programme £20,000

Credit Checking Services £500

Property Condition Surveys £5,000

Build! SW Bicester Affordable Homes £1,175 £235,000

Fleet Management Software £1,600 £3,000

Non core stationery £2,000

Hosted Sales and Booking Software £3,000 £17,000

Canalside Regeneration Options Appraisal £25 £5,000

Treasury Management Services £1,000

Public Notices £2,000

Total YTD £106,424 £48,285 £269,000

Dry waste recycling - 2012/13 £432,000

£538,424

Build! Design Framework £200,000

Build! Consultancy Support £18,000

Business Planning Facilitation (Horizon 

Scanning) £3,000

Biomass Boiler Consultancy for Bicester Leisure 

Centre £20,640.00

Banbury Museum's Extending the Reach Co-

ordinator £55,000.00

Housing Valuer £14,437.50

JMT 360 Degree Appraisal Facilitation £6,000.00

Joint CEX Appraisal Facilitation £6,000.00

Options appraisal for harmonisation of Employee 

Terms and Conditions £5,000.00

Occupational Health Provision £11,000.00

Cycle to Work Scheme

Childcare Vouchers

Subscriptions Review £15,000.00

£354,077.50

Projects completed in 2011/12 with savings captured in 2012/13

Projects completed in 2012/13 with no cashable savings

Page 1 of 1Page 247



Page 248

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Page 249

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Restricted Minute , 04/02/2013 Executive

	6 Local Plan 2012 Update
	Local Plan  - Annex
	Appendix A - List of development policies which will apply to all development in Cherwell District
	Appendix B - List of proposed development sites
	Appendix C - Local Plan Evidence Base
	Appendix D - Summary of Representations 220213
	Appendix E - Banbury Key Proposals Draft
	Appendix E - Bicester Key Proposals Draft
	Appendix E - Kidlington Key Proposals Draft

	7 Update on Major Programmes
	Project Management Statement of Recommended Practice v1 0

	8 Performance Management Framework 2012/13 Third Quarter Performance Report
	Appendix A CDC Q3 2012-2013 Performance Scorecard
	Appendix B - CDC business plan final 2012-13
	Appendix C Programme Management Q3
	Appendix D Corporate Equalities Plan Q3
	Appendix E Brighter Futures Q3
	Appendix F Partnerships Q3

	9 2012/13 Quarter 3 Finance Report
	Appendix 1 - Record of Progress Against Joint Procurement Strategy - Q3 2012 to 2013
	Appendix 2 - Procurement Savings Achieved for April 2012 to January 2013

	12 Bodicote Park

